
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOARD  
OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
MEETING 

 
 
  



 
 

CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Conference Room, Fifth Floor, 121 N. 9th Street 
October 12, 2020, 12:00 p.m. 

 
Virtual attendance is strongly encouraged.   

Please visit: https://ccdcboise.com/the-agency/board-of-commissioners/ 
 

A G E N D A 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER .............................................................................................................. Chair Zuckerman 

 

II. ACTION ITEM: AGENDA CHANGES/ADDITIONS ............................................................ Chair Zuckerman 

 

III. ACTION ITEM: CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Expenses 
1. Approval of Paid Invoice Report - September 2020 

 
B. Minutes and Reports 

1. Approval of September 14, 2020 Meeting Minutes 

 
C. Other 

1. Approve Resolution #1672 - CityGO Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

2. Approve Resolution #1677 - Prequalification of Contractors for 9th & Front Garage Stair Structural 

Repairs 

3. Approve Resolution #1678 - Prequalification of Contractors for 10th & Front Garage Structural 

Damage Repairs 

4. Approve Resolution #1679 - Main and Fairview Transit Stops - Design Services Amendment No. 1 

 

IV. ACTION ITEM  

A. CONSIDER: Issuing Request for Qualifications/Proposals (RFQ/P) 1715 W. Idaho Street - Housing Infill 

Development (10 minutes) .................................................................................................... Brady Shinn 

 
V. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. CCDC Monthly Report (5 minutes) ...................................................................................... John Brunelle 

 

B. Westside District - Preparation for Transformation RFP (10 minutes) .............................. Doug Woodruff 

 

C. Parking and Mobility Update (10 minutes) ........................................................................... Matt Edmond 

 
D. Special Item - Max Clark Recognition (10 minutes) ............................................................ Agency Team 

 

VI. ADJOURN 

This meeting will be conducted in compliance with the Idaho Open Meetings Law. In addition, all COVID-19 health safety protocols will 
be observed. Face masks and social distancing will be required. Due to limited seating in-person attendees may be required to wait 
outside the meeting room once the maximum safe meeting room capacity is reached. All CCDC Board members will attend virtually. 
Interested members of the public are welcome and are encouraged to attend virtually via the link above. 

This meeting is being conducted in a location accessible to those with physical disabilities. Participants may request reasonable 
accommodations, including but not limited to a language interpreter, from CCDC to facilitate their participation. For assistance with 
accommodation, contact CCDC at 121 N 9th St, Suite 501 or (208) 384-4264 (TTY Relay 1-800-377-3529). 

https://ccdcboise.com/the-agency/board-of-commissioners/


 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

III.  
CONSENT 
AGENDA 

 
 
  



Payee Description Payment Date Amount
Debt Service:

Payroll:  
PERSI Retirement Payment 9/9/2020 18,592.71           
EFTPS - IRS Federal Payroll Taxes 9/9/2020 14,519.10           
Idaho State Tax Commission State Payroll Taxes 9/9/2020 2,173.00             
CCDC Employees Direct Deposits Net Pay 9/9/2020 37,696.35           
PERSI Retirement Payment 9/23/2020 18,592.71           
EFTPS - IRS Federal Payroll Taxes 9/23/2020 14,519.10           
Idaho State Tax Commission State Payroll Taxes 9/23/2020 2,173.00             
CCDC Employees Direct Deposits Net Pay 9/23/2020 37,696.36           

Total Payroll Payments: 145,962.33         

Checks and ACH 
Various Vendors Check and ACH Payments (See Attached) September 2020 3,057,158.19      

Total Cash Disbursements: 3,203,120.52$    

  

Finance Director Executive Director

Date Date

 

Paid Invoice Report 
For the Period: 9/1/2020 through 9/30/2020

I have reviewed and approved all cash disbursements in the month listed above.

10/5/2020

           JB

10-7-2020



CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP Paid Invoice Report - Alphabetical Page:     1

Check issue dates: 9/1/2020 - 9/30/2020 Sep 29, 2020  09:52AM

Report Criteria:

Detail report type printed

Vendor Invoice Invoice Amount Check Check

Number Name Number Description Date Number Issue Date

4163 5th and Idaho Investors LL T2 2020 T2 contractual payment - 5 09/01/2020 170,979.00 63748 09/28/2020

Total 4163: 170,979.00

4126 Agnew Beck Consulting Inc 8916 Old Boise Grove Street Pu 07/31/2020 4,092.22 63749 09/28/2020

8916 Old Boise Grove Street Pu 07/31/2020 4,092.21 63749 09/28/2020

8916 Old Boise Grove Street Pu 07/31/2020 41.78 63749 09/28/2020

8916 Old Boise Grove Street Pu 07/31/2020 41.79 63749 09/28/2020

8959 Old Boise Grove Street Pu 08/31/2020 2,911.88 63749 09/28/2020

8959 Old Boise Grove Street Pu 08/31/2020 2,911.87 63749 09/28/2020

Total 4126: 14,091.75

3838 American Fire Protection L 10362 annual inspection 07/01/2020 3,394.00 63750 09/28/2020

10406 Service call 07/07/2020 185.00 63750 09/28/2020

10698 Monthly pump inspection &  08/12/2020 185.00 63750 09/28/2020

10773 Sevice call & fire system re 08/25/2020 4,077.50 63750 09/28/2020

Total 3838: 7,841.50

1316 Blue Cross of Idaho 2021800128 Health Insurance - Sept 20 09/01/2020 26,226.91 63728 09/01/2020

Total 1316: 26,226.91

1385 Boise City Utility Billing 1177 SEPT2 848 Main St # 0447416001 09/01/2020 8.17 11741 09/28/2020

Total 1385: 8.17

4141 Boise Hotel Investors LLC T2 2020 T2 contractual payment - H 09/01/2020 101,853.95 11724 09/30/2020

Total 4141: 101,853.95

4022 Boxcast Inc B57F3A3-00 storage fees 09/01/2020 15.46 11710 09/29/2020

Total 4022: 15.46

4082 BVGC Parcel B LLC 1600006729 11th & Front garage CAM e 08/01/2020 2,660.28 11725 09/30/2020

1600006893 11th & Front garage CAM e 09/01/2020 2,660.28 11725 09/30/2020

T3 2020 T3 contractual payment - pi 09/01/2020 612,452.50 11725 09/30/2020

Total 4082: 617,773.06

3712 Car Park JULY2020 10th & Front - Grove 07/31/2020 24,701.93 11726 09/30/2020

JULY2020 9th & Front - City Centre 07/31/2020 28,733.72 11726 09/30/2020

JULY2020 9th & Main - Eastman 07/31/2020 22,770.40 11726 09/30/2020

JULY2020 Cap & Front - BLVD 07/31/2020 12,326.81 11726 09/30/2020

JULY2020 Cap & Main - Cap Terrace 07/31/2020 31,101.80 11726 09/30/2020

JULY2020 Cap & Myrtle - Myrtle 07/31/2020 21,401.63 11726 09/30/2020

JULY2020 10th & Front - refunds 07/31/2020 280.00 11726 09/30/2020

JULY2020 9th & Front - refunds 07/31/2020 280.00 11726 09/30/2020

JULY2020 9th & Main - refunds 07/31/2020 12.00 11726 09/30/2020

JULY2020 Cap & Main - Refunds 07/31/2020 2,362.50 11726 09/30/2020

PARKBOI AU 10th & Front - Grove 08/31/2020 24,572.51 11726 09/30/2020

PARKBOI AU 9th & Front - City Centre 08/31/2020 31,249.16 11726 09/30/2020



CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP Paid Invoice Report - Alphabetical Page:     2

Check issue dates: 9/1/2020 - 9/30/2020 Sep 29, 2020  09:52AM

Vendor Invoice Invoice Amount Check Check

Number Name Number Description Date Number Issue Date

PARKBOI AU 9th & Main - Eastman 08/31/2020 22,102.40 11726 09/30/2020

PARKBOI AU Cap & Front - BLVD 08/31/2020 11,087.84 11726 09/30/2020

PARKBOI AU Cap & Main - Cap Terrace 08/31/2020 30,306.67 11726 09/30/2020

PARKBOI AU Cap & Myrtle - Myrtle 08/31/2020 17,120.82 11726 09/30/2020

PARKBOI AU Cap & Front - Refunds 08/31/2020 380.00 11726 09/30/2020

Total 3712: 280,790.19

3857 Carew Co 3273 CCDC Website Maint. 09/15/2020 262.50 63751 09/28/2020

Total 3857: 262.50

1556 Caselle Inc. 103759 Contract support - Sept 20 09/01/2020 840.00 63729 09/01/2020

Total 1556: 840.00

1595 City of Boise IL1574 Downtown Core Maint - R 08/01/2020 1,955.95 63752 09/28/2020

IL1574 Downtown Core Maint - W 08/01/2020 1,416.38 63752 09/28/2020

IL1584 Downtown Core Maint - R 09/01/2020 1,955.95 63752 09/28/2020

IL1584 Downtown Core Maint - W 09/01/2020 1,416.38 63752 09/28/2020

IL1591 Utility Reimbursement (Tra 08/31/2020 2,620.42 63752 09/28/2020

IL1591 Utility Reimbursement (Tra 08/31/2020 1,411.00 63752 09/28/2020

Total 1595: 10,776.08

4116 Civil Survey Consultants In 20015-05 Production Street and Gow 08/31/2020 5,412.00 11727 09/30/2020

Total 4116: 5,412.00

3947 Crane Alarm Service 70212 annual inspection 07/01/2020 2,446.00 63753 09/28/2020

71695 Fire Alarm System - Monito 08/01/2020 25.00 63753 09/28/2020

72716 Fire Alarm System - servic 08/31/2020 1,057.50 63753 09/28/2020

72864 Fire Alarm System - Monito 09/01/2020 25.00 63753 09/28/2020

Total 3947: 3,553.50

3977 Cushing Terrell Architects 153083 10th & State Architectural  07/15/2020 4,973.82 11728 09/30/2020

153959 10th & State Architectural  08/31/2020 509.76 11728 09/30/2020

Total 3977: 5,483.58

4151 Desman Inc D20058 10th & Front Garage Struct 08/31/2020 1,470.00 11711 09/29/2020

Total 4151: 1,470.00

1787 Downtown Boise Associati 8337 Downtown Infrastructure C 08/31/2020 2,033.52 63754 09/28/2020

8337 Downtown Infrastructure C 08/31/2020 5,837.37 63754 09/28/2020

8337 Downtown Infrastructure C 08/31/2020 5,837.37 63754 09/28/2020

Total 1787: 13,708.26

1838 Elam & Burke P.A. 187392 Parking Matters 08/31/2020 2,138.45 11729 09/30/2020

187393 Hoffman v. City of Boise 08/31/2020 16,619.31 11729 09/30/2020

187394 WS District Amendment 08/31/2020 5,099.15 11729 09/30/2020

187395 101-0 General 08/31/2020 1,190.85 11729 09/30/2020

187433 30th Street Projects 08/31/2020 957.30 11729 09/30/2020



CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP Paid Invoice Report - Alphabetical Page:     3

Check issue dates: 9/1/2020 - 9/30/2020 Sep 29, 2020  09:52AM

Vendor Invoice Invoice Amount Check Check

Number Name Number Description Date Number Issue Date

Total 1838: 26,005.06

3695 Guho Corp. 190101063-0 2019 Streetscapes 07/16/2020 39,586.24 11730 09/30/2020

190101063-0 2019 Streetscapes 07/16/2020 5,792.95- 11730 09/30/2020

190101063-0 2019 Streetscapes 07/16/2020 7,166.29 11730 09/30/2020

190101063-0 2019 Streetscapes 07/16/2020 69,275.59 11730 09/30/2020

200101063-0 8th & Bannock Streetscape 08/31/2020 16,347.64 11730 09/30/2020

200101063-0 8th & Bannock Streetscape 08/31/2020 38,144.50 11730 09/30/2020

200101063-0 8th & Bannock Streetscape 08/31/2020 37,480.27 11730 09/30/2020

200101063-0 8th & Bannock Streetscape 08/31/2020 87,453.95 11730 09/30/2020

Total 3695: 289,661.53

4104 Hellmann Construction Co  200062-3 ParkBOI Garages – Door H 08/31/2020 127,062.50 11731 09/30/2020

Total 4104: 127,062.50

3810 Hummel Architects PLLC 9644 Cap & Main Elevators Refu 08/31/2020 496.73 11712 09/29/2020

9649 Prototype parking structure 08/31/2020 1,675.00 11712 09/29/2020

Total 3810: 2,171.73

2129 Idaho Blueprint & Supply C 0000454666 myrtel front LED maps 07/31/2020 93.00 Multiple Multiple

Total 2129: 93.00

2165 Idaho Power 27534725 Westside Urban Park 09/01/2020 40,000.00 63747 09/04/2020

6607 AUG20 9th St outlets  #220040660 08/31/2020 3.96 11740 09/18/2020

7995 AUG20 9th & State # 2201627995 08/31/2020 3.50 11739 09/16/2020

Total 2165: 40,007.46

3900 Idaho Records Manageme 0141121 Records Storage 09/01/2020 89.78 11714 09/29/2020

Total 3900: 89.78

2186 Idaho Statesman 263244 AUG Legal Notices 08/31/2020 1,097.53 63755 09/28/2020

Total 2186: 1,097.53

2252 International Downtown As 78291 Member dues 08/24/2020 1,205.00 63756 09/28/2020

Total 2252: 1,205.00

3966 Involta LLC 0052992 Website Hosting Services 09/01/2020 1,347.90 63757 09/28/2020

Total 3966: 1,347.90

3808 Jed Split Creative 2390 Web hosting - shorline 08/31/2020 300.00 63758 09/28/2020

2390 Web hosting - ccdcboise 08/31/2020 300.00 63758 09/28/2020

2390 creative services - CCDC s 08/31/2020 79.80 63758 09/28/2020

2391 creative services - old bois 08/31/2020 950.00 63758 09/28/2020

Total 3808: 1,629.80

2288 Jensen Belts Associates 1765CD-6 Westside Park DD-CD-CA 08/31/2020 17,332.97 11732 09/30/2020



CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP Paid Invoice Report - Alphabetical Page:     4

Check issue dates: 9/1/2020 - 9/30/2020 Sep 29, 2020  09:52AM

Vendor Invoice Invoice Amount Check Check

Number Name Number Description Date Number Issue Date

1768CD-4 8th and Bannock Streetsca 08/31/2020 4,882.58 11732 09/30/2020

1768CD-4 8th and Bannock Streetsca 08/31/2020 5,452.82 11732 09/30/2020

Total 2288: 27,668.37

3910 Joey Chen SEPT2020 2020 CFO Forum Expense  09/10/2020 200.00 11709 09/25/2020

Total 3910: 200.00

4164 JRS Properties III LLLP T3 2020 T3 contractual payment - S 09/01/2020 875,000.00 63759 09/28/2020

Total 4164: 875,000.00

2360 Kittelson & Associates Inc. 0111919 11th Street Bikeway Conce 07/31/2020 19,470.00 11733 09/30/2020

Total 2360: 19,470.00

4156 Lea Electric LLC J4022-01 Westside Urban Park Early  08/17/2020 4,978.76 11734 09/30/2020

J4022-02 Westside Urban Park Early  09/17/2020 1,920.18 11734 09/30/2020

Total 4156: 6,898.94

4157 MIG, Inc. 0065713 State Street Corridor Fram 07/31/2020 11,033.75 11735 09/30/2020

0066044 State Street Corridor Fram 08/31/2020 5,733.75 11735 09/30/2020

Total 4157: 16,767.50

4136 Mintify LLC 160 Management Training 08/31/2020 4,000.00 11715 09/29/2020

Total 4136: 4,000.00

4142 Pennbridge BODO LLC T2 2020 T2 contractual payment - R 09/01/2020 254,060.00 63760 09/28/2020

Total 4142: 254,060.00

2774 Pro Care Landscape Mana 34475 Landscape Maintenance -  08/31/2020 132.00 63761 09/28/2020

34482 Landscape Maintenance -  08/31/2020 243.00 63761 09/28/2020

34595 1715 W Idaho St - Property  08/31/2020 1,180.00 63761 09/28/2020

Total 2774: 1,555.00

2798 Quadrant Consulting Inc. 11188 State Street Infrastructure  08/31/2020 3,646.40 11716 09/29/2020

Total 2798: 3,646.40

4125 Red Sky Inc 41568 Communication Services 07/31/2020 4,000.00 63762 09/28/2020

Total 4125: 4,000.00

3896 Rim View LLC SEPT2020 Monthly Rent and NNN - Tr 09/01/2020 15,250.00 63730 09/01/2020

Total 3896: 15,250.00

3929 SB Friedman Development  PO 200063-2 Westside URD Amendment  08/31/2020 1,552.50 11736 09/30/2020

PO 200063-2 Westside URD Amendment  08/31/2020 22,344.75 11736 09/30/2020

PO 200063-2 Westside URD Amendment  08/31/2020 10,000.00 11736 09/30/2020



CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP Paid Invoice Report - Alphabetical Page:     5

Check issue dates: 9/1/2020 - 9/30/2020 Sep 29, 2020  09:52AM

Vendor Invoice Invoice Amount Check Check

Number Name Number Description Date Number Issue Date

Total 3929: 33,897.25

3796 Scheidt & Bachmann USA I 42166 August 2020 Merchant Fee 08/31/2020 389.66 11717 09/29/2020

Total 3796: 389.66

4076 Schindler Elevator Corpora 190039-4 capitol & main elevator proj 07/31/2020 6,524.85 11737 09/30/2020

Total 4076: 6,524.85

3542 Security LLC - Plaza 121 SEPT2020 Office rent - Sept 2020 09/01/2020 13,620.75 63731 09/01/2020

Total 3542: 13,620.75

4131 Smarking Inc 4368 Data Management Service 07/31/2020 1,750.00 11738 09/30/2020

4368 Data Management Service 07/31/2020 7,000.00 11738 09/30/2020

Total 4131: 8,750.00

3974 Stability Networks Inc. 33227 IT Services - FY2020 08/31/2020 2,255.00 11718 09/29/2020

33227 Phone System Support 08/31/2020 85.00 11718 09/29/2020

33227 AppRiver SecureTide 08/31/2020 90.00 11718 09/29/2020

33227 Cloud Backup 08/31/2020 420.00 11718 09/29/2020

33227 Cisco Subscription 08/31/2020 5.84 11718 09/29/2020

33316 Software license - Adobe A 09/11/2020 494.21 11718 09/29/2020

Total 3974: 3,350.05

3242 Suez Water Idaho 0025 SEPT2 437 S 9th St irri #06006688 09/11/2020 74.93 11744 09/28/2020

2853 SEPT2 Eastman office #06000337 09/11/2020 88.95 11742 09/28/2020

8504 SEPT2 Grove & 10th #060035756 09/11/2020 196.10 11743 09/28/2020

Total 3242: 359.98

4109 Syringa Networks LLC 20339 SEPT internet & data 09/01/2020 647.75 63763 09/28/2020

Total 4109: 647.75

3831 The Land Group Inc. 0144415 6th Street Streetscapes, M 08/31/2020 69.12 11719 09/29/2020

0144415 6th Street Streetscapes, M 08/31/2020 1,180.88 11719 09/29/2020

Total 3831: 1,250.00

4074 The Potting Shed 18371 Interior Plant Maint. 08/31/2020 65.00 63764 09/28/2020

Total 4074: 65.00

3170 Treasure Valley Coffee Inc. 2160067995 Coffee & tea 08/31/2020 97.49 63765 09/28/2020

Total 3170: 97.49

3233 United Heritage 02014-001 A Disability insurance - Augu 08/31/2020 1,497.75 63766 09/28/2020

Total 3233: 1,497.75

3835 US Bank - Credit Cards 8.25.2020 Office Supplies 08/25/2020 153.60 11708 09/14/2020



CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP Paid Invoice Report - Alphabetical Page:     6

Check issue dates: 9/1/2020 - 9/30/2020 Sep 29, 2020  09:52AM

Vendor Invoice Invoice Amount Check Check

Number Name Number Description Date Number Issue Date

8.25.2020 Computer & Software Supp 08/25/2020 29.99 11708 09/14/2020

8.25.2020 Dues & Subscriptions 08/25/2020 1,928.66 11708 09/14/2020

8.25.2020 Personnel Training (Local) 08/25/2020 79.00 11708 09/14/2020

8.25.2020 Banking & Merchant Fees 08/25/2020 75.60 11708 09/14/2020

Total 3835: 2,266.85

3997 Wash Worx INV-000705 Replace broken tree grate -  08/25/2020 125.00 11720 09/29/2020

INV-000718 Fence Repair - 421 N. 10th  09/16/2020 1,000.00 11720 09/29/2020

Total 3997: 1,125.00

3365 Westerberg & Associates 237 Legislative Advisement Ser 08/31/2020 2,000.00 11721 09/29/2020

Total 3365: 2,000.00

3374 Western States Equipment IN001398465 Bldg 8 generator maintena 08/24/2020 278.16 63767 09/28/2020

IN001406575 Bldg 8 generator monthly i 08/31/2020 489.39 63767 09/28/2020

Total 3374: 767.55

3990 Xerox Corporation 011271191 Copier Lease 08/31/2020 274.85 11722 09/29/2020

Total 3990: 274.85

4154 XXII Media LLC XXII_CCDCA Staff Professional Photos -  08/31/2020 300.00 11723 09/29/2020

Total 4154: 300.00

Grand Totals: 3,057,158.19

Report Criteria:

Detail report type printed



 
CCDC Board of Commissioners 09-14-2020 Meeting Minutes 1 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Boise, ID 83702 

September 14, 2020 
 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Board Members appeared remotely, as did Brady Shinn, Project Manager – Property 
Development, Todd Bunderson, Development Director, Kathy Wanner, Contracts Specialist, Amy 
Fimbel, Project Manager – Capital Improvements, Matt Edmond, Director – Parking & Mobility, 
and Ryan Armbruster, CCDC Legal Counsel.  
 
John Brunelle, CCDC Executive Director, and Sarah Jones, Executive Assistant, were present at 
the CCDC physical office location. 
 
Members of the Public present at the CCDC physical office location were Jay Vogt, Private Citizen 
and David Klinger from Boise Working Together. 
 
Present: Commissioner Dana Zuckerman, Commissioner Ryan Woodings, Commissioner 
Maryanne Jordan, Commissioner Lauren McLean, Commissioner Danielle Hurd, Commissioner 
Gordon Jones, Commissioner David Bieter and Commissioner Kate Nelson 
 
Absent: Commissioner Latonia Haney Keith 
 
Roll call was taken, by Ryan Armbruster, Agency Legal Counsel confirming quorum. 
 
Chairman Zuckerman convened the meeting with a quorum at 12:00 p.m. 
 
II. ACTION ITEM: AGENDA CHANGES/ADDITIONS: 
 
There were no changes to the agenda.  
 
III. ACTION ITEM: CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Expenses 
1. Approval of Paid Invoice Report - August 2020 
 
B. Minutes and Reports 
1. Approval of August 10, 2020 Meeting Minutes 
2. Approval of August 26, 2020 Special Meeting Minutes 
 
C. Other 
1. Approve Resolution #1674 – 2419 W. Fairview – Adare Manor – Amendment to the Type 

2 General Assistance Agreement 
2. Approve Resolution #1676 – 2419 W. Fairview – Adare Manor – Amendment to the Type 

4 Capital Improvement Project Agreement 
3. Approve Resolution #1675 – 1322 W. Main Street – Fire Fusion Studio Retail – Type 1 

Streetscape Participation Program with FireFusion LLC 
4. FY2020 Q3 Financial Report (Unaudited) 

Commissioner Woodings made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 



 
CCDC Board of Commissioners 09-14-2020 Meeting Minutes 2 

Commissioner Hurd seconded 
 
Roll Call:  
Commissioner Bieter - Aye 
Commissioner Hurd - Aye 
Commissioner Jones - Aye 
Commissioner Jordan - Aye 
Commissioner Mclean - Aye 
Commissioner Woodings - Aye 
Commissioner Zuckerman - Aye 

 
The motion carried 7-0 
 
Commissioner Nelson joined the meeting after the Consent Agenda vote. 

 
IV. ACTION ITEMS  
 

A. CONSIDER: 600 S. 8th Street Mixed Use – Designation for Participation Program Type 3 
Transformative Agreement with Jordan-Wilcomb Construction and Global Senior Housing. 

 
Representatives for Jordan-Wilcomb, Cecil Wilcomb, and Global Senior Housing, Nick 
Walsh, appeared remotely. 
 
Brady Shinn, Project Manager – Property Development, gave a report. 
 
Commissioner Woodings moved to Designate the 8th and River mixed-use project as 
eligible to utilize the Type 3 Transformative Participation Agreement and direct staff to 
continue negotiating a Letter of Intent with Wilcomb LLC and/or assigns for future Board 
approval. 
 
Commissioner Bieter seconded. 
 
Roll Call: 
Commissioner Bieter - Aye 
Commissioner Hurd - Aye 
Commissioner Jones - Aye 
Commissioner Jordan - Aye 
Commissioner Mclean - Aye 
Commissioner Nelson - Aye 
Commissioner Woodings - Aye 
Commissioner Zuckerman - Aye 
 
The motion carried 8-0 
 

B. CONSIDER: Resolution #1669 – Approve First Amendment to the Urban Renewal Plan 
Westside Downtown Urban Renewal Project 
 
Representatives for SB Friedman, Geoff Dickinson and Caren Kay, appeared remotely. 
 
Todd Bunderson, Development Director, gave a report. 
Caren Kay, SB Friedman, gave a report. 



 
CCDC Board of Commissioners 09-14-2020 Meeting Minutes 3 

Commissioner Woodings moved Adopt Resolution #1669 Approving the First Amendment 
to the Urban Renewal Plan Westside Downtown Urban Renewal Project. 
 
Commissioner Bieter seconded. 
 
Roll Call: 
Commissioner Bieter - Aye 
Commissioner Hurd - Aye 
Commissioner Jones - Aye 
Commissioner Jordan - Aye 
Commissioner Mclean - Aye 
Commissioner Nelson - Aye 
Commissioner Woodings - Aye 
Commissioner Zuckerman - Aye 
 
The motion carried 8-0 
 

C. CONSIDER: Resolution #1670 - Approval of Amendment No. 1 to the CM/GC Contract – 
Westside Urban Park 
 
Kathy Wanner, Contracts Specialist, gave a report. 
Amy Fimbel, Project Manager – Capital Improvements, gave a report. 
 
Commissioner Woodings moved to adopt Resolution No. 1670 approving and authorizing 
the execution of Amendment No. 1 to the CM/GC Contract with Wright Brothers. 
 
Commissioner Bieter seconded. 
 
Roll Call:  
Commissioner Bieter - Aye 
Commissioner Hurd - Aye 
Commissioner Jones - Aye 
Commissioner Jordan - Aye 
Commissioner Mclean - Aye 
Commissioner Nelson - Aye 
Commissioner Woodings - Aye 
Commissioner Zuckerman - Aye 
 
The motion carried 8-0 
 

D. CONSIDER: Resolution #1671 – Selection of On-Call Parking & Mobility Consultant 
Services 
 
Kathy Wanner, Contracts Specialist, gave a report. 
Matt Edmond, Director – Parking & Mobility, gave a report.  
Commissioner Woodings moved to adopt Resolution No. 1671 approving the ranking for 
the RFQ Parking & Mobility Consulting Services; and authorize the Executive Director to 



 
CCDC Board of Commissioners 09-14-2020 Meeting Minutes 4 

negotiate and enter into a five year, non-exclusive Professional Service Agreement with 
Kimley-Horn Associates, Inc. for on-call parking consultant services. 
 
Commissioner Bieter seconded. 
 
Roll Call: 
Commissioner Bieter - Aye 
Commissioner Hurd - Aye 
Commissioner Jones - Aye 
Commissioner Jordan - Aye 
Commissioner Mclean - Aye 
Commissioner Nelson - Aye 
Commissioner Woodings - Aye 
Commissioner Zuckerman – Aye 
 
The motion carried 8-0 
 

V. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. CCDC Monthly Report  
 
John Brunelle, CCDC Executive Director, gave a report. 
 

VI.  MEETING ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Commissioner 
Woodings to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Bieter seconded the motion. A roll call vote was 
taken. 
 

Commissioner Bieter - Aye 
Commissioner Hurd - Aye 
Commissioner Jones - Aye 
Commissioner Jordan - Aye 
Commissioner Mclean - Aye 
Commissioner Nelson - Aye 
Commissioner Woodings - Aye 
Commissioner Zuckerman - Aye 
 
The motion carried 8-0. The meeting adjourned at 12:50 p.m. 

 
ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION ON THE 14th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2020. 
 
 

       
Dana Zuckerman, Chair 

 
 

       
Lauren McLean, Secretary 

 



Page 1 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
City Go Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) FY2021-FY2025 

Date: 
October 12, 2020 

Staff Contact: 
Matt Edmond, Director of Parking & Mobility 

Attachments: 
Resolution No. 1672 Approving City Go MOU 

Action Requested: 
Adoption of Resolution No. 1672 approving the MOU between Valley Regional Transit (VRT), 
the City of Boise, the Ada County Highway District (ACHD) Commuteride, Boise State 
University and Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC) for efforts and expenses 
associated with the mobility initiative “City GO.” 

 
Fiscal Notes: 

The Memorandum of Understanding calls for a $100,000 contribution from the Agency to 
support City GO each year the MOU is in effect. The Agency has budgeted $100,000 in FY2021 
for this purpose.  
 
Background: 

City Go, formerly referred to as the Downtown Mobility Collaborative (DMC), was established by 
MOU between VRT the City of Boise, CCDC, ACHD Commuteride and Boise State University. 
Its purpose was to design and implement an innovative approach to decrease the mode share 
of single occupancy vehicles and better utilize the infrastructure, services, and programs in 
Downtown Boise to promote alternative modes of transportation. It is the hope of the 
participating agencies that this approach that can serve as a model for future public-private 
partnerships to improve mobility choices and access in other parts of the region. 
 
Downtown Boise currently has approximately 19,000 parking spaces and accommodates over 
36,000 workers in a single day. The number of workers in Downtown is expected to exceed 
56,000 by the year 2040. While current daytime on and off-street occupancy is well below 
capacity due to the pandemic, demand is expected to recover and waitlists resume for monthly 
structured parking within a couple of years. Even if the parking supply could keep up with the 
future demand, the road system has extremely limited options for capacity enhancements, 
resulting in ever more congestion in Downtown. Simply building more parking is not a 
sustainable approach for the future, but strategies to limit the demand side of the equation can 
help use our existing parking and road network more efficiently and limit the need for costly 
public infrastructure such as structured parking and widened roads. 



Page 2 
 

 
The original MOU was a two-year agreement, which expired on September 30, 2020. The City 
Go Program Director, Kaite Justice, has been working with the Steering Committee and 
representatives from VRT, Boise State, City of Boise, ACHD Commuteride, and CCDC to draft 
this new MOU to continue the partnership and critical work in Downtown Boise. 
 
The new MOU is a five-year agreement, from FY2021 through FY2025. This MOU has already 
been approved by the ACHD Commission, Boise State University, and the VRT Board. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  

Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1672 approving the City GO MOU. 
 

Suggested Motion: 

I move to adopt Resolution No. 1672, approving the Memorandum of Understanding between 
Valley Regional Transit, the City of Boise, the Ada County Highway District, Boise State 
University and Capital City Development Corporation for efforts and expenses associated 
with the mobility initiative “City GO.” 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1672 - 1  

RESOLUTION NO.  1672 
 
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE 
CITY, IDAHO:   
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN 
RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF BOISE, IDAHO, APPROVING THE 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN VALLEY REGIONAL 
TRANSIT, THE CITY OF BOISE, THE ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT, 
BOISE STATE UNIVERSITY, AND THE AGENCY FOR EFFORTS AND 
EXPENSES ASSOCIATED WITH THE MOBILITY INITIATIVE “CITY GO”; 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE SAID 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF 
OCTOBER 1, 2020, AND ANY NECESSARY DOCUMENTS REQUIRED TO 
IMPLEMENT THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING, INCLUDING 
MAKING ANY NECESSARY TECHNICAL CHANGES TO THE MEMORANDUM 
OF UNDERSTANDING SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized under 
the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho 
Code (the “Law”), and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, 
Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code (the “Act”), as a duly created and functioning urban renewal 
agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of Boise City, Idaho (the “City”), after notice duly published, 
conducted a public hearing on the River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Plan (the “River 
Street Plan”), and following said public hearing the City adopted its Ordinance No. 5596 on 
December 6, 1994, approving the River Street Plan and making certain findings; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the First 
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Project 
(annexation of the Old Boise Eastside Study Area and Several Minor Parcels) and Renamed 
River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Project (the “River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan”); and, 
 

WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 6362 on 
November 30, 2004, approving the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan and making certain findings; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the First 
Amendment to the First Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, River Street-Myrtle Street 
Urban Renewal Project and Renamed River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Project (“First 
Amendment to the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan”); and, 
 

WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 24-18 on 
July 24, 2018, approving the First Amendment to the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan deannexing 
certain parcels from the existing revenue allocation area and making certain findings; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the 
Westside Downtown Urban Renewal Plan (the “Westside Plan”), and following said public 



RESOLUTION NO. 1672 - 2  

hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 6108 on December 4, 2001, approving the Westside 
Plan and making certain findings; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the 30th 
Street Area Urban Renewal Plan (the “30th Street Plan”), and following said public hearing, the 
City adopted its Ordinance No. 6868 on December 4, 2012, approving the 30th Street Plan and 
making certain findings; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the First 
Amendment to the 30th Street Plan (“First Amendment to the 30th Street Plan”), and following 
said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 26-18 on July 24, 2018, approving the 
First Amendment to the 30th Street Plan de-annexing certain parcels from the existing revenue 
allocation area and making certain findings; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the Urban 
Renewal Plan for the Shoreline District Urban Renewal Project Area (the “Shoreline District 
Plan”), and following said public hearing the City adopted its Ordinance No. 55-18 on December 
18, 2018, approving the Shoreline District Plan and making certain findings; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the Urban 
Renewal Plan for the Gateway East Economic Development District Project Area (the “Gateway 
East District Plan”), and following said public hearing the City adopted its Ordinance No. 58-18 
on December 18, 2018, approving the Gateway East District Plan and making certain findings; 
and, 
 

WHEREAS, the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan (as amended), the Westside Plan, the 30th 
Street Plan (as amended), the Shoreline District Plan, and the Gateway East District Plan are 
collectively referred to as the “Plans”; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency has long recognized the importance and significance of the 
development of transportation services, including alternative transportation modes within the 
Downtown Urban Renewal Areas, as a critical component of revitalization; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency is responsible for the implementation of the Downtown Urban 
Renewal Plans, which plans identify certain transportation goals and objectives and the 
establishment of transit, pedestrian, and bicycle facilities to encourage use of alternative means 
of transportation; and, 
 

WHEREAS, under the provisions of the Downtown Plans and as authorized by Idaho Code 
Section 50-2015, the Agency may enter into cooperative agreements with public bodies to 
achieve the objectives of an urban renewal plan; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency, the City, Valley Regional Transit, the Ada County Highway 
District, and Boise State University (collectively the “Parties”) for many years have been working 
together to provide a benefit to the citizens of Boise, Idaho, with the “Downtown Mobility 
Collaborative,” now called CityGO, which seeks to reduce demand for single occupant vehicle 
travel resulting in traffic congestion and high parking demand, improve air quality, and stimulate 
economic activity; and, 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1672 - 3  

 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding, attached 
as EXHIBIT A and incorporated herein by reference, in order to continue working together to 
accomplish the City Go objectives set forth hereinabove; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency Board hereby finds and determines that this Memorandum of 
Understanding, effective for a five (5) year term, effective October 1, 2020, and with the ability to 
cancel participation upon notice to the other Parties, enables the Parties to cooperate to their 
mutual advantage in a manner that will best accord with the individual needs and development of 
the Parties; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency Board finds it in the best public interest to approve the 
Memorandum of Understanding and to authorize the Executive Director to execute same, subject 
to certain conditions, and to execute all necessary documents to implement the transaction, 
subject to the conditions set forth below. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS 
FOLLOWS:   
 
 Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
 Section 2: That the Memorandum of Understanding, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as EXHIBIT A, and incorporated herein by reference, be and the same hereby is approved 
recognizing technical changes or corrections which may be required prior to its execution. 
 
 Section 3: That the Agency Executive Director is hereby authorized to execute the 
Memorandum of Understanding with an effective date of October 1, 2020, and, further, is hereby 
authorized to execute any necessary documents required to implement the Memorandum of 
Understanding and to make any necessary technical changes to the Memorandum of 
Understanding, subject to representations by the Agency staff and Agency legal counsel that all 
conditions precedent to the Memorandum of Understanding and any necessary technical changes 
thereto or other documents are acceptable and consistent with the provisions of the Memorandum 
of Understanding and any comments and discussions received at the October 12, 2020, Agency 
Board meeting, including any substantive changes discussed and approved at that meeting. 
 
 Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval.   
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on 
October 12, 2020.  Signed by the Chair of the Agency Board of Commissioners and attested by 
the Secretary to the Agency Board of Commissioners on October 12, 2020. 
 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY   
 
 
      BY:         
ATTEST:            Dana Zuckerman, Chair 
 
 
BY:        
       Lauren McLean, Secretary 



 

1 | P a g e  
 

Memorandum of Understanding  

Between 

Valley Regional Transit, City of Boise, Capital City Development Corporation, 

Ada County Highway District, and Boise State University 

 For The City Go Program 

 
This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") is between Valley Regional Transit (“VRT”), the City 

of Boise City ("City"), Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC), Ada County Highway District 

(ACHD), and Boise State University (Boise State), collectively referred to as the “Parties” and 

individually as a "Party," and outlines the Parties’ anticipated participation and responsibilities 

with respect to the future development, planning, and implementation of City Go, formerly 

referred to as the Downtown Mobility Collaborative (“Program”). This MOU is the second MOU 

for between the parties for City Go and will be valid starting October 1, 2020 through September 

30, 2025. 
 
 

Background 

Downtown Boise currently contains approximately 19,000 parking spaces and accommodates over 

36,000 workers in a single day. The number of workers in Downtown is expected to exceed 56,000 

by the year 2040. While current daytime on and off-street occupancy is around 70%, monthly 

parking in the parking structures has limited availability. Even if the parking supply could keep up 

with the future demand, the road system has extremely limited options for capacity enhancements, 

resulting in ever more congestion in Downtown. Simply building more parking is not a sustainable 

approach for the future, but strategies to limit the demand side of the equation can help use our 

existing parking and road network more efficiently and limit the need for costly public infrastructure 

such as structured parking and widened roads.  

 

Building on the current work of the Downtown Transportation Demand Challenge and the two year 

MOU for the Downtown Mobility Collaborative this MOU defines key partnership components for a 

long term collaboration to support and sustain City Go, the downtown Boise transportation 

management association (TMA). This MOU outlines the Parties’ projected roles and financial 

commitments for the Program’s development and implementation. All Parties approached 

development of this MOU with a shared understanding of the following history and intent about the 

Program: 

 

 The Program is limited to and covers the area from Boise Avenue to Fort Street and from 
Broadway to Whitewater Boulevard in Boise City (the “Downtown”); 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 Coordinating Downtown mobility and transportation demand management is a critical need to 
a sustainable and economically viable Downtown; 

 The parties have a vested interest in improving mobility options in the downtown area and 
have been working collaboratively since 2014; 

 The Downtown Demand Challenge identified the Downtown Mobility Collaborative, to function 
as  a transportation management association (TMA); 

 Significant investments have been made and continue to be planned for Downtown parking 
infrastructure, roadway, sidewalk, bicycle and transit improvements in the near and long-term; 

 The region has adopted a transit plan, called Valleyconnect 2.0 that features Downtown as a 
major hub for current and future services.  
  

Purpose of MOU  
With the expected continued development and implementation of the Program, the Parties 

negotiated the development of this comprehensive partnership MOU to outline the expected 

Program elements and the Parties’ roles and financial commitments for City Go, recognizing that each 

Party has an important role to play in the successful development and implementation of the 

Program. The Parties agree to the following set of goals to guide the partnership and the continued 

operation of City Go: 

 

 Seek value for each partner when making project scope and delivery decisions; 

 Reduce single occupancy vehicle trips into and around Downtown; 

 Use current infrastructure in downtown more efficiently; 

 Maintain a financially sustainable Mobility Collaborative with a high level of buy-in and funding 
support from major employers; 

 Track and report on the performance measures, organizational framework and operating 
procedures for the Program; and 

 Maintain reasonable financial sufficiency for the Program as outlined in the Sustainable Funding 
attachment. 
 

Term of MOU 
This MOU will be in effect beginning October 1, 2020 and remain in place through September 30, 2025. 

The Parties agree to continue provide the necessary financial and other commitments outlined in the 

Sustainable Funding attachment to achieve the goals of the MOU.  Any party wishing to withdraw their 

financial support or in-kind resources supporting the MOU, will provide each Party with sixty (60) days 

written notice. 

 

a. Go Staff Activities 

a. Manage a downtown transportation management association known as City Go; 

b. City Go program director and staff are primarily responsible for carrying out the day to 

day operation of City Go and developing work plans for coordinating and directing City 

Go operations; 



 

3 | P a g e  
 

c. Oversee committees, task forces, and work groups; 

d. Grow memberships, financial contributions, and the involvement of the downtown 

Boise community; 

e. Actively promote multi-modal transportation in downtown Boise. 

 

b. MOU Steering Committee (SC).  The Parties agree to provide staff to support to the Program 

that will function as the MOU Steering Committee (SC).  The commitment includes attending at 

minimum quarterly steering committee meetings, reviewing and commenting on documents, 

and communicating information between the SC and the governing bodies of each of the 

Parties.  The SC will support the development of a Program that is in alignment with the goals 

and objectives articulated in this MOU. The SC will negotiate the elements of the Program and 

will elevate specific issues to the governing bodies of the Parties when additional direction is 

required. The SC will follow the governance structure and approval process outlined in 

Attachment ___.The SC will create meeting minutes for each meeting of the SC and will 

distribute the minutes to the Parties. 

 
The SC will also actively monitor for changes in conditions that materially impact the 

planning, design, implementation, procurement and management of the Program. Such 

changes could include technology improvements, innovative policy approaches, changes in 

investment strategies, etc. Upon analysis, the SC will make written recommendation to the 

Parties on how best to proceed. 

 
In addition to development of the Program and the active monitoring of changed 

circumstances impacting the Program, the SC will ensure Program development is 

implemented in accordance with the principles reflected in this MOU by: 

• Actively review and provide guidance on annual work plans for the Sales and 

Marketing Committee, Technology and Service Integration Committee, Program 

Development Taskforce and Program Director work plan; As needed, helping 

support implementation of work plans; 

• Coordinate closely on joint messaging with attention to creation of consistent 

external messaging such that the public recognizes this is a joint effort among the 

Parties and an efficient model for program delivery; 

• Coordinate with executive management and elected officials; 

• Monitor and incorporate any associated policy changes that impact the Program; 

and 

• Align and coordinate the Parties' respective funding and grant strategies to optimize 

return for the Program; and 



 

4 | P a g e  
 

 Provide staff for City Go committees. 

 
c. Administration and Financial Commitments.  VRT will function as the administrative agent for 

the Program, including but not limited to hiring and managing staff. The Program Director will 
report to the SC and will be responsible for directing and achieving strategic objectives and 
day-to-day operations. VRT will be responsible for all the employment responsibilities of the 
employee in close collaboration with the SC.    
 
The Parties agree to provide the financial support required for the Program. Parties 
contribution will decrease over time by approximately 40 percent. Funding model is outlined 
in more detail in the appendix.   
 

d. Attachments 
 
Designated to guide the work of City Go. May change over time at the direction of the Steering 
Committee and City Go Director. Attachments will be reviewed annually. 
 

A. FY2021 Budget 
B. FY2022 Proposed Budget 
C. Boise State, VRT, and ACHD In-kind Agreement FY 2020 
D. Self-Sustaining Funding Memo  
E. Strategic Framework 
F. Performance Measures 
G. Governance Structure 
H. Approval Process 
I. Membership Structure 

 
 

e. Contact Information 
 

The contact information for the Parties are: 
 
Executive Director,  
Valley Regional Transit 
700 NE 2nd St. 
Meridian, Idaho 83642 
 
Comprehensive Planning Manager 
City of Boise 
150 N. Capitol Blvd. 
Boise, Idaho 83702 
 
 



 

5 | P a g e  
 

Director of Parking & Mobility 
Capital City Development Corporation 
121 N. 9th St., Ste. 501 
Boise, ID 83702 
 
Manager of Commuteride 
Ada County Highway District 
5714 W. Fairview Ave. 
Boise, ID 83706 
 
Director, Transportation, Parking, and Safety Systems 
Boise State University 
1910 University Drive 
Boise, ID 83725 
 

 
 
  



10/6/2020



 

7 | P a g e  
 

A. FY2021 Budget  

 

  



 

8 | P a g e  
 

B. FY 2022 Proposed Budget  



 

9 | P a g e  
 

C. Boise State, VRT and ACHD In-kind FY 2020 

 

In-Kind Best Practices and Suggested Policies 

A. Definition: In-kind contributions are donations of goods, services or time — instead of cash. 

o “Goods” are tangible, and would include items such as equipment, furniture or supplies. Goods 

can also be intangible, such as advertising, royalties or copyrights. Goods may be used, surplus, 

brand new or loaned. 

o “Services” are professional services donated by groups such as corporations, small businesses, 

vendors, colleges, individual professionals or tradespeople. For example, accounting or brand 

development support. 

o “Time” occurs when people give their time free of charge or for payment by a third party on the 

recipient’s behalf. An employer might also loan paid employees. 

B. Valuation: The value of the in-kind should be justifiable, i.e., able to be demonstrated. The value should 

also be established prior to accepting the in-kind donation. Options for establishing value include: 

o Checking the market price, 

o Requesting a competitive estimate or quote for services, 

o Using equivalent pay rates or conducting a salary survey to establish the cost of donated time. 

C. Criteria for Acceptance: Not every type of in-kind donation is appropriate. Standards and principles for 

accepting in-kind include: 

o Useful: In-kind addresses a specific, identified requirement of the organization, provided by a 

genuine and thorough assessment of the recipient’s needs as determined by the recipient. 

o Quality-controlled/Value-added: Goods are carefully chosen, of appropriate quality. They may 

not otherwise be available or achievable by the recipient, or the in-kind is equal to or more 

valuable than an equivalent financial contribution. 

o Transparent and responsible: In-kind is fairly valued, documented and accountable to any 

applicable legal practices. 

o Mutual: The in-kind donor and the recipient consult and agree on the transfer of the donated 

goods, time or services and produce a written agreement to give and receive the in-kind. 

  



 

10 | P a g e  
 

Valley Regional Transit In-Kind Agreement 

Date 5/1/2020 

Agreeing Parties City Go and Valley Regional Transit 

Contact/Authorizer Kelli Badesheim 

Type of In-Kind (check 
all that apply) 

 Goods/materials/direct costs 
 X Professional Services 
 X Staff time 
 Other 

Strategic Needs VRT’s in-kind staff support expands City Go’s operational capacity to 
assist downtown workers and residents with sustainable transportation 
options. 

Description of In-Kind Include description below, or attach scope of work or estimate 

 .5 FTE for customer supports and navigation for City Go. (Est. 
$30,000) 

 Marketing of City Go on VRT website 
 Marketing of City Go in VRT marketing campaign 

 Valuation  Notes: 

 Recipient should not determine the value 
 Contributor declared value: $40,000 
 Attach evidence of fair market value (FMV) 

Timeframe The staff time will be provided throughout all of FY2020 with one of 
VRT’s Mobility Navigators providing staff support to City Go 
approximately 20 hours per week. 
City Go will be incorporated and promoted through VRT’s new website, 
which is launching Summer 2020. 
VRT will incorporate City Go where relevant in its Rider’s First 
campaign in Fall 2020. 

Tracking Indicate how the in-kind will be tracked by the contributor and the 
recipient (City Go) 
Shared Google Dog 

Authorization 
 
 
 
 
 

 

This Agreement is entered into on __________________ [date] by 
 
 

Signature, Name and Date of Contributor 
 
 

Signature, Name and Date of Recipient 



 

11 | P a g e  
 

 

 

  



 

12 | P a g e  
 

ACHD Commuteride In-Kind Agreement  

Date October 1, 2019 - September 30, 2020 

Agreeing Parties City Go and ACHD Commuteride 

Contact/Authorizer Nicole Stern 

Type of In-Kind (check 
all that apply) 

X Goods/materials/direct costs 
X Professional Services 
X Staff time 

Strategic Needs 1. Marketing and outreach 
2. Employer focus 

Description of In-Kind Include description below, or attach scope of work or estimate 
● Representing City Go at Events 
● Member Services 
● Print Collateral 
● Digital Marketing 

Valuation Notes: 
● Recipient should not determine the value 
● Contributor declared value: $16,560 
 Attach evidence of fair market value (FMV) 

Timeframe October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2020 

Tracking Nicole Stern 
Monthly reports 

Approval  
This outlines how Commuteride will provide the in-kind services as 
agreed to in the MOU 
 

Signature, Name and Date of Contributor 
 
 

Signature, Name and Date of Recipient 
 
 

 

  



 

13 | P a g e  
 

FY20 In Kind Services 

 

Representing City Go at Events 

$35/hour - 4 hours average per event 

CR staff will attend events representing City Go to promote the collaborative and all options available downtown 

at lunch/learns, celebrations, on-site, campaign events 

8 events – $1120   target of 20 events for FY20 

 

Member Services 

1:1 Virtual Consultation and/or Phone Calls $35    2 hours/event 

CR staff connects with individuals via Zoom or other online platform to assist them with the various options of 

City Go that are available and which options may work best for them.  

0 consultations/calls - $0  target of 15 consultations or phone calls 

 

Design Services  

Print Materials $1,000/piece 

Design flyers and handouts promoting City Go wallet offerings 

0 Flyers -$0   target of 10 pieces 

 

Digital Marketing  

Co-Branded Paid Advertising – 10-15% of CR Advertising Budget 

Paid co-branded City Go and Commuteride advertising promoting for behavior change/mode shift for downtown 

Boise.    

0 ad - $0   target of $1500 

Co-Branded Emails – $250 

Co-branded City Go and Commuteride emails promoting for behavior change/mode shift for downtown Boise.  

Opportunity for specific City Go email campaign.  

0 emails - $0   target of 3 emails 

 

Member Consulting Services 

Address Map 8 hours at $40/hour 

Online address map based on information provided by the employer, identifies the appropriate smart commute 

benefits employers should offer based on their employees location to existing services (e.g., bus routes, 

vanpools, park and ride lots), and proximity to fellow employees.   

0 maps – $0   target of 1 map 

 

Workplace Assessment 4 hours at $35/hour   

The workplace assessment to assess existing infrastructure (showers, bike racks), services and policies related to 

assist with smart transportation at your workplace.   

0 assessments - $0   target of 1 assessment  

  



 

14 | P a g e  
 

 

Employee Commute Survey 8 hours at $35/hour 

An employee survey provides insight into employee commute needs.  Employers will learn how their employees 

travel, and what types of incentives might lead them to make a different choice.  

0 surveys - $0   target of 1 survey 

 

Management Interview 2 hours   

Management interviews help equip employers with tools to promote smart commuting and provide an 

opportunity to explain smart commuting benefits for employees and the employer.  

0 interviews - $0   target of 1 interview 

 

Benefit program development – 10 hours at $40 

Services above are priced individually.  Combining results together into a benefit program 

0 programs - $0   target of 1 program 

 

May in Motion Sponsorship 

In kind sponsor of May in Motion - $1,000. 

Planned but not fulfilled. Cancelation due to COVID-19  

 

  



 

15 | P a g e  
 

 



 

16 | P a g e  
 

 



 

17 | P a g e  
 

 



 

18 | P a g e  
 

D. Self-Sustaining Memo – Under Review 

City Go Self-Sustaining Revenue Model  

The ideal self-sustaining revenue structure for City Go has diverse funding sources, 

including revenues from paid memberships and transit fares. Like most successful 

Transportation Management Agencies, City Go will rely on public and private 

partner members to shift a portion of their transportation-related funding to City 

Go. In return, these funding partners should realize financial benefits from their 

investment in the form of cost off-sets, and additional customer base. In addition,  

partners receive value-added services from City Go, including benefits to employees, 

administrative and marketing support, increased ridership, increased employer 

contract, and critical programs and services needed to meet transportation and 

sustainability goals. The intent of this model is that, over time, the percentage of 

revenue provided to City Go through cash contributions from partners will decrease 

to a lower percentage (approximately 40%). 

Value Proposition 

Transportation Management Associations can provide significant, and measurable, benefits to their funding members and partners. City Go believes that 

funding members will realize the following benefits from membership: 

1. Benefits employees – Employees access multi-modal transportation resources, reduced transportation costs and additional transportation 

options.  

2. Generates additional revenue for public transportation providers – Outreach and promotion efforts to businesses and individuals can lead to 

measurable increases in ridership and public transportation utilization, which supports the growth of long-term fare revenues.  

3. Reductions to negative externalities of single-occupancy vehicle (SOV) trips – Even small adjustments to the number of SOV trips can have 

large impacts on emission pollution, traffic congestion, and parking problems.   

4. Cost off-sets, such as reduced need for construction of additional parking spaces, infrastructure and related services– Reducing the amount of 

parking necessary for core downtown uses can open land for higher and better uses.  

Membershi
ps, 20%

Fares, 5%

Partners -
Direct, 40%

Partners -
In Kind , 

30%

Other Sources , 5%

Self-Sustaining Revenue Breakdown 



 

19 | P a g e  
 

5. Provides additional administrative and marketing capacity – Funding partners will increase their administrative and marketing capacity by 

City Go promoting and selling their services. Additionally, funding partners will receive assistance with the administrative management of 

employee benefits and will receive marketing and advertising support.  

6. Helps achieve broad organizational mission and sustainability goals – Partners can utilize the efforts of City Go to highlight their progression 

toward organizational goals. The long-term performance measure tracking provided by City Go further supports this progression. 

City Go Revenue Development  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
Partners -

Direct, 82%

Partners - In 
Kind , 17%

Other Sources 
, 1%

Initial Start Up Revenues, FY 2019 

Memberships
, 3%

Partners -
Direct, 64%

Partners - In 
Kind , 33%

Other 
Sources , 

0%

Current Revenues, FY 2020 

Memberships
, 8%

Fares, 1%

Partners -
Direct, 66%

Partners - In 
Kind , 21%

Other Sources 
, 4%

Anticipated Revenues, FY 2021 



 

Memorandum of Understanding between VRT, City of Boise City, CCDC, ACHD, and Boise State for the City Go 
Program 
 
Page 20 
 

E. Strategic Framework 

VISION: We believe the future of transportation is shared and sustainable. Therefore, we aim to 

create a more connected and economically viable downtown area for Boise and its surrounding 

communities by enhancing shared mobility and transportation services.   

MISSION: As a collaborative of public and private partners, we provide access to all shared mobility 

and transportation options for people traveling into, out of, and around Downtown Boise. We aim 

to provide solutions that: 

 Offer equitable, effective mobility options. 

 Reduce the number of single occupancy vehicle (SOV) trips. 

 Slow the increase in demand for parking. 
 

FOCUS AREAS 

1. MOBILITY and MEMBERS (Environment change): Create a viable, attractive, 
integrated, easy-to-use member-supported mobility system. 

a. Strategy: Integrate and add mobility services (such as establishing City Go Wallet) 
b. Strategy: Develop structures for City Go membership and acquire members 

 
2. PARTNERSHIP for PERFORMANCE (Policy and systems change): Establish and 

sustain a transportation management association for Downtown Boise that integrates 
transportation demand services. 

a. Strategy: Develop effective, ongoing, partner-based organizational structure 
b. Strategy: Build a sustainable financial model 
c. Strategy: Sustain and grow City Go program resources to meet demand 
d. Strategy: Collect and share data to track performance and system response 

 
3. COMMUNITY ACTION (Behavioral change): Raise awareness of available services 

and increase public support for and use of mobility options and alternatives to SOV trips. 
a. Strategy: City Go brand and marketing activities (such as City Go website) 
b. Strategy: City Go educational and outreach opportunities (such as City Go 

Conversations) 

 

 



 

Memorandum of Understanding between VRT, City of Boise City, CCDC, ACHD, and Boise State for the City Go 
Program 
 
Page 21 
 

F. Performance Measures 

 

INDICATOR HIERARCHY   

Reach 

 KPI #1: Percent of public that are aware of mobility options 

Target = 15% increase annually 

 KPI #2 Percent of people that have used sustainable commute options 

Target = 3% increase annually 

Behavior Change  

 KPI #3: Percent decrease in Single Occupancy Vehicle Trips (survey and mode count) 

Target = 10% reduction over 10 years (minimum 1% reduction annually) 

 KPI #4: Percent of commuters driving alone v. another mode 

Target = 10% reduction over 10 years (minimum 1% reduction annually) 

Community Support  

 KPI#5: Percent of employees that access transportation benefits through an employer 

Target = 5% increase (approximately 5,000 individuals)  

Equity 

 KPI #6: Percent increase in transportation benefits for low-income individuals 

Target = 5% increase 

Viability 

 Amount of City Go-generated membership revenue (2020) 

Target = $25,000 

 Amount of City Go-generated fare revenue (2020). 

Target = $60,000 

 

Monthly 
indicators

• Report on outputs and 
activities related to 
implementing 
STRATEGIES and 
achieving KPIs

Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI)

• Report OUTCOMES and 
IMPACTS related to 
FOCUS AREAS 

Vision, Mission 
and Focus Areas

• Communicate and 
provide guidance on 
overall purpose



 

Memorandum of Understanding between VRT, City of Boise City, CCDC, ACHD, and Boise State for the City Go 
Program 
 
Page 22 
 

PERFORMANCE MEASURES SCORECARD 

Performance  
Measure 

2020  
Target 

Nov 2019 
to  

April 
2020 

REACH   

KPI #1: Percent of public that are aware of mobility options   

KPI #2: Percent of people that have used sustainable 
commute options 

  

Number of individuals covered under membership 4,500 2,776 

Number of active individual members in Member Space 1,000 95 

Number of outreach events 
75 events 
attended 

12 

Number of website visits 15,000 2,609 

Number of social media followers 
2,000 social 

media followers 

Insta: 
349 

FB: 73 

Social media average post reach 4,000 
Insta: 90 

FB: 87 

Number of direct email subscribers 1,000 225 

Under Development: Demographic diversity of members and 
engagements and/or demographic diversity of customer 

satisfaction survey 

  

BEHAVIOR CHANGE   

KPI #3: Percent decrease in Single Occupancy Vehicle Trips    

KPI #4: Percent of commuters driving alone v. another 
mode 

  

Commute behavior change 
IPI annual 

survey 
 

Downtown SOV Counts _ 91% 

GreenBike Ridership 500 38 

ValleyRide Ridership 15,000 1,184 



 

Memorandum of Understanding between VRT, City of Boise City, CCDC, ACHD, and Boise State for the City Go 
Program 
 
Page 23 
 

Performance  
Measure 

2020  
Target 

Nov 2019 
to  

April 
2020 

ParkBOI Carpool Ridership   

CommuteRide Vanpool Ridership   

Under Development: track alongside changes in downtown jobs 
and residents 

  

COMMUNITY SUPPORT   

KPI #5: Percent of employees that access transportation 
benefits through an employer. 

  

Renewed memberships 85%  

Number of business members 
20 business 

members 
5 

Number of individual members 
100 individual 

members 
10 

Number of new sustaining business members 3 0 

Number of Earned Media 15 6 

EQUITY   

KPI #6: Percent increase in options for low income 
individuals 

  

Low-income employees with access to transportation benefits   

Under Development:  proportionate use by demographic groups   

Under Development:  change in transportation cost-burden   

VIABILITY    

Fare revenue generated 
$60,000 in fare 

revenue 
$4,003 

Membership revenue generated 
$25,000 in 

membership 
revenue 

$11,140 

Number of wallets sold 1,500 81 



 

Memorandum of Understanding between VRT, City of Boise City, CCDC, ACHD, and Boise State for the City Go 
Program 
 
Page 24 
 

Performance  
Measure 

2020  
Target 

Nov 2019 
to  

April 
2020 

Customer Satisfaction Annual survey  

GreenBike sign-ups 100 25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Memorandum of Understanding between VRT, City of Boise City, CCDC, ACHD, and Boise State for the City Go 
Program 
 
Page 25 
 

G. Governance Structure  

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE, ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES  

steering committee 
who: stakeholders and subject matter experts who make significant 
financial contributions, offer guidance, give advice on important issues, 
and provide strategic direction 
what: contribute revenues; provide accountability and oversight on 
budget and program performance; act as conduits and gain approval 
from respective Boards, Commissions and Councils, as needed. 

program director 
who: subject matter and 
organizational expert who manages 
and executes all program aspects 
what: implement steering committee 
direction and direct organizational 
strategy; oversee day-to-day 
activities; improve performance; 
develop organizational culture and 
hire and supervise staff/volunteer 
teams; report on finances; act as 
public “face” of program. 

work groups and task forces 
who: collaborative stakeholder 
groups with subject matter 
expertise; convene for a specific 
purpose; often time-limited 
what: develop and help execute 
plans and strategies in specific 
performance areas; regularly 
report progress to program director 

members 
who: program beneficiaries who have paid into programs 
at various levels within the membership structure 
what: customers and users of programs and services; 
generate revenues through membership; are consulted 
and provide input and guidance from the member 
perspective on program responsiveness and development 

Meet quarterly 
(more as needed) 

Meet monthly, when convened 
(more as needed) Consulted annually 

(more as needed) 

Director & 
Staff Team 



 

Memorandum of Understanding between VRT, City of Boise City, CCDC, ACHD, and Boise State for the City Go 
Program 
 
Page 26 
 

H. Approval Process   

APPROVAL PROCESS FLOW 

  

(Need for approval  determined 
at Steering Committee 
members’ discretion) 

(Steering Committee requested to provide clear, 
advanced direction to Program Director 

regarding decisions requiring Boards’ approval) 



 

Memorandum of Understanding between VRT, City of Boise City, CCDC, ACHD, and Boise State for the City Go 
Program 
 
Page 27 
 

J. Membership Structure  

 

 

 

Why we involve members in City Go’s organizational structure: 
 Engage members in shaping City Go processes, products and initiatives. 

 Expand the businesses and individuals using and funding the program. 

 Build a large, collaborative, community of partners and people who believe in and advocate for policies 
and investments that shift behavior to more sustainable commuting options. 

 Hear from members on what’s working and receive suggestions for continuous improvement. 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 
 
 
 
 
 



 Page 1 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 
 
 

 
Agenda Subject: 
Prequalification of Contractors for 9th & Front Garage Stairs Structural 
Repair Project 
 

 
Date: 
October 12, 2020 

 
Staff Contact: 
Aaron Nelson, Parking & Facilities Manager 
Kathy Wanner, Contracts Specialist 

 
Attachments:   
    A.  Resolution No. 1677 
    B.  SOQ scoring 
    C.  RFQ issued August 19, 2020 
 

 
Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution No. 1677 selecting prequalified contractors for the 
9th & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repair Project.  
 

 

Background: 
 
Agency staff has found it desirable for public works contractors to have experience in constructing 
certain high cost Agency projects. Equally important is a demonstrated ability to handle complex 
logistics and site conditions in an urban setting, sufficient resources to keep the project moving 
quickly, and sensitivity to community relations.  
 
To accomplish those goals, the Agency utilizes Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b) which provides for a 
two-stage process for procuring public works construction valued in excess of $200,000: 
 

 Stage 1:  Agencies can examine preliminary supplemental qualifications such as 
experience constructing similar facilities and overall performance history to prequalify 
licensed public works contractors prior to a competitive bidding process.   
 

 Stage 2:  Invite competitive bids from only licensed public works contractors that have 
been prequalified at Stage 1. 

 
The 9th & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repair Project will involve the repair to and application 
of protective elastomeric coating to existing painted ferrous metals, steel shapes, and associated 
steel components the (2) 8-story stair towers on the 9th & Front Garage. While CCDC did have 
the original cast-in-place stair towers replaced with precast stair risers and landings reinforced 
with epoxy-coated rebar, no repairs were made to the frame at that time. Since then, there has 
been chloride-induced corrosion of the rebar reinforcement within the frames that now needs to 
be addressed. 
 



 Page 2 

The Agency’s Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for the Project was issued on August 19, 2020.  
Legal notice was published in the Idaho Statesman newspaper on August 19 and 26, 2020.   
 
Four contractors responded to the RFQ by the 3:00 p.m., September 9, 2020, deadline:   
 

1. ESI – Engineered Structures, Inc. 
2. Guho Corp. 
3. Watson Associates 
4. Western Specialty Contractors 

 
 
Contractor Licensing 
 
An initial review of the four contractor’s licensing information revealed that all were properly 
licensed to perform the work with the necessary Type 3 Building Construction license or Type 4 
Specialty Construction license with skilled trade categories.  
 
Reviewing and Scoring the Statements of Qualifications (SOQ) 
 
In addition to simple licensing and company information, the RFQ (see Attachment 3) requested 
information on the following prequalification standards: 
 

 Experience constructing similar public works facilities – 30 points possible 

 Key personnel – 20 points possible 

 Overall performance history – 25 points possible 

 References – 15 points possible 

 Prior Experience with Capital City Development Corporation – 10 points possible 
 
A four-member Agency staff evaluation team reviewed and scored the SOQs submitted by the 
four properly-licensed companies.  A score of 75 or greater was needed to be eligible to bid the 
project. All of the companies met that scoring threshold. 
 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
 
The Agency’s FY2021 budget includes sufficient funding for this project. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 

 

Staff recommends that the Agency Board adopt Resolution No. 1677 prequalifying ESI – 
Engineered Structures, Inc., Guho Corp., Watson Associates and Western Specialty Contractors 
as eligible to submit competitive bids for the 9th & Front Garage Stair Structural Repairs Project.  
 

Suggested Motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 1677 prequalifying ESI – Engineered Structures, Inc., Guho 
Corp., Watson Associates and Western Specialty Contractors as eligible to submit competitive 
bids for the 9th  & Front Garage Stair Structural Repairs Project. 

 



kwanner
Text Box
Attachment A:  Resolution 1677



RESOLUTION NO. 1677  - 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1677 
 
 
BY  THE  BOARD  OF  COMMISSIONERS  OF  THE  URBAN  RENEWAL  AGENCY  OF BOISE 
CITY, IDAHO: 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN 

RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, PREQUALIFYING 

ESI-ENGINEERED STRUCTURES, INC., GUHO CORP., WATSON 

ASSOCIATES, AND WESTERN SPECIALTY CONTRACTORS AS ELIGIBLE TO 

SUBMIT COMPETITIVE BIDS FOR THE 9TH & FRONT GARAGE STAIR 

STRUCTURAL REPAIRS PROJECT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 
THIS RESOLUTION, is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 

Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized under 
the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho 

Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, Chapter 29, 

Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively the "Act"), as a duly created and functioning urban renewal 
agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the "Agency"). 

  
 WHEREAS, Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b) provides for a two-stage process for 
procurement of public works construction, which includes:  
 

• Stage 1:  Allows public agencies to establish preliminary supplemental 
qualifications for purposes of prequalifying licensed public works 
contractors prior to a competitive bidding process, and,   

 
• Stage 2:  Invites competitive bids from only licensed public works 

contractors that have been prequalified at Stage 1; and, 
  

WHEREAS, Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b) allows a political jurisdiction to examine a public 
works contractor’s qualifications related to:  
 

 Demonstrated technical competence 

 Experience constructing similar facilities 

 Prior experience with the political subdivision   

 Availability of resources, equipment, and personnel 

 Overall performance history; and, 
 

 WHEREAS, the Agency issued a Request for Qualifications (“RFQ”) from licensed public 
works contractors for the 9th & Front Garage Stair Structural Repairs Project on August 19, 2020, 
and published notice of the RFQ in the Idaho Statesman newspaper on August 19 and 26, 2020; 
and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the deadline for submitting a signed Statement of Qualifications and Required 
Waiver & Release Form (collectively, the “SOQ”) was September 9, 2020, at 3:00 p.m.; and, 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1677  - 2 

 

 WHEREAS, four (4) construction companies provided their SOQs by the September 9, 
2020, deadline: ESI-Engineered Structures, Inc., Guho Corp., Watson Associates, and Western 
Specialty Contractors; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Agency staff evaluated the four (4) SOQs and scored each of them according 
to a scoring method outlined in the RFQ; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Agency staff found that ESI-Engineered Structures, Inc., Guho Corp., Watson 
Associates, and Western Specialty Contractors provided information that was deemed sufficient 
to meet the 75-point scoring threshold (out of 100 total points possible) for the prequalification 
standards set forth in the RFQ; and,   
 

WHEREAS, Agency staff recommends the Agency Board prequalify, in accordance with 
Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b), ESI-Engineered Structures, Inc., Guho Corp., Watson Associates, 
and Western Specialty Contractors as eligible to submit competitive bids for the 9th & Front 
Garage Stair Structural Repairs Project; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency Board finds it in accordance with Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b) and 

in the best public interest to prequalify ESI-Engineered Structures, Inc., Guho Corp., Watson 
Associates, and Western Specialty Contractor as eligible to submit competitive bids for the 
9th & Front Garage Stair Structural Repairs Project. 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1:  That the above statements are true and correct and incorporated herein. 
 

Section 2:  That the Agency Board hereby finds that ESI-Engineered Structures, Inc., 

Guho Corp., Watson Associates, and Western Specialty Contractors provided sufficient 
information to meet the 75-point scoring threshold for the prequalification standards set forth in 

the RFQ. 

 

Section 3: That the Agency Board hereby prequalifies, in accordance with Idaho Code 
§ 67-2805(2)(b), ESI-Engineered Structures, Inc., Guho Corp., Watson Associates, and Western 

Specialty Contractors, as eligible to submit competitive bids for the 9th & Front Garage Stair 

Structural Repairs Project. 

 

Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval. 

 

  



RESOLUTION NO. 1677  - 3 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on October 

12, 2020.  Signed by the Chair of the Agency Board of Commissioners and attested by the 

Secretary to the Agency Board of Commissioners on October 12, 2020. 

 
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY 
 
 
By:         

            Dana Zuckerman, Chair 
ATTEST: 
 
 

By:        
      Lauren McLean, Secretary 



kwanner
Text Box
Attachment B:  SOQ Scoring



COMPANY ESI Guho Watson
Western 

Specialty

Experience constructing similar public works facilities

Max 30 30 30 30

Matt 21 29 29 30

Aaron 30 30 30 30

Karl 25 25 30 30

Key Personnel

Max 18 20 20 20

Matt 16 20 20 20

Aaron 20 20 20 18

Karl 15 20 5 20

Overall Performance History

Max 25 25 25 25

Matt 25 25 15 25

Aaron 25 25 25 25

Karl 25 25 25 25

References (can be same or different from #1 above )

Max 14 15 0 15

Matt 13 14 14 15

Aaron 12 15 15 15

Karl 10 15 15 10

Prior Experience with CCDC

Max 5 10 10 0

Matt 5 10 10 0

Aaron 10 10 10 0

Karl 5 10 10 0

Must score 75 points or more to qualify

Sum divided by 4 87.25 98.25 89.5 88.25

9th & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repairs  Prequalification RFQ

RFQ Total Scoring - 10th Front Garage Concrete Repairs Project



kwanner
Text Box
Attachment C:  RFQ Issued August 19, 2020



 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

 

PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTORS 
 

PRE-QUALIFICATION FOR 
9th & FRONT GARAGE STAIRS 

STRUCTURAL REPAIRS PROJECT 
 

BOISE, IDAHO 
 

 

 

 

 

 

              

 

QUALIFICATIONS MUST BE RECEIVED BY: 
3:00 P.M. LOCAL TIME, SEPTEMBER 9, 2020 

 

 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

2020 – 9th  & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repairs Project  PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
Pre-Qualification for 9th & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repairs Project 

 
 
 
August 19, 2020 
 
Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC), the urban renewal agency for the city of Boise, 
Idaho, will accept Statements of Qualifications from Idaho-licensed public works contractors to 
be pre-qualified, in accordance with Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b), to submit competitive bids for 
construction of its 9th & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repairs Project in downtown Boise, 
Idaho. CCDC will prequalify bidders on the following criteria:  technical competence; experience 
constructing similar facilities; prior experience with CCDC; available non-financial resources, 
equipment, and personnel; and overall performance history based upon the contractor’s entire 
body of work.  Only contractors pre-qualified through this process will be allowed to submit a bid 
for the public works construction project.   
 
Licensed public works contractors seeking pre-qualification must complete and submit the 
pre-qualification forms provided herein.   
 

Submission deadline is 3:00 P.M. local time, September 9, 2020. 
 
 
CCDC appreciates your interest in meeting the needs of the agency and the citizens of Boise. 

 
 
Kathy Wanner 
Contracts Specialist 
 

 
121 N 9TH ST, SUITE 501  BOISE, ID 83702 
208-384-4264      WWW.CCDCBOISE.COM 

 
  



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

2020 – 9th  & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repairs Project  PAGE 2 

PART 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
 
1.1  SCOPE OF WORK 
The 9th & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repairs Project will involve repair work on structural 
concrete members specifically at the two 8-story stair towers. Spalling and disbanded concrete 
at areas of these elements is occurring as the result to exposure from alkali-silica reactions. 
Required repair work will include: repair damaged concrete and rebar at damaged members 
and apply substantial elastomeric, waterproof protective coating(s) to reduce and/or eliminate 
water and chlorides ability to enter the cement porosity of the structural members. 
 
CCDC estimates the total project costs to be: $500,000   
 
 
1.2  RFQ SUBMISSION 
The submission package must submitted electronically by email to:  bids@ccdcboise.com  
 
Please include this subject line on the email:   
 

RFQ SUBMITTAL:  9th & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repairs 
 
To be considered, the submission package must contain: 
 

Exhibit A: Statements of Qualifications 
Exhibit B: Required Waiver & Release 

 
Exhibit A: Statements of Qualifications requires that the Respondent provide other documents 
containing requested information and answer all Yes / No questions found throughout.  Failure 
to supply the requested information or complete any form may be cause to deem the 
submission non-responsive.  
 
All required submittal documents must be signed and dated and must be submitted via email 
either in one PDF or a separate PDF of each required document.  Electronic signatures are 
acceptable, provided the signed document is in PDF format and can be opened and read in 
Adobe Acrobat XI without the need for additional software, applications, or extensions. Scanned 
signatures are also acceptable. Unsigned submissions will not be accepted.  Late or incomplete 
submissions will not be accepted.  Respondent assumes full responsibility for the timely delivery 
of its submission of all documents via the email process. 
 
Respondent will be responsible for all costs (including site visits where needed) incurred in 
preparing or responding to this RFQ.  All materials and documents submitted in response to this 
RFQ become the property of CCDC and will not be returned. 
 
 
1.3  OBJECTIONS 
Written objections to prequalification procedures must be received by CCDC at least three (3) 
business days before the date and time upon which submissions are due.  Objections are to be 
in writing directed to Kathy Wanner, Contracts Specialist, at kwanner@ccdcboise.com. 
 
 
 

mailto:bids@ccdcboise.com
mailto:kwanner@ccdcboise.com


REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

2020 – 9th  & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repairs Project  PAGE 3 

1.4  ADDENDA 
In the event it becomes necessary to revise any part of the RFQ, written addenda will be issued. 
Addenda will be made available by way of the CCDC website: www.ccdcboise.com.  It is the 
Respondent’s responsibility to check for addenda prior to submitting a submission package.  
Respondents are requested to acknowledge all addenda in the space provided on Exhibit A.  No 
addenda will be issued fewer than four (4) business days before the submission deadline unless 
the deadline is extended. 
 
 
1.5  RIGHTS RESERVED 
CCDC reserves the right to act in the public best interest and in furtherance of the purposes of 
the Idaho Urban Renewal Law, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho Code, and the laws for Purchasing 
by Political Subdivisions, Chapter 28, Title 67, Idaho Code.  CCDC reserves the right to waive 
any formalities or defects as to form, procedure, or content with respect to its RFQ and any 
minor irregularities in the submissions received, to request additional data and information from 
any and all Respondents, to reject any submissions based on real or apparent conflict of 
interest, to reject any submissions containing inaccurate or misleading information, and to 
accept the submissions that are in the best interest of CCDC.  The issuance of this RFQ and the 
receipt and evaluation of submissions does not obligate CCDC to take any further action relative 
to the RFQ.  CCDC may in its discretion cancel this process at any time without liability.  
 
 
1.6  PUBLIC RECORDS 
CCDC is a public agency.  All documents in its possession are public records subject to 
disclosure under the Idaho Public Records Act, Chapter 1, Title 74, Idaho Code, and will be 
available for inspection and copying by any person after the RFQ process is complete. 
 
If any Respondent claims any part of its submission is exempt from disclosure under the Idaho 
Public Records Act, Respondent must: 1.) Indicate by marking the pertinent document 
“CONFIDENTIAL”; and, 2.) Include the specific basis for the position that it be treated as 
exempt from disclosure.  Marking the entire submission as “Confidential” is not in accordance 
with the Idaho Public Records Act and will not be honored.  CCDC, to the extent allowed by law 
and in accordance with these Instructions, will honor a designation of nondisclosure.  By 
claiming material to be exempt from disclosure under the Idaho Public Records Act, 
Respondent expressly agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold CCDC harmless from any claim or 
suit arising from CCDC’s refusal to disclose such materials.  Any questions regarding the 
applicability of the Public Records Act should be addressed to your own legal counsel prior to 
submission. 
 
 
END OF PART 1  

http://www.ccdcboise.com/


REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

2020 – 9th  & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repairs Project PAGE 4 

PART 2 – QUALIFICATION INFORMATION 

2.1  BASIS FOR SELECTION AND PRE-QUALIFICATION 
In accordance with Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b), this Request for Qualifications will be evaluated 
as detailed below.  Only Respondents who complete all information requested, completely and 
accurately, and receive a score of 75 points or greater will be eligible to bid on the 9th & Front 
Garage Stairs Structural Repairs Project. 

 Experience constructing similar public works facilities – 30 points possible

 Key personnel – 20 points possible

 Overall performance history – 25 points possible

 References – 15 points possible

 Prior Experience with Capital City Development Corporation – 10 points possible

CCDC may conduct investigations and interviews, if necessary, to determine the performance 
record and abilities of Respondent to perform the size and type of work to be contracted.  
By submitting a response to this RFQ, the Respondent is authorizing CCDC to conduct 
investigations and interviews as needed. 

2.2  PROJECT SCHEDULE (Tentative) 

Prequalification 

Request for Qualifications issued August 19, 2020 
Last Day for Objections September 3, 2020 by 3 p.m. 
Qualifications Due September 9, 2020 by 3 p.m. 
Selection of Pre-Qualified Contractors CCDC Board Meeting: October 12, 2020 
Deadline to Appeal 7 days from notice of Board decision 

Project Bidding 

Invitation to Bid to Pre-Qualified Contractors  October 21, 2020 (anticipated) 
Pre-Bid Conference  To be determined 
Bid Opening  December 2, 2020 (anticipated) 
Bid Award CCDC Board Meeting: December 8, 2020 

Project Construction 

Notice to Proceed (Weather Dependent) 
Estimated Construction Duration 

Late Winter/Early Spring 2021 (anticipated) 
Four Months 

END OF PART 2 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
2020 – 9th & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repairs Project – EXHIBIT A PAGE 1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

RFQ:  9th & FRONT GARAGE STAIRS STRUCTURAL REPAIRS PROJECT 
STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS (SOQ) 

(REQUIRED FOR SUBMISSION) 
 

 
TO:  Capital City Development Corporation 
 By email:  bids@ccdcboise.com  

Attn: Kathy Wanner, Contracts Specialist 
 121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
 Boise, Idaho 83702 
 
 

 
THE UNDERSIGNED DECLARES, that he/she holds the position indicated below as a 
corporate officer or the owner or a partner in the business entity submitting these Qualifications; 
that the undersigned is informed of all relevant facts surrounding the preparation and 
submission of these Qualifications; and that the undersigned represents and warrants that all 
information provided is true, accurate, and complete. 
 

SIGNATURE:  X           

 
Print Name / Title:            
 
Name of Company:            
 
Company Type:    ___ Corporation     ___ Partnership     ___ Individual     ___ LLC     ___ Other 
 
Business Address:             
 
              
 
Telephone:        Fax:        
 
E-mail Address:             
 
 
LICENSE:  Idaho Public Works Contractor License #        
 
Number of years the Company has been in business:        
 
Is the Company a parent or subsidiary of another Company?  _____ Yes     _____ No 
 
If yes, please explain:            
 
ADDENDA:  Respondent has reviewed and understands all addenda issued with this RFQ: 

 
 Addendum No.    Dated:       

 Addendum No.    Dated:       

  

mailto:bids@ccdcboise.com


REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
2020 – 9th & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repairs Project – EXHIBIT A PAGE 2 

INSTRUCTIONS:  Review each page of this Exhibit A. 
Provide the documents requested and answer all Yes / No questions found herein. 

 

 
 
1.   SIMILAR PROJECT EXPERIENCE 
Contractor’s experience completing similar projects will be evaluated.  30 points possible. 
The Contractor (and the Key Personnel) must have the following project experience: 
 

Contractor Requirements 

 Successfully completed the construction of at least three (3) projects each with a bid 
price of $200,000 or more within the last ten (10) years. 

 All three (3) projects must have involved the completion of cast-in-place 
reinforced concrete structural structures and / or repair work, and application 
of protective waterproof coatings at structural concrete surfaces, where 
applicable, in a facility that was operational during the course of the repair 
work.  

 
 
 
PROVIDE:  Provide at least three (3) examples of Respondent’s work equal to or exceeding a 
project cost of $200,000 within the last ten (10) years.   

 All three (3) projects must have involved the completion of cast-in-place 
reinforced concrete structural structures and / or repair work, and application of 
protective waterproof coatings at structural concrete surfaces, where applicable, 
in a facility that was operational during the course of the repair work. 

 
Include all of the following project information to verify and evaluate whether the Contractor has 
the project experience required:  Owner names, addresses, phone numbers, email addresses, 
dates of construction, original contract value, final contract value, descriptions of the projects, 
descriptions of the work performed, and descriptions of the additional work performed beyond 
the original contract value if required. 
 

Three examples provided with complete project information.  _____ Yes     _____ No 

  



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
2020 – 9th & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repairs Project – EXHIBIT A PAGE 3 

2.   KEY PERSONNEL  
Experience of Key Personnel will be evaluated.  20 points possible. 
The Key Personnel must have the following project experience: 
 

Project Manager Required Experience 

 At least three (3) full consecutive years of experience as a construction project 
manager focused on concrete repair. 

 Successfully managed and completed three (3) construction projects each with a bid 
price of $200,000 or more within the last ten (10) years.  All projects shall be focused 
on concrete repair. 

 
Project Superintendent Required Experience 

 At least three (3) full consecutive years of experience as a project superintendent 
focused on concrete repair. 

 Successfully supervised and completed three (3) construction projects each with a 
bid price of $200,000 or more within the last ten (10) years.  All projects shall be 
focused on concrete repair. 

 
 
PROVIDE:  Provide a résumé for each candidate who would fill the positions of Project Manager 
and Project Superintendent for the 9th & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repair Project.  Be sure 
the résumés include:  
 

 Employment information such as names, dates of employment, addresses, phone 
numbers, and email addresses that is sufficient to verify and evaluate the Project 
Manager’s and Project Superintendent’s employment history.   

 

 All of the following project information to verify and evaluate whether the Project 
Manager and Project Superintendent have the required project experience:  Owner 
names, addresses, phone numbers, email addresses, dates of construction, original 
contract values, final contract values, descriptions of the projects, and descriptions of the 
work performed. 

 
One (1) alternate candidate résumé for each position may be provided in case the primary 
candidate’s employment and project references cannot be reached or the primary candidate’s 
experience requirements do not meet the requirements.  Please be sure to indicate “Alternate” 
on any alternate candidate résumés. 
 

Résumés provided with complete contact information.  _____ Yes     _____ No 
 
 

  



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
2020 – 9th & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repairs Project – EXHIBIT A PAGE 4 

3.   OVERALL PERFORMANCE HISTORY 
Contractor’s overall performance history will be evaluated.  25 points possible. 
 
PROVIDE:  Provide answers to the following questions; provide documents where requested. 
 
 

 
Provide a statement or letter from a surety insurer 
authorized to do business in the State of Idaho which 
states that Contractor’s current available bonding capacity 
is sufficient for the project for which it seeks pre-
qualification.  Surety insurer must have an A.M. Best 
financial strength rating of “A-” or better. 
 

 

 
In the last five (5) years, have you or any of the company 
owners, officers, or partners had their Contractor’s license 
revoked? 
 

 

 
In the last five (5) years, have you or any of the company 
owners, officers, or partners been “defaulted” or 
“terminated” by an owner (other than for convenience of 
the owner)? 
 

 

 
In the last five (5) years, have you or any of the company 
owners, officers, or partners been convicted of a crime 
involving any federal, state, or local law related to 
construction, including any act of dishonesty? 
 

 

 
In the last five (5) years, have you or any of the company 
owners, officers, or partners been convicted of a crime 
involving the awarding of a contract on a government 
construction project or the bidding or performance of a 
government construction contract? 
 

 

 
Is your company currently in bankruptcy proceedings or 
has the company filed for bankruptcy at any time during 
the last five (5) years? 
 

 

 
Is your company currently in default on any loan 
agreement or financing agreement with a bank, financial 
institution, or other financial entity? 
 
 
 

 

  



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
2020 – 9th & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repairs Project – EXHIBIT A PAGE 5 

In the last five (5) years, has your company ever been 
denied bond coverage by a surety? 
 

 
In the last five (5) years, has any surety company made 
any payments on your company’s behalf as a result of 
default, to satisfy any claims made against a performance 
or payment bond, in connection with any public or private 
construction project?  
 

 

 
In the last five (5) years, has any claim against your 
company concerning your company’s work on a 
construction project been filed in court or submitted to 
mediation or arbitration? 
 

 

 
In the last five (5) years, has any insurance carrier, for any 
form of insurance, refused to renew your company’s 
insurance policy? 
 

 

 
In the last five (5) years, has the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers, Environmental Protection Agency, Idaho 
Department of Environmental Quality, or any other 
environmental quality control board cited and assessed 
penalties against your company or the owner of a project 
on which your company was the contractor and deemed 
responsible for the penalties? 
 

 

 
Does your company have a written health and safety 
(H&S) program / procedures?  If yes, provide a pdf copy, 
or an online access link to the program/procedures. 
 

 

 
Does your company have a health and safety training 
program?  If yes, provide a copy of the policy and 
procedures, in pdf or via online access link. 
 

 

 
Does your company conduct safety meetings during the 
course of a construction project?  If yes, provide a pdf copy 
of the safety meeting policy and a sample agenda.   
 

 

  



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
2020 – 9th & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repairs Project – EXHIBIT A PAGE 6 

4.   REFERENCES 
Contractor’s References will be evaluated.  15 points possible. 
References must be project owners – not subcontractors, building officials, lending institutions, 
or the like.  CCDC may ask questions relative to Contractor’s abilities and competence, 
including any or all of the following:   
 

 Contractor’s ability to provide adequate supervision on the project. 

 Contractor’s ability to work cooperatively with Owner, Architect, and outside 

parties. 

 Contractor’s ability to manage safety on the job site. 

 Contractor’s ability to work in accordance with the contract documents. 

 Contractor’s ability to provide timely reports, submittals, and scheduling 

updates. 

 Contractor’s utilization of change order requests 

 Contractor’s ability to maintain strong public relations and minimize disruption 

to businesses and the general public. 

 Contractor’s interaction with regulatory agencies and utilities. 

 Contractor’s ability to keep the project on schedule. 

 Contractor’s ability to manage closeout procedures efficiently and effectively. 

 
 

 PROVIDE:  Provide three (3) references that can speak to Contractor’s 
abilities and competence on projects equal to or exceeding a project cost of 
$200,000 within the last ten (10) years.  All of the projects shall be focused on 
cast-in place concrete and concrete repair.  A project emphasis of 
constructing the repairs in a facility that was operational during the course of 
the repair work is desired.  

 
 
Include all of the following information to verify and evaluate Contractor’s References:  Owner 
names, addresses, phone numbers, email addresses, dates of construction, original contract 
value, final contract value, descriptions of the projects, and descriptions of the work performed. 
 
Contractor may indicate that the References are the same as those that were listed for 
Section 1 (Similar Project Experience) above, or Contractor may choose to provide different 
references. 
 

References provided are those in Section 1 above.  _____ Yes     _____ No 
 

New References are provided with complete contact information.  _____ Yes     _____ No 
 
 

  



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
2020 – 9th & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repairs Project – EXHIBIT A PAGE 7 

5.   PRIOR EXPERIENCE WITH CCDC 
Experience working with CCDC will be evaluated.  10 points possible. 

 
 
PROVIDE:  Provide information about previous projects completed for Capital City Development 
Corporation.  Include the project names, dates of construction, original contract value, final 
contract value, descriptions of the projects, descriptions of the work performed, descriptions of 
the additional work performed beyond the original contract value if required., CCDC Project 
Manager names, and Contractor’s Key Personnel who worked on the projects. 
 

Information provided with complete project information.  _____ Yes     _____ No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
END OF EXHIBIT A 
 



EXHIBIT B 
 

REQUIRED WAIVER & RELEASE 
(REQUIRED FOR SUBMISSION) 

 
The undersigned Respondent has read this waiver and release and fully accepts Capital City 
Development Corporation’s (CCDC) discretion and non-liability as stipulated herein, and 
expressly for, but not limited to, CCDC’s decision to proceed with a pre-qualification selection 
process in response to the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to pre-qualify public works 
contractors to bid its 9th & Front Garage Stairs Structural Repairs Project.   
  
A. Discretion of CCDC:  The Idaho-licensed public works contractor making a submission 

to this RFQ agrees that CCDC has the right to, unless contrary to applicable state law: 
 
1) Modify or suspend any and all aspects of the process seeking proposals and 

making any decisions concerning the RFQ; 
2) Obtain further information from any person, entity, or group regarding the 

Respondent, and to ascertain the depth of Respondent’s capability and 
experience for supplying the desired services and in any and all other respects to 
meet with and consult with any Respondent or any other person, entity, or group; 

3) Waive any formalities or defects as to form, procedure, or content with respect to 
CCDC’s RFQ to pre-qualify contractors and any response by any Respondent 
thereto; 

4) Accept or reject any submission received in response to the RFQ, including any 
submission by the undersigned; or score one proposal over another in 
accordance with the selection criteria; and 

5) Accept or reject all or any part of any materials or statements, including, but not 
limited to, the nature and type of proposal.   

 
B. Non-Liability of CCDC: 
 

1) The undersigned agrees that CCDC shall have no liability whatsoever of any kind 
or character, directly or indirectly, by reason of all or any decision made at the 
discretion of CCDC as identified above. 

2) The undersigned, including all team members, have carefully and thoroughly 
reviewed the RFQ and has found it to be complete and free from ambiguities and 
sufficient for their intended purpose. 

 
 

SIGNATURE:  X           

 
Print Name / Title:            
 
Name of Firm:            
 
Date:              
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 
 
 
 
 
 



 Page 1 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 
 
 

 
Agenda Subject: 
Prequalification of Contractors for 10th & Front Garage Structural 
Concrete Repairs Project 
 

 
Date: 
October 12, 2020 

 
Staff Contact: 
Aaron Nelson, Parking & Facilities Manager 
Kathy Wanner, Contracts Specialist 

 
Attachments:   
    A.  Resolution No. 1678 
    B.  SOQ scoring 
    C.  RFQ issued August 19, 2020 
 

 
Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution No. 1678 selecting prequalified contractors for the 
10th & Front Garage Structural Concrete Repairs Project.  
 

 

Background: 
 
Agency staff has found it desirable for public works contractors to have experience in constructing 
certain high cost Agency projects. Equally important is a demonstrated ability to handle complex 
logistics and site conditions in an urban setting, sufficient resources to keep the project moving 
quickly, and sensitivity to community relations.  
 
To accomplish those goals, the Agency utilizes Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b) which provides for a 
two-stage process for procuring public works construction valued in excess of $200,000: 
 

 Stage 1:  Agencies can examine preliminary supplemental qualifications such as 
experience constructing similar facilities and overall performance history to prequalify 
licensed public works contractors prior to a competitive bidding process.   
 

 Stage 2:  Invite competitive bids from only licensed public works contractors that have 
been prequalified at Stage 1. 

 
The 10th & Front Garage Structural Concrete Repairs Project will involve partial depth, strip repair 
of concrete slab over precast beams, removal of scaling, deteriorating concrete, corroded 
reinforcing steel in slabs over the beams, and miscellaneous partial depth, and vertical/overhead 
concrete repairs utilizing high quality air entrained concrete and epoxy coated reinforcement; 
installation of traffic resistance water proofing membrane; replacement of control joints sealants 
with elastomeric material; and, application of silane sealer to supported floor slab. This work will 
occur predominantly on the second level. 
 



 Page 2 

The Agency’s Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for the Project was issued on August 19, 2020.  
Legal notice was published in the Idaho Statesman newspaper on August 19 and 26, 2020.   
 
Three contractors responded to the RFQ by the 3:00 p.m., September 9, 2020, deadline:   
 

1. ESI – Engineered Structures, Inc. 
2. Guho Corp. 
3. Western Specialty Contractors 

 
 
Contractor Licensing 
 
An initial review of the three contractor’s licensing information revealed that all were properly 
licensed to perform the work with the necessary Type 3 Building Construction license or Type 4 
Specialty Construction license with skilled trade categories.  
 
Reviewing and Scoring the Statements of Qualifications (SOQ) 
 
In addition to simple licensing and company information, the RFQ (see Attachment 3) requested 
information on the following prequalification standards: 
 

 Experience constructing similar public works facilities – 30 points possible 

 Key personnel – 20 points possible 

 Overall performance history – 25 points possible 

 References – 15 points possible 

 Prior Experience with Capital City Development Corporation – 10 points possible 
 
A four-member Agency staff evaluation team reviewed and scored the SOQs submitted by the 
three properly-licensed companies.  A score of 75 or greater was needed to be eligible to bid the 
project.  All three of the companies met that scoring threshold:   
 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
 
The Agency’s FY2021 budget includes sufficient funding for this project. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 

 

Staff recommends that the Agency Board adopt Resolution No. 1678 prequalifying ESI – 
Engineered Structures, Inc., Guho Corp., and Western Specialty Contractors as eligible to submit 
competitive bids for the 10th & Front Garage Structural Concrete Repairs Project.  
 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 1678 prequalifying ESI – Engineered Structures, Inc., Guho 
Corp., and Western Specialty Construction as eligible to submit competitive bids for the 10th & 
Front Garage Structural Concrete Repairs Project. 

 



kwanner
Text Box
Attachment A:   Resolution 1678



RESOLUTION NO. 1678  - 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1678 
 
 
 
BY  THE  BOARD  OF  COMMISSIONERS  OF  THE  URBAN  RENEWAL  AGENCY  OF BOISE 
CITY, IDAHO: 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN 

RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, PREQUALIFYING 

ESI - ENGINEERED STRUCTURES, INC., GUHO CORP., AND WESTERN 

SPECIALTY CONTRACTORS AS ELIGIBLE TO SUBMIT COMPETITIVE BIDS 

FOR THE 10TH & FRONT GARAGE STRUCTURAL CONCRETE REPAIRS 

PROJECT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 
THIS RESOLUTION, is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 

Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized under 
the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho 

Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, Chapter 29, 
Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively the "Act"), as a duly created and functioning urban renewal 

agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the "Agency"). 

   
 WHEREAS, Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b) provides for a two-stage process for 
procurement of public works construction, which includes:  
 

• Stage 1:  Allows public agencies to establish preliminary supplemental 
qualifications for purposes of prequalifying licensed public works 
contractors prior to a competitive bidding process, and,   

 
• Stage 2:  Invites competitive bids from only licensed public works 

contractors that have been prequalified at Stage 1; and, 
  

WHEREAS, Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b) allows a political jurisdiction to examine a public 
works contractor’s qualifications related to:  
 

 Demonstrated technical competence 

 Experience constructing similar facilities 

 Prior experience with the political subdivision   

 Availability of resources, equipment, and personnel 

 Overall performance history; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency issued a Request for Qualifications (“RFQ”) from licensed public 
works contractors for its 10th & Front Garage Structural Concrete Repairs Project on August 19, 
2020, and published notice of the RFQ in the Idaho Statesman newspaper on August 19 and 26, 
2020; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the deadline for submitting a signed Statement of Qualifications and Required 
Waiver & Release Form (collectively, the “SOQ”) was September 9, 2020, at 3:00 p.m.; and, 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1678  - 2 

 

 WHEREAS, three (3) construction companies provided their SOQs by the September 9, 
2020, deadline: ESI-Engineered Structures, Inc., Guho Corp., and Western Specialty Contractors; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Agency staff evaluated the three (3) SOQs and scored each of them 
according to a scoring method outlined in the RFQ; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Agency staff found that ESI-Engineered Structures, Inc., Guho Corp., and 
Western Specialty Contractors provided information that was deemed sufficient to meet the 
75-point scoring threshold (out of 100 total points possible) for the prequalification standards set 
forth in the RFQ; and,   
 

WHEREAS, Agency staff recommends the Agency Board prequalify, in accordance with 
Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b), ESI-Engineered Structures, Inc., Guho Corp., and Western Specialty 
Contractors as eligible to submit competitive bids for the Agency’s 10th & Front Garage Structural 
Concrete Repairs Project; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency Board finds it in accordance with Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b) and 

in the best public interest to prequalify ESI-Engineered Structures, Inc., Guho Corp., and Western 
Specialty Contractor as eligible to submit competitive bids for the Agency’s 10th & Front Garage 
Structural Concrete Repairs Project. 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1:  That the above statements are true and correct and incorporated herein. 
 

Section 2:  That the Agency Board hereby finds that ESI-Engineered Structures, Inc., 

Guho Corp., and Western Specialty Contractors provided sufficient information to meet the 
75-point scoring threshold for the prequalification standards set forth in the RFQ. 

 

Section 3: That the Agency Board hereby prequalifies, in accordance with Idaho 

Code § 67-2805(2)(b), ESI-Engineered Structures, Inc., Guho Corp., and Western Specialty 
Contractors, as eligible to submit competitive bids for the 10th & Front Garage Structural Concrete 

Repairs Project. 

 
Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

adoption and approval. 
 

  



RESOLUTION NO. 1678  - 3 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on October 

12, 2020.  Signed by the Chair of the Agency Board of Commissioners and attested by the 

Secretary to the Agency Board of Commissioners on October 12, 2020. 

 
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY 
 
 
By:         

            Dana Zuckerman, Chair 
ATTEST: 
 
 

By:        
      Lauren McLean, Secretary 



kwanner
Text Box
Attachment B:   SOQ Scoring



COMPANY ESI Guho
Western 

Speciality

Experience constructing similar public works facilities

Max 20 30 30

Matt 30 29 30

Aaron 30 30 30

Karl 25 25 30

Key Personnel

Max 20 20 20

Matt 21 20 20

Aaron 20 20 18

Karl 15 20 20

Overall Performance History

Max 25 25 25

Matt 16 25 25

Aaron 25 25 25

Karl 25 25 25

References (can be same or different from #1 above )

Max 15 15 15

Matt 13 14 15

Aaron 12 15 15

Karl 10 15 10

Prior Experience with CCDC

Max 5 10 0

Matt 5 10 0

Aaron 10 10 0

Karl 5 10 0

Must score 75 points or more to qualify

Sum divided by 4 86.75 98.25 88.25

10th & Front Garage Structural Concrete Damage Repairs  Prequalification 

RFQ

RFQ Total Scoring - 10th Front Garage Concrete Repairs Project



kwanner
Text Box
Attachment C:   RFQ issued August 19, 2020



 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

 

PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTORS 
 

PRE-QUALIFICATION FOR 
10th & FRONT GARAGE STRUCTURAL DAMAGE REPAIRS  

BOISE, IDAHO 
 

 

 

 

 

 

              

 

QUALIFICATIONS MUST BE RECEIVED BY: 
3:00 P.M. LOCAL TIME, SEPTEMBER 9, 2020 

 

 



 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

2020 – 10th  & Front Garage Structural Damage Repairs Project  PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
Pre-Qualification for 10th & Front Garage Structural Damage Repairs Project 

 
 
 
August 19, 2020 
 
Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC), the urban renewal agency for the city of Boise, 
Idaho, will accept Statements of Qualifications from Idaho-licensed public works contractors to 
be pre-qualified, in accordance with Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b), to submit competitive bids for 
construction of its 10th & Front Garage Structural Damage Repairs Project in downtown Boise, 
Idaho. CCDC will prequalify bidders on the following criteria:  technical competence; experience 
constructing similar facilities; prior experience with CCDC; available non-financial resources, 
equipment, and personnel; and overall performance history based upon the contractor’s entire 
body of work.  Only contractors pre-qualified through this process will be allowed to submit a bid 
for the public works construction project.   
 
Licensed public works contractors seeking pre-qualification must complete and submit the 
pre-qualification forms provided herein.   
 

Submission deadline is 3:00 P.M. local time, September 9, 2020. 
 
 
CCDC appreciates your interest in meeting the needs of the agency and the citizens of Boise. 
 
 
 

 
Kathy Wanner 
Contracts Specialist 
 

 
121 N 9TH ST, SUITE 501  BOISE, ID 83702 
208-384-4264      WWW.CCDCBOISE.COM 

 
  



 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

2020 – 10th  & Front Garage Structural Damage Repairs Project  PAGE 2 

PART 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
 
1.1  SCOPE OF WORK 
The 10th & Front Garage Structural Damage Repairs Project will involve partial depth, strip 
repair of concrete slab over precast beams, 2nd level only.  The work will include removal of 
scaling, deteriorating concrete, corroded reinforcing steel in slabs over the beams, and 
miscellaneous partial depth, and vertical/overhead concrete repairs. All repairs are to be 
performed with high quality air entrained concrete and epoxy coated reinforcement. Coat strip 
and miscellaneous repairs with traffic resistance water proofing membrane; replace control 
joints sealants with elastomeric material; and, apply silane sealer to supported floor slab. 
Restripe parking stalls and perform miscellaneous repairs to the south stairs. 
 
All work will be in accordance with project plans and specifications. 
 
CCDC estimates the total project costs to be: $1,000,000   
 
 
1.2  RFQ SUBMISSION 
The submission package must submitted electronically by email to  bids@ccdcboise.com  
 
Please include this subject line on the email:   
 

RFQ SUBMITTAL:  10th & Front Garage Structural Damage Repairs. 
 
To be considered, the submission package must contain: 
 

Exhibit A: Statements of Qualifications 
Exhibit B: Required Waiver & Release 

 
Exhibit A: Statements of Qualifications requires that the Respondent provide other documents 
containing requested information and answer all Yes / No questions found throughout.  Failure 
to supply the requested information or complete any form may be cause to deem the 
submission non-responsive.  
 
All required submittal documents must be signed and dated and must be submitted via email 
either in one PDF or a separate PDF of each required document.  Electronic signatures are 
acceptable, provided the signed document is in PDF format and can be opened and read in 
Adobe Acrobat XI without the need for additional software, applications, or extensions. Scanned 
signatures are also acceptable.  Unsigned submissions will not be accepted.  Late or incomplete 
submissions will not be accepted.  Respondent assumes full responsibility for the timely delivery 
of its submission of all documents via the email process. 
 
Respondent will be responsible for all costs (including site visits where needed) incurred in 
preparing or responding to this RFQ.  All materials and documents submitted in response to this 
RFQ become the property of CCDC and will not be returned. 
 
1.3  OBJECTIONS 
Written objections to prequalification procedures must be received by CCDC at least three (3) 
business days before the date and time upon which submissions are due.  Objections are to be 
in writing directed to Kathy Wanner, Contracts Specialist, at kwanner@ccdcboise.com. 

mailto:bids@ccdcboise.com
mailto:kwanner@ccdcboise.com


 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

2020 – 10th  & Front Garage Structural Damage Repairs Project  PAGE 3 

 
 
1.4  ADDENDA 
In the event it becomes necessary to revise any part of the RFQ, written addenda will be issued. 
Addenda will be made available by way of the CCDC website: www.ccdcboise.com.  It is the 
Respondent’s responsibility to check for addenda prior to submitting a submission package.  
Respondents are requested to acknowledge all addenda in the space provided on Exhibit A.  No 
addenda will be issued fewer than four (4) business days before the submission deadline unless 
the deadline is extended. 
 
 
1.5  RIGHTS RESERVED 
CCDC reserves the right to act in the public best interest and in furtherance of the purposes of 
the Idaho Urban Renewal Law, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho Code, and the laws for Purchasing 
by Political Subdivisions, Chapter 28, Title 67, Idaho Code.  CCDC reserves the right to waive 
any formalities or defects as to form, procedure, or content with respect to its RFQ and any 
minor irregularities in the submissions received, to request additional data and information from 
any and all Respondents, to reject any submissions based on real or apparent conflict of 
interest, to reject any submissions containing inaccurate or misleading information, and to 
accept the submissions that are in the best interest of CCDC.  The issuance of this RFQ and the 
receipt and evaluation of submissions does not obligate CCDC to take any further action relative 
to the RFQ.  CCDC may in its discretion cancel this process at any time without liability.  
 
 
1.6  PUBLIC RECORDS 
CCDC is a public agency.  All documents in its possession are public records subject to 
disclosure under the Idaho Public Records Act, Chapter 1, Title 74, Idaho Code, and will be 
available for inspection and copying by any person after the RFQ process is complete. 
 
If any Respondent claims any part of its submission is exempt from disclosure under the Idaho 
Public Records Act, Respondent must: 1.) Indicate by marking the pertinent document 
“CONFIDENTIAL”; and, 2.) Include the specific basis for the position that it be treated as 
exempt from disclosure.  Marking the entire submission as “Confidential” is not in accordance 
with the Idaho Public Records Act and will not be honored.  CCDC, to the extent allowed by law 
and in accordance with these Instructions, will honor a designation of nondisclosure.  By 
claiming material to be exempt from disclosure under the Idaho Public Records Act, 
Respondent expressly agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold CCDC harmless from any claim or 
suit arising from CCDC’s refusal to disclose such materials.  Any questions regarding the 
applicability of the Public Records Act should be addressed to your own legal counsel prior to 
submission. 
 
 
END OF PART 1  

http://www.ccdcboise.com/


REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

2020 – 10th  & Front Garage Structural Damage Repairs Project PAGE 4 

PART 2 – QUALIFICATION INFORMATION 

2.1  BASIS FOR SELECTION AND PRE-QUALIFICATION 
In accordance with Idaho Code § 67-2805(2)(b), this Request for Qualifications will be evaluated 
as detailed below.  Only Respondents who complete all information requested, completely and 
accurately, and receive a score of 75 points or greater will be eligible to bid on the 10th & Front 
Garage Structural Damage Repairs Project. 

 Experience constructing similar public works facilities – 30 points possible

 Key personnel – 20 points possible

 Overall performance history – 25 points possible

 References – 15 points possible

 Prior Experience with Capital City Development Corporation – 10 points possible

CCDC may conduct investigations and interviews, if necessary, to determine the performance 
record and abilities of Respondent to perform the size and type of work to be contracted.  
By submitting a response to this RFQ, the Respondent is authorizing CCDC to conduct 
investigations and interviews as needed. 

2.2  PROJECT SCHEDULE (Tentative) 

Prequalification 

Request for Qualifications issued August 19, 2020 
Last Day addenda issued, if needed  September 2, 2020 
Last Day for Objections September 3, 2020 by 3 p.m. 
Qualifications Due September 9, 2020 by 3 p.m. 
Selection of Pre-Qualified Contractors CCDC Board Meeting: October 12, 2020 
Deadline to Appeal 7 days from notice of Board decision 

Project Bidding 

Invitation to Bid to Pre-Qualified Contractors  October 20, 2020 (anticipated) 
Pre-Bid Conference  To be determined 
Bid Opening  December 1, 2020 (anticipated) 
Bid Award CCDC Board Meeting: December 14, 2020 

Project Construction 

Notice to Proceed (Weather Dependent) 
Estimated Construction Duration 

Late Winter/Early Spring 2021 (anticipated) 
Four Months 

END OF PART 2 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
2020 – 10th & Front Garage Structural Damage Repairs Project – EXHIBIT A PAGE 1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

RFQ:  10TH & FRONT GARAGE STRUCTURAL DAMAGE REPAIRS PROJECT 
STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS (SOQ) 

(REQUIRED FOR SUBMISSION) 
 

 
TO:  Capital City Development Corporation 
 By email:  bids@ccdcboise.com  

Attn: Kathy Wanner, Contracts Specialist 
 121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
 Boise, Idaho 83702 
 

 
THE UNDERSIGNED DECLARES, that he/she holds the position indicated below as a 
corporate officer or the owner or a partner in the business entity submitting these Qualifications; 
that the undersigned is informed of all relevant facts surrounding the preparation and 
submission of these Qualifications; and that the undersigned represents and warrants that all 
information provided is true, accurate, and complete. 
 

SIGNATURE:  X           

 
Print Name / Title:            
 
Name of Company:            
 
Company Type:    ___ Corporation     ___ Partnership     ___ Individual     ___ LLC     ___ Other 
 
Business Address:             
 
              
 
Telephone:        Fax:        
 
E-mail Address:             
 
 
LICENSE:  Idaho Public Works Contractor License #        
 
Number of years the Company has been in business:        
 
Is the Company a parent or subsidiary of another Company?  _____ Yes     _____ No 
 
If yes, please explain:            
 
ADDENDA:  Respondent has reviewed and understands all addenda issued with this RFQ: 

 

 Addendum No.    Dated:       

 Addendum No.    Dated:       

  

mailto:bids@ccdcboise.com


REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
2020 – 10th & Front Garage Structural Damage Repairs Project – EXHIBIT A PAGE 2 

INSTRUCTIONS:  Review each page of this Exhibit A. 
Provide the documents requested and answer all Yes / No questions found herein. 

 

 
 
1.   SIMILAR PROJECT EXPERIENCE 
Contractor’s experience completing similar projects will be evaluated.  30 points possible. 
The Contractor (and the Key Personnel) must have the following project experience: 
 

Contractor Requirements 

 Successfully completed the construction of at least three (3) projects each with a bid 
price of $200,000or more within the last ten (10) years. 

 All three (3) projects must have been focused on concrete repair and 
retrofit in a facility that was operational during the course of the repair 
work.  

 
 
PROVIDE:  Provide at least three (3) examples of Respondent’s work equal to or exceeding a 
project cost of $200,000 within the last ten (10) years.   

All three (3) projects must have been focused on concrete repair and retrofit in a facility 
that was operational during the course of the repair work. 

 
Include all of the following project information to verify and evaluate whether the Contractor has 
the project experience required:  Owner names, addresses, phone numbers, email addresses, 
dates of construction, original contract value, final contract value, descriptions of the projects, 
descriptions of the work performed, and descriptions of the additional work performed beyond 
the original contract value if required. 
 

Three examples provided with complete project information.  _____ Yes     _____ No 

  



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
2020 – 10th & Front Garage Structural Damage Repairs Project – EXHIBIT A PAGE 3 

2.   KEY PERSONNEL  
Experience of Key Personnel will be evaluated.  20 points possible. 
The Key Personnel must have the following project experience: 
 

Project Manager Required Experience 

 At least three (3) full consecutive years of experience as a construction project 
manager focused on concrete repair and retrofit. 

 Successfully managed and completed three (3) construction projects each with a bid 
price of $200,000 or more within the last ten (10) years.  All projects shall be focused 
on concrete repair and retrofit. 

 
Project Superintendent Required Experience 

 At least three (3) full consecutive years of experience as a project superintendent 
focused on concrete repair and retrofit. 

 Successfully supervised and completed three (3) construction projects each with a 
bid price of $200,000 or more within the last ten (10) years.  All projects shall be 
focused on concrete repair and retrofit. 

 
 
PROVIDE:  Provide a résumé for each candidate who would fill the positions of Project Manager 
and Project Superintendent for the 10th & Front Garage Stairs – Structural Repair Project.  Be 
sure the résumés include:  
 

 Employment information such as names, dates of employment, addresses, phone 
numbers, and email addresses that is sufficient to verify and evaluate the Project 
Manager’s and Project Superintendent’s employment history.   

 

 All of the following project information to verify and evaluate whether the Project 
Manager and Project Superintendent have the required project experience:  Owner 
names, addresses, phone numbers, email addresses, dates of construction, original 
contract values, final contract values, descriptions of the projects, and descriptions of the 
work performed. 

 
One (1) alternate candidate résumé for each position may be provided in case the primary 
candidate’s employment and project references cannot be reached or the primary candidate’s 
experience requirements do not meet the requirements.  Please be sure to indicate “Alternate” 
on any alternate candidate résumés. 
 

Résumés provided with complete contact information.  _____ Yes     _____ No 
 
 

  



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
2020 – 10th & Front Garage Structural Damage Repairs Project – EXHIBIT A PAGE 4 

3.   OVERALL PERFORMANCE HISTORY 
Contractor’s overall performance history will be evaluated.  25 points possible. 
 
PROVIDE:  Provide answers to the following questions; provide documents where requested. 
 
 

 
Provide a statement or letter from a surety insurer 
authorized to do business in the State of Idaho which 
states that Contractor’s current available bonding capacity 
is sufficient for the project for which it seeks pre-
qualification.  Surety insurer must have an A.M. Best 
financial strength rating of “A-” or better. 
 

 

 
In the last five (5) years, have you or any of the company 
owners, officers, or partners had their Contractor’s license 
revoked? 
 

 

 
In the last five (5) years, have you or any of the company 
owners, officers, or partners been “defaulted” or 
“terminated” by an owner (other than for convenience of 
the owner)? 
 

 

 
In the last five (5) years, have you or any of the company 
owners, officers, or partners been convicted of a crime 
involving any federal, state, or local law related to 
construction, including any act of dishonesty? 
 

 

 
In the last five (5) years, have you or any of the company 
owners, officers, or partners been convicted of a crime 
involving the awarding of a contract on a government 
construction project or the bidding or performance of a 
government construction contract? 
 

 

 
Is your company currently in bankruptcy proceedings or 
has the company filed for bankruptcy at any time during 
the last five (5) years? 
 

 

 
Is your company currently in default on any loan 
agreement or financing agreement with a bank, financial 
institution, or other financial entity? 
 
 
 

 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
2020 – 10th & Front Garage Structural Damage Repairs Project – EXHIBIT A PAGE 5 

 
In the last five (5) years, has your company ever been 
denied bond coverage by a surety? 
 

 

 
In the last five (5) years, has any surety company made 
any payments on your company’s behalf as a result of 
default, to satisfy any claims made against a performance 
or payment bond, in connection with any public or private 
construction project?  
 

 

 
In the last five (5) years, has any claim against your 
company concerning your company’s work on a 
construction project been filed in court or submitted to 
mediation or arbitration? 
 

 

 
In the last five (5) years, has any insurance carrier, for any 
form of insurance, refused to renew your company’s 
insurance policy? 
 

 

 
In the last five (5) years, has the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers, Environmental Protection Agency, Idaho 
Department of Environmental Quality, or any other 
environmental quality control board cited and assessed 
penalties against your company or the owner of a project 
on which your company was the contractor and deemed 
responsible for the penalties? 
 

 

 
Does your company have a written health and safety 
(H&S) program / procedures?  If yes, provide a pdf copy or 
an online access link to the program/procedures. 
 

 

 
Does your company have a health and safety training 
program?  If yes, provide a copy of the policy and 
procedures, in pdf or via online access link. 
 

 

 
Does your company conduct safety meetings during the 
course of a construction project?  If yes, provide a pdf copy 
of the safety meeting policy and a sample agenda.   
 

 

  



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
2020 – 10th & Front Garage Structural Damage Repairs Project – EXHIBIT A PAGE 6 

4.   REFERENCES 
Contractor’s References will be evaluated.  15 points possible. 
References must be project owners – not subcontractors, building officials, lending institutions, 
or the like.  CCDC may ask questions relative to Contractor’s abilities and competence, 
including any or all of the following:   
 

 Contractor’s ability to provide adequate supervision on the project. 

 Contractor’s ability to work cooperatively with Owner, Architect, and outside 

parties. 

 Contractor’s ability to manage safety on the job site. 

 Contractor’s ability to work in accordance with the contract documents. 

 Contractor’s ability to provide timely reports, submittals, and scheduling 

updates. 

 Contractor’s utilization of change order requests 

 Contractor’s ability to maintain strong public relations and minimize disruption 

to businesses and the general public. 

 Contractor’s interaction with regulatory agencies and utilities. 

 Contractor’s ability to keep the project on schedule. 

 Contractor’s ability to manage closeout procedures efficiently and effectively. 

 
 
PROVIDE:  Provide three (3) references that can speak to Contractor’s abilities and 
competence on projects equal to or exceeding a project cost of $200,000 within the last ten (10) 
years.  All of the projects shall be focused on concrete repair and retrofit in a facility that was 
operational during the course of the repair work. 
 
Include all of the following information to verify and evaluate Contractor’s References:  Owner 
names, addresses, phone numbers, email addresses, dates of construction, original contract 
value, final contract value, descriptions of the projects, and descriptions of the work performed. 
 
Contractor may indicate that the References are the same as those that were listed for 
Section 1 (Similar Project Experience) above, or Contractor may choose to provide different 
references. 
 

References provided are those in Section 1 above.  _____ Yes     _____ No 
 

New References are provided with complete contact information.  _____ Yes     _____ No 
 
 

  



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
2020 – 10th & Front Garage Structural Damage Repairs Project – EXHIBIT A PAGE 7 

5.   PRIOR EXPERIENCE WITH CCDC 
Experience working with CCDC will be evaluated.  10 points possible. 

 
 
PROVIDE:  Provide information about previous projects completed for Capital City Development 
Corporation.  Include the project names, dates of construction, original contract value, final 
contract value, descriptions of the projects, descriptions of the work performed, descriptions of 
the additional work performed beyond the original contract value if required., CCDC Project 
Manager names, and Contractor’s Key Personnel who worked on the projects. 
 

Information provided with complete project information.  _____ Yes     _____ No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
END OF EXHIBIT A 
 



EXHIBIT B 
 

REQUIRED WAIVER & RELEASE 
(REQUIRED FOR SUBMISSION) 

 
The undersigned Respondent has read this waiver and release and fully accepts Capital City 
Development Corporation’s (CCDC) discretion and non-liability as stipulated herein, and 
expressly for, but not limited to, CCDC’s decision to proceed with a pre-qualification selection 
process in response to the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to pre-qualify public works 
contractors to bid its 10th & Front Garage Structural Damage Repair Project. 
A. Discretion of CCDC:  The Idaho-licensed public works contractor making a submission 

to this RFQ agrees that CCDC has the right to, unless contrary to applicable state law: 
 
1) Modify or suspend any and all aspects of the process seeking proposals and 

making any decisions concerning the RFQ; 
2) Obtain further information from any person, entity, or group regarding the 

Respondent, and to ascertain the depth of Respondent’s capability and 
experience for supplying the desired services and in any and all other respects to 
meet with and consult with any Respondent or any other person, entity, or group; 

3) Waive any formalities or defects as to form, procedure, or content with respect to 
CCDC’s RFQ to pre-qualify contractors and any response by any Respondent 
thereto; 

4) Accept or reject any submission received in response to the RFQ, including any 
submission by the undersigned; or score one proposal over another in 
accordance with the selection criteria; and 

5) Accept or reject all or any part of any materials or statements, including, but not 
limited to, the nature and type of proposal.   

 
B. Non-Liability of CCDC: 
 

1) The undersigned agrees that CCDC shall have no liability whatsoever of any kind 
or character, directly or indirectly, by reason of all or any decision made at the 
discretion of CCDC as identified above. 

2) The undersigned, including all team members, have carefully and thoroughly 
reviewed the RFQ and has found it to be complete and free from ambiguities and 
sufficient for their intended purpose. 

 
 

SIGNATURE:  X           

 
Print Name / Title:            
 
Name of Firm:            
 
Date:              
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 
 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

 

Agenda Subject: 
First Amendment to Task Order 19-002, HDR Engineering, Inc. Professional 
Design Services, for Main & Fairview Transit Stops  
 

Date: 
October 12, 2020 
 

Staff Contact: 
Amy Fimbel 
 

Attachments: 
1) Resolution 1679 
2) Task Order 19-002 Amendment #1 

 
Action Requested: 
Approve the first amendment to Task Order 19-002, HDR Engineering, Inc.’s Professional 
Design Services for Main & Fairview Transit Stops.  
 
Fiscal Notes: 
Task Order 19-002 total not-to-exceed amount of $98,785 is amended by Resolution 1679 to 
the amount of $101,495.  The 30th Street District GL account sufficiently funds the amended 
task order. 
 
Background: 
Main Street and Fairview Avenue serve as important transit and bicycle corridors through 
CCDC’s 30th Street urban renewal district. In 2019, ACHD completed a microseal project on 
Main Street and Fairview Avenue, which included restriping the lanes to make room for buffered 
bike lanes. The welcomed addition of buffered bike lanes came with unforeseen lane crossing 
conflicts between buses and bicycles at each transit stop. CCDC hired HDR Engineering, Inc. to 
design seven bus stops along Main Street and Fairview Avenue between Whitewater Park Blvd 
and N 16th St that eliminate the safety issues and improve transit system efficiency. After the 
project is complete, buses will be able to make in-lane stops on Main and Fairview without 
disrupting the flow of the bicycle lane through the use of transit islands. 
 
CCDC hired HDR Engineering, Inc. (HDR), an On-Call Design Professional, in June 2020 to 
produce a final design by the end of January 2021. HDR’s scope includes the analysis, survey, 
design, public involvement, and bidding support tasks necessary to develop the needed stop 
improvements along with associated pedestrian and bike facilities. Stop locations were pre-
determined as part of Valley Regional Transit’s State Street Alternative Analysis that is currently 
underway. After the schematic design was complete, the project team directed the design team 
to move the location of one of the stops to better accommodate bus movements. This first 
amendment includes additional design and survey services necessary from HDR to complete 
the design of the newly located stop. The contract termination date has been revised to April 30, 
2021 as a result of this additional scope of work. Construction is anticipated to follow in summer 
2021. 
 
Agency staff and HDR negotiated the scope of service and the proposed fee that is included in 
the amended task order.  Due to the amended task order’s fee amount exceeding the Executive 



Page 2 
 

Director’s independent spending authority, staff is requesting board approval of the proposed 
amendment.   
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Agency’s Board find it in the best interest of the public and the 
Agency to approve the first amendment of Task Order 19-002, HDR’s Professional Design 
Services for Main and Fairview Transit Stops. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
I move to adopt Resolution 1679, approving the first amendment to HDR’s Professional Design 
Services Task Order for Main and Fairview Transit Stops. 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1679  - 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 1679 
 
 
BY  THE  BOARD  OF  COMMISSIONERS  OF  THE  URBAN  RENEWAL  AGENCY  OF BOISE 
CITY, IDAHO: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN 
RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, APPROVING AMENDMENT 
NO. 1 TO TASK ORDER #19-002 BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND HDR 
ENGINEERING, INC.; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO 
EXECUTE AMENDMENT NO. 1; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

THIS RESOLUTION, is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized under 
the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho 
Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, Chapter 29, 
Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively the "Act"), as a duly created and functioning urban renewal 
agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the "Agency"). 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Boise City, Idaho (the “City”), after notice duly 
published, conducted a public hearing on the 30th Street Area Urban Renewal Plan (the “30th 
Street Plan”), and following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 6868 on 
December 4, 2012, approving the 30th Street Plan and making certain findings; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the First 

Amendment to the 30th Street Plan (“First Amendment to the 30th Street Plan”), and following 
said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 26-18 on July 24, 2018, approving the 
First Amendment to the 30th Street Plan de-annexing certain parcels from the existing revenue 
allocation area and making certain findings; and, 

 
WHEREAS, by its Resolution No. 1602, adopted May 13, 2019, the Agency Board 

approved a roster of prequalified traffic engineering firms in accordance with Idaho Code Section 
67-2320(2)(h), which roster includes HRD Engineering, Inc., for non-exclusive traffic engineering 
services for the Agency under a five-year contract; and, 

 
WHEREAS, on June 29, 2020, the Agency and HDR Engineering, Inc., executed Task 

Order #19-002 for certain professional services related to the Main and Fairview Transit Stops 
Design Project (the “Project”) in the amount of $98,785; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency and HDR Engineering, Inc., find that additional services are 

needed for the Project in the amount of $2,710, which, when added to the prior scope and amount 
authorized by the Executive Director, is a dollar amount which exceeds the Executive Director’s 
independent spending authority for professional services, granted to him by Agency Board 
Resolution No. 1498; and,   

 
WHEREAS, the Agency Board of Commissioners finds it in the best public interest to 

approve the Amendment and to authorize the Executive Director to execute same. 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1679  - 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1:  That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
Section 2:  That Amendment No. 1 to Task Order #19-002 between the Agency and 

HDR Engineering, Inc., attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference, is 
approved as to both form and content. 

 
Section 3: That the Agency Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director to execute 

Amendment No. 1 to Task Order #19-002 with HDR Engineering, Inc. for additional professional 
services for the Project in the amount of Two Thousand Seven Hundred Ten Dollars ($2,710), 
bringing the combined total for Task Order #19-002 to One Hundred One Thousand Four Hundred 
Ninety-Five Dollars ($101,495). 

 
Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

adoption and approval. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on 

October 12, 2020.  Signed by the Chair of the Agency Board of Commissioners and attested by 
the Secretary to the Agency Board of Commissioners on October 12, 2020. 
 
 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY 
 
 
By:         
      Dana Zuckerman, Chair 

ATTEST: 
 
 
By:        
      Lauren McLean, Secretary 
 
 



 
HDR, INC. 
Amendment No. 1 to Task Order 19-002 Main & Fairview Transit Stations PAGE - 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
HDR ENGINEERING, INC. 

2019-2024 ON-CALL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
 

TASK ORDER 19-002 
AMENDMENT No. 1 

 
 

Please use the Project Name and PO# 200085 on all project-related invoices.   
 
PROJECT NAME: Main & Fairview Transit Stations & Platforms   
 
ORIGINAL TASK ORDER DATE:  June 29, 2020 
Original Task Order Amount:   $98,785 
Amendment No. 1 Amount:   $  2,710 
 
New Task Order Amount:   $101,495 
 
TASK ORDER AMENDMENT No. 1 DATE:     
 
Task Order #19-002 is hereby amended as set forth in this Amendment No. 1.  All other terms 
and conditions of Task Order #19-002 remain in full force and effect. 

 
1. Section 3.  SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED (“Scope of Services”) 

In addition to the Scope of Services outlined in Task Order #19-002, CCDC desires 
CONSULTANT to provide additional design and survey services in order to 
accommodate transit station relocations as described in CONSULTANT’s proposal 
dated September 29, 2020, attached hereto as Exhibit A.    
 

 
2. Section 5.  PAYMENT 

By this Amendment No. 1, CCDC is approving an increase of TWO THOUSAND SEVEN 
HUNDRED TEN DOLLARS ($2,710) for a new Task Order total amount of One Hundred 
One Four Hundred Ninety-Five Dollars ($101,495).    
 
 

3. Section 6.  SCHEDULE 
CCDC desires to extend the milestones on this Task Order as follows:   

 
Schematic Design September 18, 2020 

 75% Design Docs December 11, 2020 
 Construction Docs February 12, 2021 
 Bidding Support April 30, 2021 
 
 



 
HDR, INC. 
Amendment No. 1 to Task Order 19-002 Main & Fairview Transit Stations PAGE - 2 
 

4. Section 7.  DELIVERABLES / COPIES OF PRODUCTS 
CONSULTANT shall provide CCDC with the additional work products and services as 
described in Section 1 above. 
 

5. CONTRACT TERMS 
Terms of the 2019-24 On-Call Professional Services Agreement executed by CCDC and 
CONSULTANT shall apply to the services performed and work products created under 
this Amendment No. 1. 
 
 

End of Amendment No. 1 to Task Order #19-002 
 

 
 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CCDC and CONSULTANT have executed this Amendment 
No. 1 to Task Order #19-002 as of the date last written below. 
 
CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.  CONSULTANT 
     HDR ENGINEERING, INC.  
 
 
              
John Brunelle, Executive Director    Kate Eldridge, VP and Idaho Area Manager 
 
 
Date:        Date:        
 
 
 
EXHIBITS: 
 
A:   Consultant’s proposal dated September 29, 2020 

Budget Info / For Office Use 
Fund/District 304 
Account 6250 
Activity Code 19030 
PO # 200085 
Completion Date April 30, 2021 



 
Capital City Development Corporation | Scope of Services  
Main and Fairview Transit Stations and Platforms 
 

 

hdrinc.com River Quarry at Parkcenter, 412 E. Parkcenter Blvd. Suite 100, Boise, ID  83706-6659 
(208) 387-7000  

1 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES– SUPPLEMENTAL # 1 

Project Description 
Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC), in cooperation with the City of Boise and Valley 
Regional Transit (VRT) (the Project Team), is seeking to redesign seven (7) bus stops along 
Main St. and Fairview Ave. between Whitewater Park Blvd. and N 16th St. Actual stop locations 
will be predetermined by the VRT State Street Alternative Analysis that is currently underway.  
 
This supplemental Scope of Services (SOS) includes additional survey for the west (far-side) 
side of the Main Street and Whitewater Park Blvd. intersection. Land Solutions, Inc., completing 
all topographic survey and associated tasks. 
 
All deliverables will be electronic unless otherwise noted. 

300 TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY & BASE MAPPING 
Land Solutions will perform topographic survey for the additional area at the west (far-side) side 
of the Main Street and Whitewater Park Blvd. intersection. This is at VRT’s direction to move the 
stop at this intersection from the east (near-side) to the west (far-side). Land Solutions will update 
the base mapping and topographic survey collected in the field as well as property boundary 
research and calculations performed. Land Solutions will send a letter requesting permission to 
access the property adjacent to the new location to gather topographic information before any 
survey work is conducted. Topographic survey will be performed at the proposed station location 
as follows: 

• All asphalt- and concrete-paved driving areas within the existing and proposed bus 
stop locations, including the travel lanes of Main Street, as appropriate  

• All passenger boarding areas (perimeter and 20-foot grid) 

• All landscaped areas 

• All existing topographic features to include buildings, sidewalks, striping, visible 
utilities, edge of pavement, utilities as marked in the field by a locating company, tops 
and toes of slope, etc. 

Land Solutions will establish a minimum of (1) temporary benchmarks (TBM) throughout the 
project area in the field and will provide horizontal and vertical location information for all TBMs 
in the topographic survey deliverable. The TBM’s shall be established in locations which 
minimize disturbance during construction and must be easily accessible to the contractor and/or 
surveyor. Monuments within the roadway, i.e. Centerline monuments, and intersection 
monuments as well as chiseled “X” in curbs which will be destroyed during construction shall not 
be used as TBM’s. 

Land Solutions will procure all title reports and conduct property research to identify all R/W 
lines, property lines, and easement lines within the project area. All such line work will be 
included in the base map. 



 
Capital City Development Corporation | Scope of Services  
Main and Fairview Transit Stations and Platforms 
 

 

hdrinc.com River Quarry at Parkcenter, 412 E. Parkcenter Blvd. Suite 100, Boise, ID  83706-6659 
(208) 387-7000  

2 
 

Assumptions 
• Land Solutions will acquire all required title reports for property research. It is 

anticipated that a maximum of 1 additional title report will be required. The cost of the 
title reports is included in the estimate. 

• Topographic surveying shall be collected at the proposed station location along Main 
St. 

• The survey locations will be limited to a corridor extending from right-of-way to right-
of-way (100 feet wide, typically), centered on the roadway at each location. Additional 
survey width may be required to identify property features along project corridor. 
Features will be surveyed beyond the ROW where feasible and relevant to the project 
and will be included in right of entry letters.  

• All survey data including found and set monuments shall be converted to the Ada 
County GIS Coordinate System which is a modified state plane projection unique from 
standard Idaho State Plane Coordinate. All mapping shall be on the Ada County GIS 
Coordinate System. A list of physical monuments with the corresponding Ada County 
GIS coordinates is available at https://adacounty.id.gov/Development-
Services/Surveying-Division/GPS-Control. 

• The feature location surveys for determination of x,y,z coordinate values shall comply 
with FGDC Geospatial Positioning Accuracy Standards, Part 4: Standards for 
Architecture, Engineering, Construction (A/E/C), and Facility Management. 

• All original field notes and computer files shall become the property of CCDC. 

• This scope of work does not include setting property pins or monuments. 

• No paper copies of the base map will be provided. 
Deliverables 

• Updated deliverables from the original scope. 

https://adacounty.id.gov/Development-Services/Surveying-Division/GPS-Control
https://adacounty.id.gov/Development-Services/Surveying-Division/GPS-Control


CCDC - Main and Fairview Transit Stations and Platforms - Supplemental No. 1
Land Solutions
9/29/2020

300 Location Surveying and Mapping
PLS ($120/hr) Survey Tech ($85/hr) Survey Crew ($165/hr) Total Hours

Right of Entry Letters 1
Field Survey 1 4 4 9
Right-of-Way 4 2 6

500 Design Development
540- Right-of-Way - Legal Descriptions and Exhibits 3 3

Total Man-hours 9 4 6 18

Sub Total $1,080.00 $340.00 $990.00 $2,410.00

Title Reports - 1 @ $300.00 each $300.00

Total Estimate $2,710.00



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IV. 
ACTION  
ITEMS 

 
 
  



 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 

1715 W. Idaho Street Housing Infill Development RFQ-P 
 

Date: 
10/12/2020 

Staff Contact: 
Brady Shinn 

Attachments: 
1) 1715 W. Idaho Request for Qualifications/Proposal 
2) Appendices 

  

Action: Authorize the Agency to publish the 1715 W. Idaho Request for  
Qualifications/Proposal on the Agency-owned property located 1715 W. Idaho and administer 
the RFQ-P under its terms. 

 

Background: 

1715 W. Idaho was purchased by CCDC on July 1, 2020. On July 13th, 2020, the CCDC Board 
of Commissioners authorized the Agency staff to work alongside a ‘Core Values Working Group’ 
to develop a RFQ-P for the site. The RFQ-P draft is ready for review by CCDC’s Board of 
Commissioners, for the purposes of receiving the Board’s approval to release the RFQ-P to the 
general public on the proposed terms and schedule. 

The RFQ-P’s Working Group comprised of CCDC Board Members, Agency staff, and City of 
Boise staff. Agency staff received Board member feedback at the June and July 2020 Board 
meetings, and integrated additional Working Group guidance into this new RFQ-P, attached.  

Working Group input incorporated into this site’s RFQ-P includes: 

 Encourage proposals to prioritize adding housing stock that increases economic 

diversity in the neighborhood, provides a balanced mix of units serving diverse income 

demographics and is reflective of the surrounding historical architectural character; 

 There are no explicit rent or unit mix requirements. However, CCDC is encouraging 

proposals that target 80% to 100% AMI.  If needed, CCDC will consider creative mixes 

that allow the whole project to be financially feasible; such as including some market-

rate units (over 100% AMI) in order to also include more units that are more affordable 

(under 80% AMI).  As stated above, CCDC encourages most units to be primarily 

affordable to those who can afford 80% to 100% of AMI.Terminate the existing 

Conditional Use Permit on the site;  

 Encourage as much on-site parking as possible. 



Page 2 

CCDC has experience in property disposition through an RFP process. The Afton 
Condominiums, the Watercooler mixed-use project, and the Ash Street Townhomes are all 
recent examples of economic development catalyzed through CCDC issuing an RFP on under-
utilized land. 
 
The anticipated next steps of the RFQ-P process are shown below:   
 

Event:       Deadline: 

RFQ/P Published:          October 15, 2020   

Response Deadline:         December 18, 2020  

Review and Presentation Period:      January 2021  

Board selects advancing Proposal:      February 2021  

(ERN Negotiation begins)  

Board approves ERN on selected Proposal:   May 2021  

(CCDC Exec. Director executes ERN)  

Board approves DDA on selected Proposal:    June 2021  

(CCDC Exec. Director executes DDA) 

 

1715 Idaho sits on a 0.4-acre property located at 1715 West Idaho Street, mid-block between 
West 17th and West Idaho Streets, and within the Westside Urban Renewal District. The site is 
an unimproved lot with a dilapidated basketball court. The site is zoned R3 with a Downtown 
Design overlay. The R3 zone accommodates 43.5 units per acre and a maximum 45’ height 
limit.  

 
Fiscal Notes: 
The property’s acquisition costs totaled just under $613,000 when including due diligence fees 

and closing costs. Depending on RFP proposals the Agency receives, further due diligence may 

be required on the site.  

Future Participation Program and Capital Improvement Plan funding will be determined based on 

proposals received. 

Staff Recommendation: 

 Staff recommends Board of Commissioners authorize the Agency to publish the RFQ-P. 

Suggested Motion: 
Authorize the Agency to publish the 1715 W. Idaho Request for  Qualifications/Proposal  for the 
Agency-owned property located 1715 W. Idaho and administer the RFQ-P under its terms. 

 

 

 

 



Page 3 

Attachment #1 – RFQ-P 

 

  



1 
 

INVITATION 

Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC) is requesting proposals for primarily a housing 

development on a vacant parcel (the “1715 Property”) located in the West Downtown Neighborhood, in 

Downtown Boise. CCDC is interested in working with a results-oriented, Development Team 

(“Development Team”) with a creative idea to redevelop the 1715 Property into residential housing.  

 

The issuance of an RFQ/P for this property is an extension of CCDC Participation Program, Type 5 

(originally adopted September 2013) for disposition of CCDC-owned property. The agency’s goal in 

releasing this RFQ/P is to strengthen the Westside Urban Renewal District and the West Downtown 

Neighborhood in particular and encourage infill housing downtown. 

 

SUBMISSION DEADLINE:  December 18th, 2020, 5:00pm local time 

 

I. About CCDC 

CCDC is the urban renewal agency for Boise, Idaho and oversees four downtown urban renewal districts 

totaling 767 acres, and the Gateway East district which totals 2,643 acres. Since 1985, CCDC has focused 

on creating a lively, pedestrian-oriented, mixed-use urban center in downtown that now includes office, 

retail, restaurants, lodging, convention facilities, regional health care, and educational, cultural and 

entertainment opportunities. CCDC invests resources in development partnerships and creating a 

distinctive and attractive public realm for private development through investment in streets, 

streetscaping, utilities, public spaces, public art and cultural facilities. A nine-member Board of 

Commissioners currently governs CCDC. The Boise City Mayor appoints the Commissioners, subject to 

Boise City Council confirmation.  

 

II. The Project Summary and Site Information 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

 

 

 

 

The Project Site, also referred to as the 1715 Property, is located within the Westside Urban Renewal 

District. The Project Site is located near Main Street, a short distance from the downtown core and in 

one of the few original urban neighborhoods near downtown Boise.  The neighborhood currently 

comprises of single family homes and majority of multi-family products are market rate and for-sale.  

 

CCDC desires to use this Request for Proposal to increase economic diversity of housing choices in this 

neighborhood. The Mayoral transition team’s housing report highlights critical needs for Boise and the 

greater Treasure Valley, and CCDC wishes this RFP to address Boise’s low economic diversity of housing 

stock and also remove barriers to entry for production. The site’s transitional neighborhood would be 

well served by market rate ‘middle income’ housing, which is neither “luxury” or “Affordable.” Typically, 

these projects serve persons or families who earn 80% to 120% of their locality’s Annual Median Income 

(AMI).  

 

Therefore, CCDC encourages proposals to represent those underserved economic demographics, have 

strong representation of units designed to accommodate those who can afford 80-100% of AMI. The 

table below informally summarizes income levels. CCDC is very welcome to reviewing proposals that 

serve lower income demographics. ‘Higher income’ demographics are already well represented in the 

neighborhood and across Boise. 

 

Category and typical occupant(s) income level % of Median Income (HUD) 

Low Income – Most Vulnerable Demographics such as Pensioners and 
Low-Income occupations (i.e. Artists, Retail, Unskilled Labor, Entry-
level Professional and Medical and Labor or Trades) 

0 - 80% 

Middle Income – Stable Income (i.e. ‘Workforce’ housing, Skilled Labor 
and Trades, Young Professionals, Young Families, Contract Work) 

81 - 120% 

Higher Income – Established Income (i.e. Dual Income Families, 
Business Professionals and Owners, STEM-field occupations) 

> 120% 

 

See the below hyperlinks for official public documents that further contextualize the neighborhood and 

the associated planning goals: 

1. Westside Master Plan (2004) 

2. Boise Downtown Design Standards and Guidelines (2016)  

3. West Downtown Neighborhood Plan (2019) 

 

CCDC acquired the parcels incorporated in the Project Site in 2020. The site is comprised of the following 

parcels:  

 Parcel R5538941262 (0.401 acres) 

TOTAL 0.401 acres 

https://ccdcboise.com/wp-content/uploads/2015/04/Westside-Master-Plan.pdf
https://www.cityofboise.org/media/3371/downtown-design-guidelines-revised-6-23-16.pdf
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1J0o-FE7cdE1I1lYzfQxASjYY8FiLmpKL/view


3 
 

 
The Project Site is mostly unimproved and vacant, although a portion of the site is paved for a basketball 

court. The Project Site is located on the western side of Idaho Street, in between 17th and 18th Streets.  

The Project Site is a part of an urban neighborhood envisioned as a transitioning neighborhood that 

provides affordable rents and prices, is in close proximity to downtown amenities, and according to the 

Westside Master Plan ("Master Plan"), this area could benefit from additional development that 

promotes an urban neighborhood with a diversity of housing choices and a lively mix of uses.  

 
PROJECT SITE STATS 

 

Address 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, ID 83702 

Ownership Capital City Development Corporation 

Site Description Approximately 0.401 acres   

Location The Project Site is located in the west side of downtown Boise, Idaho. The 

neighborhood is known as the West Downtown neighborhood, located within the 

Westside Urban Renewal District. 

Legal/Parcel 1715 W. Idaho Street, R5538941262  

Lots 8 and 9 in Block 11 and the Westerly 45 feet of Lot 10 in Block 11 o 

McCarty’s Second Subdivision, according to the official plat thereof, filed in Book 

2 of Plats at Page(s) 85, official records of Ada County, Idaho 

 

Parking The Project Site is currently in the P3 parking district, a reduction of specific 

parking requirements is determined by the proposed use (See Boise City Zoning). 

Zoning and 

Allowed Land 

Use/ Current Use 

Zoned R-3DD, which is Multi-Family Residential (R-3) with a Downtown Design 

overlay (DD). This zoning district includes the areas immediately surrounding to 

the site.   The area adjacent to the north and west is zoned R-3, and is owned by 

the City of Boise.  The area immediately to the south is General Commercial (C-2) 

and the area east is Residential Office (R-O) 

 

The site is currently vacant.  

Design Standards For more information on City of Boise Design Standards, see the Boise Downtown 

Design Standards and Guidelines hyperlink above). 

Access The site is bordered to the north by a privately-owned parking lot, to the west by 

a public alley controlled by ACHD, to the south by a dilapidated single family 

home, and to the east by West Idaho Street.  

Infrastructure City sewer, water, natural gas, electric, and telephone service is available. 

DISCLAIMER: Utility descriptions are general. Contact utility providers for more 

information. 

 

  



4 
 

III. PROPOSAL MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS 

In order for a proposal to be deemed complete and to be further reviewed it must include the minimum 

requirements. In the event the minimum requirements have not been met for a submission by the due 

date of December 18, 2020 the proposal will be deemed incomplete and will not be eligible for further 

consideration.   Written notification confirming whether the proposal is considered complete will be 

provided to the contact listed in each proposal. If you have any questions regarding these minimum 

requirements, please contact CCDC’s Project Manager as soon as possible.  

 

Submittals must include the following documents to be deemed a complete submittal: 

 

1. The Cover Sheet. Appendix 1.  

Download the Cover Sheet, under Appendices, fill out and sign. The individual listed on the 

Cover Sheet will be contacted if additional information or clarification on the submitted 

proposal is required. 

 

2. Acknowledgement & Release. Appendix 2.  

Download the Acknowledgement & Release Agreement under Appendices, fill out and sign.  

 

3. Development Team Information 

a.  Development Team Identification:  Include architect, engineer, contractor, developer, 

proposed development legal entity, etc. Include address, phone numbers and email 

contacts. 

b. Provide an organizational chart for the development entity. 

c. Confirm whether the development entity has been formed and is registered with the State 

of Idaho. If it has not yet been legally formed, please confirm when it will be formed. 

d. Identify whether development team has worked together on prior projects and identify and 

describe those projects briefly. 

e. Include three professional references- including name, title, email and phone number. 

References cannot be a member of the development team.   

f. Include financial statements of the development entity or, in the event the development 

entity has not yet formed or has no financial statement, include proof of at least one of the 

members of the development entity’s financial capacity to deliver the proposed 

project.  Additionally, a “letter of creditworthiness” from a financial institution(s) which 

describes prior credit relationships, prior lending history/ amounts/ range, anticipated 

parameters for lending on the proposed project, and confirms the member or entity is not in 

default is also acceptable in lieu of or, in addition to, another form of a financial statement.  

 

4. Portfolio/ Résumé 

Include portfolio or resume of developer including any similar housing projects. 

  



5 
 

 

5. Project Summary 

The summary should be no more than two single sided pages in length and should include a 

basic description of the housing proposed together with ancillary uses as well as the following 

information: 

 

o Number of proposed residential units 

o Size and configuration of units 

o Proposed rents or quantity depending on the type of project with confirmation that the 

units are residential housing that primarily serves individuals and families earning 

between 80% and 120% of the area median income in Boise. For-Rent product 

preferred. 

o Rents & Unit Mix: Rents & Unit Mix: There are no explicit rent or unit mix requirements. 

However, CCDC is encouraging proposals that target 80% to 100% AMI.  If needed, CCDC 

will consider creative mixes that allow the whole project to be financially feasible; such 

as including some market-rate units (over 100% AMI) in order to also include more units 

that are more affordable (under 80% AMI).  As stated above, CCDC encourages most 

units to be primarily affordable to those who can afford 80% to 100% of AMI. 

 Short-term rental units are not a desired use and are strongly discouraged.  

 Ownership: Proposed sales prices must be affordable to families earning 

incomes up to 120% of the AMI based on family size and bedroom size. For 

example, a two-bedroom unit shall be affordable to a family of three earning 

less than $80,760 annually. See the Income Limits Chart below.  The assumption 

is that no more than 35% of income should be utilized for the mortgage 

payment. Deed covenants are required on for-sale proposals. 

 Income Covenants – CCDC may require income deed covenants for units that 

serve 120% and below AMI and compliance through the City of Boise.  

o Description of any on and off site improvements  

o Description of any additional uses proposed and/or amenities included 

o Description of any proposed CCDC financial assistance or participation, if any. 

o Explain how the project meets the housing goals of this Request and will continue to do 

so until 2030. CCDC is open to consideration of lien restrictions and/or guarantees or 

another tool to confirm the units remain available and affordable to individuals and 

families earning 80% to 120% AMI. 
 



6 
 

 

Income Limits Chart – Income limits for Ada County including Boise City MSA effective as of 

04/01/2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rent Limits Chart- Rents based on AMI effective as of 04/01/2020 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Housing Rents and Sales Prices based on Novogradic & Company LLP’s Rent & Income 

Calculator for Ada County including the Boise City MSA and is effective as of 04/01/2020 

according to the website. 

These incomes and rents may not meet or relate to federal, state or local requirements but 

are the basis of CCDC’s requirements solely for the purpose of this RFQ/P. 

There may be additional methods to meet the intent of serving individuals and families 

whose income is between 80% and 120% of the area median income for the City of Boise.  

CCDC may consider other methods as proposed and based on specific proposals but are 

unknown at this time. 



7 
 

 

6. Development Sources and Uses Budget. Appendix 3. 

Appendix 3 includes two tabs; both shall be completed.  CCDC requires a proposed list of financing 

sources and a development budget.  This may be preliminary but is required to be included with the 

proposal.   

 

Land Value: the commercial appraised value of the land is the initial purchase price of the property, 

$605,000.  The commercial land appraisal is dated May 15, 2020 and is Appendix 9.  The purchase 

price must be paid in full to CCDC at the time of the land closing and prior to the transfer of the 

Project Site from CCDC to the selected developer. CCDC has the opportunity but not the obligation 

to provide a “site write down” also called “discounted land value” based on the findings within a 

reuse appraisal ("Reuse Appraisal"). The “discounted land value”, if any, would occur at project 

completion.  Please consider this in your preliminary budget and clearly include the final proposed 

land cost the project will pay if different than the commercial appraised value of $605,000.  

 

7. Development Timeline 

A preliminary development timeline is required and must include major milestones including but not 

limited to: design review approval, planning and zoning approval, any additional land use 

entitlements, loan closings, land transfer, construction start, construction completion and a 

rent/lease up or sales schedule. 

 

8.  Completed Green Building Certification Form. Appendix 4. 

CCDC intends to award a project committed to using the City of Boise Green Construction Code, or 

equivalent thereof as a minimum requirement. The Green Building Certification must be signed and 

completed with the application.  

 

9. Project Drawings 

A schematic design showing building massing, site layout and the exterior design of structures 

proposed on the site. Sketches that represent the elements listed above are all that is necessary; a 

full drawing set with floor plans, sections, and detailed elevations is not required or desired with this 

submittal. 

 

A site survey is available as Appendix 6.  

 

SUBMISSION DEADLINE: Friday, December 18th, 2020, 5:00PM, local time 

 

Required materials should be organized into a separate PDF files for each section below and 

submitted on a flash drive or disk. Each PDF file should be named with the name of that section, e.g. 

the first file should be named “1_Cover Sheet.pdf,” the next file “2_Acknowledgement & 

Release.pdf” and so on. 

 



8 
 

All submittals must be received by the submission deadline. Proposals received after the Submission 

Deadline will not be considered.  

  

 

Document Format:  

PDF, include Appendix 3 as an Excel Document 

Submittal should be received by CCDC on a flash 

drive or disk. Do not email submittals.  

Submit all materials to: 

Brady Shinn, Project Manager  

Capital City Development Corp. 

121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501  

Boise, ID 83702  

(208) 384-4264  

bshinn@ccdcboise.com 

 

IV. Priorities: 

 

The priorities below are the agency’s priorities, rather than requirements and will be used as a basis for 

selection of the strongest proposal. 

  

 NEIGHBORHOOD DESIGN & CONTEXT  

Having a unique design which also relates in scale and orientation to the existing neighborhood 

design and existing neighborhood assets is included in this priority.    Designs that complement or 

enhance existing amenities such as W. Main Street, multi-modal transportation, and the history and 

diversity of the neighborhood will be preferred.  CCDC encourages proposals to include a positive 

pedestrian experience and have the physical building engage the street level. Additionally, this 

priority favors proof of neighborhood outreach and support and inclusion of programming that 

serves the needs of the West End Neighborhood Association as articulated in its impending Master 

Plan, and as described in the West End Neighborhood planning process and the Westside Urban 

Renewal Plan.   

 

The existing neighborhood is of ‘medium density’ character, where the surrounding context is 

comprised of mostly residential uses, including some one and two story single family homes and 

multiplexes. West Main Street and the area due south is mostly commercial office, light industrial 

and some hotels, with planned future developments such as the St. Luke’s hospital and other 

potential large scale developments. Also, West Grove Street and its medium-density office and retail 

context, is within walking distance of the site.  

 CCDC desires proposals that promote and enhance the neighborhood’s historical architectural 

character. Therefore, proposals with contemporary architectural styles and materials should 

complement the existing historical architectural character. 

 

 CATALYST POTENTIAL 

Proposals that include uses or plan or commit to incorporate or phase underutilized or vacant sites 

in the neighborhood as part of a future project will be preferred.  Proposals adding needed 

amenities or services to the area, either on-site or in another location will also be preferred.  Such 



9 
 

amenities that have been suggested are a small grocery store, café space, live work spaces, art, etc.  

A long term vision for the area can be included together with specific actions in the proposal which 

lead to accomplishment of the vision.  

 

 INVESTMENT 

Projects which invest more in the redevelopment of the Project Site should result in higher property 

valuation which adds value to the property tax rolls strengthening the tax base. New investment 

which creates higher property value for the site may also improve the values of property in the 

vicinity. Additionally, taxable value as a result of CCDC property redevelopment creates resources to 

advance general urban renewal efforts within the Westside Urban Renewal District. The investment 

will be viewed based on total development cost and anticipated assessed value. Within this section 

please confirm the status of the project’s uses as private, public or non-profit and whether they will 

be for sale or rent as well as whether the improvements will be subject to property tax. If there is 

any space that is not residential please explain the use in detail. The development costs should 

correspond with those included in the Development Sources and Uses Budget Form, Appendix 3. 

 

 DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE 

Priority will be given to projects proposed to be completed within a shorter time frame relative to 

the overall size of the project as is exemplified in the Development Timeline, Section III.7 in the 

requirements.  Determining the reasonableness of the timeline submitted is at the discretion of 

CCDC. Strong proposals demonstrate capacity by the development team to meet the general RFP 

and construction schedule goals.   

 

 SUSTAINABILITY 

In order to get preference in this area a proposal must commit to exceeding the Boise City Green 

Construction Code.  Projects which do not commit to meeting the Boise City Green Construction 

Code and that do not include a completed Green Building Certification Form, Appendix 4 will be 

deemed incomplete and will not advance  

 

Projects can emphasize sustainability by committing to third party verification programs such as 

USGBC’s LEED program, the Living Building Challenge, Net Zero housing, etc. Projects will be 

required to meet the stated goals in this section as per the Exclusive Right to Negotiate (ERN) and 

the Disposition and Development Agreement (DDA). Projects which emphasize sustainability to the 

greatest extent will be given higher priority in this category. Explain and demonstrate the project’s 

sustainability elements. 

 

 Local Partnerships and Local Workforce 

CCDC encourages any proposals based out-of-state to highlight their experience in using local 

development professions such as contractors, subcontractors or trades, materials suppliers, 

architecture and engineering firms, legal counsel, etc.  

  



10 
 

 

V. SELECTION PROCESS 

CCDC envisions a four-step process for selection of a proposal for the project site. 

 

Step 1: Request for Qualifications / Proposals 

The RFQ/P will be advertised locally in the Boise Metro Area and may include other markets, noticed in 
the Idaho Statesman, posted on the CCDC website and noticed to known and interested parties. The 
RFQ/P will be closed on December 18, 2020 at 5:00pm, local time.  
 
Step 2:  Evaluation of Proposals 

The proposals will be reviewed by CCDC staff to confirm they meet the RFPs minimum requirements.  

The applicant will be notified in writing if their proposal is deemed incomplete and no further review will 

occur. All proposals that meet the minimum requirements will be preliminarily ranked and submitted to 

the CCDC Board for review.  At the discretion of the CCDC Board, respondents may be asked to present 

their respective projects to the CCDC Board at a public meeting. Proposals will be judged based on the 

written submittals and on presentations as applicable.  The CCDC Board of Commissioners reserves the 

prerogative to interview or not interview respondents. The CCDC Board of Commissioners will select a 

proposal to advance to Step 3, as well as determine the final ranking for all qualified proposals. Note 

that advancement does not mean a proposal has been approved: a proposal is only selected and 

approved by the CCDC Board if the proposed development team successfully complete steps 3 and 4, as 

described below. 

 

Step 3:  Exclusive Right-to-Negotiate (ERN) 

The next step is for CCDC to enter into an Exclusive Right to Negotiate (ERN) with the selected 

development entity.   

 

The CCDC Board of Commissioners has sole authority to approve an ERN but is not obligated to consider 

or approve an ERN under this RFQ/P.           

 

Design Refinement: The ERN allows time for project design and details to be refined and specific 

development terms to be considered. It is the agency’s expectation during this period that, while 

elements of the design may change, design features will function in the way they were initially 

proposed. Architectural and interior finish materials, unit and income mixes, density are also design 

features that must remain consistent with the initial proposal.   

 

Financial Feasibility: Once a proposal is selected, additional work will be done to determine the financial 

feasibility of the project together with the selected developer’s banking institution. Required 

information may include financial statements from principals in the development entity and equity 

partners and related financial-credit information. Criminal background checks may be required.  

 

Commercial Appraisal: A commercial appraisal has been completed and establishes a fair market value 

for purposes of determining an initial purchase price for disposition of the property a schedule of 

performance for a stipulated project (as described in a DDA agreement in the next step).  An update to 



11 
 

this commercial appraisal may be provided by CCDC, if needed. The appraisal dated May 15, 2020 is 

Appendix 8. The initial purchase price for the Project Site (all parcels) is Six Hundred Five Thousand 

Dollars ($605,000). 

 

Reuse Appraisal: During the ERN stage, the agency will obtain a reuse appraisal to determine the 

eligible, if any, discounting of the land value. If, during the ERN phase, a land value discount is both 

eligible and desired based on the project requirements, the discount (difference in commercial value 

versus reuse value) can be reimbursed upon successful completion of the project. This approach 

protects the public’s investment in the land should the project fail to be completed. 

 

Next Steps: The ERN also sets a schedule for reaching an agreement which may to lead to a Disposition 

and Development Agreement (DDA). 

 

Step 4: Disposition and Development Agreement (DDA) 

If an ERN was entered into with a selected developer CCDC may then prepare a DDA that describes in 

detail the requirements and conditions precedent to the transfer of the Project Site to the development 

entity.  This will include a Schedule of Performance.  CCDC may require certain measures such a 

performance bond, developer guaranty or other mechanism to increase the probability for the 

successful completion of the project.   

 

An early step in the DDA would involve the selected development entity purchasing the property as 

advised by the commercial appraisal pricing and subject to the development agreement terms/schedule 

of performance. The initial purchase would convey title including payment for the property prior to 

commencement of construction. Successful completion of the project may involve a rebate (or “site 

write down”/ “discounted land value”) as previously advised by the reuse appraisal, determined by the 

ERN/DDA process and approved by the CCDC Board of Commissioners. 

Upon CCDC satisfaction that the proposal has fulfilled all of the requirements of the steps listed above, 

the negotiated DDA will return to the CCDC Board of Commissioners for its final approval and selection 

of the RFP competitive selection process winner. 

 

The CCDC Board of Commissioners has sole authority to approve a DDA but is not obligated to consider 

or approve a DDA under this RFQ/P. 

 

  



12 
 

SCHEDULE 

The schedule for each step is approximate and may be adjusted by CCDC in its sole discretion.  

 

RFQ/P Published:     October 15, 2020  

Response Deadline:     December 18, 2020 

Review and Presentation Period:   January 2021 

Board selects advancing Proposal:   February 2021 

(ERN Negotiation begins) 

Board approves ERN on selected Proposal:  May 2021 

(CCDC Exec. Director executes ERN) 

Board approves DDA on selected Proposal:   June 2021 

(CCDC Exec. Director executes DDA) 

 

VI. RFQ/P CONTACT INFORMATION 

 Respondents may contact the Project Manager for this RFQ/P by sending an email to 

bshinn@ccdcboise.com. Answers to questions may be shared with all Respondents. 

 Any changes or updates to the RFQ/P will be sent to the primary contact on the proposal. 

 If additional information or clarification on individual proposals is necessary, the listed Contact 

will be notified.  

 

VII. PUBLIC NATURE OF SUBMISSIONS 

This RFQ/P is a public process therefore information and materials collected under the RFQ/P are public 

records. The information that is received by CCDC may be subject to disclosure under the Idaho Public 

Records Act (Idaho Code Title 74, Chapter 1). With the potential exception of some credit data, it is 

anticipated that submissions to this RFQ/P will contain little or no material that is exempt from 

disclosure under the Idaho Public Records Act. Any questions regarding the applicability of the Public 

Records Law should be addressed by your own legal counsel PRIOR TO SUBMISSION. CCDC will not 

provide any opinion or guidance on whether or not any information or materials submitted in response 

to this RFQ/P would be considered exempt from disclosure under Idaho’s Public Records Act. Any 

proprietary or otherwise sensitive information contained in or with any proposals may be subject to 

potential disclosure. 

 

CCDC’s disclosure of documents or any portion of a document submitted and marked as exempt from 

disclosure under the Idaho Public Records Act may depend upon official or judicial determinations made 

pursuant to the Idaho Public Records Act. 

 

Respondents, in replying to this RFQ/P agree to release and hold CCDC harmless from any and all liability 

for disclosing any material or documents included in any proposals submitted to CCDC. 

  

mailto:bshinn@ccdcboise.com


13 
 

 

VIII. CCDC DISCRETION AND AUTHORITY, DISCLAIMERS 

CCDC may terminate the RFQ/P process at any time for any reason with no requirement to disclose its 

reasoning.  

 

CCDC also reserves the right to reject any RFQ/P Respondents at any time in the process, or to terminate 

any or all negotiations implied in this RFQ/P or initiated subsequent to it. 

 

CCDC may change any part of the RFQ/P process at any time for any reason. 

 

If CCDC is unable to reach a satisfactory agreement with a selected development entity, CCDC may 

terminate negotiations with a selected development entity and commence negotiations with the next 

most preferred RFQ/P respondent and so on or, in its sole discretion, determine not to enter into an 

ERN/DDA with any of the Respondents and terminate the process. 

 

CCDC may accept such proposals as it deems to be in the public interest and furtherance of the purposes 

of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law, the Westside Plan, or it may proceed with further selection processes, 

or it may reject any submissions. CCDC will determine, from the information submitted in the responses, 

the strongest proposal to meet the stated priorities as evaluated under the criteria set forth herein. The 

CCDC Board will make the final selection.   

 

The issuance of the RFQ/P and the receipt and evaluation of submissions does not obligate CCDC to 

select a proposal and/or enter into any agreement. Any submission does not constitute business terms 

under any eventual agreement. CCDC will not pay any costs incurred in responding to this RFQ/P.  

 

IX. APPENDICES GATHERING 

 

1. Cover Sheet – (REQUIRED WITH SUBMITTAL) 

2. Acknowledgment & Release (REQUIRED WITH SUBMITTAL) 

3. Development Sources and Uses Budget Form (REQUIRED WITH SUBMITTAL) 

4. Green Building Certification Form (REQUIRED WITH SUBMITTAL) 

5. Site Map  

6. Site Topographic and Boundary Survey (2020) 

7. Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (2020) & Geotechnical Report (2020) 

8. Preliminary Title Commitment (2020) 

9. Existing Land Appraisal (2020) 

10. Sample ERN: 1715 Property  

11. Summary of Disposition and Development Agreement  

12. Proof of offers on other surrounding properties, if applicable.  

 



 
 

 

1 
 

Cover Sheet 

1715 W. Idaho Street RFQ/P Submittal 

Please print or type all required information 

Respondent Contact Information 

 

Development Entity   

______________________________________________________________________ 

Contact Person           

______________________________________________________________________ 

Title                           

______________________________________________________________________ 

Role in Development Entity 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Address                        

______________________________________________________________________ 

Phone               

______________________________________________________________________ 

Email Address              

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

By signing this required Cover Sheet, the Respondent indicates the information in the RFQ/P, including 

any clarifying information, as contained in the Appendices, has been taken into consideration in the 

preparation of this proposal.  

Signature__________________________________ Date ____________________ 

Print or Type Name ______________________________________________________ 

Print or Type Title _______________________________________________________ 



  

4840-7309-9041, v.  2 

Acknowledgment & Release 
 

The undersigned (“Respondent”), on behalf of Respondent and all participants and parties included or 
subsequently added in/to Respondent’s development team, has read and fully accepts the Capital City 
Development Corporation’s (“CCDC”), discretion and non-liability as stipulated herein, expressly for, but not 
limited to, CCDC’s decision to proceed with a selection process by issuing the Request for 
Qualifications/Proposals for the development of the 1715 Idaho Street property (the “RFQ/P”). Capitalized terms 
not defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed in the RFQ/P. 
 
Respondent accepts and agrees to the terms and conditions as described or as may be modified as well as the 
following: 
 

1. CCDC reserves the right in its sole discretion and judgment, for whatever reasons it deems appropriate 
and at any time: 
a. To suspend or modify any part of the selection process or terminate the RFQ/P at any time for any 

reason with no financial or other obligation to Respondent.    
b. Obtain further information from any person, entity, or group, including, but not limited to, any 

person, entity, or group responding to the RFQ/P and to ascertain the depth of Respondent’s 
capability and desire to develop the Site; 

c. Waive any formalities or defects as to form, procedure, or content with respect to its RFQ/P and 
any submission by any respondent; 

d. Accept or reject any submission or part thereof received in response to the RFQ/P, including any 
statement submitted by the undersigned, or select any one submission over another; 

e. Accept or reject all or any part of any materials, plans, proposals or statements included in a 
submission, including, but not limited to, the nature and type of submission. 

 
2. CCDC is governed by state law as provided in Title 50, Chapter 20, and in Title 50, Chapter 29 of the 

Idaho Code, and other state and federal regulations that may apply, and Respondent acknowledges 
that the RFQ/P selection process and any assistance in the development of the Site from CCDC must 
conform to all applicable laws, rules and regulations. 

 
3. CCDC may, in its discretion, conduct public hearings during the RFQ/P selection process that would 

require disclosure of the Respondent’s proposed project and related details to the public and the 
media. 
 

4. CCDC may accept or reject any proposal or statement and/or information received in response to the 
RFQ/P, including any proposal, statement, or information submitted by the undersigned, or select one 
developer over another. 
 

5. Respondent understands that by responding to the RFQ/P, its proposed project may be subject to 
review and comment by CCDC staff and consultants.   
 

6. Respondent agrees to waive any formalities or defects as to form, procedure, or content with respect 
to the RFQ/P and any responses by any respondent thereto. 
 



  

4840-7309-9041, v.  2 

7. Respondent consents to the acquisition of information by CCDC in conjunction with this RFQ/P, and 
waives all claims, and releases CCDC from any liability in the acquisition of this information and use of 
this information. 
 

8. Respondent agrees that CCDC staff, officers or board and the City of Boise shall have no liability 
whatsoever of any kind or character, directly or indirectly, by reason of all or any decisions made at 
the discretion of CCDC or the City of Boise with respect to the RFQ/P. 
 

9. Non-Liability of CCDC.  Respondent agrees that CCDC shall not have any liability whatsoever of any 
kind or character, directly or indirectly, by reason of all or any decision made at the discretion of CCDC 
as identified above.   
 

10. Respondent, including all team members, have carefully and thoroughly reviewed the RFQ/P and have 
found the RFQ/P and all attachments thereto to be complete and free from ambiguities and sufficient 
for their intended purpose. 
 

11. Respondent participates in the RFQ/P process at its own risk. 
   
 
       By:____________________________________ 
       Its:____________________________________ 
       Date:_____________________________________ 
 
 

 



Source of Funds (Construction and Permanent Financing)

Lender Name or Source of Funds Amount of Funds Estimated 
Interest Rate

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

TOTAL SOURCE OF FUNDS $0.00 (Amount must equal all development costs) 

(For rental projects only)

Lender Name or Source of Funds Amount of Funds Estimated 
Interest Rate Amortization Period Loan Term

1  
2
3
4
5
6
7 Developer Equity 

TOTAL SOURCE OF FUNDS $0.00

 

(Do not include construction financing.)

Please complete  gray cells only.

Permanent Financing

Construction Financing

PROJECT NAME:

Name and Telephone Number of Contact 
Person

List Individual Sources of Construction Financing

For Rental Project - List Permanent Financing for the Development



Green Building Certification 

 

To: Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC) 

Re: RFQ/P for a Workforce Housing Development,  
1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, Idaho  

  
 

My signature below legally binds this development known as              

to meet or exceed the Boise City Green Construction Code, Boise City Code, Title 4, Chapter 7 

(the “Code”).  Or in the event the Code does not pertain to the construction type, the developer 

will obtain written confirmation from a Boise City Building Official that the project meets or 

exceeds the intent of the Code.  By my signature below, I acknowledge for myself and the 

developer / company that this condition is a requirement of submission of the RFQ/P and that it 

is a condition that must be satisfied in order to receive any benefit of the RFQ/P, including a site 

write down. 

 

Signature:         

Print Name:         

Title:          

Developer / Company:        

Date:          



7/8/2020Map Scale:

Legend

0.03 Miles 1,521.72

Railroad

Roads (<2,000 scale)

<all other values>

Interstate

Ramp

Principal Arterial

Collector

Minor Arterial

Local

Parks

Alley

Driveway

Parks

Address

Townships

Sections

Condos

Parcels

Ada County Assessor
This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for general reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may 
not be accurate, current, or otherwise reliable. THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION OR LEGAL PURPOSES.



Accurate
Mapping

Surveying &

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD BASKETBALL COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. 18TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. IDAHO ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. 17TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 54°44'59" W  379.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEEDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLS 9895

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLS 7015

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAG ELEV= 2680.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPIKE ELEV= 2680.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLS 9895

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLS 4347

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLS 4347

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD BOX  IN GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 35°15'50" E  121.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 35°16'28" E  121.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 54°44'59" E  144.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 35°16'08" W  121.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 54°44'36" W  144.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 54°44'59" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 54°44'36" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 54°44'59" E  104.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 35°16'08" W  122.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 54°44'36" W  104.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORD OF SURVEY No. 11766

AutoCAD SHX Text
Mc.CARTHY'S 2nd ADDITION BLOCK 11 LOTS 1-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 11-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIS OF BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORD OF SURVEY No. 10349

AutoCAD SHX Text
LID ELEV=2679.80' (12") INV. IN (SE)=2674.10' (12") INV. OUT (NE)=2674.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LID ELEV=2680.64' (12") INV. IN (SE)=2675.39' (12") INV. OUT (NE)=2675.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRATE ELEV=2680.42' FULL OF WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRATE ELEV=2680.25' FULL OF WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2681

AutoCAD SHX Text
2681

AutoCAD SHX Text
2681

AutoCAD SHX Text
2681

AutoCAD SHX Text
2681

AutoCAD SHX Text
2681

AutoCAD SHX Text
2681

AutoCAD SHX Text
2680

AutoCAD SHX Text
2680

AutoCAD SHX Text
1602 W. Hays St., Suite 306

AutoCAD SHX Text
Boise, Idaho 83702

AutoCAD SHX Text
(208) 488-4227

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.accuratesurveyors.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text
20-187

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIS OF BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOISE CITY    COUNTY OF ADA    STATE OF IDAHO

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOPOGRAPHIC MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LYING WITHIN THE SE 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 4, T.3N., R.2E., B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 8-10, BLOCK 11, MCCARTYS 2ND ADDITION,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR CCDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK 02 OF PLATS, PAGE 85, ADA COUNTY RECORDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 54°44'59" W BETWEEN FOUND MONUMENT AT THE INTERSECTION OF N. 17 ST. & W. IDAHO ST. AND THE FOUND MONUMENT AT THE INTERSECTION OF N. 18TH ST. & W. IDAHO ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.L.S. 11463

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
11463

AutoCAD SHX Text
Nathan J. Dang, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH MARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECIDUOUS TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD POWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALCULATED POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 1/2" IRON PIN,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 5/8" IRON PIN,

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH PLASTIC CAP, AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH PLASTIC CAP, AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFERENCES

AutoCAD SHX Text
R1 = MCCARTHYS 2ND ADDITION       BOOK 02 OF PLATS, PAGE 85 R2 = RECORD OF SURVEY No. 11766 R3 = RECORD OF SURVEY No. 10349

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" PVC PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND SPIKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATTED PARCEL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATTED LOT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAPPING NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.   ELEVATIONS BASED ON NAVD 88 ELEVATIONS BASED ON NAVD 88 VERTICAL DATUM. 2. DIGLINE REQUEST #2020211322. WE FOUND DIGLINE REQUEST #2020211322. WE FOUND MARKINGS FROM CENTURY LINK AND IDAHO POWER INDICATING NO UTILITIES. WE DID NOT OBSERVE ANY MARKINGS FOR WATER, SEWER OR GAS ALTHOUGH WE PRESUME THESE UTILITIES TO BE ON OR NEAR THE SITE AND HAVE SHOWN THE VISIBLE UTILITY STRUCTURES HEREON.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND GAS LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DROP INLET



Geotechnical Investigation 

Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 

1715 Idaho Street 

Boise, Idaho 

January 13, 2020 





Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page ii

Table of Contents 

1 INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................. 1

1.1 Project Description........................................................................................................... 1

1.2 Scope of Work ................................................................................................................. 1

1.3 References ........................................................................................................................ 2

1.4 Application of This Report .............................................................................................. 2

2 METHODS OF STUDY ........................................................................................................ 3

2.1 General Reconnaissance .................................................................................................. 3

2.2 Field Explorations ............................................................................................................ 3

2.3 Field and Laboratory Testing ........................................................................................... 3

3 INTERPRETATION ............................................................................................................. 4

3.1 Geology ............................................................................................................................ 4

3.2 Flooding ........................................................................................................................... 4

3.3 Subsurface Profile ............................................................................................................ 4

3.4 Undocumented Fill........................................................................................................... 4

3.5 Groundwater .................................................................................................................... 5

3.6 Site Ground Motion ......................................................................................................... 5

3.7 Corrosion Potential .......................................................................................................... 5

4 RECOMMENDATIONS AND CONCLUSION................................................................. 6

4.1 General Recommendations .............................................................................................. 6

4.2 Earthwork ......................................................................................................................... 6

4.2.1 Erosion Potential ....................................................................................................... 6

4.2.1 Wet Weather Construction ........................................................................................ 7

4.2.2 Temporary Excavations ............................................................................................ 7

4.2.3 Subgrade Preparation for Foundations and Slab-On-Grade ..................................... 7

4.2.4 Lateral Earth Pressure /Temporary Shoring ............................................................. 9

4.2.5 General Fill ............................................................................................................... 9



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page iii

4.2.6 Structural Fill .......................................................................................................... 10

4.2.7 Backfilling Utilities Trenches ................................................................................. 11

4.3 Foundations .................................................................................................................... 11

4.3.1 Spread footings (Excavate and Replace) ................................................................ 11

4.4 Interior Slab-on-Grade ................................................................................................... 14

4.5 Subsurface infiltration of stormwater and drainage ....................................................... 15

5 CLOSURE ............................................................................................................................ 17

5.1 Limitations ..................................................................................................................... 17

5.2 Review of Plans and Specifications ............................................................................... 18

APPENDICES 

Appendix A – Figures 
Figure 1 – Vicinity Map 
Figure 2 - Exploration Map 
Figure 3 – Soil Improvements 

Appendix B – Boring Logs (B-1, B-2, B-3)  
Laboratory Results 
Soils Classification Chart                          

Appendix C – Additional Reports 
Soil Map 
Map Unit Description 
Structural Engineers Association (SEA), OSHPD, U.S. Seismic Design Maps 

Appendix D – Important Information about this Geotechnical Report 



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 1

1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 PROJECT DESCRIPTION

ABCO Engineering (ABCO) has performed our geotechnical engineering evaluation for the 

proposed Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos project located at 1715 Idaho Street in Boise, Idaho. A 

vicinity map showing the site location is included as Figure 1, Appendix A.  

The project site is currently an undeveloped 18,300 SF lot consisting of three addresses 1715, 

1711 and 1709 that will be combined into one lot by others. A northeastern portion of the 

existing lot is currently covered by 2-inches of asphalt. The remainder of the property is flat 

undeveloped ground. Historic images provided by Google Earth show the property covered by 

construction in the past. No details regarding the previous construction were available at the time 

of this report.  

We understand the project will consist of the design and construction of a 3-story slab-on-grade 

wood framed condominium. The condominium is anticipated to consist of 18 units, an elevated 

patio on the back and ground level covered parking in the back as well. No structural loading 

information was available at the time of this report. We understand a seepage bed is proposed to 

underlie the front green area or northeastern portion of the project. We understand the project 

does not include below grade construction, retaining walls or water features.  

The work performed for this report was authorized on November 21, 2019, by Mark 

Fledderjohann with Mussell Construction, Inc. and was conducted in accordance with our site 

investigation proposal dated November 20, 2019.  

Loose to medium dense soil conditions and undocumented fill material were both encountered 

within the upper 4.5 feet of the soil profile within the footprint of the proposed building. 

Designers and Contractors should review each section of this report carefully to make sure these 

observed conditions are incorporated into their respective scopes of work.  Temporary shoring 

may be required for footing construction based on recommendations provided in this report.  

1.2 SCOPE OF WORK

The purpose of our evaluation was to explore the subsurface soil conditions at the project site 

and prepare geotechnical recommendations to assist project planning, design and construction. 

This report was prepared solely for geotechnical purposes and does not address any geo-

environmental issues. To accomplish our evaluation, ABCO performed the following services:  



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 2

 Coordinate access to the site with you and contact Dig Line to clear utilities. 

 Subcontract with Haz-Tech Drilling to observe the drilling of 3 borings (B-1, B-2, B-3) to 

31.5 feet below existing grade surface (BGS). A field engineer described and classified 

the subsurface conditions encountered referencing ASTM D 2487, ASTM D 2488, and 

the Unified Soil Classification System (USCS).  

 Collect disturbed split spoon samples. Soil samples were obtained for identification and 

laboratory testing.  

 Measured infiltration rate and installed a temporary 2-inch diameter piezometer in boring 

B-3 at 14-feet BGS.   

 Backfilled borings with spoils from the holes.  

 Accomplish laboratory testing to assess characteristics of the soil encountered.  

1.3 REFERENCES

The following information was provided to or used by ABCO Engineering and serves as the 

basis of our understanding of the project site conditions and project scope: 

1. Site Plan Prepared by Network Architects dated January 7, 2019  

2. Geotechnical Engineering – Foundation Design, John N Cernica, 1995 

3. OSHPD Seismic Design Maps, Structural Engineers Association (SEA) 

4. National Resource Conservation Services (NRCS). Web Soil Survey, 2017  

5. Geotechnical Engineer’s Portable Handbook, Second Edition, Robert W. Day, McGraw Hill, 

2012 

1.4 APPLICATION OF THIS REPORT

Appendix D contains important information relating to the role of ABCO Engineering on this 

project and the appropriate use of this report.  

This report is intended to provide geotechnical information to the project owner and project 

designers. This report may be provided to the contractor as reference information but is not 

intended to be a substitute for properly prepared contract drawings and specifications. ABCO 

Engineering requests the opportunity to review final drawings and specifications for comparison 

with our understanding of the site conditions and project geotechnical requirements. 



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 3

2 METHODS OF STUDY 

2.1 GENERAL RECONNAISSANCE

ABCO Engineering reviewed the drawing prepared by Network Architects referenced in Section 

1.3 to research site, determine boring spacing and identify soils data based on NRCS mapping 

information.  

2.2 FIELD EXPLORATIONS

The subsurface soil conditions were explored by performing 3 soil borings (B-1, B-2, B-3) in the 

footprint of the proposed building. Borings were advanced to a depth of 31.5 feet BGS. The 

borings were performed utilizing a CME-75, truck-mounted drill rig using a hollow-stem auger. 

Soil samples were collected from the borings at selected depths by driving a 1.5 inch inside 

diameter (I.D.) Standard Penetration Test (SPT) sampler at selected depths with a 140-pound 

automatic hammer free falling a distance of 30 inches in general conformance with American 

Society of Testing Materials (ASTM) D1586. Resistance to sampler penetration was noted as the 

number of blows over each 6 inches on the boring logs.  

Each soil sample was classified in general accordance with the Unified Soil Classification 

System (USCS) presented in ASTM D 2487 and D2488. The approximate location of the soil 

borings is shown on Figure 2 – Exploration Map in Appendix A. Logs of the subsurface 

conditions were recorded at the time of the field work by ABCO Engineering and is presented in

Appendix B. 

2.3 FIELD AND LABORATORY TESTING

Laboratory testing was performed on select samples collected during the field exploration to 

evaluate physical and engineering characteristics of the site soils. The following laboratory test 

was used to develop the design geotechnical parameters included in this report: 

 Full Gradation with 200 Wash 



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 4

3 INTERPRETATION 

3.1 GEOLOGY

Studies completed by the U.S. Department of Agriculture National Resource Conservation 

Service (Web Soil Survey), indicate that the underlying soil consists of Urban land. No 

information regarding existing soil properties is available on the United States Department of 

Agriculture (USDA) site.  

3.2 FLOODING

The likelihood of flooding of the proposed building area is not available on the NRCS site. The 

proposed construction should be graded to route all storm water away from the proposed 

construction. 

3.3 SUBSURFACE PROFILE

A generalized subsurface profile was developed for this project to provide a basis for discussion 

of soil conditions for the proposed facilities. This profile is based on the field test data and 

exploration logs conducted by ABCO Engineering. 

Table 1 - Generalized Subsurface Profile* 

Stratum Generalized Description 

I FILL: POORLY GRADED SAND (SP) with gravel, POORLY GRADED GRAVEL 

(GP-GC) with sand: Encountered between the surface and 4.5 feet BGS. Consisting of 

reddish brown, dark brown, black, dark gray, loose to medium dense, (N-Value = 8 to 25 

blows per foot (bpf)), moist 

II NATIVE: POORLY GRADED SAND (SP) with gravel: Encountered between 4.5 and 

7.0 ft BEG. Consists of light gray, loose, moist. (N-Value= 7 to 9 bpf), moist. 

III POORLY GRADED GRAVEL (GP) with sand: Encountered between 4.5 and 31.5 ft 

BGS, consisting of reddish brown, light brown to gray, and brown, medium dense to very 

dense, moist, (N-Value = 15 to 50+ bpf)  

*See the logs of exploration (Appendix B) for detailed subsurface information. 

3.4 UNDOCUMENTED FILL

Undocumented fill was encountered during this subsurface investigation between the surface and 

4.5 feet BGS. Fill classification on site was based on the soil investigation performed. If a more 

precise classification of on-site fill is needed, we recommend additional field exploration, such 



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 5

as excavating test pits, be performed with ABCO or the responsible engineer. Please review 

section 4.2.3 Subgrade Preparation for Buildings and Slab-On-Grade recommendations.  

3.5 GROUNDWATER

Groundwater was encountered in borings B-1, B-2, and B-3 between 8 and 10 feet below the 

existing ground surface (BGS). A 2-inch diameter perforated temporary observation well was 

installed in boring B-3 to 14 feet BGS. The borings were backfilled at the completion of the 

excavation with spoils from the borings. It should be noted that groundwater levels may fluctuate 

seasonally in response to precipitation, land use, irrigation and other factors. We recommend the 

ground water elevation be monitored to be sure it does not impact proposed foundation design 

and construction. Groundwater control may be needed during construction if the bottom of 

excavation is near or below the ground water elevation. Seasonal monitoring of the groundwater 

fluctuation is beyond the scope of this report. 

3.6 SITE GROUND MOTION

This project site is classified as Site Class D, for use with the 2012-2015 International Building 

Code (IBC). A more detailed report of the specific site ground motion by the Structural 

Engineers Association (SEA) of California can be found in Appendix C.  

3.7 CORROSION POTENTIAL

The NRCS soil survey (Ref 2) did not have any information regarding the potential for soil to 

corrode concrete and steel. It is recommended that uncoated steel should not be placed directly 

on the soil.  



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 6

4 RECOMMENDATIONS AND CONCLUSION 

4.1 GENERAL RECOMMENDATIONS

Based on the results of our field investigations, it is our opinion that the site is suitable for the 

proposed construction provided the recommendations in this report are followed during design 

and construction. Based on field observations and test results, foundation loads may be applied to 

the native soils on site. Existing on-site undocumented fill and low bearing native soil should be 

removed prior to beginning site development. The geotechnical design recommendations 

presented in this section are derived from borings and laboratory test data across the site.  

If any revisions in the nature, design, or location of the proposed construction are made at a later 

date that significantly alter the present definition of the project, the recommendations within the 

following sections shall be subject to review by ABCO Engineering and may be modified as 

deemed necessary. A review of additional information may require the need for additional 

subsurface exploration, laboratory testing and engineering analysis. 

We recommend ABCO or the responsible Geotechnical Engineer be retained to provide 

construction monitoring to verify the subsurface conditions and that the report recommendations 

are incorporated into the actual construction. Such observation is an important part of the 

geotechnical design process and can help reduce the potential for soil engineering or construction 

related errors or omissions.  

4.2 EARTHWORK

4.2.1 Erosion Potential 

Land disturbance from construction activities will increase the potential for erosion. Sediment 

leaving a construction site is considered a pollutant by the Environmental Protection Agency 

(EPA). The EPA Clean Water Act requires that projects with earth disturbances greater than 1-

acre in area prepare a stormwater prevention and pollution plan (SWPPP). Since the approximate 

earth disturbance across the proposed project site is less than 1-acre, an Erosion Sediment 

Control Plan (ESCP) will be required and must be prepared and submitted to the City of Boise. 

The preparation of an ESCP is not included in the scope of this geotechnical work.  



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 7

4.2.1 Wet Weather Construction 

We recommend construction be undertaken during dry weather conditions. If site preparations 

and grading is undertaken during wet conditions, the on-site soils will be susceptible to pumping 

or rutting during compaction and may prove to be difficult to work with. Wet weather earthwork 

should be performed by low-pressure, track-mounted equipment that spread and reduce the 

vehicle load. Earthwork should not be performed immediately after or until the soil has had the 

opportunity to dry sufficiently to allow construction traffic. All soft and disturbed soil should be 

excavated to undisturbed soil and backfilled with engineered fill. Compaction of engineered fill 

should be sufficiently controlled to avoid pumping of the underlying soil and be performed in 

accordance with Section 4.2.3 and 4.2.6 of this report. During wet weather, surface water should 

not be permitted to pond near the top or flow into excavations. 

4.2.2 Temporary Excavations 

Safety at the construction site is the sole responsibility of the Contractor, who selects and directs 

the means, methods and sequencing of the construction operations. The Contractor will need to 

evaluate and select appropriate construction methods and procedures that comply with the 

applicable local, state and federal safety regulations (including the current OSHA Excavation 

and Trench Safety Standards) for any temporary site excavations. The soils observed in the 

investigation primarily consisted of sand, silts and clays and best classify as type B and must be 

sloped no steeper than 1H:1V. If side slopes of excavations are steeper than OSHA criteria, they 

will require trench boxes or some other type of lateral support and protection.   

4.2.3 Subgrade Preparation for Foundations and Slab-On-Grade 

Preparation of subgrade soil for foundation placement and slab-on-grade floors should first 

include removal of on-site topsoil and existing undocumented fill. Our soil investigation 

encountered undocumented fill to approximately 4.5 feet BGS.  

Temporary shoring may be required to accommodate subgrade preparation or foundation 

construction due to the proximity of the proposed building to the adjacent existing structures and 

property lines. The Contractor should be responsible for the construction means and methods 

including the design and construction of temporary shoring. Recommended soil parameters for 

temporary shoring are provided in section 4.2.4 of this report.  

ABCO recommends undocumented fill and low bearing native soil, in the building footprint, be 

excavated out and replaced with soil improvements consisting of compacted structural fill as 

shown in Figure 3 in the Appendix A. Improved soil spread footings may be proportioned to bear 



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 8

on native poorly graded sand (SP) with gravel with N-values on the order of 7 bpf or better 

encountered encountered at approximately 4.5 feet BGS. If allowable soil bearing pressures are 

not sufficient for the proposed structural design, footings may be prepared to bear on poorly 

graded gravel (GP) with sand with N-values on the order of 17 bpf or better encountered at 

approximately 7.0 feet BGS. Soil meeting requirements set in this report are suitable for the 

proposed foundations and may be utilized provided the following recommendations are 

followed: 

1. Excavate to required footing subgrade elevation ensuring all Stratum I undocumented 

fill and low bearing soil below proposed footings is removed. 

2. Provide compaction effort on the footing subgrade soil using a jumping jack, plate 

compactor, or equivalent. Any cobbles or boulders (3-inches or greater) not allowing 

for a smooth compaction surface should be removed and replaced with approved 

Structural Fill.  

3. If any pumping or instability is observed during compaction and probing, over-

excavate the disturbed subgrade and replace with granular structural fill as discussed 

in Section 4.2.6.  

4. Place and compact structural fill as necessary to achieve final grades in accordance 

with the Structural Fill section of this report. 

5.  A separation distance of 12 inches or greater should be maintained between the  

subgrade elevation and top of groundwater.   

The following should be performed for preparation of slab-on-grade: 

1.  Excavate and remove existing undocumented fill in the footprint of the slab-on-grade 

      to 4.5 feet BGS to firm native subgrade. 

2.  Proof-roll the exposed compacted native subgrade soil with a minimum of 5 passes of 

     a minimum 5-ton smooth drum or sheepsfoot roller. Any cobbles or boulders (3-    

     inches or greater) not allowing for a smooth proof-rolling surface should be removed  

     and replaced with approved Structural Fill. 

3.  If any pumping or instability is observed during proof-rolling, over-excavate the 

disturbed subgrade and replace with granular structural fill as discussed in Section 

4.2.6. 

4. Backfill to grade with structural fill according to Section 4.2.6 



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 9

All building and slab-on-grade areas should be stripped of vegetation prior to construction. The 

finish surface of all buildings and slab-on-grade areas should be graded adequately to drain 

towards storm water conveyance or disposal facilities. Vegetation and topsoil may be stockpiled 

on the site and used as topsoil. Do not use stripped soil as general or structural fill. 

4.2.4 Lateral Earth Pressure /Temporary Shoring 

Backfill material for temporary shoring should be clean granular material. The soil parameters 

provided in Table 2 are recommended for temporary shoring for the soils encountered at the site.   

           Table 2 – Lateral Earth Pressures (non-submerged conditions) 

Lateral Earth Pressure Case Equivalent Fluid Pressure (EFP) 

At Rest (Ko)  57 psf/ft of depth 

Active (Ka) 40 psf/ft of depth 

Passive (Kp) 250 psf/ft of depth 
  Assumed moist unit weight of in situ soil (): 100 pcf 

                Assumed angle of internal friction for in situ soil (): 25o

The earth pressure values provided in Table 2 are ultimate values and the designer should apply 

appropriate reduction factors for design. The lateral earth pressure values provided in Table 2 are 

for properly drained backfill and do not include hydrostatic pressures that can develop if 

groundwater or surface water is trapped behind a structure.  

Over compaction behind the shoring should be avoided, as increased compaction effort can result 

in lateral pressures higher than those provided in this report. Heavy compaction equipment or 

other construction loads should not be allowed within 4 feet of the retaining walls. Hand 

operated, or lightweight compaction equipment should be utilized for compacting retaining wall 

backfill in these areas. 

4.2.5 General Fill 

Fill placed outside of slab-on-grades, footings and hardscapes should meet the requirements for 

general fill. General fill used for site grading may be obtained from approved borrow sources. 

General fill shall classify according to ASTM D2487 as GW, GP, GC, GM, SW, SP, SC, SM, 

ML (or combinations of these such as SP-SM) materials. In addition, the general fill material 

shall have a maximum particle size less than 4 inches and shall be free of excess moisture, 

organic matter and debris. 

Materials that are frozen, contaminated, contain excess moisture, organic matter (such as 

strippings or roots), trash, debris, stones larger than 4 inches, or that classify by ASTM D2487 as 



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 10

CH, MH, PT, OL, and OH are not suitable for general fill. After the removal of all vegetation 

and prior to any placement of general fill, the exposed subgrade should be uniformly scarified to 

a minimum depth of 10 inches, moisture-conditioned as necessary, and compacted to a minimum 

of 97 percent of the maximum dry density in accordance with ASTM D 698. 

After site preparation is completed, general fill should be placed in 8-inch maximum loose 

horizontal lifts and compacted to at least 97 percent of the maximum dry density as determined 

by the ASTM D 698 – Standard Proctor compaction test. Each lift should be documented for 

density and moisture. 

4.2.6 Structural Fill 

Fill placed below the bottom of slab-on-grade floors, footings, hardscapes should meet the 

requirements for structural fill. Some soils encountered on the site that tested as loose appeared 

to meet the requirements for structural fill described below. Structural backfill materials may be 

onsite or can be obtained from approved borrow sources and should consist of clean, hard, 

granular material conforming to the following: 

Sieve Size Percent Passing
4-inch 100 
No. 4 70-90 
No. 200 5-15 

Liquid Limit less than 30%. 
Plasticity Index less than 12. 
Maximum Moist Unit Weight 125 lbs per cubic foot 

Materials that are frozen, contaminated, contain excess moisture, organic matter (such as 

strippings or roots), trash, debris, stones larger than 4 inches are not suitable for structural 

backfill. If the existing materials contain oversize particles, trash, organics, or other deleterious 

materials, those materials shall be removed by screening prior to placement as structural fill.  

After excavating to native soils, compact any of the native materials disturbed prior to placement 

of fill. After site preparation is completed, structural fill should be placed in 10-inch maximum 

loose horizontal lifts and compacted to at least 97 percent of the maximum dry density as 

determined by the ASTM D698 – Standard Proctor compaction test. Each lift should be 

documented for density and moisture.  



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 11

4.2.7 Backfilling Utilities Trenches 

Non-organic materials obtained from required project excavations may be used to backfill 

utilities trenches. Backfill should be placed in uniform horizontal layers not exceeding 10 inches 

in loose thickness.  

In structural areas including roadways and buildings, each layer of the utility trench backfill 

should be compacted to at least 97 percent of the maximum laboratory dry density as determined 

by ASTM D698. In non-structural areas, each layer should be compacted to at least 92 percent of 

the maximum laboratory dry density as determined by ASTM D 698. Jetting or flooding of the 

backfill material in utility trenches should not be permitted. 

4.3 FOUNDATIONS

ABCO should be present prior placement of structural fill or concrete on prepared subgrade to 

verify the subgrade is prepared according to the recommendations presented in this report. 

Foundation concrete placement should never be attempted following a significant rain or snow 

event and the subgrade should never be allowed to freeze prior to concrete placement.  

Water standing in foundation excavations must be removed prior to concrete placement. The 

condition of the subgrade and careful construction procedures are critical to foundation and slab 

stability and long-term performance of the structure. Based on the results of the subsurface 

investigation, spread footings may be placed on the native subgrade soils. 

We understand that all structural foundations on site will consist of rectangular or square spread 

footings, or continuous strip footings.  

4.3.1 Spread footings (Excavate and Replace) 

We recommend that spread footings be proportioned in general accordance with Figure 4 

Allowable Bearing Capacity vs Effective Footing Width at 4.5 ft BGS. 



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 12

                     Figure 4 – Allowable Bearing Capacity at Approximately 4.5 feet BGS 

If the bearing capacities provided in Figure 4 do not provide sufficient bearing capacity, we 

recommend the contractor place footings on properly prepared poorly graded gravel (GP) at 

approximately 7.0 feet BGS. Figure 5 provides allowable bearing capacities vs effective footing 

widths at 7.0 ft BGS.  

                          Figure 5 – Allowable Bearing Capacity at Approximately 7.0 feet BGS

The bearing capacity recommendations provided in Figures 4 and 5 are only valid if the 

recommendations in this report are followed. Spread footing foundations should be prepared 

according to the following.  

 Footings have a maximum width of 10 feet. 



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 13

 All footings should bear on scarified, moisture conditioned, and compacted native soil as 

discussed in section 4.2.3 or better, or structural fill compacted as described in Section 

4.2.6. 

 The bottom of spread footings are placed at least 2 feet below the finished grades for frost 

protection. 

 The native subgrade material of the foundation excavations are observed and probed by 

ABCO or the responsible geotechnical engineer prior to placement of any structural 

backfill.  If upon inspection, the bottom of excavation appears excessively soft and 

potentially unstable for subsequent placement of structural backfill, then additional over-

excavation may be required as directed by the geotechnical engineer. 

 Structural fill placed as described in Section 4.2.6 of this report. 

 Any loose or frozen soil or standing water at the base of footing excavations should be 

removed and replaced with structural fill. 

 All structural fill placed beneath footings should extend a minimum of 1-foot horizontally 

for each 2 feet of thickness placed beneath the footing. The horizontal dimension is 

measured from the edge of footing.  

 Concrete placed on native soil or structural fill can utilize a friction coefficient of 0.4 to 

resist lateral loads. This coefficient must be reduced by 1/3 if concrete is not cast directly 

on soil, such as for pre-cast panels.  

Spread footings designed in accordance with these criteria would be expected to experience 

maximum post construction settlement of 1 inch or less, with differential settlements of ½ of 1 

inch or less. A one-third increase of the net allowable bearing pressure may be used for transient 

wind or seismic loads. The recommended allowable bearing capacity charts (Figures 4 and 5) 

provided should be verified or amended once details of the proposed construction are available. 

Soil in the area of boring B-3 may be able to support higher loads at a more shallow elevation, 

possibly resulting in a construction savings. ABCO, or the responsible geotechnical engineer, 

should be on site during foundation preparation and to evaluate if the foundation subgrade in the 

area of boring B-3 may be modified.  



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 14

A greater allowable bearing capacity may be utilized by extending spread footings deeper or 

utilizing a deep foundation option. Analysis for deep foundations was not included as part of this 

geotechnical report.   

4.4 INTERIOR SLAB-ON-GRADE

Slab-on-grade floors may be used at the site. Prior to constructing slab-on-grade floors, the 

subgrade must be properly prepared. First, organic topsoil, vegetation, or loose fill material must 

be stripped from the building area and subgrades must be prepared according to Section 4.2.3 of 

this report. A modulus of subgrade reaction of 150 pci can be assumed for design purposes for 

slab floors placed over properly prepared floor slab areas supported on firm native soils or 

properly compacted structural fill.  

If the interior floors will be covered with moisture sensitive floor coverings, a vapor barrier 

should be used. Minimum sections for slab-on-grade floors with moisture sensitive floor 

coverings are shown in the table below. If moisture sensitive floor coverings are not used, omit 

the blotter, vapor retarder and the choker. The sections shown in Table 2 are minimum 

recommended thicknesses. 

Table 3 -Interior Slabs-on-Grade with Moisture Sensitive Floor Covering 

Layer Minimum Thickness (inches) 

Concrete with Reinforcement Computed by Structural Engineer 

Blotter 3-1/2 

Vapor Retarder ---- 

Choker 1/2 

Granular Base 8 

Compacted Subgrade 8 

 The purpose of the blotter layer is to absorb excess moisture from the concrete to 

permit the earliest placement of impermeable floor coatings (urethane, epoxy, or 

acrylic terrazzo) or floor-covering adhesive. Blotter should be a well-graded 3/8-inch-

minus granular material. Blotter should be lightly moist and compacted with two 

passes of a vibratory plate or vibratory roller. The blotter layer should not be allowed 

to become saturated prior to placement of the concrete slab. 



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 15

 Vapor retarder should meet the requirements of a Class A vapor retarder according to 

ASTM E 1745.  The vapor retarder should be sealed to the foundations, at seems and 

pipe penetrations with sealant tape according to the manufacturer’s recommendations. 

 Choker should be a clean sand material. The choker layer minimizes puncturing of the 

vapor retarder by the granular base material. 

 Granular base should be placed as a leveling course over the subgrade. The granular 

base should be compacted to at least 97 percent of the maximum dry density as 

determined by ASTM D698. 

 Compacted subgrade in the building construction area should be prepared as described 

in Section 4.2.3 of this report. 

The concrete should not be placed directly on the vapor retarder. Some buildings are constructed 

by placing the slab floors directly on the vapor retarder. This has some advantages but also 

increases several risks due to drying shrinkage, settling and increased slab curl. We recommend 

reviewing the American Concrete Institute report ACI 302.1R-1 and evaluate the procedures 

recommended and associated risks prior to changing the design recommendations with respect to 

use of a blotter layer. 

Special precautions should be taken during the placement and curing of all concrete slabs. 

Excessive slump caused by a high water-cement ratio of the concrete and/or improper curing 

procedures used during either hot or cold weather could lead to excessive shrinkage, cracking or 

curling in the slabs. We recommend that all concrete placement and curing operations be 

performed in accordance with the American Concrete Institute (ACI) Manual and under the 

observation of International Conference of Building Officials (ICBO) certified technicians. 

To reduce the effects of differential movement, it is recommended that floor slabs be separated 

from all bearing walls and columns with expansion joints. We anticipate concrete slabs will be 

lightly loaded. The concrete strength, slab thickness, reinforcement, joint design, and joint layout 

should be addressed in the contract documents.  

4.5 SUBSURFACE INFILTRATION OF STORMWATER AND DRAINAGE

ABCO understands that subsurface infiltration of stormwater will take place on site. ABCO 

performed infiltration tests in boring B-2 and B-3 within the native poorly graded gravel 

(Stratum III) material encountered at approximately 4.5 to 7 feet BGS. An infiltration rate greater 



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 16

than 8-inches per hour (in/hr) was measured. We recommend using an infiltration rate of 8 in/hr 

for design purposes in Stratum III material.  



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 17

5 CLOSURE 

5.1 LIMITATIONS

Recommendations contained in this report are based on our field explorations, laboratory tests, 

and our understanding of the proposed construction. The study was performed using a mutually 

agreed upon scope of work. It is our opinion that this study was a cost-effective method to 

evaluate the subject site and evaluate some of the potential geotechnical concerns. More detailed, 

focused, and/or thorough investigations can be conducted. Further studies will tend to increase 

the level of assurance; however, such efforts will result in increased costs. If the Client wishes to 

reduce the uncertainties beyond the level associated with this study, ABCO Engineering should 

be contacted for additional consultation. 

The soils data used in the preparation of this report were obtained from the field explorations 

made for this investigation. It is possible that variations in soils exist between the points 

explored. The nature and extent of soil variations may not be evident until construction occurs. If 

any soil conditions are encountered at this site that differ from those described in this report, our 

firm should be immediately notified so that we may make any necessary revisions to our 

recommendations. In addition, if the scope of the proposed project development changes from 

the project description given in this report, our firm should be notified.  

The recommendations made in this report are based on the assumption that an adequate program 

of testing, observation, and engineering consultation will be made during construction to verify 

compliance with the report findings and recommendations. This should include, but not 

necessarily be limited to, observations and testing described within this report, and engineering 

consultation as may be required during construction. These observation and testing items are 

critical with regards to the conclusions and recommendations provided in this report. If these 

items are not adequately performed during construction, then the Client agrees to assume ABCO 

Engineering’s responsibility for any potential claims that may arise during or after construction. 

Critical observations and testing include the following: 

o stripping of existing vegetation; 

o approval of building foundation excavations by our geotechnical engineer; 

o proper preparation of improved soil under building foundations; 

o approval of excavations for infiltration facilities by our geotechnical engineer.  



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING Page 18

The report has been prepared for specific application to this project in accordance with the 

generally accepted standards of practice at the time the report was written. No warranty, express 

or implied, is made. 

This report may be used only by the Client and for the purposes stated, within a reasonable time 

from its issuance. Land use, site conditions (both on- and off-site), or other factors including 

advances in man’s understanding of applied science may change over time and could materially 

affect our findings. Therefore, this report should not be relied upon after 24 months from its 

issue. ABCO Engineering should be notified if the project is delayed by more than 24 months 

from the date of this report so that a review of site conditions can be made, and recommendations 

revised, if appropriate. 

It is the CLIENT’S responsibility to see that all parties to the project, including the designer, 

contractor, subcontractors, etc., are made aware of this report in its entirety. The use of 

information contained in this report for bidding purposes should be done at the Contractor’s 

option and risk. Any party other than the Client who wishes to use this report shall notify ABCO 

Engineering of such intended use by executing the “Application for Authorization to Use” which 

follows this document as an appendix. Based on the intended use of the report, ABCO 

Engineering may require that additional work be performed and that an updated report be issued. 

Non-compliance with any of these requirements by the Client or anyone else will release ABCO 

Engineering from any liability resulting from the use of this report by any unauthorized party. 

5.2 REVIEW OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

ABCO requests the opportunity to review the final plans and specifications for this project to 

determine if the final design complies with this report prior to submittal to review agencies. 



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING 

APPENDIX A 

    FIGURE 1 – VICINITY MAP 
         FIGURE 2 - EXPLORATION MAP 

                        FIGURE 3 – SOIL IMPROVEMENTS                           



.\vicinity map.jpg

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 
B

Y
:
 
D

A
V

I
D

 
B

R
I
G

G
S

 
D

A
T

E
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

:
 
1

2
/
3

0
/
2

0
1

9
 
1

1
:
1

5
:
4

6
 
A

M
 

P
A

T
H

:
 
A

:
\
A

B
C

O
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
\
J
O

B
S

 
L

A
N

D
E

D
\
1

9
1

5
2

6
-
-
O

D
Y

S
S

E
Y

 
F

L
A

T
S

 
T

I
B

B
S

 
C

O
N

D
O

S
 
(
M

U
S

S
E

L
L

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N
)
\
G

E
O

T
E

C
H

N
I
C

A
L

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
\
C

A
D

\
1

9
1

5
2

6

-
 
9

9
 
-
 
V

I
C

I
N

I
T

Y
 
M

A
P

_
R

0
 
(
2

)
.
D

W
G

File Number:

Sheet Number:

Designed By:

Drawn By:

Date:

ABCO
ENGINEERING

1 OF 2

FIGURE 1

D. BRIGGS

DECEMBER 2019

ADA COUNTY

1715 IDAHO STREET

BOISE, ID

VICINITY MAP

MUSSELL CONSTRUCTION, INC.

ODYSSEY FLATS TIBBS CONDOS

D. BRIGGS

191526

PROJECT

LOCATION



B-3*                                                                            MONITORING WELL

                                                                                   INSTALLED

(SCALE IN FEET)

1:10 (22x34 FULL SIZE)

10 5 30100

EXPLORATION MAP

IDAHO STREET

B-1

150'

PROPOSED BUILDING

ALLEY

150'

1
2
2
'

1
2
2
'

B-2

B-3*

Drawing modified from Network Architects Composite Design #1 dated 1.7.19

PARKING  LOT

EXISTING

STRUCTURES

December 2019

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 
B

Y
:
 
D

A
V

I
D

 
B

R
I
G

G
S

 
D

A
T

E
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

:
 
1

2
/
3

0
/
2

0
1

9
 
1

1
:
2

8
:
0

9
 
A

M
 

P
A

T
H

:
 
A

:
\
A

B
C

O
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
\
J
O

B
S

 
L

A
N

D
E

D
\
1

9
1

5
2

6
-
-
O

D
Y

S
S

E
Y

 
F

L
A

T
S

 
T

I
B

B
S

 
C

O
N

D
O

S
 
(
M

U
S

S
E

L
L

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N
)
\
G

E
O

T
E

C
H

N
I
C

A
L

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
\
C

A
D

\
1

9
1

5
2

6
 
-
 
9

9
 
-
 
E

X
P

L
O

R
A

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
P

.
D

W
G

FILE NUMBER:

SHEET NUMBER:

DESIGNED BY:

DATE

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

B
Y

N
O

.

DRAWN BY:

A
B
C
O

E
N
G
IN
E
E
R
IN
G

119 N. Midland Blvd.

Nampa, Idaho 83651

Phone (208) 955-8126

1
7

1
5

 
I
D

A
H

O
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

DAVID BRIGGS

FIGURE 2

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

E
X

P
L

O
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
M

A
P

M
U

S
S

E
L

L
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N
 
I
N

C
.

2 OF 2

A
D

A
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y

O
D

Y
S

S
E

Y
 
F

L
A

T
S

 
T

I
B

B
S

 
C

O
N

D
O

S

D. BRIGGS

191526

LEGEND

APPROXIMATE SPT SOIL BORING LOCATIONS

CALL BEFORE YOU DIG!

1. THE LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN

ARE APPROXIMATE LOCATIONS ONLY. IT SHALL BE THE

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO INFORM ALL UTILITY

COMPANIES OF THE CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL

EXISTING UTILITIES BEFORE COMMENCING WORK. THE

CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND ALL DAMAGE

WHICH MAY OCCUR BY FAILURE TO EXACTLY LOCATE AND

PROTECT ALL UTILITIES.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT DIGLINE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO ANY
EARTH DISTURBING ACTIVITIES ON SITE, AND REQUEST LOCATE OF
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

*The 811 logo is a registered trademark of the CGA.

Know what's below.
before you dig.CallR



S

L

O

P

E

 

V

A

R

I

E

S

B

2B

B

S

L

O

P

E

 

V

A

R

I

E

S

2B

B
COMPACTED SUBGRADE

NTS

SOIL IMPROVEMENT DETAIL

℄

STRUCTURAL FILL PLACED

PER GEOTECHNICAL REPORT

P
L
O

T
T

E
D

 
B

Y
:
 
D

A
V

I
D

 
B

R
I
G

G
S

 
D

A
T

E
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

:
 
4
/
1
5
/
2
0
1
9
 
1
1
:
4
6
:
2
4
 
A

M
 

P
A

T
H

:
 
1
8
-
4
6
5
7
 
-
 
F

I
G

U
R

E
 
3
 
-
 
O

V
E

R
 
E

X
C

A
V

A
T

E
D

 
D

E
T

A
I
L
.
D

W
G

File Number:

Sheet Number:

Designed By:

Drawn By:

Date:

ABCO
ENGINEERING

FIGURE 3

T SIGMAN

JANUARY 2019

SOIL IMPROVEMENT DETAIL

A. LYMAN



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING 

APPENDIX B 

                                 BORING LOGS (B-1, B-2, B-3) 
             LABORATORY RESULTS 
             SOILS CLASSIFICATION CHART 



COMMENTS

NO.

BLOWS

DEPTH

(ft)

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION

SAMPLE

TYPE.

Project:

Location:

Project No:

Boring #:

Water:

Sheet:

Logged on:

Driller Info:

Logged by:

PROJECT NUMBER:

BORING LOG

Equipment:

ABCO
ENGINEERING

ABCO Engineering

119 N Midland Blvd.

Nampa, ID 83687

ABCO Engineering

ODYSSEY FLATS

191526

1715 IDAHO STREET

 B-1

9.5 FT

12/5/2019 

1 of 2

HAZ-TECH DRILLING; CME-75

DHB

191526

 

4"in.- 8"out. DIA. HOLLOW AUGER; 1.5" SPLIT SPN.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

ASPHALT
2-inches (0.17 feet)

SS

Rec: 8"

SS

Rec: 11"

SS

Rec: 6"

SS

Rec: 6"

SS

Rec: 11"

SS

Rec: 9"

4

4

5

4

4

4

4

3

4

8

       6

11

8

8

7

18

18

17

11-17-19

FILL: POORLY GRADED SAND (SP) with gravel, About

60% medium coarse grained sand, about 40% gravel,

reddish brown, loose, moist

Sand heave. Water added

when augers at 15 feet

and each time before

pulling center rods.

NATIVE: POORLY GRADED SAND (SP) with gravel,

88% fine to coarse sand, 7% gravel, 5% fines, light gray,

loose, moist.

Decomposed granite

fragments

SS

POORLY GRADED GRAVEL (GP) with sand, about 90%

gravel, about 10% medium coarse sand, reddish brown,

medium dense, moist to saturated.

POORLY GRADED GRAVEL (GP) with sand, about 70%

gravel, about 30% medium coarse sand, light gray to light

brown, dense to very dense, moist to saturated.



COMMENTS

NO.

BLOWS

DEPTH

(ft)

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION

SAMPLE

TYPE.

Project:

Location:

Project No:

Boring #:

Water:

Sheet:

Logged on:

Driller Info:

Logged by:

PROJECT NUMBER:

BORING LOG

Equipment:

ABCO
ENGINEERING

ABCO Engineering

119 N Midland Blvd.

Nampa, ID 83687

ABCO Engineering

ODYSSEY FLATS

191526

1715 IDAHO STREET

 B-1

9.5 FEET 

12/5/2019 

2 of 2

HAZ-TECH DRILLING; CME-75

DHB

191526

 

4"in.- 8"out. DIA. HOLLOW AUGER; 1.5" SPLIT SPN

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

SS

Rec: 9"

SS

Rec: 14"

11

17

19

13

19

25

SS

Rec: 10"

44

50/5.5"

Boring Terminated at 31.5 feet

POORLY GRADED GRAVEL (GP) with sand, about 70%

gravel, about 30% medium coarse sand, light gray to light

brown, dense to very dense, moist to saturated.



COMMENTS

NO.

BLOWS

DEPTH

(ft)

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION

SAMPLE

TYPE.

Project:

Location:

Project No:

Boring #:

Water:

Sheet:

Logged on:

Driller Info:

Logged by:

PROJECT NUMBER:

BORING LOG

Equipment:

ABCO
ENGINEERING

ABCO Engineering

119 N Midland Blvd.

Nampa, ID 83687

ABCO Engineering

ODYSSEY FLATS

191526

1715 IDAHO STREET

 B-2

8.0 FT

12/5/2019 

1 of 2

HAZ-TECH DRILLING; CME-75

DHB

191526

 

4"in.- 8"out. DIA. HOLLOW AUGER; 1.5" SPLT SPN

SS

Rec: 12"

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

SS

Rec: 5"

SS

Rec: 5"

SS

Rec: 12"

SS

Rec: 5"

SS

Rec: 14"

SS

Rec: 10"

6

9

7

5

7

5

4

4

5

16

      31

41

18

20

18

12

20

20

13-20-26

FILL: POORLY GRADED SAND (SP) with gravel,  About

55% medium coarse grained sand, about 45% gravel,

dark brown, medium dense, moist

Infiltration test performed

through auger at 7 feet.

Infiltration rate > 8 in/hr.

NATIVE: POORLY GRADED SAND (SP) with gravel,

about 85% fine to coarse sand, about 10% gravel, about

5% fines, light gray, loose, moist.

POORLY GRADED GRAVEL (GP) with sand, about 90%

gravel, about 10% medium coarse sand, light brown,

dense, moist to saturated.

FILL: POORLY GRADED GRAVEL (GP-GC) with sand

and clay,  About 55% gravel, about 38% medium coarse

grained sand, about 7% low plasticity clay, black, medium

dense, moist

POORLY GRADED GRAVEL (GP) with sand, about 70%

gravel, about 30% medium coarse sand, light brown to

light gray, dense, moist to saturated.

Roots

Sand heave. Water added

when augers at 15 feet

and each time before

pulling center rods.



COMMENTS

NO.

BLOWS

DEPTH

(ft)

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION

SAMPLE

TYPE.

Project:

Location:

Project No:

Boring #:

Water:

Sheet:

Logged on:

Driller Info:

Logged by:

PROJECT NUMBER:

BORING LOG

Equipment:

ABCO
ENGINEERING

ABCO Engineering

119 N Midland Blvd.

Nampa, ID 83687

ABCO Engineering

ODYSSEY FLATS

191526

1715 IDAHO STREET

 B-2

8.0 FEET 

12/5/2019 

2 of 2

HAZ-TECH DRILLING; CME-75

DHB

191526

 

4"in.- 8"out. DIA. HOLLOW AUGER; 1.5" SPLIT SPN

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

SS

Rec: 10"

SS

Rec: 10"

13

20

26

10

17

49

SS

Rec: 16"

32

40

32

Boring Terminated at 31.5 feet

POORLY GRADED GRAVEL (GP) with sand, about 70%

gravel, about 30% medium coarse sand, light brown to

light gray, dense, moist to saturated.



COMMENTS

NO.

BLOWS

DEPTH

(ft)

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION

SAMPLE

TYPE.

Project:

Location:

Project No:

Boring #:

Water:

Sheet:

Logged on:

Driller Info:

Logged by:

PROJECT NUMBER:

BORING LOG

Equipment:

ABCO
ENGINEERING

ABCO Engineering

119 N Midland Blvd.

Nampa, ID 83687

ABCO Engineering

ODYSSEY FLATS

191526

1715 IDAHO STREET

 B-3

10.0 FT

12/5/2019 

1 of 2

HAZ-TECH DRILLING; CME-75

DHB

191526

 

4"in.- 8"out. DIA. HOLLOW AUGER; 1.5" SPLT SPN

SS

Rec: 14"

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

SS

Rec: 8"

SS

Rec: 6"

SS

Rec: 5"

SS

Rec: 7"

SS

Rec: 14"

SS

Rec: 14"

3

7

7

7

10

15

9

17

23

28

      30

13

17

50/5.5"

20

15

16

23-16-14

FILL: POORLY GRADED SAND (SP), About 95% fine to

medium coarse grained sand, reddish brown to dark gray,

medium dense, moist

2-inch diameter temporary

PVC pipe installed at 14 ft.

Infiltration test performed

through PVC pipe.

Observed approx. 1 in/sec

infiltration.

NATIVE: POORLY GRADED GRAVEL (GP) with sand,

about 90% gravel, about 10% medium coarse sand, light

brown, dense, moist to saturated.

POORLY GRADED GRAVEL (GP) with sand, about 70%

gravel, about 30% medium coarse sand, light brown to

gray, dense, moist to saturated.

Roots, rock fragments,

slight organic odor, trace

gravel

Granite Fragments

Sand heave. Water added

when augers at 15 feet

and each time before

pulling center rods.



COMMENTS

NO.

BLOWS

DEPTH

(ft)

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION

SAMPLE

TYPE.

Project:

Location:

Project No:

Boring #:

Water:

Sheet:

Logged on:

Driller Info:

Logged by:

PROJECT NUMBER:

BORING LOG

Equipment:

ABCO
ENGINEERING

ABCO Engineering

119 N Midland Blvd.

Nampa, ID 83687

ABCO Engineering

ODYSSEY FLATS

191526

1715 IDAHO STREET

 B-3

10.0 FEET 

12/5/2019 

2 of 2

HAZ-TECH DRILLING; CME-75

DHB

191526

 

4"in.- 8"out. DIA. HOLLOW AUGER; 1.5" SPLIT SPN

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

SS

Rec: 14"

SS

Rec: 13"

23

16

14

9

21

21

SS

Rec: 15"

14

32

39

Boring Terminated at 31.5 feet

POORLY GRADED GRAVEL (GP) with sand, about 70%

gravel, about 30% medium coarse sand, light brown to

light gray, dense to very dense, moist to saturated.



T
h

is
 t
e

s
t 
re

p
o

rt
 s

h
a

ll
 n

o
t 
b

e
 r

e
p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 e

x
c
e

p
t 
in

 f
u

ll
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
A

L
L

W
E

S
T

 T
e

s
ti
n

g
 &

 E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
, 
In

c
.

Tested By: C. Downes Checked By: J. Varozza

ALLWEST
TESTING & ENGINEERING

Meridian, Idaho

12/16/19

(no specification provided)

PL= LL= PI=

D90= D85= D60=
D50= D30= D15=
D10= Cu= Cc=

USCS= AASHTO=

*

Poorly Graded Sand
1"

3/4"
1/2"
3/8"
#4
#8
#16
#30
#50

#100
#200

100
100

99
96
93
91
86
47
13
7

4.7

-- -- --

2.0899 1.1508 0.7285
0.6269 0.4516 0.3215
0.2620 2.78 1.07

SP --

Sample delivered on 12/13/19 by D. Briggs
Odyssey Flats - ABCO Project No. 191526
1715 Idaho Street

ABCO Engineering

ABCO Engineering 2019 Misc. Testing

519-047

Material Description

Atterberg Limits

Coefficients

Classification

Remarks

Location: B-1
Sample Number: S519-938 Depth: 5-6.5' Date:

Client:

Project:

Project No: Figure

SIEVE PERCENT SPEC.* PASS?

SIZE FINER PERCENT (X=NO)

P
E

R
C

E
N

T
 F

IN
E

R

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

GRAIN SIZE - mm.

0.0010.010.1110100

% +3"
Coarse

% Gravel

Fine Coarse Medium

% Sand

Fine Silt

% Fines

Clay

0 0 7 3 63 22 5

6
 i
n
.

3
 i
n
.

2
 i
n
.

1
½

 i
n
.

1
 i
n
.

¾
 i
n
.

½
 i
n
.

3
/8

 i
n
.

#
4

#
1
0

#
2
0

#
3
0

#
4
0

#
6
0

#
1
0
0

#
1
4
0

#
2
0
0

Particle Size Distribution Report



ABCO ENGINEERING 

General Legend and Notes for Logs of Exploration 

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION 

BG  Small-volume bag sample 

BK  Large-volume bulk sample 

SS  Standard split-spoon sample (reference ASTM D 1586) 

RS  Oversized split-spoon sample with an outside diameter of 3 inches. 6 inch rings 
inserted in the sampler. Blow counts are not corrected to N-Values unless noted 
separately on the logs 

ST  Thin-walled (Shelby) tube sample with an inside diameter of 2.88 inches unless 
otherwise noted on the logs (reference ASTM D 1587) 

PT  Piston tube sample with an inside tube diameter of 2.88 inches unless otherwise 
noted on the logs (reference ASTM D 1587) 

RS  Ring sample with an inside diameter of 2.42 inches unless otherwise noted on the 
logs (reference ASTM D 3550) 

CR  Core barrel sample (reference ASTM D 2113) 

 Water content 

LL  Liquid Limit 

PL  Plastic Limit 

PI Plasticity Index 

__ Indicates the measured groundwater level 

PP  Pocket Penetrometer (tsf) 

MC  Moisture Content 

Note: 
1. Soil samples recovered were identified, described, and classified in the field using ASTM 

D 2488 (Unified Soil Classification System) as a guide.



PI > 7 and plots on 
or above "A" line. 

4 PI and plots
on or above "A" line 

GROUP 
SYMBOL 

CL

LL < 50

CL-MLInorganic

< 30% plus No. 200 < 15% plus No. 200

15 - 29% plus No. 200 % sand % gravel

% sand < % gravel

Lean Clay

Lean Clay with Sand

Lean Clay with Gravel

Sandy Lean Clay

Sandy Lean Clay with Gravel

Gravelly Lean Clay

Gravelly Lean Clay with Sand

Silty Clay

< 15% gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel

15% gravel

% sand  % gravel

% sand < % gravel

GROUP NAME

30% plus No 200

Silty Clay with Sand

Silty Clay with Gravel

Sandy Silty Clay

Sandy Silty Clay with Gravel

Gravelly Silty Clay

Gravelly Silty Clay with Sand

30% plus No 200

< 30% plus No. 200 < 15% plus No. 200

15 - 29% plus No. 200

% sand  % gravel

% sand < % gravel

% sand < % gravel

% sand % gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel

ASTM D2487 Soils Classification Chart

Silt

Silt with Sand

Silt with Gravel

Sandy Silt

Sandy Silt with Gravel

Gravelly Silt

Gravelly Silt with Sand

30% plus No 200

< 30% plus No. 200 < 15% plus No. 200

% sand < % gravel

% sand  % gravel

15 - 29% plus No. 200

< 15% gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel

15% gravel

% sand % gravel

% sand < % gravelPI < 4 or plots
below "A" line

ML

Organic OL(        )LL - ovendried
                          < 0.75
LL - not dried

See below

Fat Clay

Fat Clay with Sand

Fat Clay with Gravel

Sandy Fat Clay

Sandy Fat Clay with Gravel

Gravelly Fat Clay

Gravelly Fat Clay with Sand

< 30% plus No. 200

30% plus No 200

15 - 29% plus No. 200

% sand  % gravel

% sand < % gravel

< 15% plus No. 200

% sand < % gravel

% sand % gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel
CHPI plots on or

above "A" line

Inorganic

Elastic Silt

Elastic Silt with Sand

Elastic Silt with Gravel

Sandy Elastic Silt

Sandy Elastic Silt with Gravel

Gravelly Elastic Silt

Gravelly Elastic Silt with Sand

30% plus No 200

< 30% plus No. 200 < 15% plus No. 200

% sand < % gravel

% sand  % gravel

15 - 29% plus No. 200

< 15% gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel

15% gravel

% sand % gravel

% sand < % gravelPI plots below
"A" line

MH

See below(        )LL - ovendried
                          < 0.75
LL - not dried

Organic OH

LL > 50

Organic Clay

Organic Clay with Sand

Organic Clay with Gravel

Sandy Organic Clay

Sandy Organic Clay with Gravel

Gravelly Organic Clay 

Gravelly Organic Clay with Sand

< 30% plus No. 200

30% plus No 200

< 15% gravel% sand  % gravel

% sand < % gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel

15% gravel

15 - 29% plus No. 200

< 15% plus No. 200

% sand < % gravel

% sand % gravel

Organic Silt 

Organic Silt with Sand

Organic Silt with Gravel

Sandy Organic Silt

Sandy Organic Silt with Gravel

Gravelly Organic Silt

Gravelly Organic Silt with Sand

30% plus No 200

< 30% plus No. 200 < 15% plus No. 200

15 - 29% plus No. 200

% sand < % gravel

% sand  % gravel

% sand % gravel

% sand < % gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel

PI 4 and plots on 
or above "A" line

PI < 4 or plots 
below "A" line

OL

< 30% plus No. 200

30% plus No 200

30% plus No 200

< 30% plus No. 200

OH

PI 4 and plots on 
or above "A" line

Plots below 
"A" line

% sand  % gravel

% sand < % gravel

15 - 29% plus No. 200

< 15% plus No. 200

< 15% plus No. 200

15 - 29% plus No. 200

% sand < % gravel

% sand  % gravel

< 15% gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel

15% gravel

% sand < % gravel

% sand % gravel

% sand % gravel

% sand < % gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel

Gravelly Organic Silt with Sand

Gravelly Organic Silt

Sandy Organic Silt with Gravel

Sandy Organic Silt

Organic Silt with Sand

Organic Silt with Gravel

Organic Silt 

Gravelly Organic Clay with Sand

Gravelly Organic Clay 

Sandy Organic Clay with Gravel

Sandy Organic Clay

Organic Clay with Gravel

Organic Clay with Sand

Organic Clay



GROUP 
SYMBOL 

Well Graded Gravel

GROUP NAME

ASTM D2487 Soils Classification Chart (cont.)

Well Graded Gravel with Sand

Poorly Graded Gravel

Poorly Graded Gravel with Sand

Well Graded Gravel with Silt

Well Graded Gravel with Silt and Sand

Well Graded Gravel with Clay

Well Graded Gravel with Clay and Sand

< 15% sand

15% sand

15% sand

< 15% sand

Poorly Graded Gravel with Silt

Poorly Graded Gravel with Silt and Sand

Poorly Graded Gravel with Clay

Poorly Graded Gravel with Clay and Sand

Silty Gravel

Silty Gravel with Sand

Clayey Gravel

Clayey Gravel with Sand

Silty, Clayey Gravel

Silty, Clayey Gravel with Sand

GW

GP

fines = ML or MH

fines = CL or CH

fines = CL or CH

fines = ML or MH

fines = CL or CH

fines = ML or MH

fines = CL-ML

Cu and 1Cc3

Cu and/or 1Cc3

GW-GM

GW-GC

GP-GM

GP-GC

GM

GC

GC-GM

5-12% fines

< 5% fines

> 12% fines

GRAVEL
 % gravel >
     % sand

Cu and/or 1Cc3

Cu and 1Cc3

> 12% fines

< 5% fines

5-12% fines
SAND
 % sand 
     % gravel

Cu and/or 1Cc3

Cu and 1Cc3

fines = CL-ML

fines = ML or MH

fines = CL or CH

fines = ML or MH

fines = CL or CH

fines = CL or CH

fines = ML or MH

Cu and/or 1Cc3

Cu and 1Cc3

Silty, Clayey Sand with Gravel

Silty, Clayey Sand

Clayey Sand with Gravel

Clayey Sand

Silty Sand with Gravel

Silty Sand

Poorly Graded Sand with Clay and Gravel

Poorly Graded Sand with Clay

Poorly Graded Sand with Silt and Gravel

Poorly Graded Sand with Silt

Well Graded Sand with Clay and Gravel

Well Graded Sand with Clay

Well Graded Sand with Silt and Gravel

Well Graded Sand with Silt

Poorly Graded Sand with Gravel

Poorly Graded Sand

Well Graded Sand with Gravel

Well Graded Sand

15% gravel

SC

SC-SM

SP-SC

SP-SM

SW-SC

SW-SM

SM

SW

SP < 15% gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel

15% sand

15% sand

< 15% sand

< 15% sand

15% sand

15% sand

< 15% sand

< 15% sand

15% sand

15% sand

< 15% sand

< 15% sand

15% sand

< 15% sand

< 15% gravel

15% gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel

< 15% gravel

15% gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel

< 15% gravel

15% gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel

15% gravel

< 15% gravel

2010 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100 1100
0

20

10

30

40

50

60

P
L

A
S

T
IC

IT
Y

 I
N

D
E

X
 (

P
I)

LIQUID LIMIT (LL)

ML OR OL

MH OR OH

CH OR
OH

CL  O
R

OL

"U
" L

IN
E

CL-ML

16

"A
" L

IN
E

7

4



Geotechnical Engineering Evaluation 
Odyssey Flats Tibbs Condos 
Boise, Idaho 
January 13, 2020 
File No. 191526 

ABCO ENGINEERING 

APPENDIX C 

ADDITIONAL REPORTS 
                                            NRCS SOILS MAP 
                                            SEA SEISMIC MAPS 















APPENDIX D 

IMPORTONT INFORMATION ABOUT YOUR GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING REPORT 



Important Information 

ABCO ENGINEERING 

INFORMATION ABOUT YOUR GEOTECHNICAL REPORT 

This engineering report is based on a subsurface exploration plan designed to incorporate a unique set of 
project-specific factors such as the general type of the structure involved. The explorations locations and 
depths are based on the structure size and configuration. Other factors include proposed site features such 
as overhead utilities, and existing trees. To help avoid costly problems, consult the geotechnical engineer 
to determine how any factors which change subsequent to the date of the report may affect its 
recommendations. 
This report should not be used without consulting a Geotechnical Engineer if 
 Changes are made to the type of construction 
 Changes are made to the size, foundation loading or location of proposed structures 
 Changes are made to the location the structures or other site features 
 If the report is intended to use for any other property 

We cannot accept responsibility for problems which may develop if this report is used for any purpose 
other than the project described here in. Additionally, we cannot be held responsible if we are not 
consulted after factors considered in this report’s development have changed. 

This engineering report is prepared to meet the needs of specific individuals. Use by any other persons for 
any purpose, or by the client for a different purpose, may result in problems. No individual other than the 
client should apply this report for its intended purpose without first conferring with the geotechnical 
engineers. No person should apply this report for any purpose other than that originally contemplated 
without first conferring with the geotechnical engineer.

The site exploration described in this report identifies actual subsurface conditions only at the points 
where samples are taken, when they are taken. Data obtained through excavation, sampling and 
subsequent laboratory testing are extrapolated by our analysis to derive an opinion about overall 
subsurface conditions. The information derived is used to estimate the likely reaction of the subsurface 
soil to the proposed construction activity, and appropriate foundation design. Even under optimal 
circumstances actual conditions may differ from those inferred to exist, because no geotechnical engineer, 
no matter how qualified, and no subsurface exploration program, no matter how comprehensive, can 
reveal all that is hidden below the surface. Understand that the actual interface between materials may be 
far more gradual or abrupt than a report indicates. Actual conditions in areas not sampled may differ from 
predictions. To help mitigate the unknown a geotechnical engineer should be retained to help interpret 
conditions encountered during construction, perform appropriate testing, and recommend solutions. 

Subsurface conditions may change with time. Natural forces are constantly changing and this 
geotechnical engineering report is based on conditions that existed at the time of the subsurface 
exploration. Do not base construction decisions on a geotechnical engineering report whose adequacy 
may have been affected by time. Additionally, natural events such as floods, earthquakes or changes in 
groundwater elevations may affect the soils at the site. 

Final exploration logs (boring logs) are included in this report and were developed based upon our 
interpretation of field logs and laboratory evaluation of field samples. The logs should not be separated 
from the engineering report or redrawn for inclusion in other engineering or construction documents. 
Always provide access to the complete geotechnical engineering report to contractors or designers. We 
cannot accept responsibility for problems which may develop if this report is misinterpreted because of 
unauthorized or incomplete reproduction. 





















































































Historical Topographic 
Map Report | 2020

Order Number: 41444

Report Generated: 05/18/2020

Project Name: Phase I ESA 1715 W. Idaho Street, 
Boise, Idaho Ada Parcel R5538941262, 0.406 

Acres

Project Number: 

CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.
1715 W Idaho

Boise, ID 83702

2 Corporate Drive
Suite 450

Shelton, CT 06484
Toll Free: 866-211-2028
www.envirositecorp.com

Order Number: 41444

Report Report 

Project Name: Phase I ESA 1715 W. Idaho Street, Project Name: Phase I ESA 1715 W. Idaho Street, 
Boise, Idaho Ada Parcel R5538941262, 0.406 



Envirosite Historical Topographic Map Report 2020

Envirosite’s Historical Topographic Map Report is designed to assist in evaluating a subject property resulting 
from past activities. Envirosite’s Historical Topographic Map Report includes a search of USGS historical 
topographic maps, dating back to the early 1900s. 

TOPOGRAPHIC MAPS FOUND:

Map Name: Year: Revision Year: Scale: Series:
1. Boise South 1954 N/R 1 : 24000 7.5
2. Boise South 1954 N/R 1 : 24000 7.5
3. Boise 1954 N/R 1 : 62500 7.5
4. Boise 1954 N/R 1 : 62500 7.5
5. Boise South 1972 N/R 1 : 24000 7.5
6. Boise South 1972 N/R 1 : 24000 7.5
7. Boise South 1972 N/R 1 : 24000 7.5
8. Boise South 1972 N/R 1 : 24000 7.5
9. Boise_South 2010 N/R 1 : 24000 7.5
10. Boise_South 2013 N/R 1 : 24000 7.5
11. Boise_South 2017 N/R 1 : 24000 7.5
12. Boise_South 2020 N/R 1 : 24000 7.5

Disclaimer - Copyright and Trademark Notice

All information contained in this report are based on data available from various public, government and other sources and are based upon 
the best data available from those sources. The information available in this report may be available from other sources and is not exclusive 
or the exclusive property of Envirosite Corporation.

NO WARRANTY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, IS MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS REPORT, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, MERCHANTABILITY 
OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. ALL RISK IS ASSUMED BY USER AND Envirosite assumes no liability for faulty or inaccurate 
information. The Reports may utilize a variety of public and other sources reasonably available to Envirosite. Envirosite cannot, and does not 
assure, warrant, guarantee or assume any liability for the correctness, comprehensiveness, timeliness or completeness of any of such 
information, nor is the information in any Report to be construed as legal advice with respect to environmental risks associated with any 
property. Envirosite shall not be liable to anyone for any claims, causes of action, suits, damages, losses, costs and expenses (including, 
without limitation, attorneys’ fees and costs) arising out of or caused by this report regardless of the acts, errors or omissions, or negligence 
of Envirosite. Any damages shall be limited to the purchase price of the report.

Purchaser of the report accepts the report “As Is”. The report is intended only to provide information only and should not be considered as 
providing any legal advice, prediction, forecast, or fact as to the environmental risk for any specific property. Reports are proprietary to 
Envirosite, and contain copyrighted material and trademarks of Envirosite. All other trademarks used herein are the property of their 
respective owners. All rights of Envirosite as to the Reports are reserved.

Page 1 of 13

N/RN/R
N/RN/R
N/RN/R 1 : 24000
N/RN/R 1 : 24000
N/R 1 : 24000
N/R 1 : 24000
N/RN/R

Disclaimer Disclaimer - Copyright and Trademark Notice- Copyright and Trademark Notice

All information contained in this All information contained in this report are based on data available from various public, government and other sources and are based upon report are based on data available from various public, government and other sources and are based upon 
the best data available from those sources. The information available in this report may be available from other sources and is not exclusive the best data available from those sources. The information available in this report may be available from other sources and is not exclusive 

property of Envirosite Corporation.property of Envirosite Corporation.

NO WARRANTY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, NO WARRANTY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, IS MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS REPORT, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, MERCHANTABILITY IS MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS REPORT, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, MERCHANTABILITY 
OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. ALL RISK IS ASSUMED BY USER AND Envirosite assumes no liability for faulty or inaccurate OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. ALL RISK IS ASSUMED BY USER AND Envirosite assumes no liability for faulty or inaccurate 



Historical Topographic Map 2020

SUBJECT NAME: CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.
ADDRESS: 1715 W Idaho, Boise, ID, 83702
LAT/LONG: 43.621876 / -116.214282

PREPARED FOR: CAS & Associates
ORDER #: 41444
REPORT DATE: 05/18/2020

SUBJECT QUAD:

MAP NAME: Boise South MAP YEAR: 1954 REVISION YEAR: N/R

SERIES: 7.5 SCALE: 1 : 24000 Part 1

Page 2 of 13



Historical Topographic Map 2020

SUBJECT NAME: CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.
ADDRESS: 1715 W Idaho, Boise, ID, 83702
LAT/LONG: 43.621876 / -116.214282

PREPARED FOR: CAS & Associates
ORDER #: 41444
REPORT DATE: 05/18/2020

SUBJECT QUAD:

MAP NAME: Boise South MAP YEAR: 1954 REVISION YEAR: N/R

SERIES: 7.5 SCALE: 1 : 24000 Part 1

Page 3 of 13



Historical Topographic Map 2020

SUBJECT NAME: CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.
ADDRESS: 1715 W Idaho, Boise, ID, 83702
LAT/LONG: 43.621876 / -116.214282

PREPARED FOR: CAS & Associates
ORDER #: 41444
REPORT DATE: 05/18/2020

SUBJECT QUAD:

MAP NAME: Boise MAP YEAR: 1954 REVISION YEAR: N/R

SERIES: 7.5 SCALE: 1 : 62500 Part 1

Page 4 of 13



Historical Topographic Map 2020

SUBJECT NAME: CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.
ADDRESS: 1715 W Idaho, Boise, ID, 83702
LAT/LONG: 43.621876 / -116.214282

PREPARED FOR: CAS & Associates
ORDER #: 41444
REPORT DATE: 05/18/2020

SUBJECT QUAD:

MAP NAME: Boise MAP YEAR: 1954 REVISION YEAR: N/R

SERIES: 7.5 SCALE: 1 : 62500 Part 1

Page 5 of 13



Historical Topographic Map 2020

SUBJECT NAME: CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.
ADDRESS: 1715 W Idaho, Boise, ID, 83702
LAT/LONG: 43.621876 / -116.214282

PREPARED FOR: CAS & Associates
ORDER #: 41444
REPORT DATE: 05/18/2020

SUBJECT QUAD:

MAP NAME: Boise South MAP YEAR: 1972 REVISION YEAR: N/R

SERIES: 7.5 SCALE: 1 : 24000 Part 1

Page 6 of 13



Historical Topographic Map 2020

SUBJECT NAME: CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.
ADDRESS: 1715 W Idaho, Boise, ID, 83702
LAT/LONG: 43.621876 / -116.214282

PREPARED FOR: CAS & Associates
ORDER #: 41444
REPORT DATE: 05/18/2020

SUBJECT QUAD:

MAP NAME: Boise South MAP YEAR: 1972 REVISION YEAR: N/R

SERIES: 7.5 SCALE: 1 : 24000 Part 1

Page 7 of 13



Historical Topographic Map 2020

SUBJECT NAME: CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.
ADDRESS: 1715 W Idaho, Boise, ID, 83702
LAT/LONG: 43.621876 / -116.214282

PREPARED FOR: CAS & Associates
ORDER #: 41444
REPORT DATE: 05/18/2020

SUBJECT QUAD:

MAP NAME: Boise South MAP YEAR: 1972 REVISION YEAR: N/R

SERIES: 7.5 SCALE: 1 : 24000 Part 1

Page 8 of 13



Historical Topographic Map 2020

SUBJECT NAME: CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.
ADDRESS: 1715 W Idaho, Boise, ID, 83702
LAT/LONG: 43.621876 / -116.214282

PREPARED FOR: CAS & Associates
ORDER #: 41444
REPORT DATE: 05/18/2020

SUBJECT QUAD:

MAP NAME: Boise South MAP YEAR: 1972 REVISION YEAR: N/R

SERIES: 7.5 SCALE: 1 : 24000 Part 1

Page 9 of 13



Historical Topographic Map 2020

SUBJECT NAME: CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.
ADDRESS: 1715 W Idaho, Boise, ID, 83702
LAT/LONG: 43.621876 / -116.214282

PREPARED FOR: CAS & Associates
ORDER #: 41444
REPORT DATE: 05/18/2020

SUBJECT QUAD:

MAP NAME: Boise_South MAP YEAR: 2010 REVISION YEAR: N/R

SERIES: 7.5 SCALE: 1 : 24000 Part 1

Page 10 of 13



Historical Topographic Map 2020

SUBJECT NAME: CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.
ADDRESS: 1715 W Idaho, Boise, ID, 83702
LAT/LONG: 43.621876 / -116.214282

PREPARED FOR: CAS & Associates
ORDER #: 41444
REPORT DATE: 05/18/2020

SUBJECT QUAD:

MAP NAME: Boise_South MAP YEAR: 2013 REVISION YEAR: N/R

SERIES: 7.5 SCALE: 1 : 24000 Part 1

Page 11 of 13



Historical Topographic Map 2020

SUBJECT NAME: CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.
ADDRESS: 1715 W Idaho, Boise, ID, 83702
LAT/LONG: 43.621876 / -116.214282

PREPARED FOR: CAS & Associates
ORDER #: 41444
REPORT DATE: 05/18/2020

SUBJECT QUAD:

MAP NAME: Boise_South MAP YEAR: 2017 REVISION YEAR: N/R

SERIES: 7.5 SCALE: 1 : 24000 Part 1

Page 12 of 13



Historical Topographic Map 2020

SUBJECT NAME: CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.
ADDRESS: 1715 W Idaho, Boise, ID, 83702
LAT/LONG: 43.621876 / -116.214282

PREPARED FOR: CAS & Associates
ORDER #: 41444
REPORT DATE: 05/18/2020

SUBJECT QUAD:

MAP NAME: Boise_South MAP YEAR: 2020 REVISION YEAR: N/R

SERIES: 7.5 SCALE: 1 : 24000 Part 1

Page 13 of 13























Page 1 of 4



Page 2 of 4



Page 3 of 4



Page 4 of 4





Government Records 
Report | 2020

Order Number: 41444

Report Generated: 05/18/2020

Project Name: Phase I ESA 1715 W. Idaho Street, 
Boise, Idaho Ada Parcel R5538941262, 0.406 

Acres

Project Number: 

CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.
1715 W Idaho

Boise, ID 83702

2 Corporate Drive
Suite 450

Shelton, CT 06484
Toll Free: 866-211-2028
www.envirositecorp.com



Table of Contents 2020

Section Page

Executive Summary 1

Executive Summary by Distance 2

Executive Summary by Database 9

Property Proximity Map 27

Area Map 28

Map Findings Summary 29

Map Findings 34

Unmappable Summary 775

Environmental Records Searched 776

Geological Landscape Section 794

Geological Landscape Section Soil Map 797

Geological Landscape Section Summary 798

Geological Findings Map 810

Geological Landscape Section Map Findings 811

Geological Landscape Section Map Findings Radon 1419

Geological Landscape Records Searched 1420

Disclaimer - Copyright and Trademark Notice

All information contained in this report are based on data available from various public, government and other sources and are based upon 
the best data available from those sources. The information available in this report may be available from other sources and is not exclusive 
or the exclusive property of Envirosite Corporation.

NO WARRANTY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, IS MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS REPORT, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, MERCHANTABILITY 
OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. ALL RISK IS ASSUMED BY USER AND Envirosite assumes no liability for faulty or inaccurate 
information. The Reports may utilize a variety of public and other sources reasonably available to Envirosite. Envirosite cannot, and does not 
assure, warrant, guarantee or assume any liability for the correctness, comprehensiveness, timeliness or completeness of any of such 
information, nor is the information in any Report to be construed as legal advice with respect to environmental risks associated with any 
property. Envirosite shall not be liable to anyone for any claims, causes of action, suits, damages, losses, costs and expenses (including, 
without limitation, attorneys’ fees and costs) arising out of or caused by this report regardless of the acts, errors or omissions, or negligence 
of Envirosite. Any damages shall be limited to the purchase price of the report.

Purchaser of the report accepts the report “As Is”. The report is intended only to provide information only and should not be considered as 
providing any legal advice, prediction, forecast, or fact as to the environmental risk for any specific property. Reports are proprietary to 
Envirosite, and contain copyrighted material and trademarks of Envirosite. All other trademarks used herein are the property of their 
respective owners. All rights of Envirosite as to the Reports are reserved.



Executive Summary 2020

Envirosite Corporation has conducted a search of all reasonably ascertainable records in accordance with EPA’s 
AAI (40 CFR Part 312) requirements and the ASTM E-1527-13 Environmental Site Assessments standard.

SUBJECT PROPERTY INFORMATION:

ADDRESS:
CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.
1715 W Idaho
Boise, ID 83702

COORDINATES:
Latitude (North): 43.621876 - 43°37'18.8"
Longitude (West): -116.214282 - -116°12'51.4"
Universal Transverse Mercator: Zone 11N
UTM X (Meters): 563393.03
UTM Y (Meters): 4830176.77

ELEVATION:
Elevation: 2682.271 ft. above sea level

USGS TOPOGRAPHIC MAP ASSOCIATED WITH SUBJECT PROPERTY:

Subject Property Map: 43116-E2 Boise South, ID
Most Recent Revision: 2017

Page 1 of 1422



Executive Summary by Distance 2020

MAP ID SITE NAME ADDRESS DATABASE(S) RELATIVE 
ELEVATION

DIRECTION / DISTANCE

1 MEADOW GOLD DAIRIES 208 N 17TH ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher E / 0.042 mi.
2 KBCI-TV 140 N 16TH ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher ESE / 0.102 mi.
3 RED LION BOISE DOWNTOWNER 1800 FAIRVIEW ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Lower SW / 0.111 mi.
4 ALS CAR CARE INC GROVE 1645 GROVE ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_VSQG, SHW... Lower S / 0.116 mi.
5 IDAHO REGISTRATION SERVICE CO 2230 W MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Lower W / 0.141 mi.
6 ALSCOTT PROPERTY NE CORNER 17TH ST & FRONT... ALL SITES - ID Lower SSW / 0.149 mi.
A7 EYES OF THE WORLD 1576 W GROVE ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID, SHWS - ID Higher SSE / 0.150 mi.
A8 FORMER ECONOMY CLEANERS AND L... 1576 W GROVE ST ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN Higher SSE / 0.150 mi.
A9 IDAHO TRUST BANK SE CORNER 16 ST & GROVE S... ALL SITES - ID Lower SSE / 0.152 mi.
A10 1576 WEST GROVE 1576 WEST GROVE BROWNFIELDS-ACRES, FED BROWNFIELDS, FRS Lower SSE / 0.152 mi.
A11 DEAN'S GOODYEAR TIRE CENTER 1515 GROVE ST FA - ID, UST - ID Higher SSE / 0.173 mi.
B12 BOISE FIRE STATION #5 212 S 16TH ST FA - ID, UST - ID Lower S / 0.175 mi.
B13 FRONT STREET STATION #22 1600 FRONT FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Lower S / 0.177 mi.
B14 FRONT ST STATION NO 22 1600 FRONT ALL SITES - ID Lower S / 0.177 mi.
B15 BOISE FIRE STATION NO 5 212 S 16TH ST ALL SITES - ID Lower S / 0.177 mi.
A16 DEANS GOODYEAR TIRE CENTER 1515 GROVE ST ALL SITES - ID Higher SSE / 0.185 mi.
B17 MCGUFFIN FUEL & FEED 1601 FRONT ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Lower S / 0.185 mi.
C18 FAIRLY RELIABLE BOB'S 2304 MAIN ST ALT FUELING Lower W / 0.196 mi.
D19 CARTRIDGE WORLD 1786 W. STATE STREET SWRCY - ID Higher NE / 0.203 mi.
C20 FAIRLY RELIABLE BOBS 2304 W MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FA - ID, FRS, LUST - ID, ... Lower W / 0.204 mi.
C21 STINKER STORE #23 2323 W MAIN ST ALT FUELING Lower W / 0.204 mi.
E22 TABLEROCK PRINTING INC S 15TH 216 S 15TH ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher SSE / 0.205 mi.
F23 CCDC 2 1413 W. IDAHO ST. FED BROWNFIELDS, FRS Higher ESE / 0.206 mi.
E24 ALLOWAY LIGHTING 1420 W GROVE ST ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Higher SE / 0.212 mi.
D25 17TH & STATE ST MARKETPLACE NW CORNER OF 17TH & STATE... ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Higher NE / 0.222 mi.
F26 WATERCOOLER BUILDING 1401 W IDAHO ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID Higher ESE / 0.224 mi.
F27 CCDC 1 1401 W. IDAHO ST. FED BROWNFIELDS, FRS Higher ESE / 0.224 mi.
E28 FARM STORE 1414 GROVE ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID, FA - ID, US... Higher SE / 0.224 mi.
E29 FARM STORE - AKA BIG CITY COFFEE 1414 W. GROVE STREET BROWNFIELDS-ACRES, FED BROWNFIELDS Higher SE / 0.224 mi.
E30 THE FARM STORE SITE 1414 W. GROVE STREET FED BROWNFIELDS Higher SE / 0.224 mi.
G31 NORTH END 76 1522 STATE ST FA - ID, UST - ID Higher ENE / 0.237 mi.
G32 JUNG ENTERPRISES 1522 STATE ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, HIST UST - ID Higher ENE / 0.237 mi.
C33 STINKER STORE #23 2323 MAIN FA - ID, UST - ID Lower W / 0.237 mi.
C34 STINKER STATION NO 23 2323 MAIN ALL SITES - ID Lower W / 0.237 mi.
H35 L & L FURNITURE INC 2310 W FAIRVIEW AVE ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Lower WSW / 0.237 mi.
H36 L & L FURNITURE 2310 FAIRVIEW FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Lower WSW / 0.237 mi.
E37 AMERICAN LINEN 1402 GROVE FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher SE / 0.246 mi.
E38 STIENER CORP AMERICAN LINEN 1402 W GROVE ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID, SHWS - ID Higher SE / 0.246 mi.

Page 2 of 1422



Executive Summary by Distance 2020

MAP ID SITE NAME ADDRESS DATABASE(S) RELATIVE 
ELEVATION

DIRECTION / DISTANCE

I39 GALEN BLANC AUTO BODY 503 AMERICANA BLVD ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Lower SSW / 0.255 mi.
E40 STIENER CORP - AMERICAN LINEN 1402 E GROVE ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID, SHWS - ID Higher SE / 0.256 mi.
E41 AMERICAN LINEN 1402 EAST GROVE STREET BROWNFIELDS-ACRES, FED BROWNFIELDS Higher SE / 0.256 mi.
I42 AUTOMATED OFFICE SYSTEMS 1620 W RIVER ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Lower SW / 0.259 mi.
C43 VALLEY GLASS CO 105 N 24TH ST ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Lower W / 0.259 mi.
I44 WHOLESALE BRAKE SUPPLY 521 AMERICANA BLVD ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Lower SSW / 0.259 mi.
J45 STATE ST AUTO REPAIR 1423 W STATE ST ALL SITES - ID Higher E / 0.276 mi.
E46 OAKLEY-MOODY SERVICE INC 1375 WEST GROVE STREET ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Higher SE / 0.280 mi.
J47 CHEVRON USA INC SS 94698 1470 W STATE ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_VSQG, SHW... Higher E / 0.281 mi.
48 7-ELEVEN NO 12976 2050 STATE ST ALL SITES - ID Higher N / 0.282 mi.
K49 IDAHO POWER CO (2) 1301 MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Higher SE / 0.283 mi.
H50 COB 4 2403 W. FAIRVIEW AVENUE FED BROWNFIELDS, FRS Lower WSW / 0.284 mi.
J51 NORTH END CHEVRON 1470 W STATE FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher E / 0.284 mi.
I52 UNION PACIFIC RR CAWD WALLACE 1700 RIVER ST ALL SITES - ID Lower SSW / 0.288 mi.
H53 GILLINGHAM CONSTRUCTION 301 S 24TH ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID, FA - ID, LU... Lower WSW / 0.289 mi.
I54 GOODMAN OIL (E) (BOISE - AMERICAN... 605 AMERICANA BLVD ALL SITES - ID Lower SSW / 0.291 mi.
H55 THOROUGHBRED COLLISION CENTER 308 S 24TH ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Lower WSW / 0.293 mi.
I56 ADAMS PAINT 1522 W RIVER ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Lower SSW / 0.297 mi.
I57 GOODMAN OIL (E) 605 AMERICANA BLVD FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Lower SW / 0.299 mi.
K58 IDAHO POWER CO (4) 1321 MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Higher SE / 0.303 mi.
59 WESTCO MARTINIZING W WASHINGTON 1503 W WASHINGTON ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher ENE / 0.305 mi.
H60 COB 5 2419 W. FAIRVIEW AVENUE FED BROWNFIELDS, FRS Lower W / 0.310 mi.
L61 IDAHO POWER CO PETERSON PARKIN... 1201 W MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RAATS, RCRA_NON... Higher ESE / 0.331 mi.
M62 ORIDA INVESTMENT CORP 219 S 13TH ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Higher SE / 0.338 mi.
N63 SEARS ROEBUCK AND CO 407 N 13TH ST FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher E / 0.349 mi.
N64 SEARS NO 4138 407 N 13TH ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RAATS, RCRA_NON... Higher E / 0.349 mi.
O65 ROUNDTREE LINCOLN MERCURY OLD 2510 W FAIRVIEW AVE (AKA2... ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Lower W / 0.357 mi.
M66 UNION PACIFIC RR (CAPITAL STATION)... 13TH & FRONT ST ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Higher SE / 0.359 mi.
M67 ADA CNTY HWY DIST S 13TH 301 S 13TH ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher SE / 0.360 mi.
68 FORMER URBAN ASCENT 308 S 25TH ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID Lower WSW / 0.362 mi.
M69 FUEL WEST 317 S 13TH ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Higher SSE / 0.364 mi.
O70 SERVICE CITY AUTO PAINT 2541 W FAIRVIEW AVE ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Lower W / 0.367 mi.
M71 TERTIARY INC 1220 FRONT ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher SE / 0.369 mi.
O72 CHARLIES AUTO PAINTING 2555 W FAIRVIEW AVE ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Lower W / 0.376 mi.
L73 IDAHO POWER CO (3) 1218 MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Higher ESE / 0.377 mi.
P74 IDAHO ELECTROPLATING 2518 W MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID Lower W / 0.382 mi.
O75 FORMER BOISE INDEPENDENT SD SITE 2501 W FAIRVIEW AVE ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Lower W / 0.383 mi.
76 GREYHOUND LINES TERMINAL 1212 BANNOCK ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher ESE / 0.385 mi.

Page 3 of 1422



Executive Summary by Distance 2020

MAP ID SITE NAME ADDRESS DATABASE(S) RELATIVE 
ELEVATION

DIRECTION / DISTANCE

L77 PETERSON MOTOR CO 1201 MAIN ST FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher ESE / 0.388 mi.
Q78 HOSAC TOWNHOUSE - CITY SIDE LOFTS 13TH ST AND MYRTLE ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID Higher SSE / 0.395 mi.
P79 CHEVRON USA INC NO 94466 2600 MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID Lower W / 0.397 mi.
R80 CHEVRON USA INC BOISE BULK PLANT 403 S 25TH ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, SHWS - ID Lower WSW / 0.398 mi.
R81 HUNTER OIL CO INC 403 S 25TH ST ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Lower WSW / 0.398 mi.
82 KMART NO 4078 730 AMERICANA BLVD ALL SITES - ID Lower SW / 0.398 mi.
Q83 SABALA BROS & CO 415 S 13TH ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher SSE / 0.401 mi.
84 IDAHO POWER CO (1) 805 S 17TH ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Higher NE / 0.410 mi.
L85 ADA CNTY HWY DIST OWYHEE PLAZA 1109 W MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Higher ESE / 0.414 mi.
86 H & H CAR CARE 1185 W GROVE ST ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Higher SE / 0.417 mi.
S87 THRIFTWAY LUMBER 2619 FAIRVIEW AVE ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Lower W / 0.418 mi.
Q88 TORRANCE FUEL & ICE MYRTLE ST BETWEEN 13TH AN... FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher SSE / 0.425 mi.
Q89 TORRANCE FUEL & ICE MYRTLE ST BETWEEN 13TH &... ALL SITES - ID Higher SSE / 0.425 mi.
S90 ST. LUKE'S R.M.C. (FAIRVIEW) 2619 FAIRVIEW AVE LUST - ID, UST - ID Lower W / 0.429 mi.
T91 HI TECH COLOR 1115 W GROVE ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, HAZNET - CA, RCR... Higher SE / 0.435 mi.
R92 ACHD (OLD) URBAN SHOP 828 S 17TH ST FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Lower WSW / 0.436 mi.
R93 ADA CNTY HWY DIST S 17TH 828 S 17TH ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Lower WSW / 0.436 mi.
S94 TARGET MITSUBISHI 2618 FAIRVIEW ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Lower W / 0.443 mi.
T95 GOODMAN OIL (H) 1101 GROVE FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher SE / 0.453 mi.
T96 ADA CNTY HWY DIST GROVE 1101 GROVE ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher SE / 0.467 mi.
U97 IDAHO INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY 107 W 27TH ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID Lower W / 0.470 mi.
U98 INTEGRA INFORMATION SYSTEMS 101 S 27TH ST ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Lower W / 0.470 mi.
V99 BOISE CITY SHOP 825 S 17TH ST FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Lower WSW / 0.471 mi.
V100 BOISE CITY FLEET SERVICES 825 S 17TH ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Lower WSW / 0.471 mi.
T101 1100 West Front Street 1100 West Front Street FED BROWNFIELDS, FRS, TRIBAL BROWNFIELDS Higher SE / 0.472 mi.
T102 ATWELL MARIE L 1100 W FRONT ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID Higher SE / 0.472 mi.
T103 AAMCO TRANSMISSIONS 217 S 11TH FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher SE / 0.474 mi.
W104 ROCKY MOUNTAIN BANK NOTE 760 S 14TH ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RAATS, RCRA_NON... Lower SSW / 0.475 mi.
U105 FAST FILL CORP 2704 W MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Lower W / 0.476 mi.
106 REACO INC 2700 IDAHO ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Lower W / 0.478 mi.
W107 ROCKY MTN BANK NOTE CO 760 S. 14TH CERCLIS NFRAP, SEMS_8R_ARCHIVED SITES Lower SSW / 0.478 mi.
U108 MAVERIK COUNTRY STORE #205 2710 MAIN ST FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Lower W / 0.479 mi.
U109 MAVERIK COUNTRY STORE NO 205 2710 MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID Lower W / 0.479 mi.
T110 AAMCO TRANSMISSIONS 217 S 11TH ST ALL SITES - ID Higher SE / 0.480 mi.
X111 OLD MIDAS SHOP 277 S 27TH ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID, SHWS - ID Lower WSW / 0.484 mi.
X112 OLD MIDAS SHOP 277 S. 27TH STREET FED BROWNFIELDS, FRS Lower WSW / 0.484 mi.
Y113 INDUSTRIAL INDEMNITY INSURANCE CO 1471 SHORELINE DR ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Lower SW / 0.501 mi.
V114 BOISE FIRE DEPT MAINTENANCE 1791 W SHORELINE DR (1050... ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Lower WSW / 0.510 mi.

Page 4 of 1422



Executive Summary by Distance 2020

MAP ID SITE NAME ADDRESS DATABASE(S) RELATIVE 
ELEVATION

DIRECTION / DISTANCE

115 USPS BOISE VMF 770 S 13TH ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_VSQG, SHW... Lower SSW / 0.512 mi.
Z116 BOISE BUS CO INC 1107 MYRTLE ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher SE / 0.518 mi.
117 HYATT PLACE HOTEL 1024 W BANNOCK ALL SITES - ID Higher ESE / 0.520 mi.
118 BOISE FIRE TRAINING 1050 S 17TH ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Higher NE / 0.523 mi.
BA119 LOUISE NEAL/RUTH MURPHY 1121 MILLER ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Higher SSE / 0.524 mi.
Y120 MCMILLEN JACOBS ASSOCIATES 1401 SHORELINE DR STE 100 ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Lower SW / 0.531 mi.
BB121 TREASURE VALLEY FAMILY YMCA 1050 W STATE ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, SHWS - ID Higher E / 0.537 mi.
BB122 BOISE FAMILY YMCA 1050 W STATE ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, SHWS - ID Higher E / 0.537 mi.
Z123 414 S 11TH ST BOISE 414 S 11TH ST ALL SITES - ID Higher SSE / 0.538 mi.
BA124 IDX PATHOLOGY 1151 W MILLER ST ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Higher SSE / 0.538 mi.
125 MID WESTERN CONTRACTING 2401 STATE ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Lower NW / 0.540 mi.
126 BOISE INDEPENDENT SD BOISE HS 1010 W WASHINGTON ST ALL SITES - ID, BRS, RCRA_VSQG, SHWS - ID Higher E / 0.546 mi.
BC127 ID TRANS DEPT FLETCHER FOSTER SITE 2811 FLETCHER ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Lower WSW / 0.548 mi.
128 COMPTON TRANSFER & STORAGE 1001 W FRONT ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher SE / 0.549 mi.
BC129 ROUNDTREE CHEVROLET INC OLD 2800 W FAIRVIEW AVE ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID, SHWS - ID Lower W / 0.556 mi.
V130 BOISE FIRE DEPT TRAINING & MAINTE... 791 SHOREINE DR ALL SITES - ID Lower WSW / 0.560 mi.
BA131 US EPA LEE ST MERCURY RESPONSE 1125 W LEE ST ALL SITES - ID, BRS, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGE... Higher SSE / 0.562 mi.
BC132 FORMER GOODMAN OIL (BOISE - FLE... 2850 W FLETCHER ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID, ENVCVN - ... Lower WSW / 0.564 mi.
133 BCT INC 954 W JEFFERSON ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher ESE / 0.581 mi.
BD134 SBP GARAGE 1000 W MYRTLE ST ALL SITES - ID Higher SE / 0.596 mi.
135 FLEMING CO 506 S 11TH ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Higher SSE / 0.596 mi.
136 IOOF BLDG 115 1/2 N 9TH ALL SITES - ID Higher ESE / 0.602 mi.
BD137 JUMP 401 S 10TH ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID Higher SE / 0.606 mi.
138 938 W STATE ST 938 W STATE ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID Higher E / 0.609 mi.
139 NORTHWEST PRINTING 3430 AMERICANA TERRACE ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Lower WSW / 0.625 mi.
BE140 419 N 9TH ST 419 N 9TH ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID Higher ESE / 0.628 mi.
141 ALBERTSONS NO 8110 2700 REGAN AVE ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Lower WNW / 0.636 mi.
142 TATES RENTS 2923 W IDAHO ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Lower W / 0.645 mi.
143 CITY CENTRA PLAZA 850 W FRONT ST ALL SITES - ID Higher SE / 0.657 mi.
BE144 STATE ST PARKING LOT SW CORNER OF 8TH & STATE... ALL SITES - ID Higher ESE / 0.675 mi.
145 US GSA BORAH PO 304 N 8TH ST ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Higher ESE / 0.682 mi.
146 TARGET BUICK SUBARU SAAB 3003 W MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Lower W / 0.687 mi.
BE147 415 N 8TH ST 415 N 8TH ST ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Higher ESE / 0.699 mi.
BF148 FOREST RIVER PROPERTY 9TH & W RIVER ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher SSE / 0.706 mi.
149 RESIDUALS MANAGEMENT INC 1107 N 11TH ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher ENE / 0.709 mi.
150 F & M INC 257 N 30TH ST ALL SITES - ID Lower W / 0.711 mi.
151 QUINN ROBBINS CO INC 3017 MADISON AVE ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RAATS, RCRA_NON... Lower WNW / 0.723 mi.
BG152 J C M B WEST ONE BANK AGE 603 N 8TH ST ALL SITES - ID Higher E / 0.726 mi.

Page 5 of 1422



Executive Summary by Distance 2020

MAP ID SITE NAME ADDRESS DATABASE(S) RELATIVE 
ELEVATION

DIRECTION / DISTANCE

BH153 BEKINS MOVE & STORAGE CO 970 RIVER ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher SSE / 0.731 mi.
BH154 ASSOCIATED WAREHOUSE 620 S 9TH ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID, VCP - ID Higher SSE / 0.732 mi.
BI155 TREASURE VALLEY INSTITUTE FOR CH... 1406 EASTMAN ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID, ENVCVN - ... Higher NE / 0.737 mi.
BJ156 MOUNTAIN STATES PRESS INC 503 S 8TH ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher SE / 0.739 mi.
BK157 ALEXANDER CLARK INC 704 W MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher ESE / 0.741 mi.
BG158 MICHAELS AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE 622 N 8TH ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, SHWS - ID Higher E / 0.744 mi.
BK159 WEST ONE BANCORP 101 S CAPITOL BLVD ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher ESE / 0.748 mi.
BL160 HYDE PARK NO 33 1520 N 13TH (13TH & EASTM... ALL SITES - ID Higher NE / 0.748 mi.
BF161 BOISE ORDNEW YORKCE SER COMMA... N/R ALL SITES - ID Higher SSE / 0.750 mi.
BK162 BOISE CITY HALL 150 N CAPITAL BLVD ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Higher ESE / 0.751 mi.
163 BODO PARTNERS 8TH ST ALL SITES - ID Higher SE / 0.752 mi.
BM164 ATT COMMUNICATIONS 218 N CAPITOL BLVD ALL SITES - ID Higher ESE / 0.753 mi.
BI165 TRICA PARKING LOT N/R ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID Higher NE / 0.754 mi.
166 ID ADM STATE CAPITOL BLDG 700 W JEFFERSON ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Higher ESE / 0.754 mi.
BG167 EBS 707 N 8TH ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Higher E / 0.755 mi.
BL168 FORMER CERTIFIED RUG & UPHOLSTE... 1509 N 13TH ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID Higher NE / 0.757 mi.
BJ169 IDAHO LINEN 516 S 8TH ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID, BRS, ECHO... Higher SE / 0.760 mi.
170 LITHIA FORD CHRYSLER OF BOISE 3150 W MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Lower W / 0.763 mi.
BN171 STATE ST GAS 2703 STATE ST ALL SITES - ID Lower NW / 0.764 mi.
BH172 FORMER SHAVERS PROPERTY 707 S 9TH ST ALL SITES - ID Higher SSE / 0.767 mi.
173 AMLIN PROPERTY 3007 WOODLAWN AVE ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Lower WNW / 0.775 mi.
BO174 WATKINS & MCDONALD 4000 W FAIRVIEW AVE ALL SITES - ID Lower W / 0.776 mi.
BM175 ATT BOISE IDMA L52067 619 W BANNOCK ST ALL SITES - ID, DOCKET, ECHO, FRS, SHWS - ID Higher ESE / 0.778 mi.
BO176 WESTERN STATES EQUIPMENT FAIRV... 4009 W FAIRVIEW AVE ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RAATS, RCRA_NON... Higher W / 0.783 mi.
BP177 JACKSONS FOOD STORE NO 36 818 N 8TH ALL SITES - ID Higher E / 0.791 mi.
BQ178 MARRIOTT RESIDENCE INN 420 & 410 S CAPITOL BLVD ALL SITES - ID Higher SE / 0.792 mi.
BR179 CAPITOL LITHOGRAPHY & PRINTING 610 W IDAHO ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher ESE / 0.794 mi.
180 S CAPITOL & GROVE 616 GROVE ALL SITES - ID Higher ESE / 0.798 mi.
BQ181 420 S CAPITOL BLVD 420 S CAPITOL BLVD ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID Higher SE / 0.798 mi.
BN182 MCRAES CLEANERS STATE ST 2753 W STATE ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Lower NW / 0.800 mi.
BK183 AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS 601 W MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher ESE / 0.800 mi.
184 LBJ BLDG 650 W STATE ST ALL SITES - ID Higher ESE / 0.806 mi.
BP185 WESTCO MARTINIZING FORT ST 808 W FORT ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher E / 0.808 mi.
BQ186 JACKSONS FOOD STORE NO 002 505 S CAPITOL BLVD ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Higher SE / 0.808 mi.
BR187 CIVIC CENTER SERVICE (VOLLMERS) 605 IDAHO ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher ESE / 0.816 mi.
188 STINKER STATION NO 32 13TH ST BOISE 1620 N 13TH ST ALL SITES - ID Higher NE / 0.817 mi.
BS189 ESTHER SIMPLOT PARK 625 N WHITEWATER PARK BLV... ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Lower WNW / 0.818 mi.
BP190 BAIRDS DRY CLEANERS N 8TH 902 N 8TH ST ALL SITES - ID, RCRA_NONGEN, SHWS - ID, VC... Higher E / 0.820 mi.

Page 6 of 1422



Executive Summary by Distance 2020

MAP ID SITE NAME ADDRESS DATABASE(S) RELATIVE 
ELEVATION

DIRECTION / DISTANCE

BQ191 FRANKLIN UNITED INC 1 516 S CAPITOL BLVD ALL SITES - ID Higher SE / 0.821 mi.
BN192 ROGERS NORTHSIDE GARAGE 1170 N 29TH ST ALL SITES - ID Lower NW / 0.831 mi.
BO193 LAKE CITY INTL TRUCK FAIRVIEW 4000 W FAIRVIEW AVE (PARC... ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Lower W / 0.834 mi.
BT194 PARKS DEPT BENCH DIVISION 1104 ROYAL BLVD ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher S / 0.836 mi.
BT195 CITY OF BOISE PARKS & RECREATION... 1104 W ROYAL BLVD ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Higher S / 0.836 mi.
BT196 BOISE CITY PARKS & RECREATION DE... 1104 W ROYAL BLVD ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Higher S / 0.836 mi.
BU197 LITHOCRAFT 617 BROAD ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher SE / 0.839 mi.
198 J C M B WEST ONE BANK AGE 917 LUSK ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher SSE / 0.846 mi.
BS199 CONSOLIDATED CONCRETE CO 625 N 31ST ST ALL SITES - ID Lower WNW / 0.847 mi.
BT200 BOISE TERMINAL CO INC 1004 ROYAL BLVD ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher S / 0.858 mi.
BS201 ASPHALT PAVING & CONST CO 3206 PLEASANTON AVE ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Lower WNW / 0.858 mi.
BU202 CLASSIC SIGNS 412 S 6TH ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Higher SE / 0.859 mi.
BT203 SAIA MOTOR FREIGHT LINE INC BOISE 1005 ROYAL BLVD ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher S / 0.862 mi.
BU204 JORDAN-WILCOMB CO 406 S 6TH ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher SE / 0.864 mi.
BV205 STATELL LTD 507 W MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID, ECHO, FRS... Higher ESE / 0.865 mi.
BW206 WATKINS & MCDONALD 3277 W MAIN (SAME AS 4000... ALL SITES - ID Lower W / 0.869 mi.
BX207 PARKING LOT 503 W IDAHO ST 503 W IDAHO ST ALL SITES - ID Higher ESE / 0.878 mi.
BW208 MCDONALD WATKINS 2198 GARDEN ST ALL SITES - ID, BRS, RCRA_NONGEN Lower W / 0.878 mi.
BX209 5TH & IDAHO APARTMENTS 505 W IDAHO ST ALL SITES - ID, BRS, ECHO, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher ESE / 0.887 mi.
BV210 ADDIES RESTAURANT 501 MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID Higher ESE / 0.890 mi.
211 ADA CNTY COURT HOUSE 514 W JEFFERSON ALL SITES - ID Higher ESE / 0.891 mi.
BY212 520 FRONT ST 520 FRONT ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID Higher SE / 0.894 mi.
BY213 518 FRONT ST 518 FRONT ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID Higher SE / 0.895 mi.
214 VACANT WAREHOUSE SE CORNER 5TH & GROVE ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Higher ESE / 0.901 mi.
BY215 504 FRONT ST 504 FRONT ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID Higher SE / 0.904 mi.
BY216 EURASION MOTORS 502 FRONT ST ALL SITES - ID Higher SE / 0.905 mi.
BZ217 AUTO BODY SPECIALISTS INC 1017 LUSK ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher S / 0.906 mi.
218 BOISE CITY PARKS & RECREATION DEPT 625 N WHITEWATER PARK BLV... ALL SITES - ID Lower WNW / 0.911 mi.
BZ219 DIAMOND SIGNS 1025 LUSK ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher S / 0.912 mi.
BV220 BENGOECHEAS SERVICE 420 MAIN ALL SITES - ID Higher ESE / 0.916 mi.
221 PERRYS CAR WASH & BEV 3000 W STATE ST ALL SITES - ID Lower NW / 0.917 mi.
BY222 TENNYSON TRANSFER & STORAGE 502 BR0AD ST ALL SITES - ID Higher SE / 0.918 mi.
CA223 PARKS ROYAL BODY WORKS INC 905 ROYAL BLVD ALL SITES - ID, RCRA_VSQG, SHWS - ID Higher SSE / 0.922 mi.
CA224 ADA CNTY RISK MGMT 914 ROYAL BLVD ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, SHWS - ID Higher SSE / 0.928 mi.
225 BOISE INDEPENDENT SD LOWELL EL... 1507 N 28TH ST ALL SITES - ID, BRS, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGE... Lower NW / 0.930 mi.
226 US GSA FEDERAL BLDG CTHSE BOISE 550 W FORT ST ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Higher E / 0.935 mi.
BV227 BAGEL BAKERY 407 W MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN, S... Higher ESE / 0.942 mi.
228 PETE CENARRUSA BLDG 450 W STATE ST ALL SITES - ID Higher ESE / 0.949 mi.

Page 7 of 1422



Executive Summary by Distance 2020

MAP ID SITE NAME ADDRESS DATABASE(S) RELATIVE 
ELEVATION

DIRECTION / DISTANCE

CB229 ADVANCED ENVIRONMENTAL TECH S... 917 W ISLAND AVE ALL SITES - ID, SHWS - ID Higher S / 0.956 mi.
BV230 SINCLAIR STATION 402 MAIN ST ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher ESE / 0.959 mi.
231 US VA MEDICAL CENTER 500 W FORT ST ALL SITES - ID, BRS, RCRA_SQG, SHWS - ID Higher E / 0.970 mi.
CB232 BOISE WINNEMUCCA STAGES 1105 LAPOINTE ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID Higher S / 0.976 mi.
233 329 W GROVE ST 329 W GROVE ST ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID Higher ESE / 0.978 mi.
234 BOISE CITY PUBLIC WORKS JULIA DAVIS JULIA DAVIS PARK ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, UST - ID Higher SE / 0.989 mi.

Page 8 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

SUBJECT PROPERTY SEARCH RESULTS:

The subject property was not listed in any of the databases searched by Envirosite Corporation.

SEARCH RESULTS:

FEDERAL CERCLIS LIST

CERCLIS NFRAP: The CERCLIS sites with No Further Remedial Action Planned from the CERCLIS program database. The Environmental 
Protection Agency decommissioned the CERCLIS data in 2014. The last update was November 12, 2013. 1 SITE FOUND WITHIN .5 
MILE 

LOWER ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
W107 ROCKY MTN BANK NOTE CO 760 S. 14TH SSW / 0.478 mi. 372

- ID: IDD052430535 Status: NFRAP-Site does not 
qualify for the NPL based 
on existing information

Date: 04/23/1984

SEMS_8R_ARCHIVED SITES: The Archived Site Inventory displays site and location information at sites archived from SEMS. An 
archived site is one at which EPA has determined that assessment has been completed and no further remedial action is planned 
under the Superfund program at this time. 1 SITE FOUND WITHIN .5 MILE 

LOWER ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
W107 ROCKY MTN BANK NOTE CO 760 S. 14TH SSW / 0.478 mi. 372

- ID: 1000197 Status: NFRAP-Site does not 
qualify for the NPL based 
on existing information

Date: N/A

FEDERAL RCRA GENERATORS LIST

RCRA_NONGEN: Resource Conservation and Recovery Act listing of licensed non-generators 4 SITES FOUND WITHIN .25 MILE 

EQUAL/HIGHER  ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
A8 FORMER ECONOMY 

CLEANERS AND LAUNDRY INC
1576 W GROVE ST SSE / 0.150 mi. 57

- ID: IDR000203570 Status: No Violation/Inspections Date: N/A

E22 TABLEROCK PRINTING INC S 
15TH

216 S 15TH ST SSE / 0.205 mi. 96

- ID: IDR000200949 Status: Generators - 
Records/Reporting

Date: Violation 03/12/2003 - 
Achieved Compliance 
03/27/2003

LOWER ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
5 IDAHO REGISTRATION 

SERVICE CO
2230 W MAIN ST W / 0.141 mi. 51

- ID: IDD073011793 Status: No Violation/Inspections Date: N/A

H35 L & L FURNITURE INC 2310 W FAIRVIEW AVE WSW / 0.237 mi. 148

- ID: ID0000097204 Status: No Violation/Inspections Date: N/A

Page 9 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

FEDERAL RCRA GENERATORS LIST (cont.)

RCRA_VSQG: Resource Conservation and Recovery Act listing of licensed very small quantity generators. 2 SITES FOUND WITHIN .
25 MILE 

LOWER ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
4 ALS CAR CARE INC GROVE 1645 GROVE ST S / 0.116 mi. 46

- ID: IDR000205252 Status: No Violation/Inspections Date: N/A

C20 FAIRLY RELIABLE BOBS 2304 W MAIN ST W / 0.204 mi. 84

- ID: ID0000853465 Status: No Violation/Inspections Date: N/A

STATE AND TRIBAL REGISTERED STORAGE TANK LISTS

HIST UST - ID: List of underground storage tank that is no longer in current agency list. 1 SITE FOUND WITHIN .25 MILE 

EQUAL/HIGHER  ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
G32 JUNG ENTERPRISES 1522 STATE ST ENE / 0.237 mi. 134

- ID: 3-010219 Status: Active Date: N/A

UST - ID: Underground storage tank listing 13 SITES FOUND WITHIN .25 MILE 

EQUAL/HIGHER  ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
1 MEADOW GOLD DAIRIES 208 N 17TH ST E / 0.042 mi. 34

- ID: Facility ID 3-010096 Status: Facility Status Closure Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010096*1 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010096*2 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010096*3 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010096*4 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A

2 KBCI-TV 140 N 16TH ST ESE / 0.102 mi. 38

- ID: Facility ID 3-010740 Status: Facility Status Closure Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010740*1 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010740*2 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010740*3 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010740*4 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A

There are an additional 3 status records, see site details.

A11 DEAN'S GOODYEAR TIRE 
CENTER

1515 GROVE ST SSE / 0.173 mi. 67

- ID: Facility ID 3-010081 Status: Facility Status Closure Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010081*1 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010081*2 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A

E28 FARM STORE 1414 GROVE SE / 0.224 mi. 109

- ID: Facility ID 3-010270 Status: Facility Status Closure Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010270*1 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010270*2 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010270*3 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010270*4 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A

There are an additional 3 status records, see site details.

G31 NORTH END 76 1522 STATE ST ENE / 0.237 mi. 129

- ID: Facility ID 3-010219 Status: Facility Status Active Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010219*1 Status: Currently In Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010219*2M Status: Currently In Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010219*3M Status: Currently In Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010219*4 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A

Page 10 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

STATE AND TRIBAL REGISTERED STORAGE TANK LISTS (cont.)

UST - ID: Underground storage tank listing 13 SITES FOUND WITHIN .25 MILE 

EQUAL/HIGHER  ELEVATION (cont.)

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
E37 AMERICAN LINEN 1402 GROVE SE / 0.246 mi. 154

- ID: Facility ID 3-010122 Status: Facility Status Closure Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010122*1 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010122*2 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A

LOWER ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
3 RED LION BOISE 

DOWNTOWNER
1800 FAIRVIEW SW / 0.111 mi. 43

- ID: Facility ID 3-010738 Status: Facility Status Closure Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010738*1 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A

B12 BOISE FIRE STATION #5 212 S 16TH ST S / 0.175 mi. 70

- ID: Facility ID 3-010029 Status: Facility Status Closure Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010029*1 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A

B13 FRONT STREET STATION #22 1600 FRONT S / 0.177 mi. 73

- ID: Facility ID 3-010044 Status: Facility Status Closure Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010044*1 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010044*2 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010044*3 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010044*4 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A

There are an additional 3 status records, see site details.

B17 MCGUFFIN FUEL & FEED 1601 FRONT ST S / 0.185 mi. 79

- ID: Facility ID 3-010500 Status: Facility Status Closure Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010500*1 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010500*2 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010500*3 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010500*4 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A

C20 FAIRLY RELIABLE BOBS 2304 W MAIN ST W / 0.204 mi. 84

- ID: Facility ID 3-010726 Status: Facility Status Closure Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010726*1 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010726*10 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010726*2 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010726*3 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A

There are an additional 6 status records, see site details.

C33 STINKER STORE #23 2323 MAIN W / 0.237 mi. 139

- ID: Facility ID 3-010024 Status: Facility Status Active Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010024*1M Status: Currently In Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010024*2M Status: Currently In Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010024*3 Status: Currently In Use Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010024*4 Status: Currently In Use Date: N/A

There are an additional 2 status records, see site details.

H36 L & L FURNITURE 2310 FAIRVIEW WSW / 0.237 mi. 152

- ID: Facility ID 3-010781 Status: Facility Status Closure Date: N/A
- ID: Tank Number 3-010781*1 Status: Permanently Out of Use Date: N/A

Page 11 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

STATE AND TRIBAL LEAKING STORAGE TANK LISTS

LUST - ID: Leaking underground storage tank sites listing 25 SITES FOUND WITHIN .5 MILE 

EQUAL/HIGHER  ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
1 MEADOW GOLD DAIRIES 208 N 17TH ST E / 0.042 mi. 34

- ID: 1239 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
02/09/2002

2 KBCI-TV 140 N 16TH ST ESE / 0.102 mi. 38

- ID: 503 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
09/01/1996

E37 AMERICAN LINEN 1402 GROVE SE / 0.246 mi. 154

- ID: 1246 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
09/17/2004

J51 NORTH END CHEVRON 1470 W STATE E / 0.284 mi. 190

- ID: 446 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
03/01/1993

N63 SEARS ROEBUCK AND CO 407 N 13TH ST E / 0.349 mi. 238

- ID: 474 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
05/01/1994

M71 TERTIARY INC 1220 FRONT ST SE / 0.369 mi. 262

- ID: 490 Status: Confirmed Release Date: Cleanup Date 
06/30/1992

76 GREYHOUND LINES TERMINAL 1212 BANNOCK ST ESE / 0.385 mi. 279

- ID: 458 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
10/01/1992

L77 PETERSON MOTOR CO 1201 MAIN ST ESE / 0.388 mi. 283

- ID: 285 Status: Confirmed Release Date: Cleanup Date 
06/30/1992

Q83 SABALA BROS & CO 415 S 13TH SSE / 0.401 mi. 292

- ID: 478 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
11/07/1995

Q88 TORRANCE FUEL & ICE MYRTLE ST BETWEEN 13TH 
AND 11TH

SSE / 0.425 mi. 303

- ID: 926 Status: Confirmed Release Date: Cleanup Date 
06/30/1992

T95 GOODMAN OIL (H) 1101 GROVE SE / 0.453 mi. 327

- ID: 502 Status: Confirmed Release Date: Cleanup Date 
08/01/1995

T103 AAMCO TRANSMISSIONS 217 S 11TH SE / 0.474 mi. 358

- ID: 1235 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
05/04/2001

LOWER ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
3 RED LION BOISE 

DOWNTOWNER
1800 FAIRVIEW SW / 0.111 mi. 43

- ID: 501 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
01/13/1997

Page 12 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

STATE AND TRIBAL LEAKING STORAGE TANK LISTS (cont.)

LUST - ID: Leaking underground storage tank sites listing 25 SITES FOUND WITHIN .5 MILE 

LOWER ELEVATION (cont.)

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
B13 FRONT STREET STATION #22 1600 FRONT S / 0.177 mi. 73

- ID: 7 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
09/11/2001

B17 MCGUFFIN FUEL & FEED 1601 FRONT ST S / 0.185 mi. 79

- ID: 347 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
03/10/1998

C20 FAIRLY RELIABLE BOBS 2304 W MAIN ST W / 0.204 mi. 84

- ID: 499 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
10/15/1994

H36 L & L FURNITURE 2310 FAIRVIEW WSW / 0.237 mi. 152

- ID: 932 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
05/15/1994

H53 GILLINGHAM CONSTRUCTION 301 S 24TH ST WSW / 0.289 mi. 197

- ID: 1172 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
01/09/2003

I57 GOODMAN OIL (E) 605 AMERICANA BLVD SW / 0.299 mi. 212

- ID: 1090 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
02/17/1999

S87 THRIFTWAY LUMBER 2619 FAIRVIEW AVE W / 0.418 mi. 300

- ID: 1100 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
04/18/2000

S90 ST. LUKE'S R.M.C. (FAIRVIEW) 2619 FAIRVIEW AVE W / 0.429 mi. 307

- ID: 1100 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
04/18/2000

R92 ACHD (OLD) URBAN SHOP 828 S 17TH ST WSW / 0.436 mi. 315

- ID: 314 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
11/01/1992

U97 IDAHO INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY 107 W 27TH ST W / 0.470 mi. 334

- ID: 928 Status: Confirmed Release Date: Cleanup Date 
06/30/1992

V99 BOISE CITY SHOP 825 S 17TH ST WSW / 0.471 mi. 335

- ID: 292 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
03/01/1993

U108 MAVERIK COUNTRY STORE 
#205

2710 MAIN ST W / 0.479 mi. 375

- ID: 2272 Status: Site Cleanup Completed Date: Cleanup Date 
11/30/2015

STATE AND TRIBAL BROWNFIELD SITES

TRIBAL BROWNFIELDS: Tribal brownfield remediation site listing 1 SITE FOUND WITHIN .5 MILE 

EQUAL/HIGHER  ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
T101 1100 West Front Street 1100 West Front Street SE / 0.472 mi. 344

- ID: 124927 Status: N/A Date: N/R

Page 13 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

STATE AND TRIBAL BROWNFIELD SITES (cont.)

BROWNFIELDS - ID: Listing of brownfield remediation sites 10 SITES FOUND WITHIN .5 MILE 

EQUAL/HIGHER  ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
A7 EYES OF THE WORLD 1576 W GROVE ST SSE / 0.150 mi. 56
F26 WATERCOOLER BUILDING 1401 W IDAHO ST ESE / 0.224 mi. 105
E28 FARM STORE 1414 GROVE SE / 0.224 mi. 109
E38 STIENER CORP AMERICAN 

LINEN
1402 W GROVE ST SE / 0.246 mi. 157

E40 STIENER CORP - AMERICAN 
LINEN

1402 E GROVE ST SE / 0.256 mi. 163

Q78 HOSAC TOWNHOUSE - CITY 
SIDE LOFTS

13TH ST AND MYRTLE SSE / 0.395 mi. 286

T102 ATWELL MARIE L 1100 W FRONT ST SE / 0.472 mi. 358

LOWER ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
H53 GILLINGHAM CONSTRUCTION 301 S 24TH ST WSW / 0.289 mi. 197
68 FORMER URBAN ASCENT 308 S 25TH ST WSW / 0.362 mi. 253
X111 OLD MIDAS SHOP 277 S 27TH ST WSW / 0.484 mi. 381

STATE- AND TRIBAL - EQUIVALENT CERCLIS

SHWS - ID: State hazardous waste sites 90 SITES FOUND WITHIN 1 MILE 

EQUAL/HIGHER  ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
A7 EYES OF THE WORLD 1576 W GROVE ST SSE / 0.150 mi. 56
E22 TABLEROCK PRINTING INC S 

15TH
216 S 15TH ST SSE / 0.205 mi. 96

E24 ALLOWAY LIGHTING 1420 W GROVE ST SE / 0.212 mi. 104
D25 17TH & STATE ST 

MARKETPLACE
NW CORNER OF 17TH & 
STATE ST

NE / 0.222 mi. 104

E38 STIENER CORP AMERICAN 
LINEN

1402 W GROVE ST SE / 0.246 mi. 157

E40 STIENER CORP - AMERICAN 
LINEN

1402 E GROVE ST SE / 0.256 mi. 163

E46 OAKLEY-MOODY SERVICE INC 1375 WEST GROVE STREET SE / 0.280 mi. 177
J47 CHEVRON USA INC SS 94698 1470 W STATE ST E / 0.281 mi. 178
59 WESTCO MARTINIZING W 

WASHINGTON
1503 W WASHINGTON ST ENE / 0.305 mi. 218

L61 IDAHO POWER CO PETERSON 
PARKING LOT

1201 W MAIN ST ESE / 0.331 mi. 228

N64 SEARS NO 4138 407 N 13TH ST E / 0.349 mi. 242
M66 UNION PACIFIC RR (CAPITAL 

STATION) BOISE
13TH & FRONT ST SE / 0.359 mi. 248

M67 ADA CNTY HWY DIST S 13TH 301 S 13TH ST SE / 0.360 mi. 249
L85 ADA CNTY HWY DIST OWYHEE 

PLAZA
1109 W MAIN ST ESE / 0.414 mi. 298

86 H & H CAR CARE 1185 W GROVE ST SE / 0.417 mi. 299
T91 HI TECH COLOR 1115 W GROVE ST SE / 0.435 mi. 309
T96 ADA CNTY HWY DIST GROVE 1101 GROVE ST SE / 0.467 mi. 329
BB121 TREASURE VALLEY FAMILY 

YMCA
1050 W STATE ST E / 0.537 mi. 407

BB122 BOISE FAMILY YMCA 1050 W STATE ST E / 0.537 mi. 409
BA124 IDX PATHOLOGY 1151 W MILLER ST SSE / 0.538 mi. 412
126 BOISE INDEPENDENT SD 

BOISE HS
1010 W WASHINGTON ST E / 0.546 mi. 415

128 COMPTON TRANSFER & 
STORAGE

1001 W FRONT ST SE / 0.549 mi. 425

BA131 US EPA LEE ST MERCURY 
RESPONSE

1125 W LEE ST SSE / 0.562 mi. 430

Page 14 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

STATE- AND TRIBAL - EQUIVALENT CERCLIS (cont.)

SHWS - ID: State hazardous waste sites 90 SITES FOUND WITHIN 1 MILE 

EQUAL/HIGHER  ELEVATION (cont.)

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
133 BCT INC 954 W JEFFERSON ST ESE / 0.581 mi. 438
145 US GSA BORAH PO 304 N 8TH ST ESE / 0.682 mi. 458
BE147 415 N 8TH ST 415 N 8TH ST ESE / 0.699 mi. 463
149 RESIDUALS MANAGEMENT INC 1107 N 11TH ST ENE / 0.709 mi. 467
BJ156 MOUNTAIN STATES PRESS INC 503 S 8TH ST SE / 0.739 mi. 483
BK157 ALEXANDER CLARK INC 704 W MAIN ST ESE / 0.741 mi. 487
BG158 MICHAELS AUTOMOTIVE 

SERVICE
622 N 8TH ST E / 0.744 mi. 491

BK159 WEST ONE BANCORP 101 S CAPITOL BLVD ESE / 0.748 mi. 494
166 ID ADM STATE CAPITOL BLDG 700 W JEFFERSON ESE / 0.754 mi. 504
BJ169 IDAHO LINEN 516 S 8TH ST SE / 0.760 mi. 508
BM175 ATT BOISE IDMA L52067 619 W BANNOCK ST ESE / 0.778 mi. 521
BO176 WESTERN STATES 

EQUIPMENT FAIRVIEW AVE
4009 W FAIRVIEW AVE W / 0.783 mi. 631

BR179 CAPITOL LITHOGRAPHY & 
PRINTING

610 W IDAHO ST ESE / 0.794 mi. 637

BK183 AMERICAN NATIONAL RED 
CROSS

601 W MAIN ST ESE / 0.800 mi. 647

BP185 WESTCO MARTINIZING FORT 
ST

808 W FORT ST E / 0.808 mi. 651

BQ186 JACKSONS FOOD STORE NO 
002

505 S CAPITOL BLVD SE / 0.808 mi. 655

BP190 BAIRDS DRY CLEANERS N 8TH 902 N 8TH ST E / 0.820 mi. 663
BT195 CITY OF BOISE PARKS & 

RECREATION DEPT BENCH 
DIVISION

1104 W ROYAL BLVD S / 0.836 mi. 671

BT196 BOISE CITY PARKS & 
RECREATION DEPT BENCH 
DIVISION

1104 W ROYAL BLVD S / 0.836 mi. 671

BU197 LITHOCRAFT 617 BROAD ST SE / 0.839 mi. 672
BT203 SAIA MOTOR FREIGHT LINE 

INC BOISE
1005 ROYAL BLVD S / 0.862 mi. 690

BV205 STATELL LTD 507 W MAIN ST ESE / 0.865 mi. 698
BX209 5TH & IDAHO APARTMENTS 505 W IDAHO ST ESE / 0.887 mi. 708
BZ217 AUTO BODY SPECIALISTS INC 1017 LUSK ST S / 0.906 mi. 720
BZ219 DIAMOND SIGNS 1025 LUSK ST S / 0.912 mi. 727
CA223 PARKS ROYAL BODY WORKS 

INC
905 ROYAL BLVD SSE / 0.922 mi. 732

CA224 ADA CNTY RISK MGMT 914 ROYAL BLVD SSE / 0.928 mi. 736
226 US GSA FEDERAL BLDG 

CTHSE BOISE
550 W FORT ST E / 0.935 mi. 745

BV227 BAGEL BAKERY 407 W MAIN ST ESE / 0.942 mi. 745
CB229 ADVANCED ENVIRONMENTAL 

TECH SERVICES
917 W ISLAND AVE S / 0.956 mi. 750

231 US VA MEDICAL CENTER 500 W FORT ST E / 0.970 mi. 755

LOWER ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
4 ALS CAR CARE INC GROVE 1645 GROVE ST S / 0.116 mi. 46
5 IDAHO REGISTRATION 

SERVICE CO
2230 W MAIN ST W / 0.141 mi. 51

C20 FAIRLY RELIABLE BOBS 2304 W MAIN ST W / 0.204 mi. 84
H35 L & L FURNITURE INC 2310 W FAIRVIEW AVE WSW / 0.237 mi. 148
I39 GALEN BLANC AUTO BODY 503 AMERICANA BLVD SSW / 0.255 mi. 159
I42 AUTOMATED OFFICE SYSTEMS 1620 W RIVER ST SW / 0.259 mi. 169
C43 VALLEY GLASS CO 105 N 24TH ST W / 0.259 mi. 173
H55 THOROUGHBRED COLLISION 

CENTER
308 S 24TH ST WSW / 0.293 mi. 203

I56 ADAMS PAINT 1522 W RIVER ST SSW / 0.297 mi. 208

Page 15 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

STATE- AND TRIBAL - EQUIVALENT CERCLIS (cont.)

SHWS - ID: State hazardous waste sites 90 SITES FOUND WITHIN 1 MILE 

LOWER ELEVATION (cont.)

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
O65 ROUNDTREE LINCOLN 

MERCURY OLD
2510 W FAIRVIEW AVE 
(AKA2510 MAIN ST)

W / 0.357 mi. 248

O70 SERVICE CITY AUTO PAINT 2541 W FAIRVIEW AVE W / 0.367 mi. 258
O72 CHARLIES AUTO PAINTING 2555 W FAIRVIEW AVE W / 0.376 mi. 266
O75 FORMER BOISE INDEPENDENT 

SD SITE
2501 W FAIRVIEW AVE W / 0.383 mi. 275

R80 CHEVRON USA INC BOISE 
BULK PLANT

403 S 25TH ST WSW / 0.398 mi. 288

R81 HUNTER OIL CO INC 403 S 25TH ST WSW / 0.398 mi. 290
R93 ADA CNTY HWY DIST S 17TH 828 S 17TH ST WSW / 0.436 mi. 320
U98 INTEGRA INFORMATION 

SYSTEMS
101 S 27TH ST W / 0.470 mi. 335

V100 BOISE CITY FLEET SERVICES 825 S 17TH ST WSW / 0.471 mi. 339
W104 ROCKY MOUNTAIN BANK NOTE 760 S 14TH ST SSW / 0.475 mi. 361
X111 OLD MIDAS SHOP 277 S 27TH ST WSW / 0.484 mi. 381
Y113 INDUSTRIAL INDEMNITY 

INSURANCE CO
1471 SHORELINE DR SW / 0.501 mi. 385

V114 BOISE FIRE DEPT 
MAINTENANCE

1791 W SHORELINE DR (1050 
S 17TH ST)

WSW / 0.510 mi. 389

115 USPS BOISE VMF 770 S 13TH ST SSW / 0.512 mi. 390
Y120 MCMILLEN JACOBS 

ASSOCIATES
1401 SHORELINE DR STE 100 SW / 0.531 mi. 406

BC127 ID TRANS DEPT FLETCHER 
FOSTER SITE

2811 FLETCHER ST WSW / 0.548 mi. 421

BC129 ROUNDTREE CHEVROLET INC 
OLD

2800 W FAIRVIEW AVE W / 0.556 mi. 428

139 NORTHWEST PRINTING 3430 AMERICANA TERRACE WSW / 0.625 mi. 447
141 ALBERTSONS NO 8110 2700 REGAN AVE WNW / 0.636 mi. 453
146 TARGET BUICK SUBARU SAAB 3003 W MAIN ST W / 0.687 mi. 459
151 QUINN ROBBINS CO INC 3017 MADISON AVE WNW / 0.723 mi. 472
170 LITHIA FORD CHRYSLER OF 

BOISE
3150 W MAIN ST W / 0.763 mi. 518

173 AMLIN PROPERTY 3007 WOODLAWN AVE WNW / 0.775 mi. 520
BN182 MCRAES CLEANERS STATE ST 2753 W STATE ST NW / 0.800 mi. 642
BS189 ESTHER SIMPLOT PARK 625 N WHITEWATER PARK 

BLVD
WNW / 0.818 mi. 662

BO193 LAKE CITY INTL TRUCK 
FAIRVIEW

4000 W FAIRVIEW AVE 
(PARCEL A); SAME AS 2198 
GARDEN ST

W / 0.834 mi. 666

225 BOISE INDEPENDENT SD 
LOWELL ELEMENTARY

1507 N 28TH ST NW / 0.930 mi. 739

LOCAL BROWNFIELD LISTS

BROWNFIELDS-ACRES: EPA Brownfields Assessment, Cleanup and Redevelopment Exchange System. 3 SITES FOUND WITHIN .5 
MILE 

EQUAL/HIGHER  ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
E29 FARM STORE - AKA BIG CITY 

COFFEE
1414 W. GROVE STREET SE / 0.224 mi. 114

E41 AMERICAN LINEN 1402 EAST GROVE STREET SE / 0.256 mi. 164

LOWER ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
A10 1576 WEST GROVE 1576 WEST GROVE SSE / 0.152 mi. 61

Page 16 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

LOCAL BROWNFIELD LISTS (cont.)

FED BROWNFIELDS: Federal brownfield remediation sites 10 SITES FOUND WITHIN .5 MILE 

EQUAL/HIGHER  ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
F23 CCDC 2 1413 W. IDAHO ST. ESE / 0.206 mi. 101

- ID: 178227 Status: N/A Date: N/R

F27 CCDC 1 1401 W. IDAHO ST. ESE / 0.224 mi. 106

- ID: 178226 Status: N/A Date: N/R

E29 FARM STORE - AKA BIG CITY 
COFFEE

1414 W. GROVE STREET SE / 0.224 mi. 114

- ID: 48581 Status: N/A Date: N/R

E30 THE FARM STORE SITE 1414 W. GROVE STREET SE / 0.224 mi. 126

- ID: 48581 Status: N/A Date: N/R

E41 AMERICAN LINEN 1402 EAST GROVE STREET SE / 0.256 mi. 164

- ID: 26181 Status: N/A Date: N/R

T101 1100 West Front Street 1100 West Front Street SE / 0.472 mi. 344

- ID: 124927 Status: N/A Date: N/R

LOWER ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
A10 1576 WEST GROVE 1576 WEST GROVE SSE / 0.152 mi. 61

- ID: 18924 Status: N/A Date: N/R

H50 COB 4 2403 W. FAIRVIEW AVENUE WSW / 0.284 mi. 186

- ID: 178224 Status: N/A Date: N/R

H60 COB 5 2419 W. FAIRVIEW AVENUE W / 0.310 mi. 223

- ID: 178225 Status: N/A Date: N/R

X112 OLD MIDAS SHOP 277 S. 27TH STREET WSW / 0.484 mi. 382

- ID: 225301 Status: N/A Date: N/R

LOCAL LISTS OF LANDFILL / SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITES

SWRCY - ID: Recycling facility listing 1 SITE FOUND WITHIN .5 MILE 

EQUAL/HIGHER  ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
D19 CARTRIDGE WORLD 1786 W. STATE STREET NE / 0.203 mi. 84

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS

ALT FUELING: Alternative Fueling Stations by fuel type. 2 SITES FOUND WITHIN .25 MILE 

LOWER ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
C18 FAIRLY RELIABLE BOB'S 2304 MAIN ST W / 0.196 mi. 83
C21 STINKER STORE #23 2323 W MAIN ST W / 0.204 mi. 95

ALL SITES - ID: Listing of all remediation sites 201 SITES FOUND WITHIN 1 MILE 

EQUAL/HIGHER  ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
1 MEADOW GOLD DAIRIES 208 N 17TH ST E / 0.042 mi. 34

Page 17 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS (cont.)

ALL SITES - ID: Listing of all remediation sites 201 SITES FOUND WITHIN 1 MILE 

EQUAL/HIGHER  ELEVATION (cont.)

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
2 KBCI-TV 140 N 16TH ST ESE / 0.102 mi. 38
A7 EYES OF THE WORLD 1576 W GROVE ST SSE / 0.150 mi. 56
A16 DEANS GOODYEAR TIRE 

CENTER
1515 GROVE ST SSE / 0.185 mi. 78

E22 TABLEROCK PRINTING INC S 
15TH

216 S 15TH ST SSE / 0.205 mi. 96

E24 ALLOWAY LIGHTING 1420 W GROVE ST SE / 0.212 mi. 104
D25 17TH & STATE ST 

MARKETPLACE
NW CORNER OF 17TH & 
STATE ST

NE / 0.222 mi. 104

F26 WATERCOOLER BUILDING 1401 W IDAHO ST ESE / 0.224 mi. 105
E28 FARM STORE 1414 GROVE SE / 0.224 mi. 109
G32 JUNG ENTERPRISES 1522 STATE ST ENE / 0.237 mi. 134
E38 STIENER CORP AMERICAN 

LINEN
1402 W GROVE ST SE / 0.246 mi. 157

E40 STIENER CORP - AMERICAN 
LINEN

1402 E GROVE ST SE / 0.256 mi. 163

J45 STATE ST AUTO REPAIR 1423 W STATE ST E / 0.276 mi. 177
E46 OAKLEY-MOODY SERVICE INC 1375 WEST GROVE STREET SE / 0.280 mi. 177
J47 CHEVRON USA INC SS 94698 1470 W STATE ST E / 0.281 mi. 178
48 7-ELEVEN NO 12976 2050 STATE ST N / 0.282 mi. 182
K49 IDAHO POWER CO (2) 1301 MAIN ST SE / 0.283 mi. 183
K58 IDAHO POWER CO (4) 1321 MAIN ST SE / 0.303 mi. 216
59 WESTCO MARTINIZING W 

WASHINGTON
1503 W WASHINGTON ST ENE / 0.305 mi. 218

L61 IDAHO POWER CO PETERSON 
PARKING LOT

1201 W MAIN ST ESE / 0.331 mi. 228

M62 ORIDA INVESTMENT CORP 219 S 13TH SE / 0.338 mi. 235
N64 SEARS NO 4138 407 N 13TH ST E / 0.349 mi. 242
M66 UNION PACIFIC RR (CAPITAL 

STATION) BOISE
13TH & FRONT ST SE / 0.359 mi. 248

M67 ADA CNTY HWY DIST S 13TH 301 S 13TH ST SE / 0.360 mi. 249
M69 FUEL WEST 317 S 13TH ST SSE / 0.364 mi. 254
M71 TERTIARY INC 1220 FRONT ST SE / 0.369 mi. 262
L73 IDAHO POWER CO (3) 1218 MAIN ST ESE / 0.377 mi. 270
76 GREYHOUND LINES TERMINAL 1212 BANNOCK ST ESE / 0.385 mi. 279
Q78 HOSAC TOWNHOUSE - CITY 

SIDE LOFTS
13TH ST AND MYRTLE SSE / 0.395 mi. 286

Q83 SABALA BROS & CO 415 S 13TH SSE / 0.401 mi. 292
84 IDAHO POWER CO (1) 805 S 17TH NE / 0.410 mi. 295
L85 ADA CNTY HWY DIST OWYHEE 

PLAZA
1109 W MAIN ST ESE / 0.414 mi. 298

86 H & H CAR CARE 1185 W GROVE ST SE / 0.417 mi. 299
Q89 TORRANCE FUEL & ICE MYRTLE ST BETWEEN 13TH & 

11TH
SSE / 0.425 mi. 306

T91 HI TECH COLOR 1115 W GROVE ST SE / 0.435 mi. 309
T96 ADA CNTY HWY DIST GROVE 1101 GROVE ST SE / 0.467 mi. 329
T102 ATWELL MARIE L 1100 W FRONT ST SE / 0.472 mi. 358
T110 AAMCO TRANSMISSIONS 217 S 11TH ST SE / 0.480 mi. 381
Z116 BOISE BUS CO INC 1107 MYRTLE SE / 0.518 mi. 395
117 HYATT PLACE HOTEL 1024 W BANNOCK ESE / 0.520 mi. 399
118 BOISE FIRE TRAINING 1050 S 17TH ST NE / 0.523 mi. 399
BA119 LOUISE NEAL/RUTH MURPHY 1121 MILLER SSE / 0.524 mi. 402
BB121 TREASURE VALLEY FAMILY 

YMCA
1050 W STATE ST E / 0.537 mi. 407

BB122 BOISE FAMILY YMCA 1050 W STATE ST E / 0.537 mi. 409
Z123 414 S 11TH ST BOISE 414 S 11TH ST SSE / 0.538 mi. 412
BA124 IDX PATHOLOGY 1151 W MILLER ST SSE / 0.538 mi. 412
126 BOISE INDEPENDENT SD 

BOISE HS
1010 W WASHINGTON ST E / 0.546 mi. 415

Page 18 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS (cont.)

ALL SITES - ID: Listing of all remediation sites 201 SITES FOUND WITHIN 1 MILE 

EQUAL/HIGHER  ELEVATION (cont.)

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
128 COMPTON TRANSFER & 

STORAGE
1001 W FRONT ST SE / 0.549 mi. 425

BA131 US EPA LEE ST MERCURY 
RESPONSE

1125 W LEE ST SSE / 0.562 mi. 430

133 BCT INC 954 W JEFFERSON ST ESE / 0.581 mi. 438
BD134 SBP GARAGE 1000 W MYRTLE ST SE / 0.596 mi. 442
135 FLEMING CO 506 S 11TH SSE / 0.596 mi. 442
136 IOOF BLDG 115 1/2 N 9TH ESE / 0.602 mi. 445
BD137 JUMP 401 S 10TH ST SE / 0.606 mi. 446
138 938 W STATE ST 938 W STATE ST E / 0.609 mi. 446
BE140 419 N 9TH ST 419 N 9TH ST ESE / 0.628 mi. 452
143 CITY CENTRA PLAZA 850 W FRONT ST SE / 0.657 mi. 457
BE144 STATE ST PARKING LOT SW CORNER OF 8TH & STATE 

ST
ESE / 0.675 mi. 458

145 US GSA BORAH PO 304 N 8TH ST ESE / 0.682 mi. 458
BE147 415 N 8TH ST 415 N 8TH ST ESE / 0.699 mi. 463
BF148 FOREST RIVER PROPERTY 9TH & W RIVER SSE / 0.706 mi. 463
149 RESIDUALS MANAGEMENT INC 1107 N 11TH ST ENE / 0.709 mi. 467
BG152 J C M B WEST ONE BANK AGE 603 N 8TH ST E / 0.726 mi. 477
BH153 BEKINS MOVE & STORAGE CO 970 RIVER ST SSE / 0.731 mi. 477
BH154 ASSOCIATED WAREHOUSE 620 S 9TH ST SSE / 0.732 mi. 481
BI155 TREASURE VALLEY INSTITUTE 

FOR CHILDRENS ARTS (TRICA)
1406 EASTMAN ST NE / 0.737 mi. 482

BJ156 MOUNTAIN STATES PRESS INC 503 S 8TH ST SE / 0.739 mi. 483
BK157 ALEXANDER CLARK INC 704 W MAIN ST ESE / 0.741 mi. 487
BG158 MICHAELS AUTOMOTIVE 

SERVICE
622 N 8TH ST E / 0.744 mi. 491

BK159 WEST ONE BANCORP 101 S CAPITOL BLVD ESE / 0.748 mi. 494
BL160 HYDE PARK NO 33 1520 N 13TH (13TH & 

EASTMAN)
NE / 0.748 mi. 498

BF161 BOISE ORDNEW YORKCE SER 
COMMAND SHOP

SSE / 0.750 mi. 498

BK162 BOISE CITY HALL 150 N CAPITAL BLVD ESE / 0.751 mi. 499
163 BODO PARTNERS 8TH ST SE / 0.752 mi. 502
BM164 ATT COMMUNICATIONS 218 N CAPITOL BLVD ESE / 0.753 mi. 502
BI165 TRICA PARKING LOT NE / 0.754 mi. 503
166 ID ADM STATE CAPITOL BLDG 700 W JEFFERSON ESE / 0.754 mi. 504
BG167 EBS 707 N 8TH ST E / 0.755 mi. 504
BL168 FORMER CERTIFIED RUG & 

UPHOLSTERY SERVICE
1509 N 13TH ST NE / 0.757 mi. 507

BJ169 IDAHO LINEN 516 S 8TH ST SE / 0.760 mi. 508
BH172 FORMER SHAVERS PROPERTY 707 S 9TH ST SSE / 0.767 mi. 519
BM175 ATT BOISE IDMA L52067 619 W BANNOCK ST ESE / 0.778 mi. 521
BO176 WESTERN STATES 

EQUIPMENT FAIRVIEW AVE
4009 W FAIRVIEW AVE W / 0.783 mi. 631

BP177 JACKSONS FOOD STORE NO 
36

818 N 8TH E / 0.791 mi. 636

BQ178 MARRIOTT RESIDENCE INN 420 & 410 S CAPITOL BLVD SE / 0.792 mi. 637
BR179 CAPITOL LITHOGRAPHY & 

PRINTING
610 W IDAHO ST ESE / 0.794 mi. 637

180 S CAPITOL & GROVE 616 GROVE ESE / 0.798 mi. 641
BQ181 420 S CAPITOL BLVD 420 S CAPITOL BLVD SE / 0.798 mi. 642
BK183 AMERICAN NATIONAL RED 

CROSS
601 W MAIN ST ESE / 0.800 mi. 647

184 LBJ BLDG 650 W STATE ST ESE / 0.806 mi. 651
BP185 WESTCO MARTINIZING FORT 

ST
808 W FORT ST E / 0.808 mi. 651

BQ186 JACKSONS FOOD STORE NO 
002

505 S CAPITOL BLVD SE / 0.808 mi. 655

Page 19 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS (cont.)

ALL SITES - ID: Listing of all remediation sites 201 SITES FOUND WITHIN 1 MILE 

EQUAL/HIGHER  ELEVATION (cont.)

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
BR187 CIVIC CENTER SERVICE 

(VOLLMERS)
605 IDAHO ST ESE / 0.816 mi. 656

188 STINKER STATION NO 32 
13TH ST BOISE

1620 N 13TH ST NE / 0.817 mi. 661

BP190 BAIRDS DRY CLEANERS N 8TH 902 N 8TH ST E / 0.820 mi. 663
BQ191 FRANKLIN UNITED INC 1 516 S CAPITOL BLVD SE / 0.821 mi. 665
BT194 PARKS DEPT BENCH DIVISION 1104 ROYAL BLVD S / 0.836 mi. 667
BT195 CITY OF BOISE PARKS & 

RECREATION DEPT BENCH 
DIVISION

1104 W ROYAL BLVD S / 0.836 mi. 671

BT196 BOISE CITY PARKS & 
RECREATION DEPT BENCH 
DIVISION

1104 W ROYAL BLVD S / 0.836 mi. 671

BU197 LITHOCRAFT 617 BROAD ST SE / 0.839 mi. 672
198 J C M B WEST ONE BANK AGE 917 LUSK SSE / 0.846 mi. 677
BT200 BOISE TERMINAL CO INC 1004 ROYAL BLVD S / 0.858 mi. 680
BU202 CLASSIC SIGNS 412 S 6TH ST SE / 0.859 mi. 687
BT203 SAIA MOTOR FREIGHT LINE 

INC BOISE
1005 ROYAL BLVD S / 0.862 mi. 690

BU204 JORDAN-WILCOMB CO 406 S 6TH ST SE / 0.864 mi. 695
BV205 STATELL LTD 507 W MAIN ST ESE / 0.865 mi. 698
BX207 PARKING LOT 503 W IDAHO ST 503 W IDAHO ST ESE / 0.878 mi. 703
BX209 5TH & IDAHO APARTMENTS 505 W IDAHO ST ESE / 0.887 mi. 708
BV210 ADDIES RESTAURANT 501 MAIN ST ESE / 0.890 mi. 713
211 ADA CNTY COURT HOUSE 514 W JEFFERSON ESE / 0.891 mi. 714
BY212 520 FRONT ST 520 FRONT ST SE / 0.894 mi. 714
BY213 518 FRONT ST 518 FRONT ST SE / 0.895 mi. 715
214 VACANT WAREHOUSE SE CORNER 5TH & GROVE ESE / 0.901 mi. 716
BY215 504 FRONT ST 504 FRONT ST SE / 0.904 mi. 719
BY216 EURASION MOTORS 502 FRONT ST SE / 0.905 mi. 720
BZ217 AUTO BODY SPECIALISTS INC 1017 LUSK ST S / 0.906 mi. 720
BZ219 DIAMOND SIGNS 1025 LUSK ST S / 0.912 mi. 727
BV220 BENGOECHEAS SERVICE 420 MAIN ESE / 0.916 mi. 731
BY222 TENNYSON TRANSFER & 

STORAGE
502 BR0AD ST SE / 0.918 mi. 732

CA223 PARKS ROYAL BODY WORKS 
INC

905 ROYAL BLVD SSE / 0.922 mi. 732

CA224 ADA CNTY RISK MGMT 914 ROYAL BLVD SSE / 0.928 mi. 736
226 US GSA FEDERAL BLDG 

CTHSE BOISE
550 W FORT ST E / 0.935 mi. 745

BV227 BAGEL BAKERY 407 W MAIN ST ESE / 0.942 mi. 745
228 PETE CENARRUSA BLDG 450 W STATE ST ESE / 0.949 mi. 750
CB229 ADVANCED ENVIRONMENTAL 

TECH SERVICES
917 W ISLAND AVE S / 0.956 mi. 750

BV230 SINCLAIR STATION 402 MAIN ST ESE / 0.959 mi. 751
231 US VA MEDICAL CENTER 500 W FORT ST E / 0.970 mi. 755
CB232 BOISE WINNEMUCCA STAGES 1105 LAPOINTE S / 0.976 mi. 765
233 329 W GROVE ST 329 W GROVE ST ESE / 0.978 mi. 771
234 BOISE CITY PUBLIC WORKS 

JULIA DAVIS
JULIA DAVIS PARK SE / 0.989 mi. 771

LOWER ELEVATION

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
3 RED LION BOISE 

DOWNTOWNER
1800 FAIRVIEW SW / 0.111 mi. 43

4 ALS CAR CARE INC GROVE 1645 GROVE ST S / 0.116 mi. 46
5 IDAHO REGISTRATION 

SERVICE CO
2230 W MAIN ST W / 0.141 mi. 51

Page 20 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS (cont.)

ALL SITES - ID: Listing of all remediation sites 201 SITES FOUND WITHIN 1 MILE 

LOWER ELEVATION (cont.)

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
6 ALSCOTT PROPERTY NE CORNER 17TH ST & FRONT 

ST
SSW / 0.149 mi. 55

A9 IDAHO TRUST BANK SE CORNER 16 ST & GROVE ST SSE / 0.152 mi. 60
B14 FRONT ST STATION NO 22 1600 FRONT S / 0.177 mi. 77
B15 BOISE FIRE STATION NO 5 212 S 16TH ST S / 0.177 mi. 78
B17 MCGUFFIN FUEL & FEED 1601 FRONT ST S / 0.185 mi. 79
C20 FAIRLY RELIABLE BOBS 2304 W MAIN ST W / 0.204 mi. 84
C34 STINKER STATION NO 23 2323 MAIN W / 0.237 mi. 147
H35 L & L FURNITURE INC 2310 W FAIRVIEW AVE WSW / 0.237 mi. 148
I39 GALEN BLANC AUTO BODY 503 AMERICANA BLVD SSW / 0.255 mi. 159
I42 AUTOMATED OFFICE SYSTEMS 1620 W RIVER ST SW / 0.259 mi. 169
C43 VALLEY GLASS CO 105 N 24TH ST W / 0.259 mi. 173
I44 WHOLESALE BRAKE SUPPLY 521 AMERICANA BLVD SSW / 0.259 mi. 173
I52 UNION PACIFIC RR CAWD 

WALLACE
1700 RIVER ST SSW / 0.288 mi. 197

H53 GILLINGHAM CONSTRUCTION 301 S 24TH ST WSW / 0.289 mi. 197
I54 GOODMAN OIL (E) (BOISE - 

AMERICANA BLVD)
605 AMERICANA BLVD SSW / 0.291 mi. 202

H55 THOROUGHBRED COLLISION 
CENTER

308 S 24TH ST WSW / 0.293 mi. 203

I56 ADAMS PAINT 1522 W RIVER ST SSW / 0.297 mi. 208
O65 ROUNDTREE LINCOLN 

MERCURY OLD
2510 W FAIRVIEW AVE 
(AKA2510 MAIN ST)

W / 0.357 mi. 248

68 FORMER URBAN ASCENT 308 S 25TH ST WSW / 0.362 mi. 253
O70 SERVICE CITY AUTO PAINT 2541 W FAIRVIEW AVE W / 0.367 mi. 258
O72 CHARLIES AUTO PAINTING 2555 W FAIRVIEW AVE W / 0.376 mi. 266
P74 IDAHO ELECTROPLATING 2518 W MAIN ST W / 0.382 mi. 274
O75 FORMER BOISE INDEPENDENT 

SD SITE
2501 W FAIRVIEW AVE W / 0.383 mi. 275

P79 CHEVRON USA INC NO 94466 2600 MAIN ST W / 0.397 mi. 287
R80 CHEVRON USA INC BOISE 

BULK PLANT
403 S 25TH ST WSW / 0.398 mi. 288

R81 HUNTER OIL CO INC 403 S 25TH ST WSW / 0.398 mi. 290
82 KMART NO 4078 730 AMERICANA BLVD SW / 0.398 mi. 291
S87 THRIFTWAY LUMBER 2619 FAIRVIEW AVE W / 0.418 mi. 300
R93 ADA CNTY HWY DIST S 17TH 828 S 17TH ST WSW / 0.436 mi. 320
S94 TARGET MITSUBISHI 2618 FAIRVIEW W / 0.443 mi. 324
U97 IDAHO INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY 107 W 27TH ST W / 0.470 mi. 334
U98 INTEGRA INFORMATION 

SYSTEMS
101 S 27TH ST W / 0.470 mi. 335

V100 BOISE CITY FLEET SERVICES 825 S 17TH ST WSW / 0.471 mi. 339
W104 ROCKY MOUNTAIN BANK NOTE 760 S 14TH ST SSW / 0.475 mi. 361
U105 FAST FILL CORP 2704 W MAIN ST W / 0.476 mi. 366
106 REACO INC 2700 IDAHO ST W / 0.478 mi. 369
U109 MAVERIK COUNTRY STORE 

NO 205
2710 MAIN ST W / 0.479 mi. 380

X111 OLD MIDAS SHOP 277 S 27TH ST WSW / 0.484 mi. 381
Y113 INDUSTRIAL INDEMNITY 

INSURANCE CO
1471 SHORELINE DR SW / 0.501 mi. 385

V114 BOISE FIRE DEPT 
MAINTENANCE

1791 W SHORELINE DR (1050 
S 17TH ST)

WSW / 0.510 mi. 389

115 USPS BOISE VMF 770 S 13TH ST SSW / 0.512 mi. 390
Y120 MCMILLEN JACOBS 

ASSOCIATES
1401 SHORELINE DR STE 100 SW / 0.531 mi. 406

125 MID WESTERN CONTRACTING 2401 STATE ST NW / 0.540 mi. 413
BC127 ID TRANS DEPT FLETCHER 

FOSTER SITE
2811 FLETCHER ST WSW / 0.548 mi. 421

BC129 ROUNDTREE CHEVROLET INC 
OLD

2800 W FAIRVIEW AVE W / 0.556 mi. 428

Page 21 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS (cont.)

ALL SITES - ID: Listing of all remediation sites 201 SITES FOUND WITHIN 1 MILE 

LOWER ELEVATION (cont.)

MAP ID SITE NAME SITE ADDRESS DIRECTION/DISTANCE PAGE
V130 BOISE FIRE DEPT TRAINING & 

MAINTENANCE CENTER
791 SHOREINE DR WSW / 0.560 mi. 430

BC132 FORMER GOODMAN OIL 
(BOISE - FLETCHER STREET)

2850 W FLETCHER ST WSW / 0.564 mi. 436

139 NORTHWEST PRINTING 3430 AMERICANA TERRACE WSW / 0.625 mi. 447
141 ALBERTSONS NO 8110 2700 REGAN AVE WNW / 0.636 mi. 453
142 TATES RENTS 2923 W IDAHO ST W / 0.645 mi. 454
146 TARGET BUICK SUBARU SAAB 3003 W MAIN ST W / 0.687 mi. 459
150 F & M INC 257 N 30TH ST W / 0.711 mi. 472
151 QUINN ROBBINS CO INC 3017 MADISON AVE WNW / 0.723 mi. 472
170 LITHIA FORD CHRYSLER OF 

BOISE
3150 W MAIN ST W / 0.763 mi. 518

BN171 STATE ST GAS 2703 STATE ST NW / 0.764 mi. 519
173 AMLIN PROPERTY 3007 WOODLAWN AVE WNW / 0.775 mi. 520
BO174 WATKINS & MCDONALD 4000 W FAIRVIEW AVE W / 0.776 mi. 521
BN182 MCRAES CLEANERS STATE ST 2753 W STATE ST NW / 0.800 mi. 642
BS189 ESTHER SIMPLOT PARK 625 N WHITEWATER PARK 

BLVD
WNW / 0.818 mi. 662

BN192 ROGERS NORTHSIDE GARAGE 1170 N 29TH ST NW / 0.831 mi. 666
BO193 LAKE CITY INTL TRUCK 

FAIRVIEW
4000 W FAIRVIEW AVE 
(PARCEL A); SAME AS 2198 
GARDEN ST

W / 0.834 mi. 666

BS199 CONSOLIDATED CONCRETE 
CO

625 N 31ST ST WNW / 0.847 mi. 680

BS201 ASPHALT PAVING & CONST CO 3206 PLEASANTON AVE WNW / 0.858 mi. 684
BW206 WATKINS & MCDONALD 3277 W MAIN (SAME AS 4000 

FAIRVIEW PARCEL B)
W / 0.869 mi. 703

BW208 MCDONALD WATKINS 2198 GARDEN ST W / 0.878 mi. 704
218 BOISE CITY PARKS & 

RECREATION DEPT
625 N WHITEWATER PARK 
BLVD

WNW / 0.911 mi. 726

221 PERRYS CAR WASH & BEV 3000 W STATE ST NW / 0.917 mi. 732
225 BOISE INDEPENDENT SD 

LOWELL ELEMENTARY
1507 N 28TH ST NW / 0.930 mi. 739

Following sites were unable to be mapped.

SITE NAME: ADDRESS, CITY, ZIP: DATABASE(S):

Not Reported 337 NORTH 17TH STREET APT. # 205 ... HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 53 S MAIN ST STAR HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 1112 WEST MAIN STREET BOISE HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 3499 FAIRVIEW AVE AND N EAGLE. HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported FAIRVIEW AVE AND 5-MILE IN BOISE. HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 6811 FAIRVIEW AVE BOISE HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 11193 WEST EMERALD ST. BOISE IDAHO HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 13900 SOUTH PLEASANT VALLEY ROAD KU... HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported GOWEN FIELD IDAHO HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported IDAHO DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 9TH STREET BETWEEN IDAHO AND FRONT HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 2314 MOBILE DR. BOISE IDAHO HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 1501 IRENE ST. BOISE IDAHO HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 5075 DAKOTA BOISE IDAHO HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 1612 N 6TH ST BOISE IDAHO HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 1700 EAST YAMHILL RD.- BOISE IDAHO HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 190 E BANNOCK BOISE IDAHO HIST SPILLS - ID

Page 22 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

Following sites were unable to be mapped. (cont.)

SITE NAME: ADDRESS, CITY, ZIP: DATABASE(S):

Not Reported 2000 MILLENIUM WAY MERIDIAN IDAHO HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 2110 UNIVERSITY DRIVE BOISE IDAHO HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 2575 BAYOU BAR WAY MERIDIAN IDAHO HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 2987 N. HAMLET STAR IDAHO HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 515 W. STATE STREET BOISE IDAHO HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 6015 MOOSE CREEK MERIDIAN IDAHO HIST SPILLS - ID

Not Reported 6350 FAIRVIEW BOISE IDAHO HIST SPILLS - ID

17TH AND STATE ST MARKETPLACE NW CORNER OF 17TH AND STA..., BOISE ... BRS, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN

CAPITAL STATION BETWEEN 10TH & 13TH ST, BOISE 83702 CERCLIS-HIST, FRS, SEMS_8R_ARCHIVED SITES

H-2018-00204 IDAHO STATE CAPITAL SPILLS - ID

H-2019-00160 10434 W FAIRVIEW AVE SPILLS - ID

IDOC IDAHO ST CORRECTIONAL INST (ISCI) N/R ECHO, FRS

SOUTH MAPLE GROVE STAKE CENTER N/R ECHO, FRS

DATABASE(S)  WITH NO MAPPED SITES:

FEDERAL RCRA NON-CORRACTS TSD FACILITIES LIST
ARCHIVED RCRA TSDF Archived Resource Conservation and Recovery Act: Treatment Storage 

and Disposal Facilities
RCRA_TSDF Resource Conservation and Recovery Act: Treatment  Storage and 

Disposal Facilities

FEDERAL CERCLIS LIST
CERCLIS-HIST Comprehensive Environmental Response  Compensation and Liability Act
FEDERAL FACILITY Federal Facility sites
SEMS_8R_ACTIVE SITES Sites on SEMS Active Site Inventory

FEDERAL RCRA CORRACTS FACILITIES LIST
CORRACTS Hazardous Waste Corrective Action
HIST CORRACTS 2 Historical Hazardous Waste Corrective Action

FEDERAL DELISTED NPL SITE LIST
DELISTED NPL Delisted National Priority List
DELISTED PROPOSED NPL Delisted proposed National Priority List
SEMS_DELETED NPL Sites Deleted from National Priorities List

FEDERAL LANDFILL AND/OR SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITE LISTS
EPA LF MOP EPA Landfill Methane Outreach Project Database

FEDERAL ERNS LIST
ERNS Emergency Response Notification System

FEDERAL RCRA GENERATORS LIST
HIST RCRA_CESQG Historical Resource Conservation and Recovery Act_Conditionally Exempt 

Small Quantity Generators
HIST RCRA_LQG Historical Resource Conservation and Recovery Act_ Large Quantity 

Generators
HIST RCRA_NONGEN Historical Resource Conservation and Recovery Act_Non Generators
HIST RCRA_SQG Historical Resource Conservation and Recovery Act_Small Quantity 

Generators
RCRA_LQG Resource Conservation and Recovery Act_ Large Quantity Generators
RCRA_SQG Resource Conservation and Recovery Act_Small Quantity Generators

FEDERAL NPL SITE LIST
NPL National Priority List
NPL EPA R1 GIS GIS for EPA Region 1 NPL

Page 23 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

FEDERAL NPL SITE LIST (cont.)
NPL EPA R3 GIS GIS for EPA Region 3 NPL
NPL EPA R6 GIS GIS for EPA Region 6 NPL
NPL EPA R8 GIS GIS for EPA Region 8 NPL
NPL EPA R9 GIS GIS for EPA Region 9 NPL
PART NPL Part National Priority List
PROPOSED NPL Proposed National Priority List
SEMS_FINAL NPL Sites included on the Final National Priorities List
SEMS_PROPOSED NPL Sites Proposed to be Added to the National Priorities List

FEDERAL INSTITUTIONAL CONTROLS / ENGINEERING CONTROLS REGISTRIES
RCRA IC_EC RCRA sites with Institutional and Engineering Controls
FED E C Engineering Controls
FED I C Institutional Controls

STATE AND TRIBAL REGISTERED STORAGE TANK LISTS
FEMA UST FEMA Underground Storage Tanks
INDIAN UST R1 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 1
INDIAN UST R10 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 10
INDIAN UST R2 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 2
INDIAN UST R4 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 4
INDIAN UST R5 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 5
INDIAN UST R6 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 6
INDIAN UST R7 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 7
INDIAN UST R8 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 8
INDIAN UST R9 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 9

STATE AND TRIBAL LEAKING STORAGE TANK LISTS
INDIAN LUST R1 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 1
INDIAN LUST R10 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 10
INDIAN LUST R2 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 2
INDIAN LUST R4 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 4
INDIAN LUST R5 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 5
INDIAN LUST R6 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 6
INDIAN LUST R7 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 7
INDIAN LUST R8 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 8
INDIAN LUST R9 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 9

STATE AND TRIBAL LANDFILL AND/OR SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITE LISTS
HIST LF - ID Idaho Historical Landfills
SWF 2 - ID Solid Waste Facilities
SWF CLOSED - ID Closed Solid Waste Facilities and Landfills
SWF/LF - ID Solid Waste Facilities and Landfills

STATE AND TRIBAL VOLUNTARY CLEANUP SITES
VCP - ID Voluntary Cleanup Program

LOCAL LISTS OF HAZARDOUS WASTE / CONTAMINATED SITES
FED CDL DOJ Clandestine Drug Labs
US HIST CDL Historical Clandestine Drug Labs
CDL - ID Clandestine Drug Labs
HIST CDL - ID Historical Clandestine Drug Labs

LOCAL LISTS OF LANDFILL / SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITES
HIST INDIAN ODI R8 Historical Open Dump Inventory
INDIAN ODI R8 Open Dump Inventory
ODI Open Dump Inventory
TRIBAL ODI Indian Open Dump Inventory Sites
HIST SWRCY - ID Historical Recycling Facilities
SWTIRE - ID Waste Tire Collection Sites

Page 24 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

RECORDS OF EMERGENCY RELEASE REPORTS
HMIRS (DOT) Hazardous Materials Information Reporting Systems
HIST SPILLS - ID Historical Spills
SPILLS - ID Spills

LOCAL LAND RECORDS
LIENS 2 CERCLA Lien Information

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS
AFS Air Facility Systems
BRS Biennial Reporting Systems
CDC HAZDAT Hazardous Substance Release and Health Effects Information
COAL ASH DOE Coal Ash: Department of Energy
COAL ASH EPA Coal Ash: Environmental Protection Agency
COAL GAS Coal Gas Plants
CONSENT (DECREES) Superfund Consent Decree
DEBRIS R5 LF Disaster Debris Landfill Data
DEBRIS R5 SWRCY Disaster Debris Recovery Data
DOD Department of Defense
DOT OPS Department of Transportation Office of Pipeline Safety
ECHO EPA Enforcement and Compliance History Online
ENOI Electronic Notice of Intent
EPA FUELS EPA Fuels Registration, Reporting, and Compliance List
EPA OSC EPA On-Site Coordinator
EPA WATCH EPA Watch List
FA HWF Financial Assurance for Hazardous Waste Facilities
FEDLAND Federal Lands
FRS Facility Index Systems
FTTS FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System
FTTS INSP FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System: Inspections
FUDS Formerly Used Defense Sites
HIST AFS Historical Air Facility Systems
HIST AFS 2 Historical Air Facility Systems
HIST DOD Department of Defense historical sites
HIST LEAD_SMELTER Historical Lead Smelter Sites
HIST MLTS Historical Material Licensing Tracking Systems
HIST PCB TRANS Historical Polychlorinated Biphenyl (PCB) Facilities
HIST PCS ENF Historical Enforced Permit Compliance Facilities
HIST PCS FACILITY Historical Permit Compliance Facilities
HIST SSTS Historical Section 7 Tracking Systems
HWC DOCKET Hazardous Waste Compliance Docket
ICIS Integrated Compliance Information System
INACTIVE PCS Inactive Permit Compliance Facilities
INDIAN RESERVATION Indian Reservations
LUCIS Land Use Control Information Systems
LUCIS 2 Land Use Control Information Systems 2
MINES Mines
MINES USGS Mines list from USGS
MLTS Material Licensing Tracking Systems
NPL AOC Areas related to NPL remediation sites
NPL LIENS National Priority List Liens
OSHA Occupational Safety & Health Administration
PADS PCB Activity Database Systems
PCB TRANSFORMER Polychlorinated Biphenyl (PCB) Waste
PCS ENF Enforced Permit Compliance Facilities
PCS FACILITY Permit Compliance Facilities
RAATS RCRA Administrative Action Tracking Systems
RADINFO Radiation Information Systems
RMP Risk Management Plans

Page 25 of 1422



Executive Summary by Database 2020

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS (cont.)
ROD Record of Decision
SCRD DRYCLEANERS SCRD Drycleaners
SEMS_SMELTER Sites on SEMS Potential Smelter Activity
SSTS Section 7 Tracking Systems
STORMWATER Storm Water Permits
TOSCA-PLANT Toxic Substance Control Act: Plants
TRIS Toxic Release Inventory Systems
UMTRA Uranium Mill Tailing Sites
VAPOR EPA Vapor Intrusion
CORRECTIVE ACTIONS_2020 Wastes - Hazardous Waste - Corrective Action
AIRS - ID Air Permits
DAYCARE - ID Daycares
DRYCLEANERS - ID Drycleaners
ENVCVN - ID Environmental Covenants
FA - ID Financial Assurance
FA 2 - ID Financial Assurance
T 2 - ID Tier 2
UIC - ID Underground Injection Control

Page 26 of 1422



Property Proximity Map 2020

SUBJECT NAME: CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP. PREPARED FOR: CAS & Associates
ADDRESS: 1715 W Idaho, Boise, ID, 83702 ORDER #: 41444
LAT/LONG: 43.621876 / -116.214282 REPORT DATE: May 18, 2020

1

2

A

D

E

F

G

J

48

K

59

L
M

N

76

Q

84

86
T

Z

117

118

BA

BB

126

128

133

BD
135

136

138
BE

143

145

BF

149

BG

BH

BI

BJ

BK

BL

163

BM

166

BO

BP

BQ

BR
180

184

188

BT

BU

198

BV

BX

211

BY

214

BZ CA

226

228

CB

231

233

234

3
4

5

6
B

C

H

I

O

68

P

R

82

S

U

V

W

106

X

Y
115

125

BC

139

141

142

146

150

151

170

BN

173
BS

BW

218

221

225

Subject Property Equal/Higher Elevation Lower Elevation CDC HAZDAT (No Data)

Department of Defense (No Data) DFIRM Floodzone 100 DFIRM Floodzone 500 Federal Lands (No Data)

FEMA FloodZone 100 FEMA FloodZone 500 Historical DOD (No Data) Indian Reservation (No Data)

National Priority List (No Data) NWI 

Page 27 of 1422



Area Map 2020

SUBJECT NAME: CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP. PREPARED FOR: CAS & Associates
ADDRESS: 1715 W Idaho, Boise, ID, 83702 ORDER #: 41444
LAT/LONG: 43.621876 / -116.214282 REPORT DATE: May 18, 2020

1

2

A

A

D19

E

F

D25

G

E

J

E46

K

L61

M62

L

3

4

5

6

B

CC

H

I

I42

C43

H50

I

H

Subject Property Equal/Higher Elevation Lower Elevation CDC HAZDAT (No Data)

Department of Defense (No Data) DFIRM Floodzone 100 DFIRM Floodzone 500 Federal Lands (No Data)

FEMA FloodZone 100 FEMA FloodZone 500 Historical DOD (No Data) Indian Reservation (No Data)

National Priority List (No Data) NWI 

Page 28 of 1422



Map Findings Summary 2020

DATABASE
SUBJECT 

PROPERTY

SEARCH 
DISTANCE
(MILES) <1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 >1

TOTAL 
MAPPED

FEDERAL RCRA NON-CORRACTS TSD FACILITIES LIST

ARCHIVED RCRA TSDF 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

RCRA_TSDF 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

FEDERAL CERCLIS LIST

CERCLIS NFRAP 0.500 0 0 1 -- -- 1

CERCLIS-HIST 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

FEDERAL FACILITY 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

SEMS_8R_ACTIVE SITES 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

SEMS_8R_ARCHIVED SITES 0.500 0 0 1 -- -- 1

FEDERAL RCRA CORRACTS FACILITIES LIST

CORRACTS 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

HIST CORRACTS 2 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

FEDERAL DELISTED NPL SITE LIST

DELISTED NPL 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

DELISTED PROPOSED NPL 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

SEMS_DELETED NPL 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

FEDERAL LANDFILL AND/OR SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITE LISTS

EPA LF MOP 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

FEDERAL ERNS LIST

ERNS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

FEDERAL RCRA GENERATORS LIST

HIST RCRA_CESQG 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

HIST RCRA_LQG 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

HIST RCRA_NONGEN 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

HIST RCRA_SQG 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

RCRA_LQG 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

RCRA_NONGEN 0.250 0 4 -- -- -- 4

RCRA_SQG 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

RCRA_VSQG 0.250 1 1 -- -- -- 2

FEDERAL NPL SITE LIST

NPL 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

NPL EPA R1 GIS 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

NPL EPA R3 GIS 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

NPL EPA R6 GIS 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

Page 29 of 1422



Map Findings Summary 2020

DATABASE
SUBJECT 

PROPERTY

SEARCH 
DISTANCE
(MILES) <1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 >1

TOTAL 
MAPPED

FEDERAL NPL SITE LIST (cont.)

NPL EPA R8 GIS 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

NPL EPA R9 GIS 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

PART NPL 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

PROPOSED NPL 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

SEMS_FINAL NPL 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

SEMS_PROPOSED NPL 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

FEDERAL INSTITUTIONAL CONTROLS / ENGINEERING CONTROLS REGISTRIES

RCRA IC_EC 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

FED E C 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

FED I C 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

STATE AND TRIBAL REGISTERED STORAGE TANK LISTS

FEMA UST 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

INDIAN UST R1 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

INDIAN UST R10 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

INDIAN UST R2 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

INDIAN UST R4 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

INDIAN UST R5 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

INDIAN UST R6 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

INDIAN UST R7 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

INDIAN UST R8 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

INDIAN UST R9 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

HIST UST - ID 0.250 0 1 -- -- -- 1

UST - ID 0.250 3 10 -- -- -- 13

STATE AND TRIBAL LEAKING STORAGE TANK LISTS

INDIAN LUST R1 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

INDIAN LUST R10 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

INDIAN LUST R2 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

INDIAN LUST R4 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

INDIAN LUST R5 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

INDIAN LUST R6 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

INDIAN LUST R7 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

INDIAN LUST R8 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

INDIAN LUST R9 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

LUST - ID 0.500 3 5 17 -- -- 25

Page 30 of 1422



Map Findings Summary 2020

DATABASE
SUBJECT 

PROPERTY

SEARCH 
DISTANCE
(MILES) <1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 >1

TOTAL 
MAPPED

STATE AND TRIBAL BROWNFIELD SITES

TRIBAL BROWNFIELDS 0.500 0 0 1 -- -- 1

BROWNFIELDS - ID 0.500 0 4 6 -- -- 10

STATE AND TRIBAL LANDFILL AND/OR SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITE LISTS

HIST LF - ID 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

SWF 2 - ID 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

SWF CLOSED - ID 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

SWF/LF - ID 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

STATE- AND TRIBAL - EQUIVALENT CERCLIS

SHWS - ID 1.000 1 8 28 53 -- 90

STATE AND TRIBAL VOLUNTARY CLEANUP SITES

VCP - ID 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

LOCAL BROWNFIELD LISTS

BROWNFIELDS-ACRES 0.500 0 2 1 -- -- 3

FED BROWNFIELDS 0.500 0 5 5 -- -- 10

LOCAL LISTS OF HAZARDOUS WASTE / CONTAMINATED SITES

FED CDL SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

US HIST CDL SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

CDL - ID SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

HIST CDL - ID SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

LOCAL LISTS OF LANDFILL / SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITES

HIST INDIAN ODI R8 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

INDIAN ODI R8 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

ODI 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

TRIBAL ODI 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

HIST SWRCY - ID 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

SWRCY - ID 0.500 0 1 0 -- -- 1

SWTIRE - ID 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

RECORDS OF EMERGENCY RELEASE REPORTS

HMIRS (DOT) SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

HIST SPILLS - ID 0.125 0 -- -- -- -- 0

SPILLS - ID 0.125 0 -- -- -- -- 0

Page 31 of 1422



Map Findings Summary 2020

DATABASE
SUBJECT 

PROPERTY

SEARCH 
DISTANCE
(MILES) <1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 >1

TOTAL 
MAPPED

LOCAL LAND RECORDS

LIENS 2 SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS

AFS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

ALT FUELING 0.250 0 2 -- -- -- 2

BRS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

CDC HAZDAT 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

COAL ASH DOE 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

COAL ASH EPA 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

COAL GAS 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

CONSENT (DECREES) 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

DEBRIS R5 LF 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

DEBRIS R5 SWRCY 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

DOD 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

DOT OPS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

ECHO SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

ENOI SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

EPA FUELS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

EPA OSC 0.125 0 -- -- -- -- 0

EPA WATCH SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

FA HWF SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

FEDLAND 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

FRS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

FTTS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

FTTS INSP SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

FUDS 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

HIST AFS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

HIST AFS 2 SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

HIST DOD 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

HIST LEAD_SMELTER SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

HIST MLTS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

HIST PCB TRANS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

HIST PCS ENF SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

HIST PCS FACILITY SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

HIST SSTS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

HWC DOCKET SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

ICIS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

Page 32 of 1422



Map Findings Summary 2020

DATABASE
SUBJECT 

PROPERTY

SEARCH 
DISTANCE
(MILES) <1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 >1

TOTAL 
MAPPED

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS (cont.)

INACTIVE PCS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

INDIAN RESERVATION 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

LUCIS 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

LUCIS 2 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

MINES 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

MINES USGS 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

MLTS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

NPL AOC 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

NPL LIENS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

OSHA SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

PADS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

PCB TRANSFORMER SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

PCS ENF SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

PCS FACILITY SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

RAATS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

RADINFO SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

RMP 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

ROD 1.000 0 0 0 0 -- 0

SCRD DRYCLEANERS 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

SEMS_SMELTER SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

SSTS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

STORMWATER SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

TOSCA-PLANT SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

TRIS SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

UMTRA 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

VAPOR 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

CORRECTIVE ACTIONS_2020 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

AIRS - ID SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

ALL SITES - ID 1.000 4 18 57 122 -- 201

DAYCARE - ID SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

DRYCLEANERS - ID 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

ENVCVN - ID 0.500 0 0 0 -- -- 0

FA - ID SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

FA 2 - ID SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

T 2 - ID 0.250 0 0 -- -- -- 0

UIC - ID SP 0 -- -- -- -- 0

Page 33 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 1
Direction: E
Distance: 0.042 mi.
Actual: 222.317 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.927 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 11209185
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : MEADOW GOLD DAIRIES

208 N 17TH ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - 
ID]

ALL SITES - ID

Facility Name : MEADOW GOLD DAIRIES
Facility Address : 208 N 17TH ST, BOISE
County : Ada

Reference ID : 7007
Box Number : 2011BAZ4353
Program : Leaking Underground Storage Tanks
All Programs for Site : Leaking Underground Storage Tanks, Underground Storage Tanks
Covenant : N/R
Latitude : 43.62191
Longitude : -116.21266
Last Date in Agency List : 03/19/2020

FA - ID

Facility Name : MEADOW GOLD DAIRIES
Facility Address : 208 N 17TH ST, BOISE, 83702

Site Details
Date Certified : 07/31/2001
Facility ID : 3-010096
Facility Type : Commercial
Facility Status : Closure
Facility Phone : N/R
Within 1000 Feet of a Drinking Water 
Source: Yes
Latitude : 43.62191
Longitue : -116.21266
Last Date in Agency List : 01/08/2020

Financial Responsibility
Expiration Date : 07/31/2001
Type : State Fund

LUST - ID

Facility Name : MEADOW GOLD DAIRIES
Facility Address : 208 N 17TH ST, BOISE, 83702

Site Details
Release Date : 05/30/2001
Cleanup Date : 02/09/2002
LUST ID : 1239
Facility ID : 3-010096
Status : Site Cleanup Completed
Cleanup Method : Land Farming
Last Date in Agency List : 04/08/2020

Page 34 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 1
Direction: E
Distance: 0.042 mi.
Actual: 222.317 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.927 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 11209185
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : MEADOW GOLD DAIRIES

208 N 17TH ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - 
ID] (cont.)

UST - ID

Facility Name : MEADOW GOLD DAIRIES
Facility Address : 208 N 17TH ST, BOISE, 83702

Facility ID : 3-010096
Facility Type : Commercial
Facility Status : Closure
Facility Phone : N/R
Date Certified : 07/31/2001
Last Inspection Date : N/R
Edited by : htimothy
Owner Name : MEADOW GOLD DAIRIES
Within 1000 feet of a Drinking Water 
Source?: Yes
Facility Latitude : 43.62191
Facility Longitude : -116.21266
Last Date in Agency List : 04/02/2020

Contact Details
Start Date : 07/31/2001
End Date : N/R
Trained Date : N/R
Contact Name : MEADOW GOLD DAIRIES
Contact Type : Owner

Start Date : 07/31/2001
End Date : N/R
Trained Date : N/R
Contact Name : RANDY KRAUSE
Contact Type : Other

Start Date : 07/31/2001
End Date : N/R
Trained Date : N/R
Contact Name : RICHARD L JAKONEIT
Contact Type : Other

Start Date : 07/31/2001
End Date : N/R
Trained Date : N/R
Contact Name : TOM MURRY
Contact Type : Manager

Financial Responsibility
Expiration Date : 07/31/2001
Type : State Fund

Page 35 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 1
Direction: E
Distance: 0.042 mi.
Actual: 222.317 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.927 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 11209185
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : MEADOW GOLD DAIRIES

208 N 17TH ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - 
ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

Tank Details
Tank Number : 3-010096*1
Tank Material : Cathodically Protected Steel (Impressed Current)
Date Installed : 04/01/1985
Capacity : 8000
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Diesel
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : N/R

Tank Number : 3-010096*2
Tank Material : Cathodically Protected Steel (Impressed Current)
Date Installed : 04/01/1985
Capacity : 8000
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Regular Gasoline
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : N/R

Tank Number : 3-010096*3
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 12/22/1988
Capacity : 7500
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Gasohol
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : N/R

Tank Number : 3-010096*4
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 12/22/1988
Capacity : 7500
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Diesel
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R

Page 36 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 1
Direction: E
Distance: 0.042 mi.
Actual: 222.317 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.927 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 11209185
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : MEADOW GOLD DAIRIES

208 N 17TH ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - 
ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : N/R

Pipe Details
Date Installed : N/R
Start Date : N/R
End Date : N/R
Status : N/R
Pipe Type : N/R
Pipe Material : N/R
Description : N/R
Construction : N/R
Construction Details : N/R
Flex Connector/Fittings CP Types : N/R
Comments : N/R

Dispenser Connection
Dispenser : N/R

Tank Connection
Tank : N/R

Dispensers
Start Date : N/R
End Date : N/R
Sump Containment : N/R
Flex Connector CP Type : N/R
Local Description : N/R

Inspection List
Inspection Date : N/R
Inspector : N/R
Prevention : N/R
Detection : N/R
Total : N/R

LUST Events
LUST ID : 1239
Confirmed Release Date : 05/30/2001

Page 37 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 1
Direction: E
Distance: 0.042 mi.
Actual: 222.317 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.927 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 11209185
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : MEADOW GOLD DAIRIES

208 N 17TH ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - 
ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

Cleanup Complete Date : 02/09/2002
Enforcement Effective Date : 05/30/2001
Enforcement Termination Date : N/R
EC : No

Map Id: 2
Direction: ESE
Distance: 0.102 mi.
Actual: 539.914 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2684.085 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 11209115
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : KBCI-TV

140 N 16TH ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - 
ID]

ALL SITES - ID

Facility Name : KBCI-TV
Facility Address : 140 N 16TH ST, BOISE
County : Ada

Reference ID : 8936
Box Number : 2011BAZ3677
Program : Leaking Underground Storage Tanks
All Programs for Site : Leaking Underground Storage Tanks, Underground Storage Tanks
Covenant : N/R
Latitude : 43.6205
Longitude : -116.21256
Last Date in Agency List : 03/19/2020

FA - ID

Facility Name : KBCI-TV
Facility Address : 140 N 16TH ST, BOISE, 83702

Site Details
Date Certified : 10/24/1995
Facility ID : 3-010740
Facility Type : Gas Station
Facility Status : Closure
Facility Phone : N/R
Within 1000 Feet of a Drinking Water 
Source: Yes
Latitude : 43.6205
Longitue : -116.21256
Last Date in Agency List : 02/15/2016

Page 38 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 2
Direction: ESE
Distance: 0.102 mi.
Actual: 539.914 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2684.085 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 11209115
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : KBCI-TV

140 N 16TH ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - 
ID] (cont.)

FA - ID (cont.)

Financial Responsibility
Expiration Date : N/R
Type : N/R

LUST - ID

Facility Name : KBCI-TV
Facility Address : 140 N 16TH ST, BOISE, 83702

Site Details
Release Date : 10/06/1995
Cleanup Date : 09/01/1996
LUST ID : 503
Facility ID : 3-010740
Status : Site Cleanup Completed
Cleanup Method : N/R
Last Date in Agency List : 04/08/2020

UST - ID

Facility Name : KBCI-TV
Facility Address : 140 N 16TH ST, BOISE, 83702

Facility ID : 3-010740
Facility Type : Gas Station
Facility Status : Closure
Facility Phone : N/R
Date Certified : 10/24/1995
Last Inspection Date : N/R
Edited by : UT
Owner Name : NORTHWEST TELEVISION, INC.
Within 1000 feet of a Drinking Water 
Source?: Yes
Facility Latitude : 43.6205
Facility Longitude : -116.21256
Last Date in Agency List : 04/02/2020

Contact Details
Start Date : 10/24/1995
End Date : N/R
Trained Date : N/R
Contact Name : NORTHWEST TELEVISION, INC.
Contact Type : Owner

Start Date : 10/24/1995
End Date : N/R
Trained Date : N/R
Contact Name : TIM BEVER
Contact Type : Other

Page 39 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 2
Direction: ESE
Distance: 0.102 mi.
Actual: 539.914 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2684.085 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 11209115
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : KBCI-TV

140 N 16TH ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - 
ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

Financial Responsibility
Expiration Date : N/R
Type : N/R

Tank Details
Tank Number : 3-010740*1
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 12/22/1988
Capacity : 1000
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Regular Gasoline
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : N/R

Tank Number : 3-010740*2
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 12/22/1988
Capacity : 1000
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Regular Gasoline
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : N/R

Tank Number : 3-010740*3
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 12/22/1988
Capacity : 275
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Regular Gasoline
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : N/R

Page 40 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 2
Direction: ESE
Distance: 0.102 mi.
Actual: 539.914 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2684.085 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 11209115
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : KBCI-TV

140 N 16TH ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - 
ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

Tank Number : 3-010740*4
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 12/22/1988
Capacity : 450
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Used Oil
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : N/R

Tank Number : 3-010740*5
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 12/22/1988
Capacity : 500
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Regular Gasoline
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : N/R

Tank Number : 3-010740*6
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 12/22/1988
Capacity : 1000
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Regular Gasoline
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : N/R

Tank Number : 3-010740*7
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 12/22/1988
Capacity : 1000
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Regular Gasoline
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No

Page 41 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 2
Direction: ESE
Distance: 0.102 mi.
Actual: 539.914 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2684.085 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 11209115
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : KBCI-TV

140 N 16TH ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - 
ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : N/R

Pipe Details
Date Installed : N/R
Start Date : N/R
End Date : N/R
Status : N/R
Pipe Type : N/R
Pipe Material : N/R
Description : N/R
Construction : N/R
Construction Details : N/R
Flex Connector/Fittings CP Types : N/R
Comments : N/R

Dispenser Connection
Dispenser : N/R

Tank Connection
Tank : N/R

Dispensers
Start Date : N/R
End Date : N/R
Sump Containment : N/R
Flex Connector CP Type : N/R
Local Description : N/R

Inspection List
Inspection Date : N/R
Inspector : N/R
Prevention : N/R
Detection : N/R
Total : N/R

LUST Events
LUST ID : 503
Confirmed Release Date : 10/06/1995
Cleanup Complete Date : 09/01/1996

Page 42 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 2
Direction: ESE
Distance: 0.102 mi.
Actual: 539.914 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2684.085 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 11209115
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : KBCI-TV

140 N 16TH ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - 
ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

Enforcement Effective Date : N/R
Enforcement Termination Date : N/R
EC : No

Map Id: 3
Direction: SW
Distance: 0.111 mi.
Actual: 587.355 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2680.522 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 11209154
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : RED LION BOISE DOWNTOWNER

1800 FAIRVIEW
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - 
ID]

ALL SITES - ID

Facility Name : RED LION BOISE DOWNTOWNER
Facility Address : 1800 FAIRVIEW, BOISE
County : Ada

Reference ID : 7293
Box Number : 2011BAZ5464
Program : Leaking Underground Storage Tanks
All Programs for Site : Leaking Underground Storage Tanks, Underground Storage Tanks
Covenant : N/R
Latitude : 43.62101
Longitude : -116.21688
Last Date in Agency List : 03/19/2020

FA - ID

Facility Name : RED LION BOISE DOWNTOWNER
Facility Address : 1800 FAIRVIEW, BOISE, 83702

Site Details
Date Certified : 08/26/1996
Facility ID : 3-010738
Facility Type : Commercial
Facility Status : Closure
Facility Phone : N/R
Within 1000 Feet of a Drinking Water 
Source: Yes
Latitude : 43.62101
Longitue : -116.21688
Last Date in Agency List : 01/08/2020

Page 43 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 3
Direction: SW
Distance: 0.111 mi.
Actual: 587.355 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2680.522 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 11209154
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : RED LION BOISE DOWNTOWNER

1800 FAIRVIEW
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - 
ID] (cont.)

FA - ID (cont.)

Financial Responsibility
Expiration Date : 08/26/1996
Type : Self-Insured

LUST - ID

Facility Name : RED LION BOISE DOWNTOWNER
Facility Address : 1800 FAIRVIEW, BOISE, 83702

Site Details
Release Date : 08/05/1996
Cleanup Date : 01/13/1997
LUST ID : 501
Facility ID : 3-010738
Status : Site Cleanup Completed
Cleanup Method : N/R
Last Date in Agency List : 04/08/2020

UST - ID

Facility Name : RED LION BOISE DOWNTOWNER
Facility Address : 1800 FAIRVIEW, BOISE, 83702

Facility ID : 3-010738
Facility Type : Commercial
Facility Status : Closure
Facility Phone : N/R
Date Certified : 08/26/1996
Last Inspection Date : N/R
Edited by : DGRAY
Owner Name : RED LION HOTELS & INNS
Within 1000 feet of a Drinking Water 
Source?: Yes
Facility Latitude : 43.62101
Facility Longitude : -116.21688
Last Date in Agency List : 04/02/2020

Contact Details
Start Date : 08/26/1996
End Date : N/R
Trained Date : N/R
Contact Name : RED LION HOTELS & INNS
Contact Type : Owner

Start Date : 08/26/1996
End Date : N/R
Trained Date : N/R
Contact Name : WAYNE PIPES JR
Contact Type : Other

Page 44 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 3
Direction: SW
Distance: 0.111 mi.
Actual: 587.355 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2680.522 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 11209154
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : RED LION BOISE DOWNTOWNER

1800 FAIRVIEW
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - 
ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

Financial Responsibility
Expiration Date : 08/26/1996
Type : Self-Insured

Tank Details
Tank Number : 3-010738*1
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 09/01/1983
Capacity : 650
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Diesel
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : N/R

Pipe Details
Date Installed : N/R
Start Date : N/R
End Date : N/R
Status : N/R
Pipe Type : N/R
Pipe Material : N/R
Description : N/R
Construction : N/R
Construction Details : N/R
Flex Connector/Fittings CP Types : N/R
Comments : N/R

Dispenser Connection
Dispenser : N/R

Tank Connection
Tank : N/R

Dispensers
Start Date : N/R
End Date : N/R
Sump Containment : N/R
Flex Connector CP Type : N/R
Local Description : N/R

Page 45 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 3
Direction: SW
Distance: 0.111 mi.
Actual: 587.355 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2680.522 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 11209154
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : RED LION BOISE DOWNTOWNER

1800 FAIRVIEW
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - 
ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

Inspection List
Inspection Date : N/R
Inspector : N/R
Prevention : N/R
Detection : N/R
Total : N/R

LUST Events
LUST ID : 501
Confirmed Release Date : 08/05/1996
Cleanup Complete Date : 01/13/1997
Enforcement Effective Date : N/R
Enforcement Termination Date : N/R
EC : No

Map Id: 4
Direction: S
Distance: 0.116 mi.
Actual: 612.629 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.608 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 414270463
EPA ID: IDR000205252Site Name : ALS CAR CARE INC GROVE

1645 GROVE ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_VSQG, 
SHWS - ID]

ALL SITES - ID

Facility Name : ALS CAR CARE INC GROVE
Facility Address : 1645 GROVE ST, BOISE
County : Ada

Reference ID : 107658
Box Number : 2013BAZ395
Program : N/R
All Programs for Site : RCRA Hazardous Waste Site
Covenant : N/R
Latitude : 43.619656
Longitude : -116.214457
Last Date in Agency List : 03/19/2020

ECHO

Facility Name : ALS CAR CARE INC GROVE
Facility Address : 1645 GROVE ST, BOISE, ID 83702
County : ADA

Page 46 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 4
Direction: S
Distance: 0.116 mi.
Actual: 612.629 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.608 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 414270463
EPA ID: IDR000205252Site Name : ALS CAR CARE INC GROVE

1645 GROVE ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_VSQG, 
SHWS - ID] (cont.)

ECHO (cont.)

Site Details
Last Inspection Date : N/R
Registry ID : 110056314778
FIPS Code : 16001
EPA Region : 10
Inspection Count : 0
Last Inspection Days : N/R
Informal Count : 0
Last Informal Action Date : N/R
Formal Action Count : 0
Last Formal Action Date : N/R
Total Penalties : 0
Penalty Count : N/R
Last Penalty Date : N/R
Last Penalty Amount : N/R
QTRS IN NC : 0
Programs IN SNC : 0
Current Compliance Status : No Violation Identified
Three-Year Compliance Status : ____________
Collection Method : ADDRESS MATCHING-HOUSE NUMBER
Reference Point : CENTER OF A FACILITY OR STATION
Accuracy Meters : 30
Derived Tribes : N/R
Derived HUC : 17050114
Derived WBD : 170501140403
Derived STCTY FIPS : 16001
Derived Zip : 83702
Derived CD113 : 02
Derived CB2010 : 160010001003035
MYRTK Universe : NNN
NPDES IDs : N/R
CWA Permit Types : N/R
CWA Compliance Tracking : N/R
CWA NAICS : N/R
CWA SICS : N/R
CWA Inspection Count : N/R
CWA Last Inspection Days : N/R
CWA Informal Count : N/R
CWA Formal Action Count : N/R
CWA Last Formal Action Date : N/R
CWA Penalties : N/R
CWA Last Penalty Date : N/R
CWA Last Penalty Amount : N/R
CWA Quarters IN NC : N/R
CWA Current Compliance Status : N/R
CWA Current SNC Flag : N
CWA 13 Quarters Compliance Status : N/R
CWA 13 Quarters Effluent Exceedances: N/R
CWA Three-Year QNCR Codes : N/R
DFR URL : Click here for hyperlink provided by the agency.
Facility SIC : N/R

Facility NAICS : 811111 811113 811191 - General Automotive Repair. Automotive 
Transmission Repair. Automotive Oil Change and Lubrication Shops.

Facility Last Inspection EPA Date : N/R

Page 47 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 4
Direction: S
Distance: 0.116 mi.
Actual: 612.629 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.608 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 414270463
EPA ID: IDR000205252Site Name : ALS CAR CARE INC GROVE

1645 GROVE ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_VSQG, 
SHWS - ID] (cont.)

ECHO (cont.)

Facility Last Inspection State Date : N/R
Facility Last Formal Act EPA Date : N/R
Facility Last Formal Act State Date : N/R
Facility Last Informal Act EPA Date : N/R
Facility Last Informal Act State Date: N/R
Facility Federal Agency : N/R
TRI Reporter : N/R
Facility Imp Water Flag : N/R
Current SNC Flag : N
Indian County Flag : N
Federal Flag : N/R
US Mexico Border Flag : N/R
Chesapeak Bay Flag : N/R
AIR Flag : N
NPDES Flag : N
SDWIS Flag : N
RCRA Flag : Y
TRI Flag : N
GHG Flag : N
Major Flag : N/R
Active Flag : Y
NAA Flag : Y
Latitude : 43.6199
Longitude : -116.21415
Last Date in Agency List : 02/10/2020

FRS

Facility Name : ALS CAR CARE INC GROVE
Facility Address : 1645 GROVE ST, BOISE, ID 83702
County : ADA

Registry ID : 110056314778
FRS Facility URL : Click here for hyperlink provided by the agency.
Last Date in Agency List : 12/12/2019

Source Description :

RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system that supports the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act 
(RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984 through the tracking of events 
and activities related to facilities that generate, transport, and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. 
RCRAInfo allows RCRA program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and corrective action activities 
required under RCRA. RCRAInfo also supports generation of the National Hazardous Waste Biennial Report. All 
generators and treatment, storage, and disposal facilities who handle hazardous waste are required to report to 
the EPA Administrator at least once every two years to support creation of the Biennial Report.

FRS Environmental Interest
Source and System ID : RCRAINFO - IDR000205252

Page 48 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 4
Direction: S
Distance: 0.116 mi.
Actual: 612.629 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.608 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 414270463
EPA ID: IDR000205252Site Name : ALS CAR CARE INC GROVE

1645 GROVE ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_VSQG, 
SHWS - ID] (cont.)

RCRA_VSQG

Facility Name : ALS CAR CARE INC GROVE
Facility Address : 1645 GROVE ST, BOISE, ID 83702
County : ADA

Date Form Received by Agency : 06/15/2016
EPA ID : IDR000205252
Mailing Address : 1645 GROVE ST, BOISE, ID 83702
Contact : BRAD FAHEY
Contact Address : 1645 GROVE ST, BOISE, ID 83702
Contact Country : US
Contact Telephone : 208-344-3800
Contact Email : ALSCARCARE2@AOL.COM
EPA Region : 10
Land Type : Private
Source Type : Implementer
Classification : Very Small Quantity Generator

Description :

Handlers that generate 100 kilograms or less of hazardous waste per calendar month, and accumulate 1000 kg or 
less of hazardous waste at any time; or generate one kilogram or less of acutely hazardous waste per calendar 
month, and accumulate at any time: 1 kg or less of acutely hazardous waste; or 100 kg or less of any residue or 
contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting from the cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of 
acutely hazardous waste;or generate 100 kg or less of any residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris 
resulting from the cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of acutely hazardous waste during any calendar 
month, and accumulate at any time: 1 kg or less of acutely hazardous waste; or 100 kg or less of any residue or 
contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting from the cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of 
acutely hazardous waste.

Last Date in Agency List : 02/14/2020

Owner/Operator Summary
Owner/Operator Name : BRAD FAHEY
Owner/Operator Address : N/R
Owner/Operator Country : US
Owner/Operator Telephone : N/R
Owner/Operator Email : N/R
Owner/Operator Fax : N/R
Legal Status : Private
Owner/Operator Type : Operator
Owner/Operator Start Date : 11/01/2009
Owner/Operator End Date : N/R

Owner/Operator Name : RICHARD FOERSTER
Owner/Operator Address : 320 OLD QUARRY WAY, BOISE, ID 83709
Owner/Operator Country : US
Owner/Operator Telephone : 208-322-4866
Owner/Operator Email : N/R
Owner/Operator Fax : N/R
Legal Status : Private
Owner/Operator Type : Owner
Owner/Operator Start Date : 11/01/1990

Page 49 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 4
Direction: S
Distance: 0.116 mi.
Actual: 612.629 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.608 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 414270463
EPA ID: IDR000205252Site Name : ALS CAR CARE INC GROVE

1645 GROVE ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_VSQG, 
SHWS - ID] (cont.)

RCRA_VSQG (cont.)

Owner/Operator End Date : N/R

Handler Activities Summary
U.S. Importer of Hazardous Waste : N
Mixed Waste (Haz. and Radioactive) : N
Recycler of Hazardous Waste : N
Transporter of Hazardous Waste : N
Treater, Storer or Disposer of HW : N
Underground Injection Activity : N
On-site Burner Exemption : N
Furnace Exemption : N
Used Oil Fuel Burner : N
Used Oil Processor : N
Used Oil Refiner : N
Used Oil Fuel Marketer to Burner : N
Used Oil Specification Marketer : N
Used Oil Transfer Facility : N
Used Oil Transporter : N

Historical Generators
Date Form Received by Agency : 01/31/2014
Facility Name : ALS CAR CARE INC GROVE
Classification : Not a generator, verified

Date Form Received by Agency : 09/16/2013
Facility Name : ALS CAR CARE INC GROVE
Classification : Small Quantity Generator

Hazardous Waste Summary
Waste Code / Name : F003 - THE FOLLOWING SPENT NONHALOGENATED SOLVENTS: XYLENE, 

ACETONE, ETHYL ACETATE, ETHYL BENZENE, ETHYL ETHER, METHYL 
ISOBUTYL KETONE, N-BUTYL ALCOHOL, CYCLOHEXANONE, AND 
METHANOL; ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS CONTAINING, 
BEFORE USE, ONLY THE ABOVE SPENT NONHALOGENATED SOLVENTS; 
AND ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, 
ONE OR MORE OF THE ABOVE NONHALOGENATED SOLVENTS, AND A 
TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF ONE OR MORE OF 
THOSE SOLVENTS LISTED IN F001, F002, F004, AND F005; AND STILL 
BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF THESE SPENT SOLVENTS AND 
SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES.
F005 - THE FOLLOWING SPENT NONHALOGENATED SOLVENTS: 
TOLUENE, METHYL ETHYL KETONE, CARBON DISULFIDE, ISOBUTANOL, 
PYRIDINE, BENZENE, 2-ETHOXYETHANOL, AND 2-NITROPROPANE; ALL 
SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, A TOTAL 
OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF ONE OR MORE OF THE 
ABOVE NONHALOGENATED SOLVENTS OR THOSE SOLVENTS LISTED IN 
F001, F002, OR F004; AND STILL BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF 
THESE SPENT SOLVENTS AND SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES.

Page 50 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 4
Direction: S
Distance: 0.116 mi.
Actual: 612.629 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.608 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 414270463
EPA ID: IDR000205252Site Name : ALS CAR CARE INC GROVE

1645 GROVE ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, RCRA_VSQG, 
SHWS - ID] (cont.)

RCRA_VSQG (cont.)

Notices of Violations Summary
Regulation Violated : N

SHWS - ID

Facility Name : ALS CAR CARE INC GROVE
Facility Address : 1645 GROVE ST, BOISE
County : Ada

Reference ID : 107658
Box Number : 2013BAZ395
Program : N/R
All Programs for Site : RCRA Hazardous Waste Site
Covenant : N/R
Latitude : 43.619656
Longitude : -116.214457
Last Date in Agency List : 03/19/2020

Map Id: 5
Direction: W
Distance: 0.141 mi.
Actual: 744.800 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2680.102 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 414587248
EPA ID: IDD073011793Site Name : IDAHO REGISTRATION SERVICE CO

2230 W MAIN ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, 
RCRA_NONGEN, SHWS - ID]

ALL SITES - ID

Facility Name : IDAHO REGISTRATION SERVICE CO
Facility Address : 2230 W MAIN ST, BOISE
County : Ada

Reference ID : 3887
Box Number : 2011BAZ3229
Program : RCRA Hazardous Waste Site
All Programs for Site : RCRA Hazardous Waste Site
Covenant : N/R
Latitude : 43.622093
Longitude : -116.218191
Last Date in Agency List : 03/19/2020

ECHO

Facility Name : IDAHO REGISTRATION SERVICE CO
Facility Address : 2230 W MAIN ST, BOISE, ID 83702
County : ADA

Page 51 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 5
Direction: W
Distance: 0.141 mi.
Actual: 744.800 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2680.102 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 414587248
EPA ID: IDD073011793Site Name : IDAHO REGISTRATION SERVICE CO

2230 W MAIN ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, 
RCRA_NONGEN, SHWS - ID] (cont.)

ECHO (cont.)

Site Details
Last Inspection Date : N/R
Registry ID : 110005783349
FIPS Code : 16001
EPA Region : 10
Inspection Count : 0
Last Inspection Days : N/R
Informal Count : 0
Last Informal Action Date : N/R
Formal Action Count : 0
Last Formal Action Date : N/R
Total Penalties : 0
Penalty Count : N/R
Last Penalty Date : N/R
Last Penalty Amount : N/R
QTRS IN NC : 0
Programs IN SNC : 0
Current Compliance Status : No Violation Identified
Three-Year Compliance Status : ____________
Collection Method : ADDRESS MATCHING-HOUSE NUMBER
Reference Point : ENTRANCE POINT OF A FACILITY OR STATION
Accuracy Meters : 50
Derived Tribes : N/R
Derived HUC : 17050114
Derived WBD : 170501140403
Derived STCTY FIPS : 16001
Derived Zip : 83702
Derived CD113 : 02
Derived CB2010 : 160010001003038
MYRTK Universe : NNN
NPDES IDs : N/R
CWA Permit Types : N/R
CWA Compliance Tracking : N/R
CWA NAICS : N/R
CWA SICS : N/R
CWA Inspection Count : N/R
CWA Last Inspection Days : N/R
CWA Informal Count : N/R
CWA Formal Action Count : N/R
CWA Last Formal Action Date : N/R
CWA Penalties : N/R
CWA Last Penalty Date : N/R
CWA Last Penalty Amount : N/R
CWA Quarters IN NC : N/R
CWA Current Compliance Status : N/R
CWA Current SNC Flag : N
CWA 13 Quarters Compliance Status : N/R
CWA 13 Quarters Effluent Exceedances: N/R
CWA Three-Year QNCR Codes : N/R
DFR URL : Click here for hyperlink provided by the agency.
Facility SIC : N/R
Facility NAICS : 32311 - Printing
Facility Last Inspection EPA Date : N/R
Facility Last Inspection State Date : N/R
Facility Last Formal Act EPA Date : N/R
Facility Last Formal Act State Date : N/R

Page 52 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 5
Direction: W
Distance: 0.141 mi.
Actual: 744.800 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2680.102 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 414587248
EPA ID: IDD073011793Site Name : IDAHO REGISTRATION SERVICE CO

2230 W MAIN ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, 
RCRA_NONGEN, SHWS - ID] (cont.)

ECHO (cont.)

Facility Last Informal Act EPA Date : N/R
Facility Last Informal Act State Date: N/R
Facility Federal Agency : N/R
TRI Reporter : N/R
Facility Imp Water Flag : N/R
Current SNC Flag : N
Indian County Flag : N
Federal Flag : N/R
US Mexico Border Flag : N/R
Chesapeak Bay Flag : N/R
AIR Flag : N
NPDES Flag : N
SDWIS Flag : N
RCRA Flag : Y
TRI Flag : N
GHG Flag : N
Major Flag : N/R
Active Flag : N/R
NAA Flag : Y
Latitude : 43.621803
Longitude : -116.217372
Last Date in Agency List : 02/10/2020

FRS

Facility Name : IDAHO REGISTRATION SERVICE CO
Facility Address : 2230 W MAIN ST, BOISE, ID 83702
County : ADA

Registry ID : 110005783349
FRS Facility URL : Click here for hyperlink provided by the agency.
Last Date in Agency List : 12/12/2019

Source Description :

RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system that supports the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act 
(RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984 through the tracking of events 
and activities related to facilities that generate, transport, and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. 
RCRAInfo allows RCRA program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and corrective action activities 
required under RCRA. RCRAInfo also supports generation of the National Hazardous Waste Biennial Report. All 
generators and treatment, storage, and disposal facilities who handle hazardous waste are required to report to 
the EPA Administrator at least once every two years to support creation of the Biennial Report.

FRS Environmental Interest
Source and System ID : RCRAINFO - IDD073011793

RCRA_NONGEN

Facility Name : IDAHO REGISTRATION SERVICE CO
Facility Address : 2230 W MAIN ST, BOISE, ID 83702
County : ADA

Page 53 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 5
Direction: W
Distance: 0.141 mi.
Actual: 744.800 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2680.102 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 414587248
EPA ID: IDD073011793Site Name : IDAHO REGISTRATION SERVICE CO

2230 W MAIN ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, 
RCRA_NONGEN, SHWS - ID] (cont.)

RCRA_NONGEN (cont.)

Date Form Received by Agency : 09/13/1991
EPA ID : IDD073011793
Mailing Address : 2230 W MAIN ST, BOISE, ID 83702
Contact : UNKNOWN UNKNOWN
Contact Address : 2230 MAIN ST, BOISE, ID 83706
Contact Country : US
Contact Telephone : N/R
Contact Email : N/R
EPA Region : 10
Land Type : Other land type
Source Type : Notification
Classification : Not a generator, verified
Description : Not a generator, verified
Last Date in Agency List : 02/14/2020

Owner/Operator Summary
Owner/Operator Name : UNKNOWN
Owner/Operator Address : UNKNOWN, UNKNOWN, ID 00000-0000
Owner/Operator Country : N/R
Owner/Operator Telephone : N/R
Owner/Operator Email : N/R
Owner/Operator Fax : N/R
Legal Status : Other
Owner/Operator Type : Owner
Owner/Operator Start Date : N/R
Owner/Operator End Date : N/R

Handler Activities Summary
U.S. Importer of Hazardous Waste : N
Mixed Waste (Haz. and Radioactive) : N
Recycler of Hazardous Waste : N
Transporter of Hazardous Waste : N
Treater, Storer or Disposer of HW : N
Underground Injection Activity : N
On-site Burner Exemption : N
Furnace Exemption : N
Used Oil Fuel Burner : N
Used Oil Processor : N
Used Oil Refiner : N
Used Oil Fuel Marketer to Burner : N
Used Oil Specification Marketer : N
Used Oil Transfer Facility : N
Used Oil Transporter : N

Notices of Violations Summary
Regulation Violated : N

SHWS - ID

Facility Name : IDAHO REGISTRATION SERVICE CO

Page 54 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: 5
Direction: W
Distance: 0.141 mi.
Actual: 744.800 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2680.102 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 414587248
EPA ID: IDD073011793Site Name : IDAHO REGISTRATION SERVICE CO

2230 W MAIN ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, ECHO, FRS, 
RCRA_NONGEN, SHWS - ID] (cont.)

SHWS - ID (cont.)

Facility Address : 2230 W MAIN ST, BOISE
County : Ada

Reference ID : 3887
Box Number : 2011BAZ3229
Program : RCRA Hazardous Waste Site
All Programs for Site : RCRA Hazardous Waste Site
Covenant : N/R
Latitude : 43.622093
Longitude : -116.218191
Last Date in Agency List : 03/19/2020

Map Id: 6
Direction: SSW
Distance: 0.149 mi.
Actual: 784.129 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2680.63 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 19860923
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : ALSCOTT PROPERTY

NE CORNER 17TH ST & FRONT ST
BOISE, ID

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID]

ALL SITES - ID

Facility Name : ALSCOTT PROPERTY
Facility Address : NE CORNER 17TH ST & FRONT ST, BOISE
County : Ada

Reference ID : 5413
Box Number : 2011BAZ6644
Program : General Remediation
All Programs for Site : General Remediation
Covenant : N/R
Latitude : 43.61965
Longitude : -116.21536
Last Date in Agency List : 03/19/2020

Page 55 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: A7
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.150 mi.
Actual: 792.583 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.274 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 19863001
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : EYES OF THE WORLD

1576 W GROVE ST
BOISE, ID

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, BROWNFIELDS - ID, 
SHWS - ID]

ALL SITES - ID

Facility Name : EYES OF THE WORLD
Facility Address : 1576 W GROVE ST, BOISE
County : ADA

Reference ID : 3421
Box Number : 2011BAZ2084
Program : Multiple Programs
All Programs for Site : Brownfields, RCRA Hazardous Waste Site
Covenant : N/R
Latitude : 43.6197180
Longitude : -116.2130910
Last Date in Agency List : 03/19/2020

BROWNFIELDS - ID

Facility Name : EYES OF THE WORLD
Facility Address : 1576 W GROVE ST, BOISE
County : ADA

Reference ID : 3421
Box Number : 2011BAZ2084
Program : Multiple Programs
All Programs for Site : Brownfields, RCRA Hazardous Waste Site
Covenant : N/R
Latitude : 43.6197180
Longitude : -116.2130910
Last Date in Agency List : 03/19/2020

SHWS - ID

Facility Name : EYES OF THE WORLD
Facility Address : 1576 W GROVE ST, BOISE
County : ADA

Reference ID : 3421
Box Number : 2011BAZ2084
Program : Multiple Programs
All Programs for Site : Brownfields, RCRA Hazardous Waste Site
Covenant : N/R
Latitude : 43.6197180
Longitude : -116.2130910
Last Date in Agency List : 03/19/2020

Page 56 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: A8
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.150 mi.
Actual: 792.583 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.274 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 414586605
EPA ID: IDR000203570Site Name : FORMER ECONOMY CLEANERS AND 

LAUNDRY INC
1576 W GROVE ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN]

ECHO

Facility Name : FORMER ECONOMY CLEANERS AND LAUNDRY INC
Facility Address : 1576 W GROVE ST, BOISE, ID 83702
County : ADA

Site Details
Last Inspection Date : N/R
Registry ID : 110038904941
FIPS Code : 16001
EPA Region : 10
Inspection Count : 0
Last Inspection Days : N/R
Informal Count : 0
Last Informal Action Date : N/R
Formal Action Count : 0
Last Formal Action Date : N/R
Total Penalties : 0
Penalty Count : N/R
Last Penalty Date : N/R
Last Penalty Amount : N/R
QTRS IN NC : 0
Programs IN SNC : 0
Current Compliance Status : No Violation Identified
Three-Year Compliance Status : ____________
Collection Method : ADDRESS MATCHING-HOUSE NUMBER
Reference Point : CENTER OF A FACILITY OR STATION
Accuracy Meters : 30
Derived Tribes : N/R
Derived HUC : 17050114
Derived WBD : 170501140403
Derived STCTY FIPS : 16001
Derived Zip : 83702
Derived CD113 : 02
Derived CB2010 : 160010001003034
MYRTK Universe : NNN
NPDES IDs : N/R
CWA Permit Types : N/R
CWA Compliance Tracking : N/R
CWA NAICS : N/R
CWA SICS : N/R
CWA Inspection Count : N/R
CWA Last Inspection Days : N/R
CWA Informal Count : N/R
CWA Formal Action Count : N/R
CWA Last Formal Action Date : N/R
CWA Penalties : N/R
CWA Last Penalty Date : N/R
CWA Last Penalty Amount : N/R
CWA Quarters IN NC : N/R
CWA Current Compliance Status : N/R
CWA Current SNC Flag : N
CWA 13 Quarters Compliance Status : N/R
CWA 13 Quarters Effluent Exceedances: N/R
CWA Three-Year QNCR Codes : N/R
DFR URL : Click here for hyperlink provided by the agency.

Page 57 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: A8
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.150 mi.
Actual: 792.583 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.274 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 414586605
EPA ID: IDR000203570Site Name : FORMER ECONOMY CLEANERS AND 

LAUNDRY INC
1576 W GROVE ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN] (cont.)

ECHO (cont.)

Facility SIC : N/R

Facility NAICS : 611699 45322 - All Other Miscellaneous Schools and Instruction. Gift, 
Novelty, and Souvenir Stores.

Facility Last Inspection EPA Date : N/R
Facility Last Inspection State Date : N/R
Facility Last Formal Act EPA Date : N/R
Facility Last Formal Act State Date : N/R
Facility Last Informal Act EPA Date : N/R
Facility Last Informal Act State Date: N/R
Facility Federal Agency : N/R
TRI Reporter : N/R
Facility Imp Water Flag : N/R
Current SNC Flag : N
Indian County Flag : N
Federal Flag : N/R
US Mexico Border Flag : N/R
Chesapeak Bay Flag : N/R
AIR Flag : N
NPDES Flag : N
SDWIS Flag : N
RCRA Flag : Y
TRI Flag : N
GHG Flag : N
Major Flag : N/R
Active Flag : N/R
NAA Flag : Y
Latitude : 43.6195
Longitude : -116.21335
Last Date in Agency List : 02/10/2020

FRS

Facility Name : FORMER ECONOMY CLEANERS AND LAUNDRY INC
Facility Address : 1576 W GROVE ST, BOISE, ID 83702
County : ADA

Registry ID : 110038904941
FRS Facility URL : Click here for hyperlink provided by the agency.
Last Date in Agency List : 12/12/2019

Source Description :

RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system that supports the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act 
(RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984 through the tracking of events 
and activities related to facilities that generate, transport, and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. 
RCRAInfo allows RCRA program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and corrective action activities 
required under RCRA. RCRAInfo also supports generation of the National Hazardous Waste Biennial Report. All 
generators and treatment, storage, and disposal facilities who handle hazardous waste are required to report to 
the EPA Administrator at least once every two years to support creation of the Biennial Report.

Page 58 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: A8
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.150 mi.
Actual: 792.583 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.274 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 414586605
EPA ID: IDR000203570Site Name : FORMER ECONOMY CLEANERS AND 

LAUNDRY INC
1576 W GROVE ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN] (cont.)

FRS (cont.)

FRS Environmental Interest
Source and System ID : RCRAINFO - IDR000203570

RCRA_NONGEN

Facility Name : FORMER ECONOMY CLEANERS AND LAUNDRY INC
Facility Address : 1576 W GROVE ST, BOISE, ID 83702
County : ADA

Date Form Received by Agency : 12/23/2008
EPA ID : IDR000203570
Mailing Address : 1576 W GROVE ST, BOISE, ID 83702
Contact : RON PHILLIPS
Contact Address : 3380 AMERICANA TERRACE STE 201, BOISE, ID 83706
Contact Country : US
Contact Telephone : 208-389-1030
Contact Email : RON.PHILLIPS@TETRATECH.COM
EPA Region : 10
Land Type : Private
Source Type : Notification
Classification : Not a generator, verified
Description : Not a generator, verified
Last Date in Agency List : 02/14/2020

Owner/Operator Summary
Owner/Operator Name : DAVE WAGERS
Owner/Operator Address : 4028 DEL MONTE DR, BOISE, ID 83704
Owner/Operator Country : US
Owner/Operator Telephone : N/R
Owner/Operator Email : N/R
Owner/Operator Fax : N/R
Legal Status : Private
Owner/Operator Type : Operator
Owner/Operator Start Date : 12/28/1994
Owner/Operator End Date : N/R

Owner/Operator Name : DAVE WAGERS
Owner/Operator Address : 4028 DEL MONTE DR, BOISE, ID 83704
Owner/Operator Country : US
Owner/Operator Telephone : N/R
Owner/Operator Email : N/R
Owner/Operator Fax : N/R
Legal Status : Private
Owner/Operator Type : Owner
Owner/Operator Start Date : 12/28/1994
Owner/Operator End Date : N/R

Handler Activities Summary
U.S. Importer of Hazardous Waste : N
Mixed Waste (Haz. and Radioactive) : N

Page 59 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: A8
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.150 mi.
Actual: 792.583 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.274 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 414586605
EPA ID: IDR000203570Site Name : FORMER ECONOMY CLEANERS AND 

LAUNDRY INC
1576 W GROVE ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ECHO, FRS, RCRA_NONGEN] (cont.)

RCRA_NONGEN (cont.)

Recycler of Hazardous Waste : N
Transporter of Hazardous Waste : N
Treater, Storer or Disposer of HW : N
Underground Injection Activity : N
On-site Burner Exemption : N
Furnace Exemption : N
Used Oil Fuel Burner : N
Used Oil Processor : N
Used Oil Refiner : N
Used Oil Fuel Marketer to Burner : N
Used Oil Specification Marketer : N
Used Oil Transfer Facility : N
Used Oil Transporter : N

Historical Generators
Date Form Received by Agency : 11/12/2008
Facility Name : FORMER ECONOMY CLEANERS AND LAUNDRY INC
Classification : Large Quantity Generator

Hazardous Waste Summary
Waste Code / Name : D001 - IGNITABLE WASTE

Notices of Violations Summary
Regulation Violated : N

Map Id: A9
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.152 mi.
Actual: 801.651 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.952 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 19864117
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : IDAHO TRUST BANK

SE CORNER 16 ST & GROVE ST
BOISE, ID

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID]

ALL SITES - ID

Facility Name : IDAHO TRUST BANK
Facility Address : SE CORNER 16 ST & GROVE ST, BOISE
County : Ada

Reference ID : 14374
Box Number : 2012BAZ436
Program : General Remediation
All Programs for Site : General Remediation
Covenant : N/R
Latitude : 43.61945

Page 60 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: A9
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.152 mi.
Actual: 801.651 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.952 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 19864117
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : IDAHO TRUST BANK

SE CORNER 16 ST & GROVE ST
BOISE, ID

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID] (cont.)

ALL SITES - ID (cont.)

Longitude : -116.21364
Last Date in Agency List : 03/19/2020

Map Id: A10
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.152 mi.
Actual: 802.682 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.267 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 16505958
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : 1576 WEST GROVE

1576 WEST GROVE
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [BROWNFIELDS-ACRES, FED 
BROWNFIELDS, FRS]

BROWNFIELDS-ACRES

Facility Name : 1576 West Grove
Facility Address : 1576 West Grove, Boise, ID 83702
County : N/R

Site Details
Property ID : 18924
EPA FRS ID : N/R
EPA FRS Site Name : N/R
Alias Name : N/R
Current Use : N/R
Future Use : N/R
GP Funding Type ID : Hazardous & Petroleum
Property Size : .28
Local Parcel Number : R10113007361

Former Use : The property was purchased by the current owner in 2001 from Richard 
and Betty Jordan. The Jordans owned the property since 1950 and 
operated the property as a warehouse. Three USTs were installed in the 
late 1940s with no record of removal. Richard and Betty Jordan owned 
the property from 1950 - 2001. They operated the property as a 
warehouse.

Ownership Entity ID : Private
Current Owner : Wagners Properties LLP
Photo Available : N/R
Video Available : N/R
Ownership Change : N
Ownership Liability Factor : N
Cleanup Required Flag : U
Cleanup Required Date : N/R
State Tribal Enroll ID Number : N/R
State Tribal Enroll Date : N/R
Property Not Enrolled Flag : N/R
NFA Issue Date : N/R
Info Devices : N/R
Check Pilot Flag : N/R
CERCLIS WasteLAN Indicator : N/R

Page 61 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: A10
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.152 mi.
Actual: 802.682 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.267 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 16505958
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : 1576 WEST GROVE

1576 WEST GROVE
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [BROWNFIELDS-ACRES, FED 
BROWNFIELDS, FRS] (cont.)

BROWNFIELDS-ACRES (cont.)

RCRA Indicator : N/R
BF Proj Number : N/R
Mun Owned : N/R
Approx Value : N/R
Build Sqft : N/R
Date of Form : N/R
Add Date : 03/20/2006
Mod Date : 03/29/2010
Mod User : VME
CERCLIS Flag : N/R
RFR Flag : N
RFR Date : N/R
RFR Grant ID : N/R
Multi Story Flag : N/R
Institutional Control In Place Flag : N/R
Institutional Control In Place Date : N/R
Institutional Control Additional Info: N/R
Institutional Control Required Flag : U
Institutional Control Required Date : N/R
Institutional Control Data Address : N/R
Property Controls : N/R
Govt Controls : N/R
Permit Tools : N/R
Eng. Control in Place : N/R
Eng. Control in Place Date : N/R
Eng. Control Additional Info : N/R
Eng. Control Required Flag : U
Eng. Control Flag Cover Tech : N/R
Eng. Control Flag Immobilization : N/R
Eng. Control Flag Barriers : N/R
Eng. Control Flag Security : N/R
Eng. Control Flag Other : N/R
Eng. Control Other : N/R
Eng. Control Data Address : N/R
Cleanup Req Ukn Comment : N/R
AWP Catalyst Y/N : N/R
Lat/Long Override Flag : N/R
Latitude Measure : 43.619719
Longitude Measure : -116.213131
Src Map Scale Num : 1:1200
Ref Point ID : 102
Hcm Id : N/R
Datum Code ID : 3
Horiz Accuracy Measure : N/R
Last Date in Agency List : 02/12/2020

Contaminants Summary
Contaminant : VOCs
Contaminant Found : Y
Contaminant Cleaned Up : N/R
Other Description : N/R
Other Cleaned Up : N/R

Page 62 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: A10
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.152 mi.
Actual: 802.682 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.267 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 16505958
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : 1576 WEST GROVE

1576 WEST GROVE
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [BROWNFIELDS-ACRES, FED 
BROWNFIELDS, FRS] (cont.)

BROWNFIELDS-ACRES (cont.)

Affected Media
Media Affected : Soil

FED BROWNFIELDS

Facility Name : 1576 West Grove
Facility Address : 1576 West Grove, Boise, ID 83702

Site Details
ACRES Property ID : 18924
Cooperative Agreement Number : 96044101
Type of Brownfields Grant : Assessment
Type of Funding : Hazardous & Petroleum
Grant Recipient Name : Capital City Development Corporation
IC Data Address : N/R
Redevelopment Completion Date : N/R
Property Size (acres) : .28
Local Property Number(s) : R10113007361
Ownership Entity : Private
Current Owner : Wagners Properties LLP
Did Ownership Change : N
SFLLP fact into the ownership : N
Latitude : 43.619719
Longitude : -116.213131
Horizontal Collection Method : N/R
Source Map Scale : 1:1200
Reference Point : Center of a Facility or Station
Horizontal Reference Datum : World Geodetic System of 1984

Description/History : The property was purchased by the current owner in 2001 from Richard 
and Betty Jordan. The Jordans owned the property since 1950 and 
operated the property as a warehouse. Three USTs were installed in the 
late 1940s with no record of removal. Richard and Betty Jordan owned 
the property from 1950 - 2001. They operated the property as a 
warehouse.

Last Date in Agency List : 03/10/2020

ACRES Property ID : 18924
Cooperative Agreement Number : 97093201
Type of Brownfields Grant : Assessment
Type of Funding : Hazardous & Petroleum
Grant Recipient Name : Capital City Development Corporation
IC Data Address : N/R
Redevelopment Completion Date : N/R
Property Size (acres) : .28
Local Property Number(s) : R10113007361
Ownership Entity : Private
Current Owner : Wagners Properties LLP
Did Ownership Change : N
SFLLP fact into the ownership : N
Latitude : 43.619719
Longitude : -116.213131

Page 63 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: A10
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.152 mi.
Actual: 802.682 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.267 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 16505958
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : 1576 WEST GROVE

1576 WEST GROVE
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [BROWNFIELDS-ACRES, FED 
BROWNFIELDS, FRS] (cont.)

FED BROWNFIELDS (cont.)

Horizontal Collection Method : N/R
Source Map Scale : 1:1200
Reference Point : Center of a Facility or Station
Horizontal Reference Datum : World Geodetic System of 1984

Description/History : The property was purchased by the current owner in 2001 from Richard 
and Betty Jordan. The Jordans owned the property since 1950 and 
operated the property as a warehouse. Three USTs were installed in the 
late 1940s with no record of removal. Richard and Betty Jordan owned 
the property from 1950 - 2001. They operated the property as a 
warehouse.

Last Date in Agency List : 03/10/2020

Additional Details
Past Use: Greenspace (acres) : N/R
Past Use: Residential (acres) : N/R
Past Use: Commercial (acres) : N/R
Past Use: Industrial (acres) : N/R
Past Use: Multistory (acres) : N/R
Cleanup Required : U
Contaminants Found: Controlled 
Substances: N/R
Contaminants Found: Petroleum : N/R
Contaminants Found: Asbestos : N/R
Contaminants Found: Lead : N/R
Contaminants Found: PAHs : N/R
Contaminants Found: PCBs : N/R
Contaminants Found: VOCs : Y
Contaminants Found: Selenium : N/R
Contaminants Found: Iron : N/R
Contaminants Found: Arsenic : N/R
Contaminants Found: Cadmium : N/R
Contaminants Found: Chromium : N/R
Contaminants Found: Copper : N/R
Contaminants Found: Mercury : N/R
Contaminants Found: Nickel : N/R
Contaminants Found: Pesticides : N/R
Contaminants Found: SVOCs : N/R
Contaminants Found: Other Metals : N/R
Contaminants Found: Other : N/R
Contaminants Found: Other (Descr) : N/R
Contaminants Found: Unknown : N/R
Contaminants Found: None : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: Controlled 
Substances: N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: Petroleum : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: Asbestos : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: Lead : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: PAHs : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: PCBs : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: VOCs : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: Selenium : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: Iron : N/R

Page 64 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: A10
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.152 mi.
Actual: 802.682 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.267 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 16505958
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : 1576 WEST GROVE

1576 WEST GROVE
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [BROWNFIELDS-ACRES, FED 
BROWNFIELDS, FRS] (cont.)

FED BROWNFIELDS (cont.)

Contaminants Cleaned Up: Arsenic : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: Cadmium : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: Chromium : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: Copper : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: Mercury : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: Nickel : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: Pesticides : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: SVOCs : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: Other Metals: N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: Other : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: Other 
(Descr): N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: Unknown : N/R
Contaminants Cleaned Up: None : N/R
Media Affected: Air : N/R
Media Affected: Sediments : N/R
Media Affected: Soil : Y
Media Affected: Drinking Water : N/R
Media Affected: Ground Water : N/R
Media Affected: Surface Water : N/R
Media Affected: Bldg Materials : N/R
Media Affected: Indoor Air : N/R
Media Affected: Unknown : N/R
Media Cleaned Up: Air : N/R
Media Cleaned Up: Sediments : N/R
Media Cleaned Up: Soil : N/R
Media Cleaned Up: Drinking Water : N/R
Media Cleaned Up: Ground Water : N/R
Media Cleaned Up: Surface Water : N/R
Media Cleaned Up: Bldg Materials : N/R
Media Cleaned Up: Indoor Air : N/R
Media Cleaned Up: Unknown : N/R
ST/Tribal Prg ID Number : N/R
Further Action/Cleanup : N/R
Enrollment ST/Tribal Prg : N/R
Institutional Ctrl (ICs) Req? : U
IC Category: Proprietary Controls : N/R
IC Category: Informational Devices : N/R
IC Category: Governmental Controls : N/R
IC Category: Enforcement/Permit Tools: N/R
ICs in Place? : N/R
Date ICs in Place : N/R
Cleanup Start Date : N/R
Cleanup Completion Date : N/R
Redevelopment Start Date : N/R
Future Use: Greenspace : N/R
Future Use: Residential : N/R
Future Use: Commercial : N/R
Future Use: Industrial : N/R
Future Use: Multistory (acres) : N/R
Number of Cleanup and Redev Jobs : N/R
Acreage and Greenspace Created : N/R
Photographs are Available : N/R
Video is Available : N/R

Page 65 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: A10
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.152 mi.
Actual: 802.682 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.267 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 16505958
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : 1576 WEST GROVE

1576 WEST GROVE
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [BROWNFIELDS-ACRES, FED 
BROWNFIELDS, FRS] (cont.)

FED BROWNFIELDS (cont.)

Assessment Details
Accomplishment Counted : N
Assessment Phase : Phase I Environmental Assessment
Assessment Start Date : 10/11/2007
Assessment Completion Date : 10/11/2007
Amount of Assessment Funding : 2740
Source of Assessment Funding : N/R
Entity Providing Assessment Funds : US EPA - Brownfields Assessment Cooperative Agreement
Source of Cleanup Funding : N/R
Entity Providing Cleanup Funds : N/R
Amount of Cleanup Funding : N/R
Source of Redevelopment Funding : N/R
Entity Prvding Redevelopment Funds : N/R
Amount of Redevelopment Funding : N/R

Accomplishment Counted : N
Assessment Phase : Phase II Environmental Assessment
Assessment Start Date : 12/19/2008
Assessment Completion Date : 12/19/2008
Amount of Assessment Funding : 39900
Source of Assessment Funding : N/R
Entity Providing Assessment Funds : US EPA - Brownfields Assessment Cooperative Agreement
Source of Cleanup Funding : N/R
Entity Providing Cleanup Funds : N/R
Amount of Cleanup Funding : N/R
Source of Redevelopment Funding : N/R
Entity Prvding Redevelopment Funds : N/R
Amount of Redevelopment Funding : N/R

Accomplishment Counted : Y
Assessment Phase : Phase I Environmental Assessment
Assessment Start Date : 09/28/2007
Assessment Completion Date : 09/28/2007
Amount of Assessment Funding : 2900
Source of Assessment Funding : N/R
Entity Providing Assessment Funds : US EPA - Brownfields Assessment Cooperative Agreement
Source of Cleanup Funding : N/R
Entity Providing Cleanup Funds : N/R
Amount of Cleanup Funding : N/R
Source of Redevelopment Funding : N/R
Entity Prvding Redevelopment Funds : N/R
Amount of Redevelopment Funding : N/R

FRS

Facility Name : 1576 WEST GROVE
Facility Address : 1576 WEST GROVE, BOISE, ID 83702
County : ADA

Registry ID : 110038702776
FRS Facility URL : Click here for hyperlink provided by the agency.
Last Date in Agency List : 12/12/2019

Page 66 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: A10
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.152 mi.
Actual: 802.682 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.267 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 16505958
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : 1576 WEST GROVE

1576 WEST GROVE
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [BROWNFIELDS-ACRES, FED 
BROWNFIELDS, FRS] (cont.)

FRS (cont.)

Source Description :

ACRES stores information reported by EPA Brownfields grant recipients on brownfields properties assessed or 
cleaned up with grant funding as well as information on Targeted Brownfields Assessments performed by EPA 
Regions.

FRS Environmental Interest
Source and System ID : ACRES - 18924

Map Id: A11
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.173 mi.
Actual: 914.491 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.612 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 11209126
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : DEAN'S GOODYEAR TIRE CENTER

1515 GROVE ST
BOISE, ID 83706

Database(s) : [FA - ID, UST - ID]

FA - ID

Facility Name : DEAN'S GOODYEAR TIRE CENTER
Facility Address : 1515 GROVE ST, BOISE, 83706

Site Details
Date Certified : N/R
Facility ID : 3-010081
Facility Type : Not Listed
Facility Status : Closure
Facility Phone : N/R
Within 1000 Feet of a Drinking Water 
Source: Yes
Latitude : 43.61931
Longitue : -116.21322
Last Date in Agency List : 02/15/2016

Financial Responsibility
Expiration Date : N/R
Type : N/R

UST - ID

Facility Name : DEAN'S GOODYEAR TIRE CENTER
Facility Address : 1515 GROVE ST, BOISE, 83706

Facility ID : 3-010081
Facility Type : Not Listed

Page 67 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: A11
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.173 mi.
Actual: 914.491 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.612 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 11209126
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : DEAN'S GOODYEAR TIRE CENTER

1515 GROVE ST
BOISE, ID 83706

Database(s) : [FA - ID, UST - ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

Facility Status : Closure
Facility Phone : N/R
Date Certified : N/R
Last Inspection Date : N/R
Edited by : dgray
Owner Name : PAT WHITE
Within 1000 feet of a Drinking Water 
Source?: Yes
Facility Latitude : 43.61931
Facility Longitude : -116.21322
Last Date in Agency List : 04/02/2020

Contact Details
Start Date : 01/01/2010
End Date : N/R
Trained Date : N/R
Contact Name : PAT WHITE
Contact Type : Owner

Start Date : 04/16/1992
End Date : N/R
Trained Date : N/R
Contact Name : RICHARD HAMIAH
Contact Type : Other

Financial Responsibility
Expiration Date : N/R
Type : N/R

Tank Details
Tank Number : 3-010081*1
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 01/01/1966
Capacity : 1000
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Not Listed
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : REMOVED PER EPAUST 1-14-99NO CLOSURE DATE WAS GIVEN SO 

SURVEY DATE WAS USED

Tank Number : 3-010081*2
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 12/22/1988

Page 68 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: A11
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.173 mi.
Actual: 914.491 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.612 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 11209126
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : DEAN'S GOODYEAR TIRE CENTER

1515 GROVE ST
BOISE, ID 83706

Database(s) : [FA - ID, UST - ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

Capacity : 500
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Used Oil
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : N/R

Pipe Details
Date Installed : N/R
Start Date : N/R
End Date : N/R
Status : N/R
Pipe Type : N/R
Pipe Material : N/R
Description : N/R
Construction : N/R
Construction Details : N/R
Flex Connector/Fittings CP Types : N/R
Comments : N/R

Dispenser Connection
Dispenser : N/R

Tank Connection
Tank : N/R

Dispensers
Start Date : N/R
End Date : N/R
Sump Containment : N/R
Flex Connector CP Type : N/R
Local Description : N/R

Inspection List
Inspection Date : N/R
Inspector : N/R
Prevention : N/R
Detection : N/R
Total : N/R

Page 69 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: A11
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.173 mi.
Actual: 914.491 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.612 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 11209126
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : DEAN'S GOODYEAR TIRE CENTER

1515 GROVE ST
BOISE, ID 83706

Database(s) : [FA - ID, UST - ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

LUST Events
LUST ID : N/R
Confirmed Release Date : N/R
Cleanup Complete Date : N/R
Enforcement Effective Date : N/R
Enforcement Termination Date : N/R
EC : N/R

Map Id: B12
Direction: S
Distance: 0.175 mi.
Actual: 925.380 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.618 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 11209188
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : BOISE FIRE STATION #5

212 S 16TH ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [FA - ID, UST - ID]

FA - ID

Facility Name : BOISE FIRE STATION #5
Facility Address : 212 S 16TH ST, BOISE, 83702

Site Details
Date Certified : 11/27/1991
Facility ID : 3-010029
Facility Type : Local Government
Facility Status : Closure
Facility Phone : N/R
Within 1000 Feet of a Drinking Water 
Source: Yes
Latitude : 43.618923
Longitue : -116.213898
Last Date in Agency List : 01/08/2020

Financial Responsibility
Expiration Date : 11/27/1991
Type : Self-Insured

UST - ID

Facility Name : BOISE FIRE STATION #5
Facility Address : 212 S 16TH ST, BOISE, 83702

Facility ID : 3-010029
Facility Type : Local Government
Facility Status : Closure
Facility Phone : N/R
Date Certified : 11/27/1991
Last Inspection Date : N/R

Page 70 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: B12
Direction: S
Distance: 0.175 mi.
Actual: 925.380 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.618 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 11209188
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : BOISE FIRE STATION #5

212 S 16TH ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [FA - ID, UST - ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

Edited by : klowder
Owner Name : BOISE CITY-PUBLIC WORKS DEPT
Within 1000 feet of a Drinking Water 
Source?: Yes
Facility Latitude : 43.618923
Facility Longitude : -116.213898
Last Date in Agency List : 04/02/2020

Contact Details
Start Date : 11/27/1991
End Date : N/R
Trained Date : N/R
Contact Name : BOISE CITY-PUBLIC WORKS DEPT
Contact Type : Owner

Start Date : 11/27/1991
End Date : N/R
Trained Date : N/R
Contact Name : Cathy Chertudi
Contact Type : Other

Financial Responsibility
Expiration Date : 11/27/1991
Type : Self-Insured

Tank Details
Tank Number : 3-010029*1
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 12/22/1988
Capacity : 1500
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Diesel
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : N/R

Pipe Details
Date Installed : N/R
Start Date : N/R
End Date : N/R
Status : N/R
Pipe Type : N/R
Pipe Material : N/R

Page 71 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: B12
Direction: S
Distance: 0.175 mi.
Actual: 925.380 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.618 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 11209188
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : BOISE FIRE STATION #5

212 S 16TH ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [FA - ID, UST - ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

Description : N/R
Construction : N/R
Construction Details : N/R
Flex Connector/Fittings CP Types : N/R
Comments : N/R

Dispenser Connection
Dispenser : N/R

Tank Connection
Tank : N/R

Dispensers
Start Date : N/R
End Date : N/R
Sump Containment : N/R
Flex Connector CP Type : N/R
Local Description : N/R

Inspection List
Inspection Date : N/R
Inspector : N/R
Prevention : N/R
Detection : N/R
Total : N/R

LUST Events
LUST ID : N/R
Confirmed Release Date : N/R
Cleanup Complete Date : N/R
Enforcement Effective Date : N/R
Enforcement Termination Date : N/R
EC : N/R

Page 72 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: B13
Direction: S
Distance: 0.177 mi.
Actual: 932.959 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.119 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 11209137
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : FRONT STREET STATION #22

1600 FRONT
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID]

FA - ID

Facility Name : FRONT STREET STATION #22
Facility Address : 1600 FRONT, BOISE, 83702

Site Details
Date Certified : 10/24/1991
Facility ID : 3-010044
Facility Type : Gas Station
Facility Status : Closure
Facility Phone : N/R
Within 1000 Feet of a Drinking Water 
Source: Yes
Latitude : 43.6192
Longitue : -116.2144
Last Date in Agency List : 01/08/2020

Financial Responsibility
Expiration Date : 10/24/1991
Type : State Fund

LUST - ID

Facility Name : FRONT STREET STATION #22
Facility Address : 1600 FRONT, BOISE, 83702

Site Details
Release Date : 03/19/1997
Cleanup Date : 09/11/2001
LUST ID : 7
Facility ID : 3-010044
Status : Site Cleanup Completed
Cleanup Method : N/R
Last Date in Agency List : 04/08/2020

UST - ID

Facility Name : FRONT STREET STATION #22
Facility Address : 1600 FRONT, BOISE, 83702

Facility ID : 3-010044
Facility Type : Gas Station
Facility Status : Closure
Facility Phone : N/R
Date Certified : 10/24/1991
Last Inspection Date : N/R
Edited by : klowder
Owner Name : Stinker Stores
Within 1000 feet of a Drinking Water 
Source?: Yes
Facility Latitude : 43.6192
Facility Longitude : -116.2144

Page 73 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: B13
Direction: S
Distance: 0.177 mi.
Actual: 932.959 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.119 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 11209137
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : FRONT STREET STATION #22

1600 FRONT
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

Last Date in Agency List : 04/02/2020

Contact Details
Start Date : 10/24/1991
End Date : N/R
Trained Date : N/R
Contact Name : KENT JOHNSON
Contact Type : Other

Start Date : 10/24/1991
End Date : N/R
Trained Date : N/R
Contact Name : Stinker Stores
Contact Type : Owner

Financial Responsibility
Expiration Date : 10/24/1991
Type : State Fund

Tank Details
Tank Number : 3-010044*1
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 01/01/1966
Capacity : 4000
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Gasohol
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : AMENDED PER EPAUST 2-4-98

Tank Number : 3-010044*2
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 01/01/1966
Capacity : 4000
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Gasohol
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R

Page 74 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: B13
Direction: S
Distance: 0.177 mi.
Actual: 932.959 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.119 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 11209137
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : FRONT STREET STATION #22

1600 FRONT
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

Tank Notes : AMENDED PER EPAUST 3-17-98. TANK REMOVED WHEN FOREST 
SERVICE TOOK OVER THE PROPERTY.

Tank Number : 3-010044*3
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 01/01/1966
Capacity : 4000
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Gasohol
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : N/R

Tank Number : 3-010044*4
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 01/01/1966
Capacity : 5000
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Gasohol
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : N/R

Tank Number : 3-010044*5
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 01/01/1966
Capacity : 5000
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Gasohol
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : N/R

Tank Number : 3-010044*6
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 01/01/1966
Capacity : 5000
Status : Permanently Out of Use

Page 75 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: B13
Direction: S
Distance: 0.177 mi.
Actual: 932.959 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.119 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 11209137
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : FRONT STREET STATION #22

1600 FRONT
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

Substance : Gasohol
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : AMENDED PER EPAUST 3-17-98

Tank Number : 3-010044*7
Tank Material : Asphalt Coated or Bare Steel
Date Installed : 01/01/1966
Capacity : 2500
Status : Permanently Out of Use
Substance : Gasohol
CAS Number/CERCLA Name : N/R
Compartment : No
Manifolded : No
Secondary Tank Options : None
Has Tank been Repaired : No
Emergency Generator : No
Sump Containment : N/R
Tank Notes : AMENDED PER EPAUST 3-4-98

Pipe Details
Date Installed : N/R
Start Date : N/R
End Date : N/R
Status : N/R
Pipe Type : N/R
Pipe Material : N/R
Description : N/R
Construction : N/R
Construction Details : N/R
Flex Connector/Fittings CP Types : N/R
Comments : N/R

Dispenser Connection
Dispenser : N/R

Tank Connection
Tank : N/R

Dispensers
Start Date : N/R
End Date : N/R
Sump Containment : N/R

Page 76 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: B13
Direction: S
Distance: 0.177 mi.
Actual: 932.959 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.119 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 11209137
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : FRONT STREET STATION #22

1600 FRONT
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - ID] (cont.)

UST - ID (cont.)

Flex Connector CP Type : N/R
Local Description : N/R

Inspection List
Inspection Date : N/R
Inspector : N/R
Prevention : N/R
Detection : N/R
Total : N/R

LUST Events
LUST ID : 7
Confirmed Release Date : 03/19/1997
Cleanup Complete Date : 09/11/2001
Enforcement Effective Date : N/R
Enforcement Termination Date : N/R
EC : No

Map Id: B14
Direction: S
Distance: 0.177 mi.
Actual: 932.959 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.119 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 19863290
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : FRONT ST STATION NO 22

1600 FRONT
BOISE, ID

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID]

ALL SITES - ID

Facility Name : FRONT ST STATION NO 22
Facility Address : 1600 FRONT, BOISE
County : Ada

Reference ID : 6432
Box Number : 2011BAZ2324
Program : Leaking Underground Storage Tanks
All Programs for Site : Leaking Underground Storage Tanks, Underground Storage Tanks
Covenant : N/R
Latitude : 43.6192
Longitude : -116.2144
Last Date in Agency List : 03/19/2020

Page 77 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: B15
Direction: S
Distance: 0.177 mi.
Actual: 936.277 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.618 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 19861510
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : BOISE FIRE STATION NO 5

212 S 16TH ST
BOISE, ID

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID]

ALL SITES - ID

Facility Name : BOISE FIRE STATION NO 5
Facility Address : 212 S 16TH ST, BOISE
County : Ada

Reference ID : 5976
Box Number : 2011BAZ763
Program : Underground Storage Tanks
All Programs for Site : Underground Storage Tanks
Covenant : N/R
Latitude : 43.618923
Longitude : -116.213898
Last Date in Agency List : 03/19/2020

Map Id: A16
Direction: SSE
Distance: 0.185 mi.
Actual: 976.206 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2682.599 ft.
Relative: Higher

Envirosite ID: 19862617
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : DEANS GOODYEAR TIRE CENTER

1515 GROVE ST
BOISE, ID

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID]

ALL SITES - ID

Facility Name : DEANS GOODYEAR TIRE CENTER
Facility Address : 1515 GROVE ST, BOISE
County : Ada

Reference ID : 8360
Box Number : 2011BAZ1747
Program : Underground Storage Tanks
All Programs for Site : Underground Storage Tanks
Covenant : N/R
Latitude : 43.61931
Longitude : -116.21322
Last Date in Agency List : 03/19/2020

Page 78 of 1422



Map Findings 2020

Map Id: B17
Direction: S
Distance: 0.185 mi.
Actual: 977.295 ft.
Elevation: 0.508 mi. / 2681.332 ft.
Relative: Lower

Envirosite ID: 11209139
EPA ID: N/RSite Name : MCGUFFIN FUEL & FEED

1601 FRONT ST
BOISE, ID 83702

Database(s) : [ALL SITES - ID, FA - ID, LUST - ID, UST - 
ID]

ALL SITES - ID

Facility Name : MCGUFFIN FUEL & FEED
Facility Address : 1601 FRONT ST, BOISE
County : Ada

Reference ID : 9143
Box Number : 2011BAZ4342
Program : Leaking Underground Storage Tanks
All Programs for Site : Leaking Underground Storage Tanks, Underground Storage Tanks
Covenant : N/R
Latitude : 43.61763
Longitude : -116.21241
Last Date in Agency List : 03/19/2020

FA - ID

Facility Name : MCGUFFIN FUEL & FEED
Facility Address : 1601 FRONT ST, BOISE, 83702

Site Details
Date Certified : 04/17/1990
Facility ID : 3-010500
Facility Type : State Government
Facility Status : Closure
Facility Phone : N/R
Within 1000 Feet of a Drinking Water 
Source: Yes
Latitude : 43.61763
Longitue : -116.21241
Last Date in Agency List : 02/15/2016

Financial Responsibility
Expiration Date : N/R
Type : N/R

LUST - ID

Facility Name : MCGUFFIN FUEL & FEED
Facility Address : 1601 FRONT ST, BOISE, 83702

Site Details
Release Date : 03/30/1992
Cleanup Date : 03/10/1998
LUST ID : 347
Facility ID : 3-010500
Status : Site Cleanup Completed
Cleanup Method : N/R
Last Date in Agency List : 04/08/2020

Page 79 of 1422



Environmental Records Searched 2020

FEDERAL RCRA CORRACTS FACILITIES LIST

CORRACTS: List of facilities where Resource Conservation and Recovery Act Corrective Action Program used to investigate and 
remediate hazardous releases

Agency Version Date: 02/10/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 07/23/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 202-566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 04/24/2020

HIST CORRACTS 2: List of facilities where Resource Conservation and Recovery Act Corrective Action Program used to 
investigate and remediate hazardous releases that are no longer in current agency list.

Agency Version Date: 10/12/2018
Agency Update Frequency: Annually
Planned Next Contact: 06/26/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 202-566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 03/30/2020

FEDERAL DELISTED NPL SITE LIST

DELISTED NPL: National Priority List of sites that were delisted and no longer require action

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 703-603-8867
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

DELISTED PROPOSED NPL: Sites that have been delisted from the proposed National Priority List

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 703-603-8867
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

SEMS_DELETED NPL: All Deleted National Priority List Sties

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 703-603-8867
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

FEDERAL LANDFILL AND/OR SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITE LISTS

EPA LF MOP: Sites in the EPA Landfill Methane Outreach Program

Agency Version Date: 02/10/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 07/17/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 703-603-8867
Most Recent Contact: 04/20/2020

FEDERAL ERNS LIST

ERNS: Emergency Response Notification System records of reported spills

Agency Version Date: 03/18/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Annually
Planned Next Contact: 05/20/2020

Agency: National Response Center United States Coast Guard
Agency Contact: N/R
Most Recent Contact: 03/18/2020

FEDERAL RCRA GENERATORS LIST

HIST RCRA_CESQG: List of Resource Conservation and Recovery Act licensed conditionally exempt small quantity generators 
that are no longer in current agency list.

Agency Version Date: 10/12/2018
Agency Update Frequency: Annually
Planned Next Contact: 06/26/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 215-814-2469
Most Recent Contact: 03/30/2020

Page 777 of 1422



Environmental Records Searched 2020

FEDERAL RCRA GENERATORS LIST (cont.)

HIST RCRA_LQG: List of Resource Conservation and Recovery Act licensed large quantity generators that are no longer in current 
agency list.

Agency Version Date: 10/12/2018
Agency Update Frequency: Annually
Planned Next Contact: 06/26/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 215-814-2469
Most Recent Contact: 03/30/2020

HIST RCRA_NONGEN: List of Resource Conservation and Recovery Act licensed non-generators that are no longer in current 
agency list.

Agency Version Date: 10/12/2018
Agency Update Frequency: Annually
Planned Next Contact: 06/26/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 215-814-2469
Most Recent Contact: 03/30/2020

HIST RCRA_SQG: List of Resource Conservation and Recovery Act licensed small quantity generators that are no longer in 
current agency list.

Agency Version Date: 10/12/2018
Agency Update Frequency: Annually
Planned Next Contact: 06/26/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 215-814-2469
Most Recent Contact: 03/30/2020

RCRA_LQG: Resource Conservation and Recovery Act listing of licensed large quantity generators

Agency Version Date: 02/10/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 07/23/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 215-814-2469
Most Recent Contact: 04/24/2020

RCRA_NONGEN: Resource Conservation and Recovery Act listing of licensed non-generators

Agency Version Date: 02/10/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/23/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 215-814-2469
Most Recent Contact: 04/24/2020

RCRA_SQG: Resource Conservation and Recovery Act listing of licensed small quantity generators

Agency Version Date: 02/10/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 07/23/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 215-814-2469
Most Recent Contact: 04/24/2020

RCRA_VSQG: Resource Conservation and Recovery Act listing of licensed very small quantity generators.

Agency Version Date: 02/10/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/23/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 215-814-2469
Most Recent Contact: 04/24/2020

FEDERAL NPL SITE LIST

NPL: List of priority contaminated sites among identified releases or threatened releases of hazardous substances  pollutants or 
contaminants nationally

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 703-603-8867
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

NPL EPA R1 GIS: Geospatial data for the Environmental Protection Agency Region 1 National Priority List subject to 
environmental regulation

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 202-566-2132
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

Page 778 of 1422



Environmental Records Searched 2020

FEDERAL NPL SITE LIST (cont.)

NPL EPA R3 GIS: Geospatial data for the Environmental Protection Agency Region 3 National Priority List subject to 
environmental regulation

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 202-566-2132
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

NPL EPA R6 GIS: Geospatial data for the Environmental Protection Agency Region 6 National Priority List subject to 
environmental regulation

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 202-566-2132
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

NPL EPA R8 GIS: Geospatial data for the Environmental Protection Agency Region 8 National Priority List subject to 
environmental regulation

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 202-566-2132
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

NPL EPA R9 GIS: Geospatial data for the Environmental Protection Agency Region 9 National Priority List subject to 
environmental regulation

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 202-566-2132
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

PART NPL: Sites that are a part of an National Priority List site referred to as the parent site

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 703-603-8867
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

PROPOSED NPL: Sites that have been proposed for the National Priority List

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 703-603-8867
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

SEMS_FINAL NPL: All Included National Priority List Sites

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 703-603-8867
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

SEMS_PROPOSED NPL: All Proposed National Priority List Sites

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 703-603-8867
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

FEDERAL INSTITUTIONAL CONTROLS / ENGINEERING CONTROLS REGISTRIES

RCRA IC_EC: Sites with institutional or engineering controls related to Resource Conservation and Recovery Act

Agency Version Date: 03/24/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 06/02/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 215-814-2469
Most Recent Contact: 03/24/2020

Page 779 of 1422



Environmental Records Searched 2020

FEDERAL INSTITUTIONAL CONTROLS / ENGINEERING CONTROLS REGISTRIES (cont.)

Fed E C: Federal listing of remediation sites with engineering controls

Agency Version Date: 09/30/2013
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 06/29/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 800-424-9346
Most Recent Contact: 04/01/2020

Fed I C: Federal listing of remediation sites with institutional controls

Agency Version Date: 09/30/2013
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 06/29/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 800-424-9346
Most Recent Contact: 04/01/2020

STATE AND TRIBAL REGISTERED STORAGE TANK LISTS

FEMA UST: FEMA underground storage tank listing

Agency Version Date: 06/21/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/27/2020

Agency: FEMA
Agency Contact: 202-212-5283
Most Recent Contact: 04/30/2020

INDIAN UST R1: Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 1

Agency Version Date: 03/03/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 08/10/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 1
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 05/12/2020

INDIAN UST R10: Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 10

Agency Version Date: 10/11/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 06/08/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 10
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 03/30/2020

INDIAN UST R2: Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 2

Agency Version Date: 12/07/2016
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/18/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 2
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 03/09/2020

INDIAN UST R4: Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 4

Agency Version Date: 10/10/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Semi Annually
Planned Next Contact: 06/08/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 4
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 03/30/2020

INDIAN UST R5: Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 5

Agency Version Date: 10/01/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/28/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 5
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 03/19/2020

INDIAN UST R6: Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 6

Agency Version Date: 01/23/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Semi Annually
Planned Next Contact: 06/29/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 6
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 04/02/2020

Page 780 of 1422



Environmental Records Searched 2020

STATE AND TRIBAL REGISTERED STORAGE TANK LISTS (cont.)

INDIAN UST R7: Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 7

Agency Version Date: 10/11/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/28/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 7
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 03/19/2020

INDIAN UST R8: Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 8

Agency Version Date: 10/03/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 08/07/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 8
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 05/11/2020

INDIAN UST R9: Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 9

Agency Version Date: 04/08/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 08/07/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 9
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 05/11/2020

HIST UST - ID: List of underground storage tank that is no longer in current agency list.

Agency Version Date: 04/18/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Annually
Planned Next Contact: 08/04/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environmental Quality
Agency Contact: 208-373-0347
Most Recent Contact: 05/08/2020

UST - ID: Underground storage tank listing

Agency Version Date: 04/02/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 06/29/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environmental Quality
Agency Contact: 208-373-0347
Most Recent Contact: 04/02/2020

STATE AND TRIBAL LEAKING STORAGE TANK LISTS

INDIAN LUST R1: Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 1

Agency Version Date: 03/03/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 08/10/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 1
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 05/12/2020

INDIAN LUST R10: Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 10

Agency Version Date: 10/11/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 06/08/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 10
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 03/30/2020

INDIAN LUST R2: Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 2

Agency Version Date: 12/07/2016
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/18/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 2
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 03/09/2020

INDIAN LUST R4: Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 4

Agency Version Date: 10/10/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Semi Annually
Planned Next Contact: 06/08/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 4
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 03/30/2020

Page 781 of 1422



Environmental Records Searched 2020

STATE AND TRIBAL LEAKING STORAGE TANK LISTS (cont.)

INDIAN LUST R5: Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 5

Agency Version Date: 10/01/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/28/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 5
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 03/19/2020

INDIAN LUST R6: Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 6

Agency Version Date: 01/13/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 06/01/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 6
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 03/23/2020

INDIAN LUST R7: Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 7

Agency Version Date: 03/19/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/28/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 7
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 03/19/2020

INDIAN LUST R8: Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 8

Agency Version Date: 10/03/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/29/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 8
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 03/20/2020

INDIAN LUST R9: Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land in EPA Region 9

Agency Version Date: 10/04/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 08/07/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 9
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 05/11/2020

LUST - ID: Leaking underground storage tank sites listing

Agency Version Date: 04/08/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 07/06/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environmental Quality
Agency Contact: 208-373-0247
Most Recent Contact: 04/08/2020

STATE AND TRIBAL BROWNFIELD SITES

TRIBAL BROWNFIELDS: Tribal brownfield remediation site listing

Agency Version Date: 02/10/2014
Agency Update Frequency: No Longer Maintained
Planned Next Contact: 07/13/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 04/15/2020

BROWNFIELDS - ID: Listing of brownfield remediation sites

Agency Version Date: 03/19/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/28/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environmental Quality
Agency Contact: 208-373-0246
Most Recent Contact: 03/19/2020

STATE AND TRIBAL LANDFILL AND/OR SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITE LISTS

HIST LF - ID: A 1997 listing of historical landfills

Agency Version Date: 04/26/2017
Agency Update Frequency: No Longer Maintained
Planned Next Contact: 07/13/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environmental Quality
Agency Contact: 208-373-0416
Most Recent Contact: 04/14/2020

Page 782 of 1422



Environmental Records Searched 2020

STATE AND TRIBAL LANDFILL AND/OR SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITE LISTS (cont.)

SWF 2 - ID: List of Solid Waste facilities from Facility Mapper.

Agency Version Date: 03/18/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/27/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environmental Quality
Agency Contact: 208-373-0416
Most Recent Contact: 03/18/2020

SWF CLOSED - ID: Closed solid waste facilities and landfill listing

Agency Version Date: 06/28/2018
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 07/17/2020

Agency: IDAHO DEPARTMENT of ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
Agency Contact: N/R
Most Recent Contact: 04/22/2020

SWF/LF - ID: Solid waste facility and landfill listing

Agency Version Date: 03/18/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Annually
Planned Next Contact: 05/27/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environmental Quality
Agency Contact: 208-373-0416
Most Recent Contact: 03/18/2020

STATE- AND TRIBAL - EQUIVALENT CERCLIS

SHWS - ID: State hazardous waste sites

Agency Version Date: 03/19/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/28/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environmental Quality
Agency Contact: 208-373-0246
Most Recent Contact: 03/19/2020

STATE AND TRIBAL VOLUNTARY CLEANUP SITES

VCP - ID: Voluntary cleanup program remediation sites

Agency Version Date: 03/19/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/28/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environmental Quality
Agency Contact: 208-373-0246
Most Recent Contact: 03/19/2020

LOCAL BROWNFIELD LISTS

BROWNFIELDS-ACRES: EPA Brownfields Assessment, Cleanup and Redevelopment Exchange System.

Agency Version Date: 02/12/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 07/06/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 04/09/2020

Fed Brownfields: Federal brownfield remediation sites

Agency Version Date: 03/10/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Semi Annually
Planned Next Contact: 05/19/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 03/10/2020

LOCAL LISTS OF HAZARDOUS WASTE / CONTAMINATED SITES

FED CDL: The U.S. Department of Justice listing of clandestine drug lab locations

Agency Version Date: 03/02/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 08/07/2020

Agency: U.S. Department of Justice
Agency Contact: 202-307-7610
Most Recent Contact: 05/11/2020

Page 783 of 1422



Environmental Records Searched 2020

LOCAL LISTS OF HAZARDOUS WASTE / CONTAMINATED SITES (cont.)

US HIST CDL: The U.S. Department of Justice historical listing of clandestine drug lab locations

Agency Version Date: 08/05/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 06/19/2020

Agency: U.S. Department of Justice
Agency Contact: 202-307-7610
Most Recent Contact: 03/23/2020

CDL - ID: Clandestine drug lab location listing

Agency Version Date: 03/30/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 06/08/2020

Agency: Idaho Dept of Health and Welfare
Agency Contact: 800-445-8647
Most Recent Contact: 03/30/2020

HIST CDL - ID: Listing of Clandestine drug lab location that is no longer in current agency list.

Agency Version Date: 09/06/2018
Agency Update Frequency: Annually
Planned Next Contact: 05/29/2020

Agency: Idaho Dept of Health and Welfare
Agency Contact: 800-445-8647
Most Recent Contact: 03/02/2020

LOCAL LISTS OF LANDFILL / SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITES

HIST INDIAN ODI R8: List of Region 8 Indian land open dump inventory sites maintained within the STARS program that is no 
longer in current agency list.

Agency Version Date: 11/12/2018
Agency Update Frequency: Annually
Planned Next Contact: 08/11/2020

Agency: Indian Health Service
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 05/15/2020

INDIAN ODI R8: Region 8 Indian land open dump inventory sites maintained within the STARS program

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: Indian Health Service
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

ODI: Open dump inventory sites

Agency Version Date: 10/03/2017
Agency Update Frequency: No Update
Planned Next Contact: 06/09/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 03/31/2020

TRIBAL ODI: Indian land open dump inventory for all regions

Agency Version Date: 06/27/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 06/29/2020

Agency: Indian Health Service
Agency Contact: 301-443-3593
Most Recent Contact: 04/02/2020

HIST SWRCY - ID: List of recycling facility that are no longer in current agency list.

Agency Version Date: 04/13/2015
Agency Update Frequency: Annually
Planned Next Contact: 06/16/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Agency Contact: 208-373-0146
Most Recent Contact: 03/18/2020

SWRCY - ID: Recycling facility listing

Agency Version Date: 04/13/2015
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 07/17/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Agency Contact: 208-373-0146
Most Recent Contact: 04/20/2020

Page 784 of 1422



Environmental Records Searched 2020

LOCAL LISTS OF LANDFILL / SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITES (cont.)

SWTIRE - ID: A listing of registered waste tire collectors

Agency Version Date: 03/22/2016
Agency Update Frequency: No Longer Maintained
Planned Next Contact: 06/23/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environmental Quality
Agency Contact: 208-373-0416
Most Recent Contact: 03/25/2020

RECORDS OF EMERGENCY RELEASE REPORTS

HMIRS (DOT): Hazardous Material spills reported by the Department of Transportation

Agency Version Date: 02/04/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/13/2020

Agency: U.S. Department of Transportation
Agency Contact: (202) 366-4996
Most Recent Contact: 04/15/2020

HIST SPILLS - ID: Historical oil and hazardous material spills report sites that are no longer in current agency list.

Agency Version Date: 06/14/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 08/07/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Health and Welfare
Agency Contact: 208-334-5564
Most Recent Contact: 05/13/2020

SPILLS - ID: Oil and hazardous material spills report sites

Agency Version Date: 02/18/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 08/07/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Health and Welfare
Agency Contact: 208-334-5564
Most Recent Contact: 05/13/2020

LOCAL LAND RECORDS

LIENS 2: Comprehensive Environmental Response  Compensation and Liability Act sites with liens

Agency Version Date: 05/11/2017
Agency Update Frequency: No Longer Maintained
Planned Next Contact: 07/13/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 800-424-9346
Most Recent Contact: 04/15/2020

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS

AFS: Air Facility Systems Quarterly Extract

Agency Version Date: 03/20/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/29/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 03/20/2020

ALT FUELING: Alternative Fueling Stations by fuel type.

Agency Version Date: 02/12/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 07/21/2020

Agency: U.S. Department of Energy
Agency Contact: N/R
Most Recent Contact: 04/22/2020

BRS: Reporting of hazardous waste generation and management from large quantity generators

Agency Version Date: 02/10/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Biennial
Planned Next Contact: 07/23/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 04/24/2020

CDC HAZDAT: The Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry's Hazardous Substance Release/Health Effects Database.

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry
Agency Contact: 770-488-6399
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

Page 785 of 1422



Environmental Records Searched 2020

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS (cont.)

COAL ASH DOE: List of existing and planned generators with 1 megawatt or greater of combined capacity that are utilizing coal 
ash impoundments.

Agency Version Date: 11/28/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/14/2020

Agency: Department of Energy
Agency Contact: (202) 586-8800
Most Recent Contact: 04/16/2020

COAL ASH EPA: Coal Combustion Residues Surface Impoundments List

Agency Version Date: 07/31/2014
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 06/01/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 03/23/2020

COAL GAS: Manufactured Gas Plant locations

Agency Version Date: 02/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 07/31/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 05/04/2020

CONSENT (DECREES): Legal decisions regarding responsibility for Superfund locations

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (800) 424-9346
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

DEBRIS R5 LF: US EPA Region 5 Disaster Debris Recovery Database is a list of public facilities for disaster construction and 
demolition materials, electronics, household hazardous waste, metals, tires, and vehicles in EPA Region 5.

Agency Version Date: 02/28/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 08/04/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 05/08/2020

DEBRIS R5 SWRCY: US EPA Region 5 Disaster Debris Recovery Database is a list of public facilities for disaster construction and 
demolition materials, electronics, household hazardous waste, metals, tires, and vehicles in EPA Region 5.

Agency Version Date: 02/28/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 08/04/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 05/08/2020

DOD: Department of Defense sites

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (800) 424-9346
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

DOT OPS: Incident Data Report

Agency Version Date: 01/20/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 06/08/2020

Agency: U.S. Department of Transportation
Agency Contact: (202) 366-4996
Most Recent Contact: 03/30/2020

ECHO: ECHO is EPA Enforcement and Compliance History Online website to search for facilities in your community to assess 
their compliance with environmental regulations related to CAA, CWA, RCRA, & SDWA.

Agency Version Date: 02/10/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 07/17/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 202-566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 04/20/2020

Page 786 of 1422



Environmental Records Searched 2020

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS (cont.)

ENOI: The Electronic Notice of Intent (eNOI) database contains construction sites and industrial facilities that submit permit 
requests to EPA for Construction General Permits (CGP) and Multi-Sector General Permits (MSGP).

Agency Version Date: 11/15/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 06/30/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 04/03/2020

EPA FUELS: List of companies and facilities registered to participate in EPA Fuel Programs under Title 40 CFR Part 80.

Agency Version Date: 03/20/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/29/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 564-2307
Most Recent Contact: 03/20/2020

EPA OSC: Listing of oil spills and hazardous substance release sites requiring EPA On-Site Coordinators.

Agency Version Date: 02/05/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 07/13/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 564-2307
Most Recent Contact: 04/15/2020

EPA WATCH: The EPA Watch List was used to facilitate dialogue between EPA, state and local environmental agencies on 
enforcement matters relating to facilities with alleged violations identified as either significant or high priority. EPA maintained 
the lists from 2011 - 2013.

Agency Version Date: 02/09/2018
Agency Update Frequency: No Longer Maintained
Planned Next Contact: 07/13/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 564-2307
Most Recent Contact: 04/14/2020

FA HWF: Hazardous Waste Facilities with Financial Assurance

Agency Version Date: 02/25/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/31/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (800) 424-9346
Most Recent Contact: 05/05/2020

FEDLAND: Federal land locations

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (800) 424-9346
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

FRS: Facility Registry Systems

Agency Version Date: 12/12/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 06/04/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 03/26/2020

FTTS: Tracking of administrative and enforcement activities related to FIFRA/TSCA

Agency Version Date: 04/16/2013
Agency Update Frequency: No Longer Maintained
Planned Next Contact: 07/31/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 564-2280
Most Recent Contact: 05/06/2020

FTTS INSP: Tracking of inspections related to FIFRA/TSCA

Agency Version Date: 05/08/2017
Agency Update Frequency: No Longer Maintained
Planned Next Contact: 07/24/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 564-2280
Most Recent Contact: 04/29/2020

Page 787 of 1422



Environmental Records Searched 2020

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS (cont.)

FUDS: Defense sites that require cleanup

Agency Version Date: 03/23/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 06/01/2020

Agency: US Army Corps of Engineering
Agency Contact: (202) 761-0011
Most Recent Contact: 03/23/2020

HIST AFS: List of Air Facility Systems Quarterly Extract that are no longer in current agency list.

Agency Version Date: 06/14/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 07/13/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 04/15/2020

HIST AFS 2: List of Air Facility Systems Quarterly Extract that are no longer in current agency list.

Agency Version Date: 11/26/2018
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/19/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 02/21/2020

HIST DOD: Department of Defense historical sites

Agency Version Date: 08/17/2018
Agency Update Frequency: No Longer Maintained
Planned Next Contact: 05/26/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (800) 424-9346
Most Recent Contact: 02/28/2020

HIST LEAD_SMELTER: List of former lead smelter sites that is no longer in current agency list.

Agency Version Date: 12/12/2018
Agency Update Frequency: Annually
Planned Next Contact: 07/31/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 05/04/2020

HIST MLTS: List of sites in possession/use of radioactive materials regulated by NRC that is no longer in current agency list.

Agency Version Date: 07/13/2016
Agency Update Frequency: Annually
Planned Next Contact: 08/11/2020

Agency: Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Agency Contact: (800) 397-4209
Most Recent Contact: 05/15/2020

HIST PCB TRANS: List of PCB Disposal Facilities that are no longer in current agency list.

Agency Version Date: 01/18/2018
Agency Update Frequency: No Update
Planned Next Contact: 06/01/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (703) 308-8404
Most Recent Contact: 03/03/2020

HIST PCS ENF: List of permitted facilities to discharge wastewater (Federal equivalent to NPDES) that are no longer in current 
agency list.

Agency Version Date: 12/08/2018
Agency Update Frequency: Annually
Planned Next Contact: 06/22/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 564-6582
Most Recent Contact: 03/24/2020

HIST PCS FACILITY: List of Permitted facilities to discharge wastewater (Federal equivalent to NPDES) that are no longer in 
current agency list.

Agency Version Date: 12/18/2018
Agency Update Frequency: Annually
Planned Next Contact: 06/22/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 564-6582
Most Recent Contact: 03/24/2020

Page 788 of 1422



Environmental Records Searched 2020

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS (cont.)

HIST SSTS: List of tracking of facilities who produce pesticides and their quantity that are no longer in current agency list.

Agency Version Date: 02/13/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Annually
Planned Next Contact: 06/05/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 03/09/2020

HWC DOCKET: Listing of Federal facilities which are managing or have managed hazardous waste; or have had a release of 
hazardous waste.

Agency Version Date: 10/28/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/29/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 564-2307
Most Recent Contact: 03/20/2020

ICIS: Comprised of all Federal Administrative and Judicial enforcement information [intended to replace PCS] by tracking 
enforcement and compliance information (also contains what used to be known as FFTS)

Agency Version Date: 02/11/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/20/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 04/21/2020

INACTIVE PCS: Inactive Permitted facilities to discharge wastewater

Agency Version Date: 02/11/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/20/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 564-6582
Most Recent Contact: 04/21/2020

INDIAN RESERVATION: Indian Reservation sites

Agency Version Date: 02/25/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/31/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (800) 424-9346
Most Recent Contact: 05/05/2020

LUCIS: Land Use Control Information Systems

Agency Version Date: 01/23/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 07/15/2020

Agency: Department of the Navy: BRAC PMO
Agency Contact: (619) 532-0900
Most Recent Contact: 04/17/2020

LUCIS 2: Land Use Control Information Systems

Agency Version Date: 01/17/2018
Agency Update Frequency: No Longer Maintained
Planned Next Contact: 06/01/2020

Agency: Department of the Navy: BRAC PMO
Agency Contact: (619) 532-0900
Most Recent Contact: 03/03/2020

MINES: Mines Master Index Files

Agency Version Date: 02/12/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/21/2020

Agency: Department of Labor
Agency Contact: (202) 693-9400
Most Recent Contact: 04/22/2020

MINES USGS: Listing of all active mines and mineral plants in 2003

Agency Version Date: 02/17/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/24/2020

Agency: USGS Mineral Resources Program
Agency Contact: (703) 648-5953
Most Recent Contact: 04/27/2020

Page 789 of 1422



Environmental Records Searched 2020

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS (cont.)

MLTS: Sites in possession/use of radioactive materials regulated by NRC

Agency Version Date: 03/31/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/19/2020

Agency: Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Agency Contact: (800) 397-4209
Most Recent Contact: 02/21/2020

NPL AOC: Areas of Concern related to NPL remediation sites

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: N/R
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

NPL LIENS: National Priority List of sites with Liens

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 703-603-8867
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

OSHA: OSHA's listing of inspections  violations and fatality information

Agency Version Date: 02/11/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/20/2020

Agency: Occupational Safety & Health Administration
Agency Contact: 800-321-6742
Most Recent Contact: 04/21/2020

PADS: Listing of generators  transporters  commercial store/ brokers and disposers of PCB

Agency Version Date: 03/13/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/22/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (703) 308-8404
Most Recent Contact: 03/13/2020

PCB TRANSFORMER: Disposal and Storage of Polychlorinated Biphenyl (PCB) Waste

Agency Version Date: 03/25/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 06/03/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (703) 308-8404
Most Recent Contact: 03/25/2020

PCS ENF: Permitted facilities to discharge wastewater  (Federal equivalent to NPDES)

Agency Version Date: 02/11/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/20/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 564-6582
Most Recent Contact: 04/21/2020

PCS FACILITY: Permitted facilities to discharge wastewater  (Federal equivalent to NPDES)

Agency Version Date: 02/11/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/20/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 564-6582
Most Recent Contact: 04/21/2020

RAATS: Listing of major violators with enforcement actions issued under RCRA. Includes administrative and civil actions filed by 
the EPA. This dataset is no longer maintained.

Agency Version Date: 09/23/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/18/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 02/20/2020

RADINFO: EPA regulated facilities with radiation and radioactive materials

Agency Version Date: 08/01/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 08/03/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 05/07/2020

Page 790 of 1422



Environmental Records Searched 2020

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS (cont.)

RMP: Facilities producing/handling/ process/ distribute/ store specific chemicals report plans required by the Clean Air Act

Agency Version Date: 03/17/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Monthly
Planned Next Contact: 07/27/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 564-2534
Most Recent Contact: 04/30/2020

ROD: Permanent remedy at an NPL site

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (800) 424-9346
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

SCRD DRYCLEANERS: State Coalition for Remediation of Drycleaners

Agency Version Date: 01/23/2020
Agency Update Frequency: No Update
Planned Next Contact: 06/29/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 04/02/2020

SEMS_SMELTER: This report includes sites that have smelting-related, or potentially smelting-related, indicators in the SEMS 
database. The report includes information on the site location as well as contaminants of concern.

Agency Version Date: 01/06/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 05/25/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 703-603-8867
Most Recent Contact: 03/16/2020

SSTS: Tracking of facilities who produce pesticides  and their quantity

Agency Version Date: 01/29/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Annually
Planned Next Contact: 07/06/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 04/08/2020

STORMWATER: Permitted storm water sites

Agency Version Date: 02/11/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/20/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 04/21/2020

TOSCA-PLANT: Plants controlled by the Toxic Substance Control Act

Agency Version Date: 04/08/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/06/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 04/08/2020

TRIS: Information regarding toxic chemicals that are being used/manufactured/ treated/ transported/released into the 
environment

Agency Version Date: 02/10/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/17/2020

Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: (202) 566-1667
Most Recent Contact: 04/20/2020

UMTRA: Uranium Recovery Sites

Agency Version Date: 07/18/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 07/22/2020

Agency: United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Agency Contact: (301) 415-8200
Most Recent Contact: 04/23/2020

Page 791 of 1422



Environmental Records Searched 2020

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS (cont.)

VAPOR: EPA Vapor Intrusion Database

Agency Version Date: 02/08/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 06/30/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: 855-246-3642
Most Recent Contact: 04/03/2020

Corrective Actions_2020: In 2009 the EPA created the 2020 Corrective Action Baseline list of contaminated or potentially 
contaminated sites with a cleanup goal to complete 95% by the year 2020. The names on the list indicate the facility owners 
who may or may not have caused the contamination.

Agency Version Date: 12/21/2018
Agency Update Frequency: No Longer Maintained
Planned Next Contact: 05/18/2020

Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Agency Contact: N/R
Most Recent Contact: 02/20/2020

AIRS - ID: Listing of facilities with air permits

Agency Version Date: 01/01/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/20/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Agency Contact: 208-373-0437
Most Recent Contact: 03/11/2020

ALL SITES - ID: Listing of all remediation sites

Agency Version Date: 03/19/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/28/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environmental Quality
Agency Contact: 208-373-0246
Most Recent Contact: 03/19/2020

DAYCARE - ID: Daycare facility listing

Agency Version Date: 03/04/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 08/10/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Health and Welfare
Agency Contact: 800-926-2588
Most Recent Contact: 05/13/2020

DRYCLEANERS - ID: Drycleaner facility listing

Agency Version Date: 09/05/2018
Agency Update Frequency: No Update
Planned Next Contact: 07/13/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Agency Contact: 208-373-0234
Most Recent Contact: 04/14/2020

ENVCVN - ID: Remediation sites with environmental covenants

Agency Version Date: 03/19/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/28/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environmental Quality
Agency Contact: 208-373-0246
Most Recent Contact: 03/19/2020

FA - ID: Underground storage tank financial assurance listing

Agency Version Date: 01/08/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 05/20/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Agency Contact: 208-373-0347
Most Recent Contact: 03/18/2020

FA 2 - ID: Solid waste facility financial assurance listing

Agency Version Date: 05/31/2016
Agency Update Frequency: No Update
Planned Next Contact: 07/31/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Agency Contact: 208-373-0523
Most Recent Contact: 05/06/2020

Page 792 of 1422



Environmental Records Searched 2020

OTHER ASCERTAINABLE RECORDS (cont.)

T 2 - ID: List of facilities that must submit an Emergency and Hazardous Chemical Inventory Form

Agency Version Date: 12/12/2019
Agency Update Frequency: Varies
Planned Next Contact: 06/04/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Agency Contact: 208-373-0437
Most Recent Contact: 03/26/2020

UIC - ID: Underground injection well site locations listing

Agency Version Date: 02/12/2020
Agency Update Frequency: Quarterly
Planned Next Contact: 07/21/2020

Agency: Idaho Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Agency Contact: 208-287-4800
Most Recent Contact: 04/22/2020

Page 793 of 1422

















































































































 
CRAIG A. SIMON, P.E. 

www.casandassociatesllc.com 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIALIST & PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER 
 

EDUCATION 
 

BS, Mining Engineering, University of Utah, 1975 
Minor, Geology. 
Environmental Manager, Hazardous Waste Management 
Colorado School of Mines, 1991. 
 
PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION 

 
Professional Engineer (Idaho and Oregon Licensed)  
State of Idaho Vendor Registration No. 30267 
 
EXPERIENCE 
 

CAS & Associates 
Principal (1994-Current) 
CAS & Associates is a Boise, Idaho based environmental consulting organization specializing in 
underground and above ground storage tank (UST/AST) permitting, related subsoil and 
groundwater investigations, Risk Based Corrective Action (RBCA)/Risk Evaluation Manual 
(REM) evaluations and remediation of petroleum impacted subsoil and groundwater.  CAS & 
Associates has gained a close and respected relationship with the US Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA), the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) and all of the clients 
which it has served.  
  
Specific areas of expertise include: 
 

Limited Phase I Environmental Site Assessments  (ESAs).  All Appropriate Inquiry Rules and  
ASTM Standard E 1527-05. 
Phase II environmental investigations involving the collection of groundwater and subsoil 
samples through trenching, hollow-stem auger drills or direct-push units. 
Installation of Idaho Department of Water Resources approved groundwater 

monitoring wells. 
Collection of subsoil and groundwater samples for laboratory analyses of selected chemicals of 
concern 
Site Characterization Investigations. 
Risk Based Corrective Action (RBCA) and Risk Evaluation Manual (REM) Evaluations. 
Design and installation of subsoil and groundwater remediation systems  (i.e., groundwater 
sparging, subsoil excavation for land treatment, subsoil remediation via vapor extraction) 
EPA required Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasures (SPCCs) Plans and Facility 
Response Plans (FRPs). 
 
 
 
 



 
Chen-Northern Engineering 
Project Engineer (1992-1994) 
Project engineer for numerous UST related projects.  Many of these projects were 
completed for the Idaho Petroleum Storage Tank Fund (PSTF) Bureau and the Idaho 
Department of Transportation. 
 
Residuals Management, Inc. 
Project Engineer (1992) 
Engineering efforts were directed towards: the remediation of hazardous wastes (i.e., PCBs, 
mercury, petroleum hydrocarbons), waste reduction programs and emergency response plans.  
Manifested and selected RCRA disposal facilities (i.e., incineration and stabilization) for 
industrial clients in the Pacific Northwest.  Responsibilities for staffing, budget preparation and 
project management.   
 
CAS & Associates 
Principal (1990-1991) 
Mining and geologic consultant to the J. R. Simplot Company (Simplot Exploration, Nampa, 
Idaho).  Evaluated the geologic reserves (proven-probable-possible) and economic feasibility of a 
historical gold mine in eastern Oregon.  Project manager of a large minerals exploration program 
(gold and industrial minerals) in Northeast Washington for Boise Cascade Corporation. 
 
Boise Cascade Corporation 
Manager, Mineral Projects  (1982-1990) 
Responsible for the economic and technical evaluation of mineral exploration and development 
programs covering four million acres of timberlands in the United States and Canada.  Through a 
program of joint ventures and company funding; precious metals, base metals and industrial 
minerals were targeted for exploration and eventual development.  Other responsibilities included 
lease and joint venture negotiations (minerals and oil and gas), permitting of exploration and 
hydroelectric projects plus compilation of the Mineral/Hydroelectric Department's annual capital, 
operating and administrative budgets. 
 
Dames & Moore Consulting 
Project Engineer (1977-1981) 
 
Completed detailed operating and capital cost schedules for large truck/in-pit (mobile) crushing 
and conveying systems within the Powder River Basin, Wyoming.  A tour of the major lignite 
mines in Germany took place during this period for familiarization with bucket-wheel-excavators 
(BWEs) and associated high-volume, low-cost, material-handling systems.  Additionally, a 
mining plan involving detailed capital and operating costs was completed for the Rio Blanco Oil 
Shale project. 
 
Additional responsibilities included: the economic valuation of mineral properties, principally 
industrial minerals (i.e., phosphate, coal, uranium); mine plan review and mine feasibility studies 
for two coal properties in New South Wales, Australia; economic feasibility audit of a large coal 
property in Alaska; principal design engineer for underground and open-pit uranium mines in 
New Mexico; mine design, equipment selection, and cost analysis at the world's largest tar sands 
(at that time-perhaps the world's largest mine of any commodity) in Fort McMurray, Alberta, 
Canada. 
 
 



 
Centennial Development Company 
Engineer  (1976-1977) 
 
Project engineer and supervisor for this underground construction company with headquarters in 
Salt Lake City, Utah.  During this period, an underground decline, vertical shaft and development 
headings were completed, in respectively, deposits of coal, copper, and borate.  The projects were 
undertaken in the Western US 
 
CF&I Steel Corporation  
Engineer  (1975-1976) 
 
Responsibilities included mine ventilation (i.e., methane & dust control), development surveying 
and long-term mine planning for a 1,000,000 ton per year underground coal mine in Southern 
Colorado.  Both room-and-pillar and longwall mining methods were employed 
 







TRGC Form: O ALTA Owner’s Policy 6/17/2006
Copyright 2006-2010 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved. 
The use of this Form is restricted to ALTA licensees and ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use.
All other uses are prohibited. Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association

2470-O-20363584

OWNER’S POLICY OF TITLE INSURANCE
Issued By

TITLE RESOURCES GUARANTY COMPANY

Any notice of claim and any other notice or statement in writing required to be given to the Company under this 
Policy must be given to the Company at the address shown in Section 18 of the Conditions.

COVERED RISKS 

SUBJECT TO THE EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE, THE EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE CONTAINED IN 
SCHEDULE B, AND THE CONDITIONS, TITLE RESOURCES GUARANTY COMPANY, a Texas corporation (the 
“Company”) insures, as of Date of Policy and, to the extent stated in Covered Risks 9 and 10, after Date of Policy, against 
loss or damage, not exceeding the Amount of Insurance, sustained or incurred by the Insured by reason of:
1. Title being vested other than as stated in Schedule A.
2. Any defect in or lien or encumbrance on the Title.  This Covered Risk includes but is not limited to insurance against 

loss from
(a) A defect in the Title caused by

(i) forgery, fraud, undue influence, duress, incompetency, incapacity, or impersonation;
(ii) failure of any person or Entity to have authorized a transfer or conveyance;
(iii) a document affecting Title not properly created, executed, witnessed, sealed, acknowledged, notarized, or 

delivered;
(iv) failure to perform those acts necessary to create a document by electronic means authorized by law;
(v) a document executed under a falsified, expired, or otherwise invalid power of attorney;
(vi) a document not properly filed, recorded, or indexed in the Public Records including failure to perform those 

acts by electronic means authorized by law; or
(vii)  a defective judicial or administrative proceeding.

(b) The lien of real estate taxes or assessments imposed on the Title by a governmental authority due or payable, but 
unpaid.

(c) Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title that would be 
disclosed by an accurate and complete land survey of the Land.  The term ”encroachment” includes 
encroachments of existing improvements located on the Land onto adjoining land, and encroachments onto the 
Land of existing improvements located on adjoining land.

3. Unmarketable Title.
4. No right of access to and from the Land.
5. The violation or enforcement of any law, ordinance, permit, or governmental regulation (including those relating to 

building and zoning) restricting, regulating, prohibiting, or relating to 
(a) the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the Land; 
(b) the character, dimensions, or location of any improvement erected on the Land; 
(c) the subdivision of land; or 
(d) environmental protection if a notice, describing any part of the Land, is recorded in the Public Records setting 

forth the violation or intention to enforce, but only to the extent of the violation or enforcement referred to in that 
notice.

6. An enforcement action based on the exercise of a governmental police power not covered by Covered Risk 5 if a 
notice of the enforcement action, describing any part of the Land, is recorded in the Public Records, but only to the 
extent of the enforcement referred to in that notice.

7. The exercise of the rights of eminent domain if a notice of the exercise, describing any part of the Land, is recorded in 
the Public Records.

8. Any taking by a governmental body that has occurred and is binding on the rights of a purchaser for value without 
Knowledge.

9. Title being vested other than as stated in Schedule A or being defective
 (a) as a result of the avoidance in whole or in part, or from a court order providing an alternative remedy, of a transfer 

of all or any part of the title to or any interest in the Land occurring prior to the transaction vesting Title as shown 



TRGC Form: O ALTA Owner’s Policy 6/17/2006
Copyright 2006-2010 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved. 
The use of this Form is restricted to ALTA licensees and ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use.
All other uses are prohibited. Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association

in Schedule A because that prior transfer constituted a fraudulent or preferential transfer under federal 
bankruptcy, state insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights laws; or

(b) because the instrument of transfer vesting Title as shown in Schedule A constitutes a preferential transfer under 
federal bankruptcy, state insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights laws by reason of the failure of its recording in the 
Public Records
(i) to be timely, or
(ii) to impart notice of its existence to a purchaser for value or to a judgment or lien creditor.

10. Any defect in or lien or encumbrance on the Title or other matter included in Covered Risks 1 through 9 that has been 
created or attached or has been filed or recorded in the Public Records subsequent to Date of Policy and prior to the 
recording of the deed or other instrument of transfer in the Public Records that vests Title as shown in Schedule A.

The Company will also pay the costs, attorneys' fees, and expenses incurred in defense of any matter insured against by 
this Policy, but only to the extent provided in the Conditions.

In Witness Whereof, Title Resources Guaranty Company has caused this policy to be signed and sealed by duly 
authorized officers as of Date of Policy shown in Schedule A.

An authorized signature

EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE

The following matters are expressly excluded from the coverage of this policy, and the Company will not pay loss or 
damage, costs, attorneys' fees, or expenses that arise by reason of:
1. (a) Any law, ordinance, permit, or governmental regulation (including those relating to building and zoning) restricting, 

regulating, prohibiting, or relating to
(i) the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the Land;
(ii) the character, dimensions, or location of any improvement erected on the Land; 
(iii) the subdivision of land; or  
(iv) environmental protection; 
or the effect of any violation of these laws, ordinances, or governmental regulations.  This Exclusion 1(a) does not 
modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 5.  

(b) Any governmental police power.  This Exclusion 1(b) does not modify or limit the coverage provided under 
Covered Risk 6.

2. Rights of eminent domain.  This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 7 or 8. 
3. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims, or other matters  

(a) created, suffered, assumed, or agreed to by the Insured Claimant; 
(b) not Known to the Company, not recorded in the Public Records at Date of Policy, but Known to the Insured 

Claimant and not disclosed in writing to the Company by the Insured Claimant prior to the date the Insured 
Claimant became an Insured under this policy;  

(c) resulting in no loss or damage to the Insured Claimant;  
(d) attaching or created subsequent to Date of Policy (however, this does not modify or limit the coverage provided 

under Covered Risk 9 and 10); or
(e) resulting in loss or damage that would not have been sustained if the Insured Claimant had paid value for the 

Title.  
4. Any claim, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights laws, that the 

transaction vesting the Title as shown in Schedule A, is
(a) a fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer; or
(b) a preferential transfer for any reason not stated in Covered Risk 9 of this policy. 

5. Any lien on the Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed by governmental authority and created or attaching 



TRGC Form: O ALTA Owner’s Policy 6/17/2006
Copyright 2006-2010 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved. 
The use of this Form is restricted to ALTA licensees and ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use.
All other uses are prohibited. Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association

between Date of Policy and the date of recording of the deed or other instrument of transfer in the Public Records that 
vests Title as shown in Schedule A.

CONDITIONS

1. DEFINITION OF TERMS
The following terms when used in this policy mean:  
(a) “Amount of Insurance”:  The amount stated in Schedule A, as may be increased or decreased by endorsement to 

this policy, increased by Section 8(b), or decreased by Sections 10 and 11 of these Conditions.  
(b) “Date of Policy”:  The date designated as “Date of Policy” in Schedule A.  
(c) “Entity”:  A corporation, partnership, trust, limited liability company, or other similar legal entity.
(d) “Insured":  The Insured named in Schedule A.  

(i) the term "Insured" also includes
(A) successors to the Title of the Insured by operation of law as distinguished from purchase, including heirs, 

devisees, survivors, personal representatives, or next of kin;    
(B) successors to an Insured by dissolution, merger, consolidation, distribution, or reorganization;  
(C) successors to an Insured by its conversion to another kind of Entity;  
(D) a grantee of an Insured under a deed delivered without payment of actual valuable consideration  

conveying the Title
(1) if the stock, shares, memberships, or other equity interests of the grantee are wholly-owned by the 

named Insured,  
(2) if the grantee wholly owns the named Insured,  
(3) if the grantee is wholly-owned by an affiliated Entity of the named Insured, provided the affiliated 

Entity and the named Insured are both wholly-owned by the same person or Entity, or
(4) if the grantee is a trustee or beneficiary of a trust created by a written instrument established by the 

Insured named in Schedule A for estate planning purposes.
(ii) with regard to (A), (B), (C), and (D) reserving, however, all rights and defenses as to any successor that the 

Company would have had
against any predecessor Insured.

(e) "Insured Claimant":  An Insured claiming loss or damage.  
(f) "Knowledge" or "Known":  Actual knowledge, not constructive knowledge or notice that may be imputed to an 

Insured by reason of the Public Records or any other records that impart constructive notice of matters affecting 
the Title.  

(g) “Land":  The land described in Schedule A, and affixed improvements that by law constitute real property.  The 
term "Land” does not include any property beyond the lines of the area described in Schedule A, nor any right, 
title, interest, estate, or easement in abutting streets, roads, avenues, alleys, lanes, ways, or waterways, but this 
does not modify or limit the extent that a right of access to and from the Land is insured by this policy.  

(h) "Mortgage":  Mortgage, deed of trust, trust deed, or other security instrument, including one evidenced by 
electronic means authorized by law.  

(i) "Public Records":  Records established under state statutes at Date of Policy for the purpose of imparting 
constructive notice of matters relating to real property to purchasers for value and without Knowledge.  With 
respect to Covered Risk 5(d), "Public Records" shall also include environmental protection liens filed in the 
records of the clerk of the United States District Court for the district where the Land is located.  

(j) “Title”:  The estate or interest described in Schedule A.  
(k) "Unmarketable Title”: Title affected by an alleged or apparent matter that would permit a prospective purchaser or 

lessee of the Title or lender on the Title to be released from the obligation to purchase, lease, or lend if there is a 
contractual condition requiring the delivery of marketable title.  

2. CONTINUATION OF INSURANCE
The coverage of this policy shall continue in force as of Date of Policy in favor of an Insured, but only so long as the 
Insured retains an estate or interest in the Land, or holds an obligation secured by a purchase money Mortgage given 
by a purchaser from the Insured, or only so long as the Insured shall have liability by reason of warranties in any 
transfer or conveyance of the Title.  This policy shall not continue in force in favor of any purchaser from the Insured 
of either (i) an estate or interest in the Land, or (ii) an obligation secured by a purchase money Mortgage given to the 
Insured.

3. NOTICE OF CLAIM TO BE GIVEN BY INSURED CLAIMANT 
The Insured shall notify the Company promptly in writing (i) in case of any litigation as set forth in Section 5(a) of 



TRGC Form: O ALTA Owner’s Policy 6/17/2006
Copyright 2006-2010 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved. 
The use of this Form is restricted to ALTA licensees and ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use.
All other uses are prohibited. Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association

these Conditions, (ii) in case Knowledge shall come to an Insured hereunder of any claim of title or interest that is 
adverse to the Title, as insured, and that might cause loss or damage for which the Company may be liable by virtue 
of this policy, or (iii) if the Title, as insured, is rejected as Unmarketable Title.  If the Company is prejudiced by the 
failure of the Insured Claimant to provide prompt notice, the Company's liability to the Insured Claimant under the 
policy shall be reduced to the extent of the prejudice.

4. PROOF OF LOSS
In the event the Company is unable to determine the amount of loss or damage, the Company may, at its option, 
require as a condition of payment that the Insured Claimant furnish a signed proof of loss.  The proof of loss must 
describe the defect, lien, encumbrance, or other matter insured against by this policy that constitutes the basis of loss 
or damage and shall state, to the extent possible, the basis of calculating the amount of the loss or damage.  

5. DEFENSE AND PROSECUTION OF ACTIONS
(a) Upon written request by the Insured, and subject to the options contained in Section 7 of these Conditions, the 

Company, at its own cost and without unreasonable delay, shall provide for the defense of an Insured in litigation 
in which any third party asserts a claim covered by this policy adverse to the Insured.  This obligation is limited to 
only those stated causes of action alleging matters insured against by this policy.  The Company shall have the 
right to select counsel of its choice (subject to the right of the Insured to object for reasonable cause) to represent 
the Insured as to those stated causes of action.  It shall not be liable for and will not pay the fees of any other 
counsel.  The Company will not pay any fees, costs, or expenses incurred by the Insured in the defense of those 
causes of action that allege matters not insured against by this policy.  

(b) The Company shall have the right, in addition to the options contained in Section 7 of these Conditions, at its own 
cost, to institute and prosecute any action or proceeding or to do any other act that in its opinion may be 
necessary or desirable to establish the Title, as insured, or to prevent or reduce loss or damage to the Insured.  
The Company may take any appropriate action under the terms of this policy, whether or not it shall be liable to 
the Insured.  The exercise of these rights shall not be an admission of liability or waiver of any provision of this 
policy.  If the Company exercises its rights under this subsection, it must do so diligently.  

(c) Whenever the Company brings an action or asserts a defense as required or permitted by this policy, the 
Company may pursue the litigation to a final determination by a court of competent jurisdiction, and it expressly 
reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to appeal any adverse judgment or order.  

6. DUTY OF INSURED CLAIMANT TO COOPERATE
(a) In all cases where this policy permits or requires the Company to prosecute or provide for the defense of any 

action or proceeding and any appeals, the Insured shall secure to the Company the right to so prosecute or 
provide defense in the action or proceeding, including the right to use, at its option, the name of the Insured for 
this purpose.  Whenever requested by the Company, the Insured, at the Company's expense, shall give the 
Company all reasonable aid (i) in securing evidence, obtaining witnesses, prosecuting or defending the action or 
proceeding, or effecting settlement, and (ii) in any other lawful act that in the opinion of the Company may be 
necessary or desirable to establish the Title or any other matter as insured.  If the Company is prejudiced by the 
failure of the Insured to furnish the required cooperation, the Company's obligations to the Insured under the 
policy shall terminate, including any liability or obligation to defend, prosecute, or continue any litigation, with 
regard to the matter or matters requiring such cooperation.

(b) The Company may reasonably require the Insured Claimant to submit to examination under oath by any 
authorized representative of the Company and to produce for examination, inspection, and copying, at such 
reasonable times and places as may be designated by the authorized representative of the Company, all records, 
in whatever medium maintained, including books, ledgers, checks, memoranda, correspondence, reports, e-
mails, disks, tapes, and videos whether bearing a date before or after Date of Policy, that reasonably pertain to 
the loss or damage.  Further, if requested by any authorized representative of the Company, the Insured Claimant 
shall grant its permission, in writing, for any authorized representative of the Company to examine, inspect, and 
copy all of these records in the custody or control of a third party that reasonably pertain to the loss or damage.  
All information designated as confidential by the Insured Claimant provided to the Company pursuant to this 
Section shall not be disclosed to others unless, in the reasonable judgment of the Company, it is necessary in the 
administration of the claim.  Failure of the Insured Claimant to submit for examination under oath, produce any 
reasonably requested information, or grant permission to secure reasonably necessary information from third 
parties as required in this subsection, unless prohibited by law or governmental regulation, shall terminate any 
liability of the Company under this policy as to that claim.

7. OPTIONS TO PAY OR OTHERWISE SETTLE CLAIMS; TERMINATION OF LIABILITY
In case of a claim under this policy, the Company shall have the following additional options:  



TRGC Form: O ALTA Owner’s Policy 6/17/2006
Copyright 2006-2010 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved. 
The use of this Form is restricted to ALTA licensees and ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use.
All other uses are prohibited. Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association

(a) To Pay or Tender Payment of the Amount of Insurance.  
To pay or tender payment of the Amount of Insurance under this policy together with any costs, attorneys' fees, 
and expenses incurred by the Insured Claimant that were authorized by the Company up to the time of payment 
or tender of payment and that the Company is obligated to pay. 
Upon the exercise by the Company of this option, all liability and obligations of the Company to the Insured under 
this policy, other than to make the payment required in this subsection, shall terminate, including any liability or 
obligation to defend, prosecute, or continue any litigation.  

(b) To Pay or Otherwise Settle With Parties Other Than the Insured or With the Insured Claimant.  
(i) to pay or otherwise settle with other parties for or in the name of an Insured Claimant any claim insured 

against under this policy.  In addition, the Company will pay any costs, attorneys' fees, and expenses incurred 
by the Insured Claimant that were authorized by the Company up to the time of payment and that the 
Company is obligated to pay; or  

(ii) to pay or otherwise settle with the Insured Claimant the loss or damage provided for under this policy, 
together with any costs, attorneys' fees, and expenses incurred by the Insured Claimant that were authorized 
by the Company up to the time of payment and that the Company is obligated to pay.  

Upon the exercise by the Company of either of the options provided for in subsections (b)(i) or (ii), the Company's 
obligations to the Insured under this policy for the claimed loss or damage, other than the payments required to 
be made, shall terminate, including any liability or obligation to defend, prosecute, or continue any litigation.  

8. DETERMINATION AND EXTENT OF LIABILITY
This policy is a contract of indemnity against actual monetary loss or damage sustained or incurred by the Insured 
Claimant who has suffered loss or damage by reason of matters insured against by this policy.  
(a) The extent of liability of the Company for loss or damage under this policy shall not exceed the lesser of

(i) the Amount of Insurance; or
(ii) the difference between the value of the Title as insured and the value of the Title subject to the risk insured 

against by this policy. 
(b) If the Company pursues its rights under Section 5 of these Conditions and is unsuccessful in establishing the 

Title, as insured, 
(i) the Amount of Insurance shall be increased by 10%, and
(ii) the Insured Claimant shall have the right to have the loss or damage determined either as of the date the 

claim was made by the Insured Claimant or as of the date it is settled and paid.  
(c) In addition to the extent of liability under (a) and (b), the Company will also pay those costs, attorneys' fees, and 

expenses incurred in accordance with Sections 5 and 7 of these Conditions.
9. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

(a) If the Company establishes the Title, or removes the alleged defect, lien, or encumbrance, or cures the lack of a 
right of access to or from the Land, or cures the claim of Unmarketable Title, all as insured, in a reasonably 
diligent manner by any method, including litigation and the completion of any appeals, it shall have fully performed 
its obligations with respect to that matter and shall not be liable for any loss or damage caused to the Insured.  

(b) In the event of any litigation, including litigation by the Company or with the Company's consent, the Company 
shall have no liability for loss or damage until there has been a final determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, and disposition of all appeals, adverse to the Title, as insured.

(c) the Company shall not be liable for loss or damage to the Insured for liability voluntarily assumed by the Insured 
in settling any claim or suit without the prior written consent of the Company.

10. REDUCTION OF INSURANCE; REDUCTION OR TERMINATION OF LIABILITY
All payments under this policy, except payments made for costs, attorneys’ fees, and expenses, shall reduce the 
Amount of Insurance by the amount of the payment. 

11. LIABILITY NONCUMULATIVE
The Amount of Insurance shall be reduced by any amount the Company pays under any policy insuring a Mortgage to 
which exception is taken in Schedule B or to which the Insured has agreed, assumed, or taken subject, or which is 
executed by an Insured after Date of Policy and which is a charge or lien on the Title, and the amount so paid shall be 
deemed a payment to the Insured under this policy.

12. PAYMENT OF LOSS
When liability and the extent of loss or damage have been definitely fixed in accordance with these Conditions, the 
payment shall be made within 30 days.

13. RIGHTS OF RECOVERY UPON PAYMENT OR SETTLEMENT
(a) Whenever the Company shall have settled and paid a claim under this policy, it shall be subrogated and entitled 



TRGC Form: O ALTA Owner’s Policy 6/17/2006
Copyright 2006-2010 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved. 
The use of this Form is restricted to ALTA licensees and ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use.
All other uses are prohibited. Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association

to the rights of the Insured Claimant in the Title and all other rights and remedies in respect to the claim that the 
Insured Claimant has against any person or property, to the extent of the amount of any loss, costs, attorneys' 
fees, and expenses paid by the Company.  If requested by the Company, the Insured Claimant shall execute 
documents to evidence the transfer to the Company of these rights and remedies.  The Insured Claimant shall 
permit the Company to sue, compromise, or settle in the name of the Insured Claimant and to use the name of 
the Insured Claimant in any transaction or litigation involving these rights and remedies.
If a payment on account of a claim does not fully cover the loss of the Insured Claimant, the Company shall defer 
the exercise of its right to recover until after the Insured Claimant shall have recovered its loss.

(b) The Company’s right of subrogation includes the rights of the Insured to indemnities, guaranties, other policies of 
insurance, or bonds, notwithstanding any terms or conditions contained in those instruments that address 
subrogation rights. 

14. ARBITRATION
Either the Company or the Insured may demand that the claim or controversy shall be submitted to arbitration 
pursuant to the Title Insurance Arbitration Rules of the American Land Title Association (“Rules”).  Except as provided 
in the Rules, there shall be no joinder or consolidation with claims or controversies of other persons.  Arbitrable 
matters may include, but are not limited to, any controversy or claim between the Company and the Insured arising 
out of or relating to this policy, any service in connection with its issuance or the breach of a policy provision, or to any 
other controversy or claim arising out of the transaction giving rise to this policy.  All arbitrable matters when the 
Amount of Insurance is $2,000,000 or less shall be arbitrated at the option of either the Company or the Insured.  All 
arbitrable matters when the Amount of Insurance is in excess of $2,000,000 shall be arbitrated only when agreed to 
by both the Company and the Insured.  Arbitration pursuant to this policy and under the Rules shall be binding upon 
the parties.  Judgment upon the award rendered by the Arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court of competent 
jurisdiction.

15. LIABILITY LIMITED TO THIS POLICY; POLICY ENTIRE CONTRACT
(a) This policy together with all endorsements, if any, attached to it by the Company is the entire policy and contract 

between the Insured and the Company.  In interpreting any provision of this policy, this policy shall be construed 
as a whole. 

(b) Any claim of loss or damage that arises out of the status of the Title or by any action asserting such claim shall be 
restricted to this policy.

(c) Any amendment of or endorsement to this policy must be in writing and authenticated by an authorized person, or 
expressly incorporated by Schedule A of this policy.

(d) Each endorsement to this policy issued at any time is made a part of this policy and is subject to all of its terms 
and provisions.  Except as the endorsement expressly states, it does not (i) modify any of the terms and 
provisions of the policy, (ii) modify any prior endorsement, (iii) extend the Date of Policy, or (iv) increase the 
Amount of Insurance.

16. SEVERABILITY
In the event any provision of this policy, in whole or in part, is held invalid or unenforceable under applicable law, the 
policy shall be deemed not to include that provision or such part held to be invalid, but all other provisions shall remain 
in full force and effect.

17. CHOICE OF LAW; FORUM
(a) Choice of Law:  The Insured acknowledges the Company has underwritten the risks covered by this policy and 

determined the premium charged therefor in reliance upon the law affecting interests in real property and 
applicable to the interpretation, rights, remedies, or enforcement of policies of title insurance of the jurisdiction 
where the Land is located.
Therefore, the court or an arbitrator shall apply the law of the jurisdiction where the Land is located to determine 
the validity of claims against the Title that are adverse to the Insured and to interpret and enforce the terms of this 
policy. In neither case shall the court or arbitrator apply its conflicts of law principles to determine the applicable 
law.

(b) Choice of Forum:  Any litigation or other proceeding brought by the Insured against the Company must be filed 
only in a state or federal court within the United States of America or its territories having appropriate jurisdiction.

18. NOTICES, WHERE SENT
Any notice of claim and any other notice or statement in writing required to be given to the Company under this policy 
must be given to the Company at: 8111 LBJ Freeway, Ste. 1200, Dallas, TX 75251, or 
trgcclaims@titleresources.com.



File Number:  20363584 ALTA Owner’s Policy (6/17/06)
Policy Number:  2470-O-20363584

TitleOne
Authorized Agent for:
Title Resources Guaranty Company

SCHEDULE A

Name and Address of Title Insurance Company: Title Resources Guaranty Company
8111 LBJ Freeway, Ste. 1200
Dallas, TX  75251

File Number: 20363584

Policy Number: 2470-O-20363584

Date of Policy: July 2, 2020 at 1:22PM

Amount of Insurance: $605,000.00

Premium: $2,080.00

Property Address Reference: 1715 W Idaho Street, Boise, ID  83702

1. Name of Insured:
The Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Boise, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, organized under the laws of the State of 
Idaho, doing business as Capital City Development Corporation

2. The estate or interest in the land that is insured by this policy is:
Fee Simple

3. Title is vested in:
The Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Boise, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, organized under the laws of the State of 
Idaho, doing business as Capital City Development Corporation

4. The Land referred to in this policy is described as follows:
See Attached Schedule C

TitleOne
By: 

Scott Thiel, Authorized Signatory



File Number:  20363584 ALTA Owner’s Policy (6/17/06)
Policy Number:  2470-O-20363584

SCHEDULE B
Exceptions from Coverage  

  
File Number: 20363584
Policy Number: 2470-O-20363584
 
This policy does not insure against loss or damage, and the Company will not pay costs, attorneys' fees, or expenses that arise by reason 
of:   
  
1. Rights or claims of parties in possession not shown by the public records.

2. Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title that would be disclosed by an accurate and 
complete land survey of the Land, and that is not shown by the Public Records.

3. Easements, or claims of easements, not shown by the public records.

4. Any lien, or right to a lien, for services, labor, or materials heretofore or hereafter furnished, imposed by law and not shown by the public records.

5. (a) Unpatented mining claims; (b) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof; (c) water rights, claims to title 
to water, whether or not the matters excepted under (a), (b), or (c) are shown by the public records.

6. Taxes or special assessments which are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that levies taxes or assessments on 
real property or by the public records. Proceedings by a public agency which may result in taxes or assessments, or notices to such proceedings 
whether or not shown by the records of such agency, or by the public records.

7. Taxes, including any assessments collected therewith, for the year 2020 which are a lien not yet due and payable.

Note: New Parcel number for the year 2020.
Parcel Number: R5538941262

8. The land described herein is located within the boundaries of Boise City (208-384-3735) and is subject to any assessments levied thereby. None 
are due and payable. 

9. The land described herein is located within the boundaries of Boise City Canal Company and is subject to any assessments levied thereby. None 
are due and payable. 

10. Easements, reservations, restrictions, and dedications as shown on the official plat of McCarty's 2nd Addition recorded in Book 2 of Plats at Page 
85, records of Ada County, Idaho.

11. Terms and provisions contained in City of Boise Ordinance No. 6108.
Recorded: December 12, 2011
Instrument No.: 101131220, records of Ada County, Idaho.

12. All matters, and any rights, easements, interests or claims as disclosed by Record of Survey 11766 recorded March 26, 2019 as Instrument No. 
2019-023510, records of Ada County, Idaho.

13. Terms and provisions contained in a Notice of Buildable Parcel for Parcel Consolidation.
Recorded: March 26, 2019
Instrument No.: 2019-023512, records of Ada County, Idaho.



File Number:  20363584 ALTA Owner’s Policy (6/17/06)
Policy Number:  2470-O-20363584

SCHEDULE C
Legal Description

Lots 8 and 9 in Block 11 and the Westerly 45 feet of Lot 10 in Block 11 of McCarty's Second Subdivision, according to the official plat thereof, filed in 
Book 2 of Plats at Page(s) 85, official records of Ada County, Idaho.



 

 

Appraisal Report 
Idaho Street Residential Land 

1715 W. Idaho Street 
Boise, Ada County, Idaho 83702 

 
Report Date: May 15, 2020 

 

FOR: 
John Brunelle, Executive Director 

Capital City Development Corporation 
121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 

Boise, Idaho 83702 
 

Client Number: PO# 200072 
 

 

 

 

Valbridge Property Advisors | 

Mountain States 

 
1459 Tyrell Lane, Suite B 
Boise, ID 83706 
208-336-1097 phone Valbridge File Number: 
208-345-1175 fax  ID02-20-0088-000  
valbridge.com



1459 Tyrell Lane, Suite B 

Boise, Idaho  83706 

208.336.1097 phone 

208.345.1175 fax 

valbridge.com 
 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  

Joe Corlett, MAI, SRA 

Moe Therrien, MAI 

Kevin Ritter, MAI 

Jeff Vance, MAI 

Derek Newton, CGA 

Dave Pascua, RT 

Paul Dehlin, MAI 

May 15, 2020 
 

John Brunelle, Executive Director 

Capital City Development Corporation 

121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 

Boise, Idaho 83702 
 

RE: Appraisal Report 

Idaho Street Residential Land 

1715 W. Idaho Street 

Boise, Ada County, Idaho 83702 
 

Dear Mr. Brunelle: 
 

In accordance with your request, we have performed an appraisal of the above referenced property. 

This appraisal report sets forth the pertinent data gathered, the techniques employed, and the 

reasoning leading to our value opinions. This letter of transmittal does not constitute an appraisal 

report and the rationale behind the value opinion(s) reported cannot be adequately understood 

without the accompanying appraisal report. 
 

The subject property is 0.406 acres of high-density residential zoned land located in downtown Boise.  

The site is vacant and ready for development.   The property is under contract for purchase at a pending 

price of $605,000.  Based on the valuation presented herein, the pending sale price is supported by 

our conclusion of market value.   
 

The subject was appraised using generally accepted principles and theory.  We developed our analyses, 

opinions, and conclusions and prepared this report in conformity with the Uniform Standards of 

Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) of the Appraisal Foundation; the Interagency Appraisal and 

Evaluation Guidelines; the Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice 

of the Appraisal Institute; and the requirements of our client as we understand them.  The report is 

presented in Appraisal Report format and complies with the requirements set forth under Standards 

Rule 2-2(a) of USPAP.  It presents a narrative discussion of the pertinent data gathered, the techniques 

employed, and the reasoning leading to our value opinions.   
 

The appraisal problem is to develop an opinion of Market Value: As Is.  The client in this assignment is 

Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC).  The intended use is to document market value to assist 

in the potential purchase of the subject property.  The intended users of this report include the client 

and any duly appointed representatives of the client, specifically authorized by the client to view or 

use this appraisal in accordance with the stated purpose or function.   
 

Significant Market Factor 

The global outbreak of a "novel coronavirus" (known as COVID-19) was officially declared a pandemic 

by the World Health Organization (WHO) on March 11, 2020.  On March 13, 2020, the State of Idaho 

issued an emergency declaration, which included a stay-at-home order through April 30, 2020.  

Pertaining to the business sector, only essential businesses are to remain open.  Approximately 55%  

 



Mr. John Brunelle 

Capital City Development Corporation 

Page 2 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  

of businesses in Idaho are considered essential under the stay-at-home order.  The national, regional, 

and local economy have been adversely impacted with rapidly increasing unemployment that is 

actively being countered by government stimulus packages with the hopes of stabilizing the economy.  

The pandemic has created near-term uncertainty, but any long-term impact the pandemic may have 

on the local economy and real estate markets is unclear at this time.  Sufficient transactional or market 

data has yet to become available to adequately measure future real estate market behavior relative to 

the pandemic.  However, market participants do expect real estate markets to be negatively impacted 

to some degree.  The duration of the pandemic is the major factor influencing the degree to which 

real estate may be impacted.  It is noted, states around the county have begun or have near-term plans 

to lift stay-at-home restrictions to “reopen” the economy from the shutdown.  On April 23, 2020, the 

State of Idaho announced a 4-stage plan for opening up Idaho.  Stage 1 guidelines went into effect 

May 1, 2020.  The document outlining the 4-stage guidelines is included in the Addenda section.   
 

The reader is reminded that the conclusions presented in this appraisal report apply only as of the 

effective date(s) indicated. The appraiser makes no representation as to the effect on the subject 

property of this event, or any event, subsequent to the effective date of the appraisal. 
 

The acceptance of this appraisal assignment and the completion of the appraisal report submitted 

herewith are subject to the General Assumptions and Limiting Conditions contained in the report. The 

findings and conclusions are further contingent upon the following extraordinary assumptions and/or 

hypothetical conditions which might have affected the assignment results: 

Extraordinary Assumptions 
• None 

Hypothetical Conditions 
• None 

Value Conclusions 
Based on the analysis contained in the following report, our value conclusions are summarized as 

follows: 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States 

 
Jeff Vance, MAI 

Senior Appraiser 

Idaho, Certification # CGA-2828 

Certificate Expires 04/18/2021  

 
Moe Therrien, MAI 

Senior Managing Director 

Idaho, Certification # CGA-8 

Certificate Expires 12/31/2020 

Component As Is

Value Type Market Value

Property Rights Appraised Fee Simple

Effective Date of Value May 8, 2020

Value Conclusion $605,000

 Value Conclusions



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page i 

Table of Contents 

Cover Page 

Letter of Transmittal 

Table of Contents ....................................................................................................................................................................... i 

Summary of Salient Facts ....................................................................................................................................................... ii 

Aerial and Site Views ............................................................................................................................................................... iii 

Location Maps ........................................................................................................................................................................... iv 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................................. 1 

Scope of Work ............................................................................................................................................................................ 4 

Regional and Market Area Analysis .................................................................................................................................... 6 

Neighborhood Analysis ....................................................................................................................................................... 15 

Site Description ....................................................................................................................................................................... 23 

Assessment and Tax Data ................................................................................................................................................... 30 

Market Analysis ....................................................................................................................................................................... 31 

Highest and Best Use ............................................................................................................................................................ 38 

Valuation - Market Value: As Is ......................................................................................................................................... 40 

Sales Comparison Approach .............................................................................................................................................. 40 

Value Conclusion - Market Value: As Is ......................................................................................................................... 48 

General Assumptions and Limiting Conditions .......................................................................................................... 49 

Certification – Jeff Vance ..................................................................................................................................................... 54 

Certification – Moe Therrien .............................................................................................................................................. 55 

Addenda .................................................................................................................................................................................... 56 

Engagement Letter ........................................................................................................................................................... 57 

Subject Photographs ........................................................................................................................................................ 62 

Purchase and Sale Agreement ..................................................................................................................................... 63 

Opening Up Idaho Guidelines ...................................................................................................................................... 72 

Glossary ................................................................................................................................................................................. 81 

Qualifications ...................................................................................................................................................................... 87 

 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  SUMMARY OF SALIENT FACTS 

 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page ii 

Summary of Salient Facts 

 
 

Property Identification

Client Identification Capital City Development Corp; PO# 200072

Property Name Idaho Street Residential Land

Property Address 1715 W. Idaho Street

Boise, Ada County, Idaho 83702

Tax Parcel Number(s) R5538941262

Property Owner Cinco Port LLC

Site

Zoning R-3DD; Multi-Family Residential w/ Downtown Design Review Overlay

FEMA Flood Map No. 16001C0277H

Flood Zone X

Gross Land Area 0.406 acres; 17,683 square feet

Usable Land Area 0.406 acres; 17,683 square feet

Existing Improvements

Improvements None

Valuation Opinions & Dates

Highest & Best Use - As Vacant High-density residential

Highest & Best Use - As Improved n/a

Reasonable Exposure Time 6-12 months

Reasonable Marketing Time 6-12 months

Date of Inspection May 8, 2020

Date of Value May 8, 2020

Date of Report May 15, 2020

Value Indications & Conclusions

Valuation - Market Value: As Is

Cost Approach Not developed

Income Capitalization Approach Not developed

Sales Comparison Approach $605,000

Conclusion - Market Value: As Is $605,000



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  AERIAL AND SITE VIEWS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page iii 

Aerial and Site Views 

AERIAL VIEW 

 
 

SITE VIEW 

 
 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  LOCATION MAPS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page iv 

Location Maps 

 
 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  INTRODUCTION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 1 

Introduction 

Client and Intended Users of the Appraisal 
The client in this assignment is Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC).  The intended users of 

this report include the client and any duly appointed representatives of the client, specifically 

authorized by the client to view or use this appraisal in accordance with the stated purpose or function.   

Intended Use of the Appraisal 
The intended use is to document market value to assist in the potential purchase of the subject 

property.   

Real Estate Identification 
The subject property is located at 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, Ada County, Idaho 83702.  The Ada 

County Assessor identifies the subject as Assessor Parcel Number R5538941262.  The property is 

located within the incorporated city limits of Boise. 

Legal Description 
The subject is legally described as: 

Parcel 1, ROS No. 11766, Record of Survey for Parcel Consolidation 1709-15 West Idaho, LLC, Boise, 

Ada County, Idaho: 

 

Use of Real Estate as of the Effective Date of Value 
The subject is a vacant site ready for development.   

Use of Real Estate as Reflected in this Appraisal 
Same as above. 

Ownership of the Property 
According to Ada County Assessor records, title to the subject property is vested in Cinco Port LLC. 

History of the Property 
Cinco Port LLC purchased the property from 1709-15 West Idaho LLC in May 2019.  This was an off-

market transaction.  Details of the transaction are unknown.  No other known transactions have 

occurred with the past three years.   

Listings/Offers/Contracts 
The subject has been listed for sale for around 1 month at a price of $595,000.  The subject is now 

under contract for purchase at a pending price of $605,000.  The seller received multiple offers and 

the price was bid up to $605,000.  The buyer is Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC).  The 

pending transaction is arms-length and both the buyer and seller appear to be typically motivated.  

The sale price is unaffected by any known special or creative financing or sales concessions granted 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  INTRODUCTION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 2 

by anyone associated with the sale.  Based on the valuation presented herein, the pending sale price 

is supported by our conclusion of market value.   

Type and Definition of Value 
The appraisal problem is to develop an opinion of the market value of the subject property. “Market 

Value,” as used in this appraisal, is defined as “the most probable price that a property should bring in 

a competitive and open market under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller each 

acting prudently and knowledgeably, and assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit 

in this definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specified date and the passing of title from 

seller to buyer under conditions whereby: 
 

• Buyer and seller are typically motivated. 

• Both parties are well informed or well advised, each acting in what they consider their own best 

interests; 

• A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market; 

• Payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial arrangements 

comparable thereto; and 

• The price represents the normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by special or 

creative financing or sale concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale.” 

(Source: 12 C.F.R. Part 34.42(g); 55 Federal Register 34696, August 24, 1990, as amended at 57 Federal Register 12202, April 9, 

1992; 59 Federal Register 29499, June 7, 1994.  Also Interagency Appraisal and Evaluation Guidelines as referenced on Page 

77472 of the Federal Register/Vol. 75, No. 237/Friday December 10, 2010/Notices) 

 

The value conclusions apply to the value of the subject property under the market conditions 

presumed on the effective date of value. Please refer to the Glossary in the Addenda section for 

additional definitions of terms used in this report. 

Valuation Scenarios, Property Rights Appraised, and Effective Dates of Value 
Per the scope of our assignment we developed opinions of value for the subject property under the 

following scenarios of value: 

 
 

The “as is” date of value coincides with the date of the property inspection.    

Date of Report 
The date of this report is May 15, 2020 which is the same as the date of the letter of transmittal.  

List of Items Requested but Not Provided 
None 

  

   Valuation Scenario Property Rights Appraised Effective Date of Value

Market Value: As Is Fee Simple May 8, 2020



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  INTRODUCTION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 3 

Assumptions and Conditions of the Appraisal 
The acceptance of this appraisal assignment and the completion of the appraisal report submitted 

herewith are subject to the General Assumptions and Limiting Conditions contained in the report. The 

findings and conclusions are further contingent upon the following extraordinary assumptions and/or 

hypothetical conditions which might have affected the assignment results: 

Extraordinary Assumptions 

• None 

Hypothetical Conditions 

• None



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  SCOPE OF WORK 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 4 

Scope of Work 

The elements addressed in the Scope of Work are (1) the extent to which the subject property is 

identified, (2) the extent to which the subject property is inspected, (3) the type and extent of data 

researched, (4) the type and extent of analysis applied, (5) the type of appraisal report prepared, and 

(6) the inclusion or exclusion of items of non-realty in the development of the value opinion. These 

items are discussed as below.  

Extent to Which the Property Was Identified 
The three components of the property identification are summarized as follows: 

• Legal Characteristics - The subject was legally identified via city, county, and public records.   

• Economic Characteristics - Economic characteristics of the subject property were projected via 

comparison to properties with similar locational, physical, and financial characteristics. 

• Physical Characteristics - The site inspection was relied upon for describing the site. 

Extent to Which the Property Was Inspected 
The subject was personally inspected by Jeff Vance, MAI, on May 8, 2020.  This included walking the 

site, viewing the property from several different angles, and driving the neighborhood.  Moe Therrien, 

MAI, also performed a current site inspection of the subject. 

Type and Extent of Data Researched 
We researched and analyzed: (1) market area data, (2) property-specific market data, (3) zoning and 

land-use data, and (4) current data on comparable listings and transactions. We also interviewed 

people familiar with the subject market/property type.  

Disclosure of Comparable Verification/Inspection   

Idaho is a non-disclosure state.  Essential information like grantor, grantee, sale price, and sale date 

from real estate transactions is not required to be listed in public record.  Therefore, the appraiser must 

gather the key data details from parties involved who may have no incentive to cooperate.  Often, 

appraisers are compelled to obtain information from secondary sources.  The appraisers made 

reasonable attempts, within the scope of this work, to obtain all key information from seemingly 

reliable sources, but some data may not be completely accurate. 

 

Valbridge Property Advisors – Mountain States Appraisal and Consulting Incorporated (VPA-MSA) 

maintains an extensive database containing sale, rent, capitalization rate, and expense comparables, 

as well as other pertinent market data. Unless otherwise noted, the comparables utilized herein were 

all verified personally by Jeff Vance, MAI, and/or another appraiser employed with VPA-MSA.  

Verification was made from various sources including purchase contracts, rent rolls, real estate brokers, 

property management companies, buyers, sellers, and landlords.  The conformation source is noted 

for each comparable utilized herein.  For improved properties in the local market, we have completed 

at minimum exterior inspections of the comparables; either in conjunction with this appraisal or as a 

part of previous appraisals of other properties.  Interior inspections have been completed for some 

but not all of the local comparable properties. 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  SCOPE OF WORK 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 5 

Type and Extent of Analysis Applied (Valuation Methodology) 
We observed surrounding land use trends, the condition of any improvements, demand for the subject 

property, and relevant legal limitations in concluding a highest and best use. We then valued the 

subject based on that highest and best use conclusion. 

 

Appraisers develop an opinion of property value with specific appraisal procedures that reflect three 

distinct methods of data analysis: the cost approach, sales comparison approach, and income 

capitalization approach. One or more of these approaches are used in all estimations of value.  

• Cost Approach - In the cost approach, the value indication reflects the sum of current 

depreciated replacement or reproduction cost, land value, and an appropriate entrepreneurial 

incentive or profit.  

• Sales Comparison Approach - In the sales comparison approach, value is indicated by recent 

sales and/or listings of comparable properties in the market, with the appraiser analyzing the 

impact of material differences in both economic and physical elements between the subject 

and the comparables. 

• Income Capitalization Approach - In the income capitalization approach, value is indicated by 

the capitalization of anticipated future income. There are two types of capitalization: direct 

capitalization and yield capitalization, more commonly known as discounted cash flow (DCF) 

analysis.  

Approaches Applied 

All of these approaches to value were considered.  We assessed the availability of data and applicability 

of each approach to value within the context of the characteristics of the subject property and the 

needs and requirements of the client.  Based on this assessment only the sales comparison approach 

was developed to derive market value for the subject. Further discussion of the extent of our analysis 

and the methodology of each approach is provided later in the respective valuation sections. 

Appraisal Conformity and Report Type 
We developed our analyses, opinions, and conclusions and prepared this report in conformity with the 

Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) of the Appraisal Foundation; the 

Interagency Appraisal and Evaluation Guidelines; the Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of 

Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Institute; and the requirements of our client as we 

understand them.  The report is presented in Appraisal Report format and complies with the 

requirements set forth under Standards Rule 2-2(a) of USPAP.  It presents a narrative discussion of the 

pertinent data gathered, the techniques employed, and the reasoning leading to our value opinions.   

Personal Property/FF&E 
All items of non-realty are excluded from this analysis. The opinion of market value developed herein 

is reflective of real estate only. 

 

 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  REGIONAL AND MARKET AREA ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 6 

Regional and Market Area Analysis 

REGIONAL MAP 

 
 

BOISE MSA MAP 

 

  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  REGIONAL AND MARKET AREA ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 7 

Regional Overview 
The subject’s regional area is southwest Idaho, which is generally 

referred to as the Treasure Valley or the Boise-Nampa Metropolitan 

Statistical Area (Boise MSA). As defined by the U.S. Census Bureau, the 

Boise MSA consists of five counties (Ada, Boise, Canyon, Gem and 

Owyhee) as shown in adjacent exhibit.  The Boise MSA is the state's 

largest metropolitan statistical area and includes Idaho's three largest 

cities – Boise, Meridian, and Nampa. Approximately 41% of Idaho's total 

population resides in the Treasure Valley with 95% of the metro area’s 

population residing in Ada and Canyon counties.  

 

The metro area is currently the 3rd largest in the Pacific Northwest after 

Seattle and Portland. The general area has been a popular relocation 

destination for new residents attracted to the outdoor lifestyle, low cost 

of living, the diversity of the economy and availability of employment. 

Population  
The following graph produced by the Idaho Department of Labor illustrates population trends for the 

Boise MSA from 2008 through and 2018.  At year-end 2018, total population was 730,426.  Note, 

according to CompassIdaho.org, the population as of April 2020 was 737,790 for the Boise MSA. 

 

POPULATION 

 
 

As apparent in the graph, population growth has experienced an increasing trend during the past 

decade.  Total population growth from 2008 through 2018 was approximately 127,000 or a 21% 

increase over the ten-year period indicating a straight-line increase of 2.1% annually.   

 

  

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/United_States_Census_Bureau
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/United_States_metropolitan_area
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Pacific_Northwest
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Seattle_metropolitan_area
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Portland_metropolitan_area


1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  REGIONAL AND MARKET AREA ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 8 

Ada County Overview 

Ada County is the state’s most populated county 

with around 503,000 residents.  Incorporated cities 

in Ada County include Boise, Meridian, Eagle, 

Garden City, Kuna, and Star.  An overview of the 

cities follows: 

Cities 

Boise is the most populous city in Idaho with over 

240,000 residents.  It is the State Capitol and  Ada 

County’s seat of government.  Located along the 

Boise River, Boise is the principal city in the Boise 

MSA, and is the largest city between Salt Lake City, 

Utah and Portland, Oregon.  Boise is headquarters 

for a number of major corporations and serves as 

the primary government, economic, cultural, and 

education center for Southwest Idaho, Eastern 

Oregon, and Northern Nevada.  Boise is continually 

recognized in numerous publications as one of the 

best places to live in the country.   

 

Meridian is located adjacent west of Boise and is one of the state's fastest-growing cities.  At over 

119,000 residents, Meridian is now the 2nd largest city in the state. Because of Meridian's significant 

growth, the majority of residential neighborhoods in the city are relatively new.  Over the past two 

decades, Meridian has become a center of retail and commercial development in southwest Idaho. 

Eagle is located approximately 10 miles northwest of downtown Boise.  The population of Eagle is 

32,560 residents.  Eagle has become one of the most desirable cities in the Treasure Valley because of 

its location near the Boise River, views of the Boise Foothills, and its upscale quality of residential and 

commercial developments.   

 

Kuna is located approximately 7 miles south of Meridian.  Once a small, rural farming community, Kuna 

is now one of the fastest growing communities in Idaho.  From 2010 to 2020, the population in Kuna 

increased from 15,210 to 24,890, representing a 64% increase during this period.  City officials expect 

the population to double during the next 10 to 15 years. 

 

Garden City is located adjacent to Boise’s downtown business core.  Garden City is primarily developed 

with strip retail and service commercial uses along Chinden Boulevard and older residential 

subdivisions, mobile home parks, and older industrial buildings throughout the nonarterial streets.  At 

12,460 residents, population growth has been nominal during the past several years, because it is 

nearly fully built-up.   

 

Star is located approximately 6 miles west of Eagle.  Star has experienced strong growth during the 

past two decades and now has 11,860 residents.  Because of good proximity to employment centers 

is nearby Boise, Meridian, and Eagle, Star has become a bedroom community to those cities with a 

significant number of commuters. 

  

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ada_County,_Idaho
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ada_County,_Idaho
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Boise_River
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Salt_Lake_City,_Utah
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Utah
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Portland,_Oregon
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Oregon


1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  REGIONAL AND MARKET AREA ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 9 

Canyon County Overview 
Canyon County is located adjacent west of Ada 

County.  At over 234,500 residents, Canyon County 

is the second most populous county in Idaho. 

Canyon County’s economy is more agriculturally 

based and although it only ranks 39th (out of 44 

Idaho counties in size), it produces 10% of the 

state's agricultural income.  The county ranks 47th 

among 3,079 counties nationwide in agricultural 

production with approximately 84% of the land 

being used for this endeavor.  As a product of the 

agricultural base, a number of agricultural 

manufacturing and processing businesses are 

headquartered in the county.  Although Canyon 

County’s economy has historically been 

agriculturally-oriented, it has become more 

urbanized over the past two decades as a result of 

strong population growth.  The two largest cities 

in Canyon County are Nampa and Caldwell.  

Middleton, Greenleaf, Melba, Notus, Parma, and 

Wilder are smaller rural communities also located 

within Canyon County.  An overview of the two 

largest cities follows: 

Cities 

Nampa is located approximately 25 miles west of Boise and 30 miles east of the Oregon state line.   At 

over 106,500 residents, Nampa is the largest city in Canyon County and the 3rd largest in the state.  

Many residents commute to neighboring Ada County for work opportunities to benefit from lower 

overall housing prices and a more rural environment relative to Ada County.   

 

Caldwell is located approximately 8 miles west of Nampa.  At over 61,000 residents, Caldwell is the 2nd 

largest city in Canyon County.  Caldwell’s economy is largely agriculturally based.  Caldwell is the 

county seat of Canyon County.  

  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  REGIONAL AND MARKET AREA ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 10 

Employment 
Since bottoming out at around 292,000 during the recession years of 2008 and 2009, average annual 

total employment increased to 384,007 as of February 2020, representing an increase of 31.5%.  The 

following graph presents historical employment in the Boise MSA. 

 

 
 

Employment distribution for the Boise MSA as reported in the Idaho Department of Labor - Workforce 

Trends publication is presented following: 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  REGIONAL AND MARKET AREA ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 11 

Major employers in the Boise MSA as identified by the Idaho Department of Labor are presented in 

the following table. 

 

 

Unemployment 
Unemployment trends for the Boise metro area via Workforce Trends are presented following.  The 

black colored line shows MSA unemployment, the red line shows the State of Idaho, and the blue line 

shows the United States on an annual basis between 2009 and 2019.   

 

 
 

Consistent with the recession, unemployment increased rapidly in 2008 and then began to decrease 

in 2011 with economic recovery.  The unemployment rate in the Boise MSA was below 4% at year-end 

2016.   As of February 2020, the Boise MSA unemployment rate was 2.7%. 

 

  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  REGIONAL AND MARKET AREA ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 12 

Comments on Impact of COVID-19 

The preceding statistics are effective through February 2020, prior to the recent global outbreak of a 

COVID-19, which was officially declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization (WHO) on 

March 11, 2020.  On March 13, 2020, the State of Idaho issued an emergency declaration, which 

included a stay-at-home order through April 30, 2020.  Pertaining to the business sector, only essential 

businesses are to remain open.  Approximately 55% of businesses in Idaho are considered essential 

under the stay-at-home order.  The national, regional, and local economy have been adversely 

impacted with rapidly increasing unemployment that is actively being countered by government 

stimulus packages with the hopes of stabilizing the economy.  According to the Idaho Department of 

Labor, approximately 117,000 people in the State of Idaho have since filed unemployment claims, 

doubling the total amount of claims filed in 2019.  The Treasure Valley (Ada and Canyon Counties) 

make up 44.2% of Idaho’s workforce.  As of March 8, 2020, the Treasure Valley had a workforce of 

318,261 people.  From March 8 through May 2, as a result of the pandemic, 29,829 workers in the 

Treasure Valley filed for unemployment.  Workers of all ages are being affected, and hard-hit sectors 

include lodging, food services, health care and construction.  Some businesses are hiring, including 

grocery stores and drug stores, though the increase is nominal relative to the total job losses. The 

current unemployment rate for Ada County is unknown, as the Department of Labor has yet to 

determine given that statistics are changing rapidly.  

  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  REGIONAL AND MARKET AREA ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 13 

Household Income Profile 
Total median and average household income for both Ada County and Boise are presented in the 

following table.  Median and average household income is slightly lower in Boise versus greater Ada 

County. 

 

 

 

Transportation 
Primary ground transportation is via Interstate 84 that connects the area with Idaho Falls, Pocatello, 

and Salt Lake City, Utah to the southeast; and Portland, Oregon to the west.  The Boise MSA is also 

served by several state and U.S. highways. The nearest major airport is the Boise Airport, located in 

southeast Boise. 

  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  REGIONAL AND MARKET AREA ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 14 

Conclusions 
The Boise MSA serves as the governmental, economic, cultural center for Southwest Idaho, Eastern 

Oregon, and Northern Nevada. The Boise MSA is the 3rd largest in the Northwest, behind Seattle and 

Portland. The long-term economic outlook for the Boise MSA appears positive. Boise and surrounding 

neighboring communities are continually recognized by numerous publications as one of the best 

places to live in the country.  Idaho was recently ranked #1 in the nation for job growth (U.S. 

Department of Labor), top performing economy (Bloomberg), and personal income growth (Idaho 

Department of Labor).  The Boise was recently named the fastest growing city in the U.S. (Forbes 2018).  

Population is expected to continue an increasing trend in the foreseeable future which will likely 

strengthen the demand for real estate long-term.  

 

 

  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  NEIGHBORHOOD ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 15 

Neighborhood Analysis 

CITY MAP 

 
 

NEIGHBORHOOD MAP 

 
 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  NEIGHBORHOOD ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 16 

Overview 
The neighborhood boundaries are reasonably defined by the major commercial real estate firms within 

the local market.  Vacancy, absorption, and supply data is tracked for each submarket within Ada and 

Canyon Counties.   

 

NEIGHBORHOOD AERIAL 

 

Neighborhood Location and Boundaries 
The subject is located in North Boise, adjacent west of the Downtown Boise or Central Business District 

(CBD) submarket.   The Downtown Boise neighborhood boundaries are generally defined by the Boise 

River to the south, Broadway Avenue to the east, Hill Road and the Boise foothills to the north, and 

Americana Boulevard/N. 16th Street/N. Harrison Boulevard to the west.  The subject is located one 

block west of N. 16th Street and is primarily influenced by the Downtown Boise neighborhood due to 

its downtown fringe location.  Thus, the narrative description for the “Downtown Boise” neighborhood 

is included herein.    



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  NEIGHBORHOOD ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 17 

Demographics 
The following table depicts the area demographics within a one, three, and five-mile radius from the 

subject. 

 

 
 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  NEIGHBORHOOD ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 18 

Transportation Access 
The nearest interstate access is from the Vista Avenue and Broadway Avenue/Interstate 84 

Interchanges located approximately three miles south.  The Interstate 1-84 “connector” is located 

approximately ½ mile west of the downtown core.  The nearest major airport is the Boise Airport, 

located approximately 3.5 miles south.   

 

Main Street, Idaho Street, and Front Street are major arterials extending through the downtown core.  

Capitol Boulevard is the major northbound arterial and 9th Street is the major southbound arterial 

through the downtown core.  Myrtle Street is a major eastbound arterial located adjacent south of the 

downtown core.  State Street is a major east-west arterial located adjacent north of the downtown 

core.  

 

Neighborhood Land Use 
The downtown core is nearly fully built-out, with very few vacant sites remaining.  The neighborhood 

includes a mix of approximately 80% commercial, 15% residential, and 5% undeveloped land.  The 

commercial uses are further delineated as 70% office, 20% retail, and 10% industrial.  Downtown Boise 

is in a stage of growth/revitalization, based on typical lifecycle stages of growth, stabilization, decline, 

and revitalization. Properties include a mix of mid-and-high-rise office/mixed-use developments, 

hotels, retailers/restaurants, and special use properties such as the Boise Convention Center, Century 

Link Events Center, the Ada County Courthouse, and St. Luke’s Regional Medical Center.  Notable 

developments which have been constructed within the past 1-2 decades include the Banner Bank 

Building, City Side Lofts, Royal Plaza, The Jefferson, Aspen Lofts, and BoDo, a 500,000-square foot 

project featuring retail, restaurants, hotel, parking garage, and multiplex cinema.   

 

Major Employment Centers 
Boise is the state capitol of Idaho and the county seat with an abundant government employment in 

the neighborhood.  Saint Luke’s Regional Medical Hospital anchors the east end of the neighborhood 

and employs several thousand health care workers.   Additionally, there are several jobs in the financial 

sector provided by banking institutions and other financial service providers. 

 

Boise is the cultural hub of Treasure Valley and features 18 major cultural attractions, such as the Boise 

Art Museum, Zoo Boise, The Discover Center of Idaho and the recently renovated Egyptian Theater 

employing several hundred employees.  Other employment includes retail with an estimated 230 retail 

stores and 80 restaurants/nightclubs.   

 

Significant Recent Developments 
There are several significant developments that have been recently completed or are currently under 

construction in downtown Boise.  These include: 

 

• The 17-story 8th & Main Building is located at the corner of 8th Street and Main Street.  It was 

completed in early 2014 and reached stabilized occupancy in late 2015.  Notable tenants 

include Ruth’s Chris Steakhouse, Holland and Hart Attorneys LLP, First American Title, and 

Zions Bank. 

• Trader Joe’s, located at the corner of Capitol Boulevard and Front Street, was completed in 

early 2014.   

• Whole Foods and Walgreens, located at the eastern fringe of downtown along Broadway 

Avenue, were completed in late 2012.   



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  NEIGHBORHOOD ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 19 

• Jacks Urban Meeting Place (JUMP), a $100 million mixed-use development located at 9th and 

Front Street, was completed in 2016.   

• The JR Simplot Company corporate office headquarters building, located at 9th and Front 

Street adjacent to the JUMP project, was completed in 2017.  The building is 9-stories and 

contains 334,000 square feet of office space to be occupied by more than 900 Simplot Co. 

employees.  Simplot Co. will consolidate/expand to the headquarters building from other 

locations in Boise. 

• City Center Plaza, a $70 million mixed-use development located at the southeast corner of 8th 

Street and Main Street was completed in late 2016.  City Center Plaza includes a nine story, 

206,000 square foot office/retail building, an underground urban transit mall, and a second 

multi-story office building with two levels of parking.  The project was nearly 100% preleased 

(office 100% preleased). 

• The OneNineteen Condominiums, located at the northwest corner of Grove Street and 10th 

Street, was completed in late 2016.  The project is six-stories and includes 26 residential 

condominium units and two levels of garage parking.   

• Phase One of Afton Condominiums, located at the northeast corner of River Street and 9th 

Street, is nearing completion.  Phase One contains 28 residential condominium units and a 

parking garage.  Construction of Phase Two is under construction and will contain 39 

residential condominium units.   

• Construction began in 2016 on two large scale hotels at the corner of Capitol Boulevard and 

Myrtle Street.  The Inn at 500 Capitol is a six-story, 112-room boutique hotel; it was completed 

early 2017.  The Residence Inn by Marriott is a 10-story, 186-room hotel; it was completed late 

October 2017.  

• Another large scale hotel, Hyatt Place, located on Bannock Street between 10th Street and 11th 

Street, was completed in mid-2017.  The hotel features 152 rooms.   

• Four apartment complexes, located between Ann Morrison Park and S. Capitol Boulevard 

(across the Boise River), were completed in 2016.  The complexes total 541 units and space for 

nearly 1,500 beds.  The apartments are targeted for Boise State University students.   

• The Fowler Apartments located at the corner of Myrtle Street and S. 5th Street, is new a 7-story, 

159-unit, luxury apartment complex with main level commercial and two levels of garage 

parking.  The project was completed in early 2018.   

• The Watercooler Apartments, located at the corner of Idaho Street and S. 14th Street, was 

completed in mid-2017.  The Watercooler Apartments is a 3-story, 37-unit, apartment complex 

with main level commercial.  

• In spring 2017, Gardner Company broke ground on a large scale $70 million mixed-use 

development called Pioneer Crossing.  Pioneer Crossing, located adjacent west of JUMP 

between Front Street and Myrtle Street, includes a recently completed an 827-space parking 

garage, a Panera Bread restaurant, and a 150-room Hilton Garden Inn hotel.  A 5-story, 135,000 

square foot office building is under construction.  The office building is 50% preleased. 

• The Gibson Apartments is a new 5-story, 81 unit apartment complex located at the corner of 

5th Street and Idaho Street.  Construction began in July 2017 and was completed in 

November/December 2018. 

• Construction of a 546 stall, 6-story parking garage and integrated 138 room Hilton franchise 

Home2Suites Hotel began in mid-2019 at the northeast corner of 6th Street and Front Street.  

The project is scheduled to be complete by mid-to-late 2020.   

 

 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  NEIGHBORHOOD ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 20 

• Construction of a 10-story, 181,000 square foot office building recently began at the northwest 

corner of 11th Street and Idaho Street.  Construction on the $40-$45 million project could be 

completed by year-end 2020.  The building was 0% pre-leased when construction began.   

• An 8-story, 394-stall parking garage and integrated 174-unit apartment complex is under 

construction at the NEC of 3rd Street and Myrtle Street.  The parking garage will be located on 

levels 1-4; the apartments will be located on levels 5-8.  Construction began in fall 2019.  The 

parking garage component is scheduled for completion by late 2020 with the apartments 

projected to be completed in 2022.  

• Construction of The Vanguard recently began at the northwest corner of 6th Street and Front 

Street.  The project will be an 8-story mixed-use building containing 75 apartment units and 

main level retail.  Construction is scheduled to be complete by late spring 2021. 

• The Z by Cartee is a mixed-use project under construction at the northeast corner of Myrtle 

Street and S. 3rd Street.  The building will be 8-stories and include 163 luxury apartment units 

with main level commercial and 183 garage parking spaces.  Construction began fall 2019 and 

is projected to be complete by mid-to-late 2021.  

• Construction of the 5th & Grove mixed-use project is anticipated to begin in spring 2020, with 

completion in mid-to-late 2021.  This project will include 109 apartment units and ground level 

commercial.   

• Construction of a new St. Luke’s orthopedic hospital and medical office building are under 

construction at the corner of S. 27th Street and W. Fairview Avenue.  The 3 and 4 story buildings 

will total 230,000 square feet.  A 5 story, 670 stall parking garage will also be developed on the 

site.   

• The St. Luke’s Regional Medical Downtown Boise Campus is undergoing a major expansion.  A 

$42 million, 100,000 square foot Children’s Pavilion with underground parking was recently 

completed at the SEC of Jefferson Street and Avenue B.  Additional proposed buildings include 

a new central plant and an addition to the main hospital building.  According to Saint Luke’s 

website, the investment will range from $300 to $400 million and occur over several years. 

• A new mixed-use project is proposed to be developed at NEC of E. Myrtle and S. Avenue A.  

The project is to include 243 apartments, a 336-stall parking garage, and retail.  The project is 

in the approval stages.  No construction timeline has been finalized; completion could be as 

early as mid-2022 if approved soon.    

• Two mixed-use towers are proposed to be developed between Myrtle Street and Front Street 

on the east side of S. 5th Street.  The project is to include a 9-story tower and an 11-story tower 

linked with a parking garage over Broad Street.  The buildings are to include 90,000 square 

feet of office, main level live/work units, a restaurant, 300 garage parking spaces, and 24 

residential condominiums on the upper 6 floors.  Approvals were only recently completed; 

however, a firm construction timeline has not been announced and it is unclear whether this 

project will move forward.   

  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  NEIGHBORHOOD ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 21 

IMMEDIATE NEIGHBORHOOD AERIAL 

 

Subject Immediate Neighborhood 
The immediate neighborhood is considered the west fringe of downtown Boise (approximately 0.7 

miles northwest of the downtown core).  The subject has a mid-block location fronting W. Idaho Street 

between 17th Street and 18th Street, ½ block north of W. Main Street.  W. Main Street is the major west 

bound arterial extending from the downtown core to Garden City and west and central Boise.  During 

the past decade, the west-end area has been redeveloping from older commercial uses to a mix of 

new retail, office, and multi-family uses.  The newly developed Esther Simplot Park and Whitewater 

Park along the Boise River, and a growing population base are the primary catalysts for redevelopment.  

Esther Simplot Park was developed in two phases with the most recent phase completed in 2019. The 

Waterfront district just to the west of the park was a mix of aged light-industrial buildings and mobile 

home parks. The district has flourished since the end of the great recession with construction of several 

single-unit dwellings capitalizing on the Boise River frontage and adjacent park. Spinoff residential 

development along the 36th Street corridor and some new commercial buildings have also gained 

momentum. The College of Western Idaho acquired a site along the river and construction of several 

proposed educational building is expected to address growing enrollment.  Adare Manor, a 134-unit, 

4-story, (LIHTC) apartment complex was built in 2019 at the corner of W. Fairview Avenue and 24th 

Street.  Construction of a new St. Luke’s orthopedic hospital and medical office building are under 

construction at the corner of S. 27th Street and W. Fairview Avenue.  The 3 and 4 story buildings will 

total 230,000 square feet.  A 5 story, 670 stall parking garage will also be developed on the site.   



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  NEIGHBORHOOD ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 22 

Conclusion 
The subject location is rated good.  It is located on the west fringe of downtown Boise.  The subject 

benefits from its proximity to Boise’s downtown core.  Demand has been strong in the subject’s 

immediate neighborhood during the past several years.  Several significant commercial projects are 

currently under construction or planned for development in the downtown area, and renovation of 

older properties continues to be on-going. 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  SITE DESCRIPTION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 23 

Site Description 

The characteristics of the site are summarized as follows:  

Site Characteristics 
Location: 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, Ada County, Idaho 

Land Area: 0.406 acres or 17,683 SF 

Usable Land Area: 0.406 acres or 17,683 SF 

Shape: Rectangular 

Topography: Level 

Drainage: Appears adequate 

Grade: At street grade 

Utilities: All typical utilities are available to the property including municipal 

water and sewer, electricity, natural gas, and telephone service.   

Off-Site Improvements: Asphalt paved streets and concrete curbing and sidewalks.   

Interior or Corner: Mid-block 

Signalized Intersection: No 

Street Frontage / Access 
Access: Access is from W. Idaho Street.  Additional access is via an alleyway 

extending between N. 17th Street and N. 18th Street.  Access is 

rated average. 

Street Type: Secondary arterial (fronting the subject) 

Visibility/Exposure: The subject does not have any arterial street visibility. 

Traffic Counts: n/a  

Flood Zone Data 
Flood Map Panel/Number: 16001C0277H 

Flood Map Date: February 19, 2003 

Flood Zone: X  

Description: Zones B, C, and X are the areas outside the 1% annual chance 

floodplain, areas of 1% annual chance sheet flow flooding where 

average depths are less than one foot, areas of 1% annual chance 

stream flooding where the contributing drainage area is less than 

one square mile, or areas protected from the 1% annual chance 

flood by levees. No Base Flood Elevations or depths are shown 

within this zone. Insurance purchase is not required in these 

zones. Source: FEMA  

Other Site Conditions 
Soil Type: Subsoil and drainage appear adequate to support the existing 

use. 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  SITE DESCRIPTION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 24 

Environmental Issues: During the property inspection, we did not observe any obvious 

environmental concerns.  As real estate appraisers, we are not 

qualified to determine if any environmental hazards exist on the 

property, whether such hazards are obvious or not.  Therefore, 

this appraisal assumes any environmental hazards to be 

nonexistent or minimal. 

Easements/Encroachments: The property is not subject to any known atypical easements or 

restrictions. 

A title report was provided in connection with this assignment.  

Based on this report and our own observations, no adverse 

easements or restrictions exist.  This appraisal assumes only 

standard utility easements and governmental restrictions exist, 

none of which are assumed to impact value.  An A.L.T.A survey is 

recommended if further assurance is needed. If questions arise 

regarding easements, encroachments, or other encumbrances, 

further research is advised. 

Earthquake Zone: The subject is located within Earthquake Zone 2B, considered a 

moderate zone with respect to seismic activity. 

Adjacent Land Uses 
North: Single-family residential 

South: Commercial uses along W. Main Street 

East: Single-family residential 

West: Vacant residential lot; single-family residential 

Zoning Designation 
Zoning Jurisdiction: City of Boise 

Zoning Classification: R-3DD; Multi-family Residential District with Downtown Design 

Review Overlay District 

Permitted Uses: The R-3 zoning allows for high-density single-family and multi-

family uses. Note, the subject reportedly has preliminary approval 

to be developed with 17 units (41.9 units per acre).   

Zoning Definition: 

 

 

 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  SITE DESCRIPTION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 25 

Comment: Some properties in the immediate neighborhood have been 

rezoned to R-ODD, most notably the site on the block adjacent 

east of the subject.  The R-O zoning allows for densities of up to 

87.1 units per acre with a height maximum of 45 to 65 feet 

depending on surrounding uses.  There may be a possibility the 

subject site could be rezoned to R-O, which would allow the 

subject site to be developed with a higher density.     

As Is Condition 
Improvements: The site is unimproved.  It is vacant and ready for development.     

Site Improvements: A small portion of the site is improved with older asphalt paving 

used as a basketball court.  The site improvements are 

noncontributory.   

Photographs of Subject: The photographs in the Addenda section provide additional 

clarification as to the “As Is” condition of the property. 

Site Rating 
Location: Good 

Access: Average 

Exposure: Average 

Functional Utility: Average 

Overall Site: Average-good 

 
  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  SITE DESCRIPTION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 26 

ASSESSOR AERIAL OVERLAY 

 
 

PARCEL MAP 

 
 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  SITE DESCRIPTION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 27 

RECORD OF SURVEY 

 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  SITE DESCRIPTION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 28 

FLOOD MAP 

 

  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  SITE DESCRIPTION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 29 

ZONING MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  ASSESSMENT AND TAX DATA 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 30 

Assessment and Tax Data 

Assessment Methodology 
Property is assessed by the county assessor's office at true cash value with actual physical re-appraisals on 

a five-year cycle; with trending during the interim.   

Current Assessed Value and Property Taxes 
The subject’s current assessed value, applicable tax rates and total taxes, including direct assessments, 

are shown in the following table.   

 

 
 

According to Ada County Treasurer records, the subject’s property taxes are current as of the date of 

value.  

Tax Schedule

Parcel Assessor Assessor Assessor's Assessor's Assessor's 2019 Tax Est. Tax

Count Tax Year Number Land Size (AC) Bldg Size (SF) Value - Land Value - Imp. Total Value Rate Expense

1 2020 R5538941262 0.406 n/a $353,700 $0 $353,700 1.3569% $4,799



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  MARKET ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 31 

Market Analysis 

Introduction 
In this section, market conditions which influence the subject property are analyzed.  An analysis of 

supply and demand conditions in the subject market and submarket for multi-family development is 

presented.  The analysis begins with a discussion of the local impact of the coronavirus (COVID-19). 

 

Significant Market Factor 

The global outbreak of a "novel coronavirus" (known as COVID-19) was officially declared a pandemic 

by the World Health Organization (WHO) on March 11, 2020.  On March 13, 2020, the State of Idaho 

issued an emergency declaration, which included a stay-at-home order through April 30, 2020.  

Pertaining to the business sector, only essential businesses are to remain open.  Approximately 55% 

of businesses in Idaho are considered essential under the stay-at-home order.  The national, regional, 

and local economy have been adversely impacted with rapidly increasing unemployment that is 

actively being countered by government stimulus packages with the hopes of stabilizing the economy.  

The pandemic has created near-term uncertainty, but any long-term impact the pandemic may have 

on the local economy and real estate markets is unclear at this time.  Sufficient transactional or market 

data has yet to become available to adequately measure future real estate market behavior relative to 

the pandemic.  However, market participants do expect real estate markets to be negatively impacted 

to some degree.  The duration of the pandemic is the major factor influencing the degree to which 

real estate may be impacted.  It is noted, states around the county have begun or have near-term plans 

to lift stay-at-home restrictions to “reopen” the economy from the shutdown.  On April 23, 2020, the 

State of Idaho announced a 4-stage plan for opening up Idaho.  Stage 1 guidelines went into effect 

May 1, 2020.  The document outlining the 4-stage guidelines is included in the Addenda section.   

 

The reader is reminded that the conclusions presented in this appraisal report apply only as of the 

effective date(s) indicated. The appraiser makes no representation as to the effect on the subject 

property of this event, or any event, subsequent to the effective date of the appraisal. 

National Overview/Impact of COVID-19 
Financial markets are seeing dramatic impacts due to the novel coronavirus pandemic, and while the 

pandemic continues to be fought, no metric will be reliable to predict with certainty what value impacts 

will be. However, using trusted analytics resources we can better understand the ways in which past 

economic shocks have progressed which will help us better assess true risk associated with a particular 

CRE asset.  

 

This economic crisis is unique from others in that there are shocks to both the supply and demand 

side. This is exacerbated by record corporate debt in place. According to the Federal Reserve, American 

non-financial corporate debt has risen to 47% of GDP. In 2009 it was 43%. Two-thirds of non-financial 

corporate bonds in the US are rated “BBB” or lower.  

 

The United States has posted a 4.8% decrease in GDP for the first quarter of 2020. China’s Q1 GDP 

contracted 6.8% year over year. Drops are likely again in Q2.  

 

CRE markets are already reporting drops in transaction volumes due to travel restriction, quarantines 

and “stay at home” orders. Movements in the stock market and interest rates as well as stimulus 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  MARKET ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 32 

packages and legislation are causing many deals in progress to be put on hold while participants try 

to orient in the new reality. The end date of this period of volatility is impossible to foresee, but a 

historical picture of the relationship between volatility (as measured by deviations in the 10-Yr Treasury 

prices) and the transaction volume of commercial real estate from the end of 2001 to the end of 2019 

may provide some insight.  

 

 
 

The preceding graph shows that transactional volume may drop anywhere from 20 to 40% during 

periods of extreme volatility.  

 

The National Council of Real Estate Investment Fiduciaries (NCREIF) tracks the values and returns for 

institutionally owned commercial real estate. NCREIF compared the recession in the early 1990’s to the 

financial crisis that began in 2007-08. They found a 27% decline in values across 40,000 individual 

office, industrial, retail, multi-family and hotel properties for the 2007-08 period. While this was slightly 

higher than the 25% value drop during the recession of the early 1990’s, the recovery was much 

quicker. The NCREIF study attributes the faster recovery in values to better data for valuation being 

available and a desire by investment managers to get the properties in their funds marked to market 

quickly. The addition of more frequent outside appraisals likely also helped. In the current crisis, we 

have even more data available (now nearly in real time), as well as stronger analytic models and the 

benefit of a financial stimulus playbook from which to act more quickly to respond to systemic shocks. 

This all bodes well for a swift recovery if properly deployed. 

 

Impacts to values will not be consistent across sectors, asset classes and markets. Study and analysis 

on micro levels is critical. Moreover, the analysis of markets and properties prior to the downturn is 

important as is the market’s vulnerability to recession. The Brookings Institution used Moody’s 

Analytics to identify “most at risk” industry groups, from which it compiled a list of five particularly 

vulnerable sectors: mining/oil and gas, transportation, employment services, travel arrangements, and 

leisure/hospitality. The following map illustrates areas most affected by employment in these sectors.  

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  MARKET ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 33 

 

Property types will also be asymmetrically affected. In the multi-family sector, markets that are 

oversupplied, or which have a history of rising vacancy or low to flat rent growth are indications of 

areas that may be harder hit by the new crisis.  Markets with volatility in rent growth are still vulnerable, 

even if vacancy was stable in the past 12 months. 

 

For office and retail properties, Moody’s predicts a protracted slump.  

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  MARKET ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 34 

 

 
 

Moody’s expects office vacancy to peak at 21% in 2021 and remain close to 20% through 2024. Retail, 

according to the models, will top out in 2021 at just under 15% vacancy and gradually improve to 

11.5% by 2024. Net absorption drops precipitously in 2020 and 2021 in both sectors and begins to 

recover after that. It’s important to note that rents and vacancies in both office and retail are expected 

to track with GDP performance, so the model is sensitive to future changes in that metric. 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  MARKET ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 35 

 
 

Industrial follows the same pattern. Absorption drops in the next 24 months, through 2021, vacancy 

peaks at just over 14%, and improves to 10% by 2024.  

 

To complement the Moody’s predictive modeling, NCREIF published a breakdown of impact on market 

value by property sector, tracking from 1978 to the end of Q4 2019.  

 

 
 

As the previous graph illustrates, multi-family saw one of the largest value drops in 2007-09, but was 

also the first to recover, and that recovery was the largest and fastest.  

 

Industrial followed the curve, even surging in recent years.  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  MARKET ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 36 

Hotels never returned to their pre-recession peak, even as the economy as a whole was growing.  

 

Office and retail both recovered around seven years after the low point. Office however, had the second 

most dramatic drop in value and was last to recover (after hotels). This is likely to repeat in the recovery 

from this crisis as firms may discover that their employees and clients can be served by work-from-

home models, allowing them to consolidate square footage.  

Market Participant Interviews  
The coronavirus outbreak was declared a global pandemic on March 11, 2020.  The pandemic has 

created near-term uncertainty, but any long-term impact the pandemic may have on the local 

economy and real estate markets is unclear at this time.  Sufficient transactional or market data has 

yet to become available to adequately measure future real estate market behavior relative to the 

pandemic.   

 

To better gauge near-term market behavior, several market participants were interviewed regarding 

how the pandemic may affect the local real estate market, and specifically the apartment market.  Some 

of the more consistent comments and direct quotes from market participants are summarized as 

follows: 

 

Regarding transactions, buyers are being cautious. Most stated deals that were pending to close since 

March 2020 did close. Many deals currently pending are still on track to close, but deadlines have been 

extended in some cases.  New deals in the works are minimal, as most buyers are in a wait and see 

pattern.   

 

Thus far, the impact on vacancy in the Boise MSA market has been nominal. New lease signings initially 

slowed due to the “stay-at-home” order, but absorption has recently increased. Vacancy remains 

strong and rent levels have yet to be impacted. Tenants requesting rent abatements have not been 

prevalent, and landlords are not offering concessions.  

 

According to the CEO of Home River, Andrew Propst, a national residential property management 

company, which manages over 6,000 residential units in southern Idaho, leasing and rent collection 

have remained strong in Idaho. Collections have been down in other states, but for the majority of 

markets, including Idaho, rent collections for April 2020 have been within 1% of March 2020.  Mr. 

Propst reported that tenants are already paying rent in advance after receiving stimulus government 

checks.  

 

Due to a lack of recent transactions, there is no concrete evidence in price declines. However, given 

the uncertainty associated with the end date of this period of volatility, it is reasonable that a likely 

buyer would factor the economic uncertainty in an acquisition decision. 

 

Land development – most deals are being put on hold or due diligence periods are being extended.  

 

Long-term effects on real estate will depend largely on how long the “shut down” lasts.  A positive is 

that the economy and real estate markets were strong prior to the pandemic.   



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  MARKET ANALYSIS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 37 

Market Conditions Conclusions  
Prior to Covid-19, the economy was healthy; statistics indicated strong demand across all residential 

markets during the past several years.  Conventionally rented apartments exhibited increasing rent 

levels and historically low vacancy, which has resulted in an increase in construction activity during the 

past several years.  The single-family residential market exhibited strong absorption and appreciating 

pricing during the past several years.  New single-family construction increased significantly, but supply 

remains limited.  The pandemic has created near-term uncertainty, but any long-term impact the 

pandemic may have on the local economy and multi-family market is unclear at this time.  Sufficient 

transactional or market data has yet to become available to adequately measure future real estate 

market behavior relative to the pandemic.  However, market participants do expect real estate markets 

to be negatively impacted to some degree.  The duration of the pandemic is the major factor 

influencing the degree to which real estate may be impacted. 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  HIGHEST AND BEST USE 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 38 

 Highest and Best Use 

The Highest and Best Use of a property is the use that is legally permissible, physically possible, and 

financially feasible which results in the highest value. An opinion of the highest and best use results 

from consideration of the criteria noted above under the market conditions or likely conditions as of 

the effective date of value. Determination of highest and best use results from the judgment and 

analytical skills of the appraiser. It represents an opinion, not a fact. In appraisal practice, the concept 

of highest and best use represents the premise upon which value is based.  

Analysis of Highest and Best Use As Vacant/As Though Vacant 
The primary determinants of the highest and best use of the property as vacant/as though vacant are 

the issues of (1) Legal permissibility, (2) Physical possibility, (3) Financial feasibility, and (4) Maximum 

productivity. 

Legally Permissible 

The subject site is zoned R-3DD (Multi-Family Residential District) which allows for high density multi-

family and single-family residential uses with densities of up to 43.5 dwelling units per acre and a 

maximum building height of 45 feet.  Note, the subject reportedly has preliminary approval to be 

developed with 17 units (41.9 units per acre).  We are not aware of any other land use regulations that 

would limit the use of the property.  There are no known easements, encroachments, covenants or 

other use restrictions that would unduly limit or impede development of a probable nature.   

Physically Possible 

As evidenced by the physical characteristics of the property, including its size, configuration, 

accessibility and availability of public utilities, all of the legally permissible uses could be developed on 

the land.  The site does not have any physical characteristics that would hinder development.   

Financially Feasible 

Prior to Covid-19, the economy was healthy; statistics indicated strong demand across all residential 

markets during the past several years.  Conventionally rented apartments exhibited increasing rent 

levels and historically low vacancy, which has resulted in an increase in construction activity during the 

past several years.  The single-family residential market exhibited strong absorption and appreciating 

pricing during the past several years.  New single-family construction increased significantly, but supply 

remains limited.  Both multi-family and single-family development has been financially feasible under 

these conditions during the past several years.  We do acknowledge the recent coronavirus pandemic 

has created near-term uncertainty and it is unclear the impact the pandemic will have on the economy 

and real estate markets long-term.   

Maximally Productive 

Of the financially feasible uses, the maximally productive use is the use that produces the highest 

residual land value.  Considering the aforementioned factors, the maximally productive, and therefore 

highest and best use, as vacant/as though vacant, is for the development of a high-density residential 

use as market conditions warrant.   

  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  HIGHEST AND BEST USE 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 39 

Conclusion of Highest and Best Use As Vacant/As Though Vacant 

Legal, physical, and market considerations have been analyzed to evaluate the highest and best use of 

the property. This analysis is presented to evaluate the type of use that will generate the greatest level 

of future benefits possible from the property. The highest and best use of the subject property, as 

vacant/as though vacant, is concluded to be some form of high-density residential development as 

market conditions warrant.  Depending on approved density, the ideal improvement would be either 

a multi-family or high-density residential townhome/condominium project.  A feasibility analysis would 

be required to determine the ideal improvement to be developed on the land. 

Most Probable Buyer 
The most probable buyer of the subject property is a developer proposing multi-family rentals or for 

sale townhomes or condominiums.   

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  VALUATION – MARKET VALUE: AS IS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 40 

Valuation - Market Value: As Is 

Sales Comparison Approach 

Methodology 
Land value is most often estimated using the sales comparison approach. This approach develops an 

indication of market value by analyzing closed sales, listings, or pending sales of properties similar to 

the subject, focusing on the difference between the subject and the comparables using all appropriate 

elements of comparison. This approach is based on the principles of supply and demand, balance, 

externalities, and substitution, or the premise that a buyer would pay no more for a specific property 

than the cost of obtaining a property with the same quality, utility, and perceived benefits of ownership. 

The process of developing the sales comparison approach consists of the following: (1) researching 

and verifying transactional data, (2) selecting relevant units of comparison, (3) analyzing and adjusting 

the comparable sales for differences in various elements of comparison, and (4) reconciling the 

adjusted sales into a value indication for the subject. 

Comparable Sales Data 

To obtain and verify comparable sales and listings of competing properties, we conducted a search of 

public records, field surveys, interviews with knowledgeable real estate professionals in the area, as 

well as a review of our internal database.  

 

Six properties were selected for comparison to the subject, as these were judged to be the most 

comparable to develop an indication of market value for the subject site.   Emphasis was placed on 

date of sale, location, size, and zoning/highest and best use in the selections.  Comparables 2-6 are 

closed sales of competing sites occurring in the downtown Boise market from 2016-2020.  Comparable 

1 is the pending sale of the subject.   

Unit of Comparison 

The primary unit of comparison in the market for properties such as the subject is price per square 

foot. 

Elements of Comparison 

Elements of comparison are the characteristics or attributes of properties and transactions that cause 

the prices of real estate to vary. The primary elements of comparison considered in sales comparison 

analysis are as follows: (1) property rights conveyed, (2) financing terms, (3) conditions of sale, (4) 

expenditures made immediately after purchase, (5) market conditions, (6) location, and (7) physical 

characteristics such as size, configuration, availability of utilities, and other factors. 

 

 

  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  VALUATION – MARKET VALUE: AS IS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 41 

Sales Comparison Analysis 
When necessary, adjustments were made for differences in various elements of comparison. If the 

element in comparison is considered superior to that of the subject, we applied a negative adjustment. 

Conversely, a positive adjustment to the comparable was applied if inferior.  

 

The land adjustment analysis uses market-based data from paired-sales, construction costs for site 

improvements, or other market indicators.  In instances where there is limited market data available, 

the adjustment is based on the appraiser’s estimate of market reaction.  The adjustment categories are 

discussed briefly as follows, and the adjustments are illustrated in the Land Sale Comparable 

Summation Table to follow. 

Transaction Adjustments 
Transaction adjustments include: (1) real property rights conveyed, (2) financing terms, (3) conditions 

of sale, and (4) expenditures made immediately after purchase. These items, which are applied prior to 

the market conditions and property adjustments, are discussed as follows:  

 

Real Property Rights Conveyed  

This adjustment considers real property rights relating to a property, such as a lease contract or deed 

restrictions 

 

Similar to the subject, the sales are all fee simple sales.  No adjustments were warranted. 

 

Financing Terms 

The transaction price of one property may differ from that of an identical property due to different 

financial arrangements. Sales involving financing terms that are not at or near market terms require 

adjustments for cash equivalency to reflect typical market terms. A cash equivalency procedure 

discounts the atypical mortgage terms to provide an indication of value at cash equivalent terms.  

 

All of the comparables were cash equivalent sales with market terms.  No adjustments were warranted. 

 

Conditions of Sale 

Atypical conditions of sale may result in a price that is higher or lower than a normal transaction. Such 

atypical conditions of sale often occur in conjunction with sales between related parties or those in 

which one of the parties is atypically motivated to complete the transaction. Additionally, a downward 

adjustment may be applied to a listing price, which usually reflects the upper limit of value.  

 

Comparable 2 was purchased for assemblage.  The buyer of Comparable 2 owns the 5.8-acre site 

adjacent west.  Based on other sales in the immediate neighborhood, the buyer appears have paid a 

premium for the site as a result of assemblage motivations.  We do acknowledge the possible atypical 

seller motivation price premium; however, no downward adjustment was applied to the comparable.  

Any motivation affecting the sale price was considered qualitatively in the final value reconciliation.  

The balance of the sales are typically motivated, arms-length sales.  No adjustments were warranted.   

 

Expenditures Made Immediately After Purchase 

A knowledgeable buyer considers expenditures required upon purchase of a property, as these costs 

affect the price the buyer agrees to pay. Such expenditures may include: costs to demolish and remove 

any improvements, costs to petition for a zoning change, and costs to remediate environmental 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  VALUATION – MARKET VALUE: AS IS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 42 

contamination. The relevant figure is not the actual cost incurred, but the cost anticipated by both the 

buyer and seller.  

 

Several of the sales were improved with older improvements that are to be razed at the cost of the 

buyers upon development.  The estimated cost to raze the improvements was applied as the upward 

adjustments to the comparables.   

 

Market Conditions Adjustment 
Market conditions change over time because of inflation, deflation, fluctuations in supply and demand, 

or other factors. Changing market conditions may create a need for adjustment to comparable sale 

transactions completed during periods of dissimilar market conditions. 

 

Multi-family land has exhibited strong appreciation during the past several years.  The comparables 

are sales that have occurred from 2016 to-date.  To account for appreciating land values, upward 

adjustments of 5% per year were applied from the dates of sale through February 2020.  As a result of 

the recent uncertainty in the market due to the COVID-19 pandemic, no market appreciation is applied 

thereafter.   

Property Adjustments 
Property adjustments are usually expressed quantitatively as percentages or dollar amounts that reflect 

the differences in value attributable to the various characteristics of the property. In some instances, 

however, qualitative adjustments are used. These adjustments are based on locational and physical 

characteristics and are applied after the application of transaction and market conditions adjustments. 

Our reasoning for the property adjustments made to each sale comparable follows. The discussion will 

analyze each adjustment category deemed applicable to the subject property. 

Location 

This category considers value differences as a function of location qualities, desirability, and 

accessibility.  This category also considers primary arterial frontage locations versus secondary arterial 

or second tier non-frontage locations, and anchored versus non-anchored locations.  Other factors 

include freeway access, surrounding uses, access to markets, etc.   

 

Comparables 2, 3, 4, and 6 are superior to the subject for location.  Comparables 2, 3, and 6 are in the 

subject’s immediate neighborhood, but have superior locations fronting a major arterial.  Comparable 

2 is further superior; it is located at the corner of a signalized arterial intersection.    Comparable 4 is 

located closer to the downtown core along Myrtle Street, a major arterial extending south of the 

downtown core.  Downward adjustments ranging from 15% to 25% were applied.  The balance of the 

comparables have similar competing locations in peripheral areas outside the immediate downtown 

core.    

 

Zoning/Use 

This category considers value differences associated with variances in zoning designations or uses 

allowed. 

 

The subject is zoned R-3DD which allows for high-density residential uses.  The majority of the 

comparables are superior to the subject for zoning.  They can be developed with a wider variety of 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  VALUATION – MARKET VALUE: AS IS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 43 

uses and/or could be developed with higher densities.  Downward adjustments ranging from 5% to 

10% were applied. 

 

Size 

This category considers value differences resulting from variances in property size.  In general, smaller 

parcels have higher price per square foot (or per acre) sale prices versus larger parcels. 

 

Several of the comparables are moderately larger than the subject.  Upward adjustments ranging from 

5% to 10% were applied. 

 

Configuration 

This category considers differences in land use or value associated with property configuration.  

Irregular parcels typically have lower price per square foot sales prices versus rectangular parcels do 

to less functional utility. 

 

Comparables 3 and 5 have irregular configurations resulting in less functional utility versus the subject.  

Upward adjustments of 10% were applied.   

 

Topography 

This category considers differences in land use or value associated with property topography.  

Commercial parcels with uneven topographies typically have lower price per square foot sale prices 

because the cost to develop is greater versus a level parcel. 

 

The comparables have generally level topographies similar to the subject.  No adjustments were 

warranted. 

 

Utilities 

This category considers the availability of water and sewer services and other utilities to the property. 

 

The comparables are similar to the subject for utilities.  No adjustments were applied.   

 

Site Improvements  

This adjustment category considers value differences as a result of site improvements located on a 

property. 

 

No adjustments were warranted. 

 

Non-Realty Components of Value 

Non-realty components of value include tangible items, equipment, and business concerns that do 

not constitute real property but are included in either the sale price of the comparable property or the 

ownership interest in the subject property. These components should be analyzed separately from the 

real property. In most cases, the economic lives, associated investment risks, rate of return criteria, and 

collateral security for such non-realty components differ from those of the real property. 

 

None of the comparables had non-realty components included in the sale price.  No adjustments were 

warranted. 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  VALUATION – MARKET VALUE: AS IS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 44 

 

Other 

No further adjustments were warranted. 

 

Presentation 
Presented on the following pages are the Land Sale Comparable Summation Table, Sale Comparable 

Location Map, the discussion and analysis of the comparables, and conclusion(s) of market value for 

the subject. 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  VALUATION – MARKET VALUE: AS IS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 45 

Location Subject & 1 2 3 4 5 6

Name Former US Bank New Path Community Housing Site

Address 1715 W. Idaho St. 111 S. 27th St. 2223 W. Fairview Avenue 406-420 S. 4th St.;313-323 Broad St. 902 N. 8th Street 2200-2222 W. Fairview & 114 S. 23rd St.

City & state Boise, Idaho Boise, Idaho Boise, Idaho Boise, Idaho Boise, Idaho Boise, Idaho

Parcel No. R5538941262 R9323500891 R1431000020 8 parcels R7294500010 R2734252281, R273452250, R2734252265

Location quality (Neighborhood) Similar Superior Superior Superior Similar Superior

Property description

Gross land size (Acre) 0.41 1.11 0.85 0.84 0.65 1.15

Gross land size (sf) 17,683 48,352 37,157 36,805 28,270 50,007

Unusable or effective (sf) 0.00 0 0 0.00 0 0

Usable land size (usf) 17,683 48,352 37,157 36,805 28,270 50,007

Land type High-density residential Commercial Commercial Mixed-use Commercial Mixed-use

Zoning R-3DD C-5DD C-2D R-ODD ROHD/DA C-2D

Land use at sale Vacant Bank Lucky Dog Tavern / former Vacant + parking lot Vacant retail building Old commercial

Buyer's intended use Future development Future development Renovate/addition for Police 163 Apts/retail/parking garage Build; Condominium 41 unit LIHTC apartment on 0.40 acres

Configuration Rectangular Nearly rectangular Irregular Rectangular Irregular Rectangular

Topography Level Level Level Level Level Generally level

Utilities All available All available All available All available All available All available

   Site improvements None To be razed To be razed None To be razed To be razed

Sale description

   Data source JV: PSA JV: PSA DP: IBR Article/Records MT: Buyer, Local Construct PD: David Southers/Records PSA

   Seller Cinco Port LLC MaryAnn & Bill Fivecoat Sticknoth 160 LLC N&T Holding LLC (ESI) Elledge Family Limited Partnership James A Kissler LLC

   Buyer CCDC Corner Gem LLC City of Boise Cartee Investors LLC Buckeye Partners LLC CS Campur 17 LLC

Marketing time 1 month Unknown Approx. 1 month Not marketed Not marketed Unk

Sale date Pending 1/20 1/19 5/18 11/17 9/16

Price $605,000 $2,600,000 $1,150,000 $2,000,000 $715,000 $1,475,000

Financing terms Cash Cash Cash Cash Cash Cash

Conditions of sale Typical arms-length Typical arms-length Typical arms-length Typical arms-length Typical arms-length Typical arms-length

   Non-realty components None None None None None None

Comments Listed for $595,000; price was 

bid up due to multiple offers; 

has preliminarly approvals for 17 

residential units (41.9 units/ac)

In P-3 Parking District; Property is 

improved with a 6,268 SF bank 

branch with 3 lane drive thru built 

in 1958.  Buyer owns 5.8 acres 

adjacent west; purchased for 

assemblage and future 

redevelopment; cost to raze 

improvements est. buy seller at 

around $70K

BPD will lease back for 9 months to 

allow seller time to find 

replacement property.  Imp. built in 

1978 and contains 2,900 SF; buyer 

to use building shell; Original 

closing date was Nov-18 & 

extended for additional 

environmental testing. Listed for 

sale on Sept-18 per Jay Story and 

contract approved by the city 

council on Oct-18

Was purchased in April 2016 for 

$1,850,000 or $50.26/sf

Improved with a dilapidated retail 

building and detached garage 

constructed in 1921. Demolition at 

buyers expense and reported at 

$43K.  Buyer to construct a 4 story 

condominium bldg to include 31 

residential units and 1 ground 

floor commercial unit. 

Rezoned to C-5DD after purchase

Financial indicators

Price/usf $34.21 $53.77 $30.95 $54.34 $25.29 $29.50

Adjustments Adjustment notes

Real Property Rights Conveyed Fee Simple No adjustment Fee Simple 0% Fee Simple 0% Fee Simple 0% Fee Simple 0% Fee Simple 0% Fee Simple 0%

Adjusted sale price $34.21 $53.77 $30.95 $54.34 $25.29 $29.50

Financing terms Cash No adjustment Cash 0% Cash 0% Cash 0% Cash 0% Cash 0% Cash 0%

Adjusted sale price $34.21 $53.77 $30.95 $54.34 $25.29 $29.50

Conditions of sale Typical arms-length No adjustment Typical arms-length 0% Typical arms-length 0% Typical arms-length 0% Typical arms-length 0% Typical arms-length 0% Typical arms-length 0%

Adjusted sale price $34.21 $53.77 $30.95 $54.34 $25.29 $29.50

Expenditures After Purchase None See comments None 0% Raze improvements est at $70K 3% Offsetting shell & s.i.; no adj. 0% None 0% Raze improvements est at $43K 6% Raze improvements est at $40K 3%

Adjusted sale price $34.21 $55.22 $30.95 $54.34 $26.81 $30.30

Market conditions (time) Eff. date of appraisal (5/20) +5%/yr thru 2/20 Pending 0% 1/20 0% 1/19 5% 5/18 9% 11/17 11% 9/16 17%

Adjusted sale price $34.21 $55.22 $32.63 $59.10 $29.83 $35.47

Location Good Adjustment Similar 0% Superior -25% Superior -15% Superior -25% Similar 0% Superior -15%

Zoning/Use R-3DD Adjustment R-3DD 0% C-5DD -10% C-2D -5% R-ODD -5% ROHD/DA 0% C-2D -5%

Usable land size 0.41 Adjustment 0.41 0% 1.11 10% 0.85 5% 0.84 5% 0.65 0% 1.15 10%

Configuration Rectangular Adjustment Rectangular 0% Nearly rectangular 0% Irregular 10% Rectangular 0% Irregular 10% Rectangular 0%

Topography Level No adjustment Level 0% Level 0% Level 0% Level 0% Level 0% Generally level 0%

Utilities All available No adjustment All available 0% All available 0% All available 0% All available 0% All available 0% All available 0%

Site improvements None No adjustment None 0% None 0% To be razed 0% None 0% To be razed 0% To be razed 0%

Non-realty components None No adjustment 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Other No adjustment 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Net adjustment 0% -25% -5% -25% 10% -10%

Indicated subject value (usf) $34.21 $41.42 $31.00 $44.32 $32.81 $31.92

None

n/a

6-12 months

Eff. date of appraisal (5/20)

n/a

Cash

Typical arms-length

Level

All available

None

n/a

n/a

17,683

High-density residential

R-3DD

n/a

n/a

Rectangular

R5538941262

Good

0.41

17,683

0

Land Sale Comparable Summation Table

Subject

Idaho Street Residential Land

1715 W. Idaho Street

Boise, Ada County, Idaho 83702



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  VALUATION – MARKET VALUE: AS IS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 46 

LAND SALE COMPARABLE LOCATION MAP 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  VALUATION – MARKET VALUE: AS IS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 47 

Sales Comparison Approach Value Indication  
From the market data available, six properties were utilized in the comparative analysis and 

adjustments were applied based on pertinent elements of comparison. The following table summarizes 

the unadjusted and adjusted comparable prices: 

 

 
 

Prior to adjustment, the comparable prices range from $25.29/SF to $54.34/SF, with a median of 

$32.58/SF and mean of $38.01/SF.  The price differences are primarily attributable to date of sale, 

location, zoning, and size.  Comparable 4 represents the upper-tier of the range.  It has superior 

location closer to the downtown core along a major arterial.   Comparable 5 represents the lower-tier 

of the range.  It is residential site located on the north fringe of downtown Boise.  It has a less functional 

irregular configuration.  After adjustment, the comparables bracket market value for the subject in a 

range of $31.00/SF to $44.32/SF, with a median of $33.51/SF and mean of $35.95/SF.  Comparable 1 

is the pending sale of the subject.  At $34.21/SF, the pending sale price is near the mid-tier of the 

adjusted range and is concluded to be representative of market value.  With primary weight given to 

the pending subject sale, market value for the subject is concluded to be $34.25/SF.  The 

calculations to value are presented in the following table, resulting in Market Value: As Is for the 

subject. 

 

 
 

 

 

Metric Unadjusted Adjusted

Minimum Sale Price per Sq. Ft. $25.29 $31.00

Maximum Sale Price per Sq. Ft. $54.34 $44.32

Median Sale Price per Sq. Ft. $32.58 $33.51

Mean Sale Price per Sq. Ft. $38.01 $35.95

Market Value: As Is

17,683                        x $34.25 $605,650

Sales Comparison Approach Conclusion,

Market Value: As Is, rounded $605,000

                                 Size (usf)  x  value/sf = total value



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  VALUATION – MARKET VALUE: AS IS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 48 

Value Conclusion - Market Value: As Is 

Approaches to Value 
The sales comparison approach resulted in a reliable conclusion of market value due to an adequate 

number of recent sales of similar sites located in competing areas of the downtown Boise market.  This 

approach directly considers the sale prices of alternative properties which have similar utility.  This 

approach is an applicable approach for valuing land in this market and is an approach primarily relied 

upon by market participants.  

 

The cost approach and income capitalization approach were not developed; they are not applicable 

for land valuation in this market.  The exclusion of these approaches did not diminish the credibility of 

our value conclusion(s) presented herein.   

Value Conclusion 
Our conclusion of Market Value: As Is for the subject is presented in the following table. 

 

 
 

Exposure and Marketing Times 
Marketing time is the time frame subsequent to the effective date of appraisal necessary to affect a 

sale of the property at the estimate of value(s) detailed herein.  The estimate of value in this appraisal 

assumes the subject would experience a marketing time typical of the current market.  Exposure time 

is the length of time a property would have been offered on the market prior to consummation of 

sale at the estimate of market value on the effective date of the appraisal.  Exposure time is a 

retrospective estimate based on the analysis of past events and market conditions.  

 

Based on statistical information about days on market, escrow length, and marketing times gathered 

through national investor surveys, sales verification, and interviews of market participants, marketing 

and exposure time estimates of 6-12 months, respectively, are considered reasonable and appropriate 

for the subject property.   

Component As Is

Value Type Market Value

Property Rights Appraised Fee Simple

Effective Date of Value May 8, 2020

Value Conclusion $605,000

 Value Conclusions



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 49 

General Assumptions and Limiting Conditions 

This appraisal is subject to the following general assumptions and limiting conditions: 

1. The legal description – if furnished to us – is assumed to be correct. 

2. No responsibility is assumed for legal matters, questions of survey or title, soil or subsoil conditions, 

engineering, availability or capacity of utilities, or other similar technical matters. The appraisal does 

not constitute a survey of the property appraised. All existing liens and encumbrances have been 

disregarded and the property is appraised as though free and clear, under responsible ownership 

and competent management unless otherwise noted. 

3. Unless otherwise noted, the appraisal will value the property as though free of contamination. 

Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States will conduct no hazardous materials or 

contamination inspection of any kind. It is recommended that the client hire an expert if the 

presence of hazardous materials or contamination poses any concern. 

4. Unless otherwise noted, it is assumed there are no encroachments, zoning violations or restrictions 

existing in the subject property. 

5. The appraiser is not required to give testimony or attendance in court by reason of this appraisal, 

unless previous arrangements have been made. 

6. Unless expressly specified in the engagement letter, the fee for this appraisal does not include the 

attendance or giving of testimony by Appraiser at any court, regulatory or other proceedings, or 

any conferences or other work in preparation for such proceeding. If any partner or employee of 

Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States is asked or required to appear and/or testify at any 

deposition, trial, or other proceeding about the preparation, conclusions or any other aspect of this 

assignment, client shall compensate Appraiser for the time spent by the partner or employee in 

appearing and/or testifying and in preparing to testify according to the Appraiser’s then current 

hourly rate plus reimbursement of expenses.  

7. The values for land and/or improvements, as contained in this report, are constituent parts of the 

total value reported and neither is (or are) to be used in making a summation appraisal of a 

combination of values created by another appraiser. Either is invalidated if so used.  

8. The dates of value to which the opinions expressed in this report apply are set forth in this report. 

We assume no responsibility for economic or physical factors occurring at some point at a later 

date, which may affect the opinions stated herein. The forecasts, projections, or operating estimates 

contained herein are based on current market conditions and anticipated short-term supply and 

demand factors and are subject to change with future conditions. Appraiser is not responsible for 

determining whether the date of value requested by Client is appropriate for Client’s intended use. 

9. The sketches, maps, plats and exhibits in this report are included to assist the reader in visualizing 

the property. The appraiser has made no survey of the property and assumed no responsibility in 

connection with such matters. 

10. The information, estimates and opinions, which were obtained from sources outside of this office, 

are considered reliable. However, no liability for them can be assumed by the appraiser. 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 50 

11. Possession of this report, or a copy thereof, does not carry with it the right of publication. Neither 

all, nor any part of the content of the report, or copy thereof (including conclusions as to property 

value, the identity of the appraisers, professional designations, reference to any professional 

appraisal organization or the firm with which the appraisers are connected), shall be disseminated 

to the public through advertising, public relations, news, sales, or other media without prior written 

consent and approval.  

12. No claim is intended to be expressed for matters of expertise that would require specialized 

investigation or knowledge beyond that ordinarily employed by real estate appraisers. We claim no 

expertise in areas such as, but not limited to, legal, survey, structural, environmental, pest control, 

mechanical, etc.  

13. This appraisal was prepared for the sole and exclusive use of the client for the function outlined 

herein. Any party who is not the client or intended user identified in the appraisal or engagement 

letter is not entitled to rely upon the contents of the appraisal without express written consent of 

Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States and Client. The Client shall not include partners, 

affiliates, or relatives of the party addressed herein. The appraiser assumes no obligation, liability 

or accountability to any third party.  

14. Distribution of this report is at the sole discretion of the client, but third-parties not listed as an 

intended user on the face of the appraisal or the engagement letter may not rely upon the contents 

of the appraisal. In no event shall client give a third-party a partial copy of the appraisal report. We 

will make no distribution of the report without the specific direction of the client.  

15. This appraisal shall be used only for the function outlined herein, unless expressly authorized by 

Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States.  

16. This appraisal shall be considered in its entirety. No part thereof shall be used separately or out of 

context. 

17. Unless otherwise noted in the body of this report, this appraisal assumes that the subject property 

does not fall within the areas where mandatory flood insurance is effective. Unless otherwise noted, 

we have not completed, nor have we contracted to have completed an investigation to identify 

and/or quantify the presence of non-tidal wetland conditions on the subject property. Because the 

appraiser is not a surveyor, he or she makes no guarantees, express or implied, regarding this 

determination.  

18. The flood maps are not site specific. We are not qualified to confirm the location of the subject 

property in relation to flood hazard areas based on the FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Maps or other 

surveying techniques. It is recommended that the client obtain a confirmation of the subject 

property’s flood zone classification from a licensed surveyor. 

19. If the appraisal is for mortgage loan purposes 1) we assume satisfactory completion of 

improvements if construction is not complete, 2) no consideration has been given for rent loss 

during rent-up unless noted in the body of this report, and 3) occupancy at levels consistent with 

our “Income and Expense Projection” are anticipated. 

20. It is assumed that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the property, subsoil, or 

structures which would render it more or less valuable. No responsibility is assumed for such 

conditions or for engineering which may be required to discover them.  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 51 

21. Our inspection included an observation of the land and improvements thereon only. It was not 

possible to observe conditions beneath the soil or hidden structural components within the 

improvements. We inspected the buildings involved, and reported damage (if any) by termites, dry 

rot, wet rot, or other infestations as a matter of information, and no guarantee of the amount or 

degree of damage (if any) is implied. Condition of heating, cooling, ventilation, electrical and 

plumbing equipment is considered to be commensurate with the condition of the balance of the 

improvements unless otherwise stated. Should the client have concerns in these areas, it is the 

client’s responsibility to order the appropriate inspections. The appraiser does not have the skill or 

expertise to make such inspections and assumes no responsibility for these items. 

22. This appraisal does not guarantee compliance with building code and life safety code requirements 

of the local jurisdiction. It is assumed that all required licenses, consents, certificates of occupancy 

or other legislative or administrative authority from any local, state or national governmental or 

private entity or organization have been or can be obtained or renewed for any use on which the 

value conclusion contained in this report is based unless specifically stated to the contrary. 

23. When possible, we have relied upon building measurements provided by the client, owner, or 

associated agents of these parties. In the absence of a detailed rent roll, reliable public records, or 

“as-built” plans provided to us, we have relied upon our own measurements of the subject 

improvements. We follow typical appraisal industry methods; however, we recognize that some 

factors may limit our ability to obtain accurate measurements including, but not limited to, property 

access on the day of inspection, basements, fenced/gated areas, grade elevations, 

greenery/shrubbery, uneven surfaces, multiple story structures, obtuse or acute wall angles, 

immobile obstructions, etc. Professional building area measurements of the quality, level of detail, 

or accuracy of professional measurement services are beyond the scope of this appraisal 

assignment.  

24. We have attempted to reconcile sources of data discovered or provided during the appraisal 

process, including assessment department data. Ultimately, the measurements that are deemed by 

us to be the most accurate and/or reliable are used within this report. While the measurements and 

any accompanying sketches are considered to be reasonably accurate and reliable, we cannot 

guarantee their accuracy. Should the client desire more precise measurement, they are urged to 

retain the measurement services of a qualified professional (space planner, architect or building 

engineer) as an alternative source. If this alternative measurement source reflects or reveals 

substantial differences with the measurements used within the report, upon request of the client, 

the appraiser will submit a revised report for an additional fee. 

25. In the absence of being provided with a detailed land survey, we have used assessment department 

data to ascertain the physical dimensions and acreage of the property. Should a survey prove this 

information to be inaccurate, upon request of the client, the appraiser will submit a revised report 

for an additional fee. 

26. If only preliminary plans and specifications were available for use in the preparation of this appraisal, 

and a review of the final plans and specifications reveals substantial differences upon request of 

the client the appraiser will submit a revised report for an additional fee. 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 52 

27. Unless otherwise stated in this report, the value conclusion is predicated on the assumption that 

the property is free of contamination, environmental impairment or hazardous materials. Unless 

otherwise stated, the existence of hazardous material was not observed by the appraiser and the 

appraiser has no knowledge of the existence of such materials on or in the property. The appraiser, 

however, is not qualified to detect such substances. The presence of substances such as asbestos, 

urea-formaldehyde foam insulation or other potentially hazardous materials may affect the value 

of the property. No responsibility is assumed for any such conditions, or for any expertise or 

engineering knowledge required for discovery. The client is urged to retain an expert in this field, if 

desired. 

28. The Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) became effective January 26, 1992. We have not made 

a specific compliance survey of the property to determine if it is in conformity with the various 

requirements of the ADA. It is possible that a compliance survey of the property, together with an 

analysis of the requirements of the ADA, could reveal that the property is not in compliance with 

one or more of the requirements of the Act. If so, this could have a negative effect on the value of 

the property. Since we have no direct evidence relating to this issue, we did not consider possible 

noncompliance with the requirements of ADA in developing an opinion of value. 

29. This appraisal applies to the land and building improvements only. The value of trade fixtures, 

furnishings, and other equipment, or subsurface rights (minerals, gas, and oil) were not considered 

in this appraisal unless specifically stated to the contrary.  

30. No changes in any federal, state or local laws, regulations or codes (including, without limitation, 

the Internal Revenue Code) are anticipated, unless specifically stated to the contrary.  

31. Any income and expense estimates contained in the appraisal report are used only for the purpose 

of estimating value and do not constitute prediction of future operating results. Furthermore, it is 

inevitable that some assumptions will not materialize and that unanticipated events may occur that 

will likely affect actual performance.  

32. Any estimate of insurable value, if included within the scope of work and presented herein, is based 

upon figures developed consistent with industry practices. However, actual local and regional 

construction costs may vary significantly from our estimate and individual insurance policies and 

underwriters have varied specifications, exclusions, and non-insurable items. As such, we strongly 

recommend that the Client obtain estimates from professionals experienced in establishing 

insurance coverage. This analysis should not be relied upon to determine insurance coverage and 

we make no warranties regarding the accuracy of this estimate.  

33. The data gathered in the course of this assignment (except data furnished by the Client) shall remain 

the property of the Appraiser. The appraiser will not violate the confidential nature of the appraiser-

client relationship by improperly disclosing any confidential information furnished to the appraiser. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Appraiser is authorized by the client to disclose all or any 

portion of the appraisal and related appraisal data to appropriate representatives of the Appraisal 

Institute if such disclosure is required to enable the appraiser to comply with the Bylaws and 

Regulations of such Institute now or hereafter in effect.  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 53 

34. You and Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States both agree that any dispute over matters 

in excess of $5,000 will be submitted for resolution by arbitration. This includes fee disputes and 

any claim of malpractice. The arbitrator shall be mutually selected. If Valbridge Property Advisors | 

Mountain States and the client cannot agree on the arbitrator, the presiding head of the Local 

County Mediation & Arbitration panel shall select the arbitrator. Such arbitration shall be binding 

and final. In agreeing to arbitration, we both acknowledge that, by agreeing to binding arbitration, 

each of us is giving up the right to have the dispute decided in a court of law before a judge or jury. 

In the event that the client, or any other party, makes a claim against Valbridge Property Advisors | 

Mountain States or any of its employees in connections with or in any way relating to this 

assignment, the maximum damages recoverable by such claimant shall be the amount actually 

received by Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States for this assignment, and under no 

circumstances shall any claim for consequential damages be made. 

35. Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States shall have no obligation, liability, or accountability 

to any third party. Any party who is not the “client” or intended user identified on the face of the 

appraisal or in the engagement letter is not entitled to rely upon the contents of the appraisal 

without the express written consent of Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States. “Client” shall 

not include partners, affiliates, or relatives of the party named in the engagement letter. Client shall 

hold Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States and its employees harmless in the event of any 

lawsuit brought by any third party, lender, partner, or part-owner in any form of ownership or any 

other party as a result of this assignment. The client also agrees that in case of lawsuit arising from 

or in any way involving these appraisal services, client will hold Valbridge Property Advisors | 

Mountain States harmless from and against any liability, loss, cost, or expense incurred or suffered 

by Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States in such action, regardless of its outcome. 

36. The Valbridge Property Advisors office responsible for the preparation of this report is 

independently owned and operated by Mountain States. Neither Valbridge Property Advisors, Inc., 

nor any of its affiliates has been engaged to provide this report. Valbridge Property Advisors, Inc. 

does not provide valuation services, and has taken no part in the preparation of this report. 

37. If any claim is filed against any of Valbridge Property Advisors, Inc., a Florida Corporation, its 

affiliates, officers or employees, or the firm providing this report, in connection with, or in any way 

arising out of, or relating to, this report, or the engagement of the firm providing this report, then 

(1) under no circumstances shall such claimant be entitled to consequential, special or other 

damages, except only for direct compensatory damages, and (2) the maximum amount of such 

compensatory damages recoverable by such claimant shall be the amount actually received by the 

firm engaged to provide this report.  

38. This report and any associated work files may be subject to evaluation by Valbridge Property 

Advisors, Inc., or its affiliates, for quality control purposes. 

39. Acceptance and/or use of this appraisal report constitutes acceptance of the foregoing general 

assumptions and limiting conditions. 

 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 54 

Certification – Jeff Vance 

I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief: 

1. The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct. 

2. The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported assumptions and 

limiting conditions and are my personal, impartial, and unbiased professional analyses, opinions, 

and conclusions. 

3. I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report and no 

personal interest with respect to the parties involved. 

4. I have performed no services, as an appraiser or in any other capacity, regarding the property that 

is the subject of this report within the three-year period immediately preceding acceptance of this 

assignment.   

5. I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties involved 

with this assignment. 

6. My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting 

predetermined results. 

7. My compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the development or 

reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the 

amount of value opinion, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent 

event directly related to the intended use of this appraisal. 

8. My analyses, opinions and conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepared, in 

conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice.  

9. I have made a current site inspection of the property that is the subject of this report. 

10. No one other than Moe Therrien, MAI, provided significant real property appraisal assistance to the 

person signing this certification.  

11. The reported analyses, opinions and conclusions were developed, and this report has been 

prepared, in conformity with the requirements of the Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of 

Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Institute. 

12. The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating to review by 

its duly authorized representatives. 

13. As of the date of this report, the undersigned has completed the continuing education program for 

Designated Members of the Appraisal Institute. 

 
Jeff Vance, MAI 

Senior Appraiser 

Idaho, Certification # CGA-2828   

 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 55 

Certification – Moe Therrien 

I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief: 

1. The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct. 

2. The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported assumptions and 

limiting conditions and are my personal, impartial, and unbiased professional analyses, opinions, 

and conclusions. 

3. I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report and no 

personal interest with respect to the parties involved. 

4. I have performed no services, as an appraiser or in any other capacity, regarding the property that 

is the subject of this report within the three-year period immediately preceding acceptance of this 

assignment.   

5. I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties involved 

with this assignment. 

6. My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting 

predetermined results. 

7. My compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the development or 

reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the 

amount of value opinion, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent 

event directly related to the intended use of this appraisal. 

8. My analyses, opinions and conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepared, in 

conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice.  

9. I have made a current site inspection of the property that is the subject of this report. 

10. No one other than Jeff Vance, MAI, provided significant real property appraisal assistance to the 

person signing this certification.  

11. The reported analyses, opinions and conclusions were developed, and this report has been 

prepared, in conformity with the requirements of the Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of 

Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Institute. 

12. The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating to review by 

its duly authorized representatives. 

13. As of the date of this report, the undersigned has completed the continuing education program for 

Designated Members of the Appraisal Institute. 

 
Moe Therrien, MAI 

Senior Managing Director 

Idaho, Certification # CGA-8 

  

 

 

 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 56 

Addenda 

Engagement Letter 

Subject Photos 

Purchase and Sale Agreement 

Opening Up Idaho Guidelines 

Glossary 

Qualifications 

• Jeff Vance, MAI – Senior Appraiser 

• Moe Therrien, MAI – Senior Managing Director 

Information on Valbridge Property Advisors 

Office Locations 

 

  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 57 

Engagement Letter 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 58 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 59 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 60 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 61 

 
 

 

 

  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 62 

Subject Photographs 

  

Subject site viewing south Viewing east 

  

Viewing north Viewing west 

  

W. Idaho St., viewing east, subject on right Adjacent alleyway, viewing west, subject on right 

 

 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 63 

Purchase and Sale Agreement 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 64 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 65 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 66 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 67 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 68 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 69 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 70 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 71 

 
 

 

 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 72 

Opening Up Idaho Guidelines 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 73 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 74 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 75 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 76 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 77 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 78 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 79 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 80 

 
 

  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 81 

Glossary 
Definitions are taken from The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 6th Edition (Dictionary), the Uniform Standards of 

Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP), and Building Owners and Managers Association International (BOMA).  
 

Absolute Net Lease 

A lease in which the tenant pays all expenses including 

structural maintenance, building reserves, and 

management; often a long-term lease to a credit tenant. 

(Dictionary) 

Amortization 
The process of retiring a debt or recovering a capital 

investment, typically through scheduled, systematic 

repayment of the principal; a program of periodic 

contributions to a sinking fund or debt retirement fund. 

(Dictionary) 

As Is Market Value 
The estimate of the market value of real property in its 

current physical condition, use, and zoning as of the 

appraisal date. (Dictionary) 

Base Rent 

The minimum rent stipulated in a lease. (Dictionary) 

Base Year 
The year on which escalation clauses in a lease are based. 

(Dictionary) 

Building Common Area 

In office buildings, the areas of the building that provide 

services to building tenants but which are not included in 

the office area or store area of any specific tenant.  These 

areas may include, but shall not be limited to, main and 

auxiliary lobbies, atrium spaces at the level of the finished 

floor, concierge areas or security desks, conference 

rooms, lounges or vending areas, food service facilities, 

health or fitness centers, daycare facilities, locker or 

shower facilities, mail rooms, fire control rooms, fully 

enclosed courtyards outside the exterior walls, and 

building core and service areas such as fully enclosed 

mechanical or equipment rooms.  Specifically excluded 

from building common area are floor common areas, 

parking space, portions of loading docks outside the 

building line, and major vertical penetrations. (BOMA) 

Building Rentable Area 
The sum of all floor rentable areas. Floor rentable area is 

the result of subtracting from the gross measured area of 

a floor the major vertical penetrations on that same floor. 

It is generally fixed for the life of the building and is rarely 

affected by changes in corridor size or configuration. 

(BOMA) 

Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 
A formal written acknowledgment by an appropriate unit 

of local government that a new construction or 

renovation project is at the stage where it meets 

applicable health and safety codes and is ready for 

commercial or residential occupancy. (Dictionary) 

Common Area Maintenance (CAM)  

The expense of operating and maintaining common 

areas; may or may not include management charges and 

usually does not include capital expenditures on tenant 

improvements or other improvements to the property. 

(Dictionary)  

 

The amount of money charged to tenants for their shares 

of maintaining a [shopping] center’s common area.  The 

charge that a tenant pays for shared services and facilities 

such as electricity, security, and maintenance of parking 

lots.  Items charged to common area maintenance may 

include cleaning services, parking lot sweeping and 

maintenance, snow removal, security and upkeep. (ICSC – 

International Council of Shopping Centers, 4th Ed.) 

Condominium 
A multiunit structure, or a unit within such a structure, 

with a condominium form of ownership. (Dictionary) 

Conservation Easement 
An interest in real estate restricting future land use to 

preservation, conservation, wildlife habitat, or some 

combination of those uses. A conservation easement may 

permit farming, timber harvesting, or other uses of a rural 

nature as well as some types of conservation-oriented 

development to continue, subject to the easement. 

(Dictionary) 

Contributory Value 

A type of value that reflects the amount a property or 

component of a property contributes to the value of 

another asset or to the property as a whole. 

The change in the value of a property as a whole, whether 

positive or negative, resulting from the addition or 

deletion of a property component. Also called deprival 

value in some countries. (Dictionary) 

  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 82 

Debt Coverage Ratio (DCR)  

The ratio of net operating income to annual debt service 

(DCR = NOI/Im), which measures the relative ability of a 

property to meet its debt service out of net operating 

income; also called debt service coverage ratio (DSCR). A 

larger DCR typically indicates a greater ability for a 

property to withstand a reduction of income, providing 

an improved safety margin for a lender. (Dictionary) 

Deed Restriction 

A provision written into a deed that limits the use of land. 

Deed restrictions usually remain in effect when title 

passes to subsequent owners. (Dictionary) 

Depreciation 

1) In appraisal, a loss in property value from any cause; 

the difference between the cost of an improvement 

on the effective date of the appraisal and the market 

value of the improvement on the same date.  

2) In accounting, an allocation of the original cost of an 

asset, amortizing the cost over the asset’s life; 

calculated using a variety of standard techniques. 

(Dictionary) 

Disposition Value 

The most probable price that a specified interest in 

property should bring under the following conditions: 

• Consummation of a sale within a specified time, 

which is shorter than the typical exposure time for 

such a property in that market. 

• The property is subjected to market conditions 

prevailing as of the date of valuation;  

• Both the buyer and seller are acting prudently and 

knowledgeably; 

• The seller is under compulsion to sell; 

• The buyer is typically motivated; 

• Both parties are acting in what they consider to be 

their best interests; 

• An adequate marketing effort will be made during 

the exposure time; 

• Payment will be made in cash in U.S. dollars (or the 

local currency) or in terms of financial arrangements 

comparable thereto; and 

• The price represents the normal consideration for 

the property sold, unaffected by special or creative 

financing or sales concessions granted by anyone 

associated with the sale. (Dictionary) 

Easement 
The right to use another’s land for a stated purpose. 

(Dictionary) 

EIFS  
Exterior Insulation Finishing System. This is a type of 

exterior wall cladding system. Sometimes referred to as 

dry-vit. 

Effective Date 

1) The date on which the appraisal or review opinion 

applies. (SVP)  

2) In a lease document, the date upon which the lease 

goes into effect. (Dictionary) 

Effective Gross Income (EGI) 

The anticipated income from all operations of the real 

estate after an allowance is made for vacancy and 

collection losses and an addition is made for any other 

income. (Dictionary) 

Effective Rent 
Total base rent, or minimum rent stipulated in a lease, 

over the specified lease term minus rent concessions; the 

rent that is effectively paid by a tenant net of financial 

concessions provided by a landlord. (TIs). (Dictionary) 

EPDM  
Ethylene Propylene Diene Monomer Rubber. A type of 

synthetic rubber typically used for roof coverings. 

(Dictionary) 

Escalation Clause 

A clause in an agreement that provides for the 

adjustment of a price or rent based on some event or 

index. e.g., a provision to increase rent if operating 

expenses increase; also called escalator clause, expense 

recovery clause or stop clause. (Dictionary) 

Estoppel Certificate 

A signed statement by a party (such as a tenant or a 

mortgagee) certifying, for another’s benefit, that certain 

facts are correct, such as that a lease exists, that there are 

no defaults, and that rent is paid to a certain date.  

(Black’s) In real estate, a buyer of rental property typically 

requests estoppel certificates from existing tenants. 

Sometimes referred to as an estoppel letter. (Dictionary) 

Excess Land 
Land that is not needed to serve or support the existing 

use. The highest and best use of the excess land may or 

may not be the same as the highest and best use of the 

improved parcel. Excess land has the potential to be sold 

separately and is valued separately. (Dictionary) 

Excess Rent 
The amount by which contract rent exceeds market rent 

at the time of the appraisal; created by a lease favorable 

to the landlord (lessor) and may reflect unusual 

management, unknowledgeable or unusually motivated 

parties, a lease execution in an earlier, stronger rental 

market, or an agreement of the parties. (Dictionary) 

Expense Stop 

A clause in a lease that limits the landlord’s expense 

obligation, which results in the lessee paying operating 

expenses above a stated level or amount. (Dictionary) 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 83 

Exposure Time 

1) The time a property remains on the market.  

2) The estimated length of time that the property 

interest being appraised would have been offered on 

the market prior to the hypothetical consummation 

of a sale at market value on the effective date of the 

appraisal; Comment: Exposure time is a retrospective 

opinion based on an analysis of past events 

assuming a competitive and open market. 

(Dictionary) 

Extraordinary Assumption 

An assumption, directly related to a specific assignment, 

as of the effective date of the assignment results, which, 

if found to be false, could alter the appraiser’s opinions 

or conclusions. Comment: Extraordinary assumptions 

presume as fact otherwise uncertain information about 

physical, legal, or economic characteristics of the subject 

property; or about conditions external to the property 

such as market conditions or trends; or about the 

integrity of data used in an analysis. (USPAP, 2016-2017 

ed.)  

Fee Simple Estate 

Absolute ownership unencumbered by any other interest 

or estate, subject only to the limitations imposed by the 

governmental powers of taxation, eminent domain, 

police power, and escheat. (Dictionary) 

Floor Common Area 
In an office building, the areas on a floor such as 

washrooms, janitorial closets, electrical rooms, telephone 

rooms, mechanical rooms, elevator lobbies, and public 

corridors which are available primarily for the use of 

tenants on that floor. (BOMA) 

Full Service (Gross) Lease 

A lease in which the landlord receives stipulated rent and 

is obligated to pay all of the property’s operating and 

fixed expenses; also called a full service lease. (Dictionary) 

Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment (FF&E) 
Business trade fixtures and personal property, exclusive 

of inventory. (Dictionary) 

Going-Concern Value 

An outdated label for the market value of all the tangible 

and intangible assets of an established and operating 

business with an indefinite life, as if sold in aggregate; 

more accurately termed the market value of the going 

concern or market value of the total assets of the business. 

(Dictionary) 

Gross Building Area (GBA) 
1) Total floor area of a building, excluding unenclosed 

areas, measured from the exterior of the walls of the 

above-grade area.  This includes mezzanines and 

basements if and when typically included in the 

market area of the type of property involved. 

2) Gross leasable area plus all common areas. 

3) For residential space, the total area of all floor levels 

measured from the exterior of the walls and 

including the superstructure and substructure 

basement; typically does not include garage space. 

(Dictionary) 

Gross Measured Area 
The total area of a building enclosed by the dominant 

portion (the portion of the inside finished surface of the 

permanent outer building wall which is 50 percent or 

more of the vertical floor-to-ceiling dimension, at the 

given point being measured as one moves horizontally 

along the wall), excluding parking areas and loading 

docks (or portions of same) outside the building line. It is 

generally not used for leasing purposes and is calculated 

on a floor by floor basis. (BOMA) 

Gross Up Method 

A method of calculating variable operating expenses in 

income-producing properties when less than 100% 

occupancy is assumed. Expenses reimbursed based on 

the amount of occupied space, rather than on the total 

building area, are described as “grossed up.” (Dictionary) 

Gross Retail Sellout 

The sum of the separate and distinct market value 

opinions for each of the units in a condominium, 

subdivision development, or portfolio of properties, as of 

the date of valuation.  The aggregate of retail values does 

not represent the value of all the units as though sold 

together in a single transaction; it is simply the total of 

the individual market value conclusions. Also called the 

aggregate of the retail values, aggregate retail selling price 

or sum of the retail values.  (Dictionary) 

Ground Lease 

A lease that grants the right to use and occupy land. 

Improvements made by the ground lessee typically revert 

to the ground lessor at the end of the lease term. 

(Dictionary) 

Ground Rent 
The rent paid for the right to use and occupy land 

according to the terms of a ground lease; the portion of 

the total rent allocated to the underlying land. 

(Dictionary) 

HVAC 

Heating, ventilation, air conditioning (HVAC) system. A 

unit that regulates the temperature and distribution of 

heat and fresh air throughout a building. (Dictionary) 

Highest and Best Use 

1) The reasonably probable use of property that results 

in the highest value. The four criteria that the highest 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 84 

and best use must meet are legal permissibility, 

physical possibility, financial feasibility, and 

maximum productivity. 

2) The use of an asset that maximizes its potential and 

that is possible, legally permissible, and financially 

feasible. The highest and best use may be for 

continuation of an asset’s existing use of for some 

alternative use.  This is determined by the use that a 

market participant would have in mind for the asset 

when formulating the price that it would be willing 

to bid. (IVS) 

3) [The] highest and most profitable use for which the 

property is adaptable and needed or likely to be 

needed in the reasonably near future. (Uniform 

Appraisal Standards for Federal Land Acquisitions) 

(Dictionary) 

Hypothetical Condition 

1) A condition that is presumed to be true when it is 

known to be false. (SVP – Standards of Valuation 

Practice, effective January 1, 2015) 

2) A condition, directly related to a specific assignment, 

which is contrary to what is known by the appraiser 

to exist on the effective date of the assignment 

results, but is used for the purpose of analysis. 

Comment: Hypothetical conditions are contrary to 

known facts about physical, legal, or economic 

characteristics of the subject property; or about 

conditions external to the property, such as market 

conditions or trends; or about the integrity of data 

used in an analysis. (USPAP, 2016-2017 ed.) 

(Dictionary)  

Industrial Gross Lease 

A type of modified gross lease of an industrial property 

in which the landlord and tenant share expenses. The 

landlord receives stipulated rent and is obligated to pay 

certain operating expenses, often structural maintenance, 

insurance and real property taxes, as specified in the 

lease. There are significant regional and local differences 

in the use of this term. (Dictionary) 

Insurable Value 

A type of value for insurance purposes. (Typically this 

includes replacement cost less basement excavation, 

foundation, underground piping and architect’s fees). 

(Dictionary) 

Investment Value 

The value of a property to a particular investor or class of 

investors based on the investor’s specific requirements. 

Investment value may be different from market value 

because it depends on a set of investment criteria that are 

not necessarily typical of the market. (Dictionary) 

Just Compensation 

In condemnation, the amount of loss for which a property 

owner is compensated when his or her property is taken. 

Just compensation should put the owner in as good a 

position pecuniarily as he or she would have been if the 

property had not been taken. (Dictionary) 

Leased Fee Interest 
The ownership interest held by the lessor, which includes 

the right to receive the contract rent specified in the lease 

plus the reversionary right when the lease expires. 

(Dictionary) 

Leasehold Interest 
The right held by the lessee to use and occupy real estate 

for a stated term and under the conditions specified in 

the lease. (Dictionary) 

Lessee (Tenant) 
One who has the right to occupancy and use of the 

property of another for a period of time according to a 

lease agreement. (Dictionary) 

Lessor (Landlord) 
One who conveys the rights of occupancy and use to 

others under a lease agreement. (Dictionary) 

Liquidation Value 

The most probable price that a specified interest in 

property should bring under the following conditions: 
 

• Consummation of a sale within a short time period. 

• The property is subjected to market conditions 

prevailing as of the date of valuation.  

• Both the buyer and seller are acting prudently and 

knowledgeably.  

• The seller is under extreme compulsion to sell. 

• The buyer is typically motivated. 

• Both parties are acting in what they consider to be 

their best interests. 

• A normal marketing effort is not possible due to the 

brief exposure time. 

• Payment will be made in cash in U.S. dollars (or the 

local currency) or in terms of financial arrangements 

comparable thereto. 

• The price represents the normal consideration for 

the property sold, unaffected by special or creative 

financing or sales concessions granted by anyone 

associated with the sale. (Dictionary) 

Loan to Value Ratio (LTV) 
The ratio between a mortgage loan and the value of the 

property pledged as security, usually expressed as a 

percentage. (Dictionary) 

Major Vertical Penetrations 
Stairs, elevator shafts, flues, pipe shafts, vertical ducts, 

and the like, and their enclosing walls. Atria, lightwells and 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 85 

similar penetrations above the finished floor are included 

in this definition. Not included, however, are vertical 

penetrations built for the private use of a tenant 

occupying office areas on more than one floor. Structural 

columns, openings for vertical electric cable or telephone 

distribution, and openings for plumbing lines are not 

considered to be major vertical penetrations. (BOMA) 

Market Rent 
The most probable rent that a property should bring in a 

competitive and open market reflecting the conditions 

and restrictions of a specified lease agreement, including 

the rental adjustment and revaluation, permitted uses, 

use restrictions, expense obligations; term, concessions, 

renewal and purchase options and tenant improvements 

(TIs). (Dictionary) 

Market Value 

The most probable price that a property should bring in 

a competitive and open market under all conditions 

requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller each acting 

prudently and knowledgeably, and assuming the price is 

not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this definition 

is the consummation of a sale as of a specified date and 

the passing of title from seller to buyer under conditions 

whereby: 

• Buyer and seller are typically motivated; 

• Both parties are well informed or well advised, and 

acting in what they consider their own best interests; 

• A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the 

open market; 

• Payment is made in terms of cash in United States 

dollars or in terms of financial arrangements 

comparable thereto; and 

• The price represents the normal consideration for 

the property sold unaffected by special or creative 

financing or sales concessions granted by anyone 

associated with the sale. 

(Dictionary) 

Marketing Time 

An opinion of the amount of time it might take to sell a 

real or personal property interest at the concluded 

market value level during the period immediately after 

the effective date of an appraisal. Marketing time differs 

from exposure time, which is always presumed to precede 

the effective date of an appraisal. (Advisory Opinion 7 of 

the Appraisal Standards Board of the Appraisal 

Foundation and Statement on Appraisal Standards No. 6, 

“Reasonable Exposure Time in Real Property and Personal 

Property Market Value Opinions” address the 

determination of reasonable exposure and marketing 

time.) (Dictionary) 

Master Lease 

A lease in which the fee owner leases a part or the entire 

property to a single entity (the master lease) in return for 

a stipulated rent. The master lessee then leases the 

property to multiple tenants. (Dictionary) 

Modified Gross Lease 

A lease in which the landlord receives stipulated rent and 

is obligated to pay some, but not all, of the property’s 

operating and fixed expenses. Since assignment of 

expenses varies among modified gross leases, expense 

responsibility must always be specified. In some markets, 

a modified gross lease may be called a double net lease, 

net net lease, partial net lease, or semi-gross lease. 

(Dictionary) 

Operating Expense Ratio 
The ratio of total operating expenses to effective gross 

income (TOE/EGI); the complement of the net income 

ratio, i.e., OER = 1 – NIR (Dictionary) 

Option 

A legal contract, typically purchased for a stated 

consideration, that permits but does not require the 

holder of the option (known as the optionee) to buy, sell, 

or lease real estate for a stipulated period of time in 

accordance with specified terms; a unilateral right to 

exercise a privilege. (Dictionary) 

Partial Interest 
Divided or undivided rights in real estate that represent 

less than the whole, i.e., a fractional interest such as a 

tenancy in common, easement, or life interest. 

(Dictionary) 

Pass Through 

A tenant’s portion of operating expenses that may be 

composed of common area maintenance (CAM), real 

property taxes, property insurance, and any other 

expenses determined in the lease agreement to be paid 

by the tenant. (Dictionary) 

Potential Gross Income (PGI) 
The total income attributable to property at full 

occupancy before vacancy and operating expenses are 

deducted. (Dictionary) 

  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 86 

Prospective Future Value Upon Completion 
A prospective market value may be appropriate for the 

valuation of a property interest related to a credit 

decision for a proposed development or renovation 

project. According to USPAP, an appraisal with a 

prospective market value reflects an effective date that is 

subsequent to the date of the appraisal report. … The 

prospective market value –as completed- reflects the 

property’s market value as of the time that development 

is expected to be complete. (Dictionary) 

Prospective Future Value Upon Stabilization 
A prospective market value may be appropriate for the 

valuation of a property interest related to a credit 

decision for a proposed development or renovation 

project. According to USPAP, an appraisal with a 

prospective market value reflects an effective date that is 

subsequent to the date of the appraisal report …The 

prospective market value – as stabilized – reflects the 

property’s market value as of the time the property is 

projected to achieve stabilized occupancy. For an 

income-producing property, stabilized occupancy is the 

occupancy level that a property is expected to achieve 

after the property is exposed to the market for lease over 

a reasonable period of time and at comparable terms and 

conditions to other similar properties. (Dictionary) 

Replacement Cost 
The estimated cost to construct, at current prices as of a 

specific date, a substitute for a building or other 

improvements, using modern materials and current 

standards, design, and layout. (Dictionary) 

Reproduction Cost 
The estimated cost to construct, at current prices as of the 

effective date of the appraisal, an exact duplicate or 

replica of the building being appraised, using the same 

materials, construction standards, design, layout, and 

quality of workmanship and embodying all of the 

deficiencies, superadequacies, and obsolescence of the 

subject building. (Dictionary) 

Retrospective Value Opinion 
A value opinion effective as of a specified historical date. 

The term retrospective does not define a type of value. 

Instead, it identifies a value opinion as being effective at 

some specific prior date. Value as of a historical date is 

frequently sought in connection with property tax 

appeals, damage models, lease renegotiation, deficiency 

judgments, estate tax, and condemnation. Inclusion of 

the type of value with this term is appropriate, e.g., 

“retrospective market value opinion.” (Dictionary) 

Sandwich Leasehold Estate 

The interest held by the sandwich leaseholder when the 

property is subleased to another party; a type of 

leasehold estate. (Dictionary) 

Sublease 

An agreement in which the lessee in a prior lease conveys 

the right of use and occupancy of a property to another, 

the sublessee, for a specific period of time, which may or 

may not be coterminous with the underlying lease term. 

(Dictionary) 

Subordination 

A contractual arrangement in which a party with a claim 

to certain assets agrees to make his or her claim junior, or 

subordinate, to the claims of another party. (Dictionary) 

Surplus Land 

Land that is not currently needed to support the existing 

use but cannot be separated from the property and sold 

off for another use. Surplus land does not have an 

independent highest and best use and may or may not 

contribute value to the improved parcel. (Dictionary) 

Triple Net (Net Net Net) Lease 

An alternative term for a type of net lease.  In some 

markets, a net net net lease is defined as a lease in which 

the tenant assumes all expenses (fixed and variable) of 

operating a property except that the landlord is 

responsible for structural maintenance, building reserves, 

and management; also called NNN lease, net net net 

lease, or fully net lease. (Dictionary) 

 

(The market definition of a triple net lease varies; in some 

cases tenants pay for items such as roof repairs, parking 

lot repairs, and other similar items.) 

Usable Area 
The measured area of an office area, store area, or 

building common area on a floor. The total of all the 

usable areas for a floor shall equal floor usable area of 

that same floor. (BOMA) 

Value-in-Use 

The value of a property assuming a specific use, which 

may or may not be the property’s highest and best use 

on the effective date of the appraisal. Value in use may or 

may not be equal to market value but is different 

conceptually. (Dictionary) 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 87 

Qualifications 

 
 

 

 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 88 

 
 

 

 



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 89 

Valbridge Property Advisors Information / Office Locations 

Valbridge Property Advisors Information / Office Locations 
  



1715 W. IDAHO STREET, BOISE 

  CERTIFICATION 

 

© 2020 VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States  Page 90 

 

 



 

 
 
EXCLUSIVE RIGHT AGREEMENT – 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, ID, 83702 – PAGE - 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY (“Agreement”) is 
entered into by and between the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Boise, also 
known as Capital City Development Corporation, an independent public body, 
corporate and politic (“Agency”), organized pursuant to the Idaho Urban Renewal 
Law, title 50, chapter 20, Idaho Code, as amended (the “Law”), and undertaking 
projects under the authority of the Local Economic Development Act of 1988, title 50, 
chapter 29, Idaho Code, as amended (the “Act”), and <Name of Development 
Company>, or its assigns as provided for herein (“Developer”), collectively referred to 
as the “Parties” and each individually as “Party,” on the terms and provisions set forth 
below. 
 

RECITALS 
 
 Agency, an independent public body, corporate and politic, is an urban 
renewal agency created by and existing under the authority of the Law and the Act; 
and 
 
 The City Council of the City of Boise City, Idaho ("City"), after notice duly 
published, conducted a public hearing on the Westside Downtown Urban Renewal 
Plan (the “Westside Plan”), and following said public hearing, the City adopted its 
Ordinance No. 6108 on December 4, 2001, approving the Westside Plan and making 
certain findings for the jurisdictional area of the Westside Plan, referred to herein as 
the “Project Area”; and, 
 
 In order to achieve the objectives of the Westside Plan, Agency is authorized 
to acquire real property for the revitalization of areas within Agency's boundaries; 
and 
 
 Agency owns certain real property addressed as 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, 
Idaho 83702 (the "Site") as described on Exhibit A; and 
 
 Agency seeks to initiate a redevelopment project to revitalize the Project Area 
in compliance with the Westside Plan through the redevelopment of the Site, which 
could also serve as a catalyst for redevelopment of other properties in the vicinity; 
and 
  
 Following the publication of an RFQ/P in the Idaho Statesman newspaper on 
<insert publish date>, Agency received <XX> proposals for development of the Site; 
and 
 
 At a public meeting on <enter date of public meeting>, the Agency Board 
selected Developer's proposal, attached hereto as Exhibit B; and 



 

 
 
EXCLUSIVE RIGHT AGREEMENT – 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, ID, 83702 – PAGE - 2 
 

 
 Agency and Developer intend to pursue the negotiations of a Disposition and 
Development Agreement (“DDA”) and, thus, comply with the required notice 
provisions concerning the disposition of property by Agency as set forth in the Law; 
and 
 
 Agency seeks to enter into an agreement with Developer for the purpose of 
analyzing and assessing a development opportunity for the Site as defined in this 
Agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Agency and Developer hereby agree as follows: 
 
 

AGREEMENTS 
 
Section 000  DEFINITIONS 
 
 “Agency” shall be the Capital City Development Corporation and includes 
both Agency Staff and the Agency Board. 
 
 “Agency Staff” shall be the staff of Agency, as opposed to the members of 
the Agency Board. 
 
 “Agency Board” shall be the members of the Agency’s Board of 
Commissioners, as duly and legally appointed. 
 
 “Developer” shall be <Name of Development Company>, or its assigns. 
 
 “Disposition and Development Agreement” or “DDA” shall mean the 
agreement the Parties hope to negotiate that will set forth the definitive terms of 
Agency’s disposition of the Site to Developer. 
 

“Effective Date” shall be the date this Agreement is signed by both Parties 
(last date signed). 
 

“Negotiation Period” shall begin on the Effective Date and end one hundred 
fifty (150) days after the Effective Date, unless extended by Agency. 
 

“Schedule of Performance” shall mean the attached Exhibit C. 
 
“Scope of Development” shall mean Developer’s concepts for development 

of the Site included in Developer’s proposal and attached as Exhibit B, and including 
any agreed upon changes negotiated by Developer and Agency during the course of 
this Agreement. 
 

“Site” shall mean the real property owned by Agency and more particularly 
described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
 



 

 
 
EXCLUSIVE RIGHT AGREEMENT – 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, ID, 83702 – PAGE - 3 
 

Section 100  NEGOTIATIONS 
 
 Section 101  Good-Faith Exclusive Negotiations 
 
 The Parties agree the foregoing recitals are not mere recitations but are 
covenants of the Parties, binding upon them as may be appropriate and a portion of 
the consideration for the agreements contained herein. 
 
 Agency and Developer agree for the Negotiation Period to negotiate diligently 
and in good faith to prepare a DDA to be considered for execution between Agency 
and Developer, in the manner set forth herein, with respect to the development of the 
Site.  During the Negotiation Period (defined below) Agency shall not directly or 
indirectly negotiate with any person or entity other than Developer with respect to the 
disposition or development of the Site.  
 
 Section 102  Negotiation Period 
 
 The duration of this Agreement (the "Negotiation Period") shall commence on 
the Effective Date and shall terminate one hundred fifty (150) days thereafter (the 
“Termination Date”).  Provided, Agency may in its discretion extend the Negotiation 
Period for an additional thirty (30) days beyond the Termination Date: if such 
extension is at the sole instigation of Agency, no extension fee shall be due. In the 
event that Developer requests such an extension and Agency grants such request, 
Agency may, in its sole discretion, require Developer to pay an extension fee of 
$5,000.00.  In the event an extension fee has been paid and a DDA has been 
executed by both Parties, such extension fee shall be credited towards the purchase 
price for the Site. 
 

If upon expiration of the Negotiation Period Developer has not executed an 
Agency Staff approved DDA, then this Agreement shall terminate, unless extended in 
writing by Agency.  Once a DDA is signed by both Developer and Agency, then the 
terms of the DDA shall prevail and this Agreement shall automatically terminate.  
 
 If the negotiations do not result in an executed DDA, Developer shall submit to 
Agency a summary of its findings and determinations regarding the proposed 
development, excluding any confidential or privileged information.  If this Agreement 
is terminated per this Section 102, Developer shall not seek reimbursement for costs 
and expenses from Agency and Agency shall not seek reimbursement for costs and 
expenses from Developer, except that Agency shall retain any extension fee paid by 
Developer, and Agency shall be entitled to retain the Deposit (defined below) subject 
to Section 103. 
 
 Section 103  Deposit 
 
 Developer’s Submission of Deposit:  
 

Developer shall submit to Agency a deposit ("Deposit") in an amount of 
Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($10,000) in the form of cash or cashier's check to ensure 
that Developer will proceed diligently and in good faith to negotiate and perform all of 
Developer's obligations under this Agreement.  This Deposit shall be applied to the 



 

 
 
EXCLUSIVE RIGHT AGREEMENT – 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, ID, 83702 – PAGE - 4 
 

Initial Purchase Price. Provided, if the Parties terminate this Agreement before 
Agency incurs any costs in preparing the Reuse Appraisal, defined below, the 
Deposit shall be refunded in its entirety to Developer.  After Agency incurs any third-
party costs in preparing the Reuse Appraisal, such costs shall be deducted from the 
amount of the Deposit refunded to Developer if such a refund occurs as otherwise 
provided herein. 

 
Submission of the Deposit must occur within fifteen (15) days of the Effective 

Date.  If Developer fails to submit said Deposit within the fifteen (15) day period, 
Agency may terminate this Agreement, with neither Party having any further rights 
against nor liability to the other under this Agreement, unless as agreed to in writing 
by Agency. 
 
 Agency shall be under no obligation to pay or earn interest on Developer's 
Deposit, but if interest shall accrue or be payable thereon, such interest (when 
received by Agency) shall become part of the Deposit. 
 
Section 200  DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT 
 
 Section 201  Scope of Development 
 
 Agency and Developer acknowledge Developer's proposal, as submitted to 
Agency on <Enter date submitted> (the “Proposal”), is attached as Exhibit B. 
 
 Section 202.01  Design Development Plan 
 
 Developer shall refine and supplement their Proposal to produce a second 
submittal to Agency Staff under this Agreement (the "Design Development Plan").  
Prior to the submittal of the Design Development Plan to Agency Staff, Developer, a 
principal representative or representatives from Developer's architectural design firm 
("Principal Designer''), and Agency Staff shall engage in a design refinement process 
to address design-related issues identified by Agency.  Following this design 
refinement and within sixty (60) days of the Effective Date, Developer shall submit 
the Design Development Plan to Agency Staff which shall include: 
 

A clear chart showing changes from the Proposal including: 

 square footage by type of uses 

 number of parking spaces 

 perspective renderings 

 floor plans 

 site plan 

 elevations/sections listing exterior finishes  
 
The Design Development Plan shall also include a brief project summary and 

a critical path analysis identifying key milestones in the planning and construction 
stages for the Project and an updated estimated project schedule.  Developer shall 
submit the Design Development Plan to Agency Staff and Agency Staff shall review 
and consider the Design Development Plan as set forth in Section 202.02 of this 
Agreement and the Schedule of Performance.  
 



 

 
 
EXCLUSIVE RIGHT AGREEMENT – 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, ID, 83702 – PAGE - 5 
 

 Section 202.02  Approval of the Design Development Plan 
 
 Within fifteen (15) days of Agency Staff’s receipt of the Design Development 
Plan, Agency shall either approve or disapprove the Design Development Plan in 
writing to Developer.  In the event the Design Development Plan is initially 
disapproved by Agency Staff, within fifteen (15) days of Agency’s receipt of the 
Design Development Plan Agency Staff shall set forth the reasons for disapproval 
and options that address Agency's reasons for disapproval.  Developer shall then 
have ten (10) days to resubmit information to address the reasons for disapproval.  
Within five (5) days of Agency Staff’s receipt of the resubmittal, Agency Staff shall 
meet with Developer to discuss the resubmittal (the “Resubmittal Meeting”) and shall 
identify issues that have not been resolved to Agency Staff's satisfaction, if any, and 
shall provide an additional period of fifteen (15) days for Developer to resubmit 
information to address Agency Staff’s issues.  Agency and Developer agree that the 
purpose of this process is to reach a mutually satisfactory resolution of differences on 
project design with the understanding that Agency retains the right to approve the 
Design Development Plan.  In the event the Design Development Plan, as 
applicable, is again disapproved based on issues identified by Agency Staff in its 
discussions with Developer, Agency may terminate this Agreement and the Deposit, 
less any costs incurred per Section 103, shall be refunded to Developer. 
 
 Section 203  Progress Reports 
 
 Developer agrees to make oral and written progress reports advising Agency 
on all matters and all studies being made by Developer on a monthly basis or at the 
request of Agency. 
 
 Section 204  Assessment of Project Feasibility; Notification 
 
 In the event at any time during the Negotiation Period Developer determines 
that it is not feasible to proceed with the Project, this Agreement shall be terminated 
upon ten (10) days' written notice to Agency.  In the event of such termination, 
Agency shall refund the Deposit subject to Section 103 of this Agreement.   
 
 In the event of such termination neither Party shall have any further rights 
against or liability to the other under this Agreement.  Developer acknowledges and 
consents that in the event this Agreement is terminated, Agency has the right and 
authority to enter into an exclusive right to negotiation agreement concerning the Site 
with any other interested developer. 
 
 Section 205  Environmental Condition 
 
 Developer acknowledges that in the development of the Project, it has 
previously received and reviewed certain environmental reports which have included 
an investigation of the Site.  The environmental reports known to Agency include:  
 

List environmental reports here (if applicable)  Include name of report, 
who prepared the report and the date of the report.  

 



 

 
 
EXCLUSIVE RIGHT AGREEMENT – 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, ID, 83702 – PAGE - 6 
 

Section 300  PURCHASE PRICE AND/OR OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 The Initial Purchase Price for the Site shall be <purchase price > Dollars 
($000,000).  
 
 During the Negotiation Period, Agency and Developer shall negotiate the 
schedule and conditions for transfer of the Site to Developer with respect to financing 
and a schedule for the development and disposition of the Site, which schedule and 
conditions will be included in the DDA.  Provided, it will be a condition of the transfer 
of the Site that Developer pay the entire Initial Purchase Price (less the Deposit) to 
Agency before the title is transferred to Developer. 
 
 Under the Law, Agency may transfer real property for no less than the fair 
reuse value.  Agency will prepare and provide Developer with a copy of the reuse 
appraisal (“Reuse Appraisal”) based upon the information developed through the 
Design Development Plan as described in this Agreement.  The Reuse Appraisal 
shall establish the fair reuse value of the Site as required under the Law (the 
“Residual Land Value”).  
 

If the Residual Land Value is equal to the Initial Purchase Price, then the Initial 
Purchase Price shall be the Final Purchase Price. 

If the Residual Land Value is greater than the Initial Purchase Price, the Final 
Purchase Price shall be the Residual Land Value.  

If the Residual Land Value is determined to be less than $000,000 by the 
Reuse Appraisal, the Parties shall negotiate the Final Purchase Price for the Site 
based on the difference between the Initial Purchase Price and the Residual Land 
Value.   

If the Parties have reached agreement on the Final Purchase Price and 
whether any portion of the Initial Purchase Price should be rebated, such rebate shall 
be disbursed to Developer upon the Project’s receipt of a Final Certificate of 
Occupancy and upon Agency’s acknowledgement and acceptance thereof.  
Additional details of the setting of the purchase price and the conditions precedent to 
rebate shall be included in the DDA.  The Final Purchase Price shall be as 
established by the DDA and not by the terms of this Agreement. 

Within sixty (60) days of the Effective Date, Developer shall submit to Agency 
Staff the data required by the appraiser (“Reuse Appraiser”) who has been selected 
by Agency, which data (“Reuse Appraisal Data”) is needed by the Reuse Appraiser 
to prepare the Reuse Appraisal for the Site, which data shall include data on the 
Project as described in this Section 300.  Developer shall submit the Reuse 
Appraisal Data at the time the Design Development Plan is submitted to Agency 
Staff.  Developer may be required to supplement the Reuse Appraisal Data during 
the course of the Reuse Appraisal and shall submit this supplementary data in a 
timely manner as required by the Reuse Appraiser and Agency.  The Reuse 
Appraisal Data includes but may not be limited to: 

 density of development,  



 

 
 
EXCLUSIVE RIGHT AGREEMENT – 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, ID, 83702 – PAGE - 7 
 

 costs expected to be incurred and revenues expected to be realized in 
the course of developing and disposing of the Project,  

 residential unit types,  

 sizes and expected sales prices or rents,  

 square footages of uses other than residential,  

 leasing or sales prices for other uses and assets such as office space, 
retail space and parking spaces,  

 assumptions regarding soft costs such as marketing and insurance, 
risks of Agency, risks of Developer,  

 Developer participation in the funding of public facilities and amenities, 
and  

 estimated or actual Developer return including assumptions regarding 
entrepreneurial incentive, overhead and administration as these factors 
apply to the Project.   

The Parties anticipate completion of the Reuse Appraisal within one hundred 
twenty (120) days of the Effective Date.  Developer acknowledges that Agency will 
be unable to commence the Reuse Appraisal process without Developer’s submittal 
of the Reuse Appraisal Data, and Developer acknowledges that Agency will be 
unable to complete negotiation of the terms of the DDA without the results of the 
Reuse Appraisal.  
 
Section 400  DEVELOPER AND DEVELOPER’S OBLIGATIONS 
 
 Section 401  Nature of Developer 
 
 Developer is <Name of Development Company>, or its assigns.  Wherever 
the term "Developer" is used herein, such term shall include any permitted nominee 
or assignee as herein provided. 
 
 Section 402  Developer's Principal Office and Development Team 
 

Developer’s Principal Office is located at: 
 <Insert complete address of developer’s office> 
 

Agency and Developer acknowledge and agree that the Local Project 
Manager, as described in Section 906, shall also be a member of the Development 
Team.  Any other consultants and professionals on the Development Team (such as 
special architectural consultants, leasing agents, engineer, and contractor) will be 
selected at a later date. 
 
 Section 403  Full Disclosure 
 
 Developer is required to make full disclosure to Agency of its officers, key 
managerial employees, and design professionals (collectively the "Development 



 

 
 
EXCLUSIVE RIGHT AGREEMENT – 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, ID, 83702 – PAGE - 8 
 

Team") involved in this Project. Any significant change during the period of this 
Agreement of the Development Team or in the controlling interest of Developer of the 
Project covered by this Agreement is subject to the approval of Agency, such 
approval not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 
 
 This Agreement shall be assigned or otherwise transferred as provided herein. 
 

Section 404  Compliance with Applicable Laws 
 
Developer recognizes it will be required to comply with all applicable laws, 

including all applicable federal and state labor standards, antidiscrimination 
standards, affirmative action standards, and nondiscrimination and nonsegregation 
standards, laws, and regulations in development, rental, sale, or lease of the Site. 
 
Section 500  AGENCY'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 Section 501  Urban Renewal Plan 
 
 This Agreement and any DDA agreed to by the Parties are subject to the 
provisions of the Westside Plan.  
 
Section 600  REAL ESTATE COMMISSIONS 
 
 Agency shall not be liable for any real estate commission or brokerage fees 
which may arise herefrom.  Agency represents that it has engaged no broker, 
agency, or finder in connection with this transaction, and Developer agrees to hold 
Agency harmless from any claim by any broker, agent, or finder retained by 
Developer. 
 
Section 700 EXECUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT NOT A DISPOSITION OF 
PROPERTY 
 
 By its execution of this Agreement, Agency is not committing itself to or 
agreeing to undertake: (a) disposition of land to Developer; or (b) any other acts or 
activities requiring the subsequent independent exercise of discretion by Agency, 
City, or any agency or department thereof; or (c) any other acts or activities requiring 
the subsequent independent exercise of discretion by any federal or state agency 
including, but not limited to, environmental clearance and historic preservation 
approval.  Execution of this Agreement by Agency and Developer does not constitute 
a disposition of property by Agency. 
 
Section 800  ISSUES OF NEGOTIATION 
 
 Developer recognizes that the following items are matters Agency desires be 
addressed during the Negotiation Period, but both Parties understand that there is no 
present agreement as to the manner or degree to which they or any particular one 
can or will be included in the DDA or Development Plan. 
  



 

 
 
EXCLUSIVE RIGHT AGREEMENT – 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, ID, 83702 – PAGE - 9 
 

 Section 801  Design Refinement 
 
 Prior to submission of the Design Development Plan, Agency, Developer, and 
the Principal Designer shall engage in design discussions to address design issues 
related to the Design Development Plan identified by Agency, which Agency desires 
to resolve prior to submittal of the Design Development Plan to Agency by 
Developer.  Agency shall prepare a list of the issues to be addressed in the Design 
Development Plan, and the process shall be conducted as provided in the Schedule 
of Performance.  Agency and Developer shall reach mutual agreement on how to 
proceed regarding the design issues. 
 
 Section 802  Demolition and Clearance 
 
  Developer's proposal does not include any buildings being retained on the 
Site.  Cost estimates for demolition and clearance, and any environmental 
remediation, shall be included in the Reuse Appraisal as a development cost to be 
paid by Developer.  The Parties agree to address as part of the negotiation of the 
DDA: 1) the timing and any phasing involving the demolition and clearance costs; 2) 
rights of the Parties to the structural components and materials comprising the 
buildings and any equipment or appurtenances on the Site; and 3) requirements, if 
any, for recycling of structural components and building materials as part of 
demolition and clearance. 
 
 Section 803  Agency Participation 
 
 Developer specifically acknowledges, recognizes, and consents that Agency 
participation in the Project may be limited to the inclusion of the Site for the Project at 
a yet to be determined value based on the Reuse Appraisal and Agency 
determinations.  
 
 Section 804  Impact Fees 
 
 Agency acknowledges that Developer likely will be assessed impact fees by 
City and the Ada County Highway District (“ACHD”).  Such impact fees assessed 
represent a cost to the Project and may be included within the Reuse Appraisal 
analysis as described in Section 300 of this Agreement.  Developer may seek an 
individual assessment from ACHD, if available.  Agency agrees to cooperate with 
Developer in the preparation of the individual assessment for ACHD and to support 
presentation of the individual assessment by Developer to ACHD to the extent 
deemed appropriate by Agency.  Provided, however, nothing contained herein 
obligates Agency to subsidize or pay for the individual assessment or any impact 
fees. 
  
Section 900  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
 Section 901  Notices 
 
 Formal notices, demands, and communications between Agency and 
Developer shall be sufficiently given if sent by registered or certified mail, postage 
prepaid and return receipt requested, to the principal offices of Agency and 



 

 
 
EXCLUSIVE RIGHT AGREEMENT – 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, ID, 83702 – PAGE - 10 
 

Developer as set forth below.  Routine communication may be by first class mail, 
email, facsimile, or telephone. 
 

Agency 
John Brunelle, Executive Director 
Capital City Development Corporation  
121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
Boise, Idaho  83702 
208-384-4264 (voice) 
208-384-4267 (fax) 
jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com 
 
Developer 
First Name, Initial, Last Name 
Name of Development Company 
Street Address 
City, State, Zip 
Phone Number 
Fax Number 
Email Address 
 
With a copy to: 
First Name, Initial, Last Name 
Name of Developer Attorney 
Street Address 
City, State, Zip 
Phone Number 
Fax Number 
Email Address 
 

 
 Section 902  Remedies and Damages 
 
 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, 
Developer's obligations hereunder are nonrecourse.  Agency's only recourse and 
security for Developer's obligations shall be retention of the Deposit and any 
extension fee.  In the event of any legal proceeding described in this Section 902 
between the Parties to this Agreement to enforce any provision of this Agreement or 
to protect or establish any right or remedy of either Party hereunder, the prevailing 
Party shall recover its reasonable attorney fees, at trial and upon appeal, in addition 
to all other costs and damages allowed, as determined by the Court.  
 
 Section 903  No Recordation 
 
 In no event shall any Party record this Agreement or any memorandum hereof 
or otherwise encumber the Site by reason of this Agreement or the negotiations 
contemplated hereby. 
 
 Section 904  Successors and Assigns 
 

mailto:jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com


 

 
 
EXCLUSIVE RIGHT AGREEMENT – 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, ID, 83702 – PAGE - 11 
 

 No Party may assign or delegate its obligations under this Agreement without 
the consent of each other Party hereto, which consent may not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed.  Agency shall not withhold consent to any assignment of this 
Agreement by Developer to an entity managed by Mike Brown and Casey Lynch, 
directly or indirectly.  Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, the terms, 
covenants, conditions, and agreements contained herein shall be binding upon and 
inure to the benefit of the heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns of 
the Parties hereto. 
 
 Section 905  Counterparts 
 
 This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and each counterpart shall 
then be deemed for all purposes to be an original, executed agreement with respect 
to the Parties whose signatures appear thereon. 
 

Section 906  Local Project Management 
 

<Enter complete name of Project Manager>, an employee of an affiliated 
entity of Developer, shall serve as Local Project Manager ("Project Manager") who 
will be available to Agency. 
 
Section 1000  TERMINATION 
 

Section 1001 Termination by Mutual Agreement 
 
This Agreement may be terminated at any time by the written consent of either 

Party.  In the event of such termination, Deposit shall be refundable as set forth in 
Section 103 and neither Party shall have any further rights against or liability to the 
other under this Agreement. 
 

Section 1002 Termination Due to Inability to Agree on the DDA Terms 
 

 Upon termination of this Agreement at the expiration of the Negotiation Period, 
or such extension thereof, neither Party shall have any further rights against nor 
liability to the other under this Agreement.  If this Agreement is terminated for the 
Parties' failure to negotiate a DDA acceptable to both Parties, Developer shall not 
seek reimbursement for costs and expenses from Agency, and Agency shall not 
seek reimbursement for costs and expenses from Developer, except to retain from 
Developer's Deposit and extension fee, if any, any third-party costs actually incurred 
by Agency in preparing the Reuse Appraisal, as provided in Section 103. 
 
Exhibits 
 
Exhibit A Legal Description of the Site 
Exhibit B Developer’s Proposal 
Exhibit C  Schedule of Performance 
   

End of Agreement | Signatures appear on the following page.  

 
 



 

 
 
EXCLUSIVE RIGHT AGREEMENT – 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, ID, 83702 – PAGE - 12 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 
dates set forth below.  
 
 
 
   , 2020  AGENCY 

     THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF 
     THE CITY OF BOISE, also known as 
     CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 
 
             
     John Brunelle, Executive Director 
 
 
 
 
 
   , 2020  DEVELOPER 

     <Name of Development Company> 
 
 
             

By<Name/Title of Person Authorized to Bind 
Company>  

 
  



 

 
 
EXCLUSIVE RIGHT AGREEMENT – 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, ID, 83702 – PAGE - 13 
 

 
STATE OF    ) 

ss: 
County of    )  
 

On this ______ day of   , 2020, before me, a notary public in and for 
said state, personally appeared John Brunelle, Executive Director of the Capital City 
Development Corporation, the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing 
instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same on behalf of the 
Capital City Development Corporation.  

  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal, the day and 

year in this certificate first above written. 
 

        
NOTARY PUBLIC for Idaho 
Residing at:        
Commission Expires:       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF    ) 

ss: 
County of    )  
 

On this ___ day of _______________, 2020, before me, a notary public in and 
for said state, personally appeared _______________________________, known or 
identified to me to be the _____________________________ of an Idaho Limited 
Liability Company known as  ____________________________________, who 
executed the within instrument on behalf of said Limited Liability Company and 
acknowledged to me that said Limited Liability Company executed the same for the 
purposes herein contained. <wording may change according to the company 
structure.> 

  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal, the day and 

year in this certificate first above written. 
 

       
NOTARY PUBLIC for Idaho 
Residing at:        
Commission Expires:       

  



 

 
 
EXCLUSIVE RIGHT AGREEMENT – 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, ID, 83702 – PAGE - 14 
 

 
Exhibit A 
Legal Description of the Site 
  



 

 
 
EXCLUSIVE RIGHT AGREEMENT – 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, ID, 83702 – PAGE - 15 
 

Exhibit B 
Developer’s Proposal 
  



 

 
 
EXCLUSIVE RIGHT AGREEMENT – 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, ID, 83702 – PAGE - 16 
 

Exhibit C 
Schedule of Performance 
 

Task Completion Date Section Reference 

Developer Submits Design 
Development Plan to 
Agency Staff 
 

Sixty (60) days after the 
Effective Date 

202.01 

Developer Provides Reuse 
Appraisal Data to Reuse 
Appraiser 
 

Sixty (60) days after the 
Effective Date 

300 

Agency Staff approves or 
disapproves of the Design 
Development Plan 
 

Within ten (10) days of 
Agency’s receipt of the 
Design Development Plan 

202.02 

Developer’s response to 
Agency’s disapproval of 
the Design Development 
Plan (“Developer’s 
Resubmittal”) 
 

Within fifteen (15) days of 
Developer’s receipt of 
Agency’s disapproval of 
the Design Development 
Plan 

202.02 

Agency’s Meeting with 
Developer to discuss 
Developer’s Resubmittal 
(the “Resubmittal 
Meeting”) 
 

Within five (5) days of 
Agency’s receipt of 
Developer’s Resubmittal 

202.02 

Developer’s submission in 
response to Agency’s 
issues with Developer’s 
Resubmittal 
 

Within fifteen (15) days of 
the Resubmittal Meeting 

202.02 

Completion of Reuse 
Appraisal 

One Hundred Twenty 
(120) days after the 
Effective Date 
 

300 

Finalize Disposition and 
Development Agreement 
agreeable to Agency Staff 
and Developer 

One Hundred Fifty (150) 
days after the Effective 
Date 

102 

 
 
 



Summary of Disposition and Development Agreement 

 
The following summary has been prepared to provide an overview of the contents of the 
Disposition and Development Agreement (''DDA") the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise, Idaho, 
also known as the Capital City Development Corporation ("Agency''), will prepare for execution 
with the selected developer for the property located at 1715 W. Idaho Street, Boise, Ada 
County, Idaho (the "Property''). 

 
The DDA will contain 13 sections. The sections will cover the following: 
 
1. Section 1 will contain definitions of relevant terms contained in the DDA 
 
2. Section 2 will identify the parties to the agreement and reference the Agency's urban 
renewal plan. This section will also cover the powers and limitations of an urban renewal 
agency when disposing of real property, which are contained in Idaho Code § 50-2011. 
 
3. Section 3 will cover the pre-closing due diligence period, property investigation, and title 

issues that may arise. 
 
4. Section 4 will deal with the selected developer's proposed financing for the project and 

the Agency's assessment of the financial viability of the proposed project, based on the firm 

commitments from lenders and financers and when such commitments are required. 
 
5. Section 5 covers the disposition and conveyance of the property to the developer and 
the property closing details. 
 
6. Section 6 will detail the condition of the property and any representations made by the 
Agency concerning the same. The Agency anticipates disposing of the property in "as is" 

condition. 
 
7. Section 7 will set forth the development of the project and memorialize the proposed 
project.  The Agency anticipates providing some assistance to the developer for the project. 
The assistance will be based on the completion of the proposed project as detailed in 
Section 7. 
 
8. Section 8 provides the Agency's requirements for insurance and indemnification of the 
Agency. 
 
9. Section 9 sets forth the project completion, purchase price adjustment and the mechanism 
the Agency will use to determine the difference between the fair market value of the Property 
and the fair reuse value of the Property.  By law, the Agency cannot dispose of real property for 
an amount less than the fair reuse value of the property.  The fair reuse value of the Property 
will be calculated by assessing the design and construction costs of the proposed project to 
determine the minimum land acquisition cost that would enable the developer to construct the 
proposed project and earn a profit from the endeavor, as opposed to suffering a financial loss. 
The fair reuse value will be determined by an appraiser engaged by the Agency, who will 
consider the construction and design costs, financing costs, the marketability of the proposed 
project, and the developer's entrepreneurial incentive. 

 



10. Section 10 will contain post-development and construction obligations concerning the
continued use of the Property in compliance with the Plan and the obligation of the Property 
owner to pay real property taxes assessed by the County Assessor. The Agency does not 
assess property taxes. 

11. Section 11 will cover the potential for developer or Agency defaults of the DDA and
remedies for the parties. 

12. Sections 12  and 13  will contain standard contract provisions concerning assignment
rights, notices and demands, conflicts of interest, attorney fees, dispute resolution, and how 
the parties will coordinate with each other. 

END OF SUMMARY 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

V.  
INFORMATION  

ITEMS 
 
  



 

 

DATE:  October 12, 2020 

TO:  Dana Zuckerman, Chair  

Board of Commissioners 

FM:  John Brunelle, Executive Director 

RE:  CCDC Monthly Report 

RIVER – MYRTLE / OLD BOISE DISTRICT 

 

 

Economic Development 

5th & Front Streets - Hotel and Parking Garage – Participation Program (PP) Type 3, 5:  The 
parking garage portion of this project (540 total spaces) opened for customers in mid-March under 
a temporary certificate of occupancy. On May 1, CCDC began leasing 200 spaces for public use, 
specifically reserved monthly parkers. The developer is planning a public art element on the 
stairwell wall facing Front Street, and is working with the City of Boise Arts and History Department 
on the selection process. The CCDC Board approved an additional $90,000 in eligible expenses 
for public art at its December 2019 meeting. Chair Zuckerman represents CCDC on the selection 
committee. Other members represent the development group, the City Arts & History 



 
 

Page 2 of 15 

Commission, and local artists. The selection committee will review artist applications and is 
waiting for the developer’s proposed art program. The developer is currently working with its artist 
and the relevant City bodies to finalize the proposed art program.  Project Lead: Brady Shinn    

200 W. Myrtle Street - Boise Caddis - PP Type 2:  Construction continues on the Boise Caddis 
project with post-tensioned concrete work underway. Wood framing is underway. The project, 
scheduled to open in the summer of 2021, includes 160 rental 
units and 400 parking spaces. Ada County will purchase a 
number of the parking spaces for use by its nearby 
Courthouse complex workforce. The Type 2 Agreement 
includes approximately $1.2 million in eligible expenses for 
public improvements on 2nd, 3rd, and Myrtle Streets and a 
small portion of Broad Street. Reimbursement will come from 
tax increment revenue generated by the project.  Project Lead: 
Brady Shinn 

204 E. Myrtle Street - CDG Boise - PP Type 2: The Board 
designated this project for Type 2 funding at its November 
2019 meeting. CDG Boise is building a 249-unit apartment 
building with 353 parking spaces, and has requested 
reimbursement for approximately $980,000 of public 
improvements including streetscapes and utility work. The 
Type 2 Agreement was approved at the December 2019 
Board meeting. The project is finalizing permitting. 
Construction mobilization is expected in November 2020, with 
an anticipated Certificate of Occupancy by Winter 2022. 
Project Lead: Brady Shinn 

406 W. Broad Street - Cartee Apartments - PP Type 2:  This 
project includes 160 apartment units and 176 structured 
parking spaces. Construction and mobilization began in 
October 2019. Construction is now vertical. The concrete 
podium is complete. The agreement between CCDC and the 
developer contemplates approximately $1.3 million in eligible 
expenses to be reimbursed from project-generated tax 
increment revenue.  Project Lead: Brady Shinn  

512 W. Grove Street - 5th & Grove Mixed Use Residential 
- PP Type 2:  At its March 2020 meeting, the CCDC Board 
approved a Type 2 General Assistance Participation Agreement with 5th and Grove Investors, 
LLC. The project includes 114 for-rent apartments and 8,000 square feet of ground floor retail. 
Fifty of the apartment units will be dedicated to workforce housing, serving 120% AMI (area 
median income) and below. The project qualifies for Level A status and is eligible to receive 80% 
of the tax increment revenue it generates to reimburse Eligible Expenses. The project includes 
approximately $1 million in Eligible Expenses for public improvements along 5th Street, Grove 
Street and alley. It is estimated that tax increment revenue can reimburse approximately $700,000 
of Eligible Expenses. CCDC will construct and pay for the already-planned Grove Street 
streetscape improvements currently in the Agency’s 5-year Capital Improvement Plan, accounting 
for approximately $347,000 in Eligible Expenses. If construction timelines do not align, CCDC will 
reimburse the developer for that work upon completion of the project and not through project-
generated tax increment revenue. Those two sources will reimburse the developer for all of the 
project’s Eligible Expenses. Site prep and mobilization has begun, Summer 2020. Project Lead: 
Brady Shinn 

Type 1: One-time assistance. 

Reimbursements up to $200k 

for eligible expenses. 

Developer-matched. 

Type 2: General assistance. 

Reimbursed by project-

generated tax increment 

revenue. Scorecard 

dependent.  

Type 3: Transformative 

Assistance. Large-scale or 

unproven projects. Often 

includes public parking. $6 

private to $1 public minimum 

investment required.  

Type 4: Capital Improvement 

Coordination. Most often 

used for public/public 

projects. 

Type 5: Disposition of CCDC-

owned property. 

PARTICIPATION 
PROGRAM 



 
 

Page 3 of 15 

116 6th Street - 6th & Grove Mixed Used, Income Restricted Residential - PP Type 2: At its 
March 2020 meeting, the CCDC Board approved a Type 2 General Assistance Participation 
Agreement with the developers of the 6th & Grove project. This is a mixed-use residential and 
retail project being developed by Capital Partners, Galena Fund, and deChase Miksis. It will 
consist of 60 apartment units (income restricted and market rate), 5,000 square feet of retail and 
9,000 square feet of office space. The project includes approximately $600,000 of Eligible 
Expenses for public improvements in the alley and streetscapes along Grove and 6th streets. 
CCDC will construct and pay for the already-planned Grove Street streetscape improvements 
currently in the Agency’s 5-year Capital Improvement Plan, accounting for approximately 
$130,000 in Eligible Expenses. Sixth Street improvements are included in CCDC’s current year 
CIP and will be reimbursed upon completion. The remainder of the Eligible Expenses will be 
reimbursed using tax increment revenue generated by the project between 2022 and 2025. These 
funding sources will reimburse the developer for all Eligible Expenses.  Footings, foundations, 
sitework, site prep, and mobilization began summer 2020, construction proceeding apace. 
Update: an amendment to the Agreement is in-process (was not on last month’s Board agenda 
as previously reported) to coordinate construction timing for overlapping, future CCDC 
Participation Program Streetscapes and CCDC Capital Improvement Plan projects. Project Lead: 
Brady Shinn 

600 W. Front Street - The Vanguard - PP Type 2: Visium Development is constructing a 75-unit 
multi-family apartment building on the corner of 6th and Front streets (former Biz Print location). 
The CCDC Board designated this project for Type 2 funding at its November 2019 meeting. 
Visium has requested reimbursement for approximately $400,000 of public improvements, 
including streetscapes and utility work. The Type 2 Agreement was approved at the December 
2019 Board meeting. Construction is vertical; footings and the foundation complete.  Project Lead: 
Brady Shinn 

601 S. 8th Street – Mixed-Use with Public Parking – PP Type 3: Jordan-Wilcomb Construction 
is partnering with local developer Global Senior Housing on a mixed-use project that preliminarily 
includes office, retail, public parking and residential spaces. The residential portion will be Global 
Senior Housing’s specialty, an “Active Adult Community Platform” for 55+ year-old adults. Current 
use at the property is a vacant, one story building that previously housed the Foothills School for 
Arts and Sciences. CCDC is interested in potentially purchasing a parking condominium and 
providing public parking at the location. The project anticipates over 160 residential spaces over 
5 floors, 300 parking stalls, and over 20,000 sq ft of commercial and retail spaces. The project’s 
total development cost is estimated to be $53 million with construction expected to begin in 2021 
and open by late 2022 or 2023. The project received Designation at the September 2020 Board 
Meeting. The next actions are to negotiate and execute a Letter of Interest with the Participant, 
as Participant continues its development process.  Project Lead: Brady Shinn  

Mobility 

S. 5th St & Myrtle St - Signalized Crossing:  This project seeks to install signal control on Myrtle 
Street at the 5th Street intersection to provide a safe crossing between Julia Davis Park and the 
Central Addition, and to extend the signal-coordinated calming of Myrtle Street. Kittelson & 
Associates has completed a preliminary traffics signal study and representatives of ACHD, City 
of Boise, CCDC, and ITD met in March 2020 to discuss next steps. CCDC and the City are working 
on a request to ITD outlining the rationale for a signal and how it will not set a precedent. Project 
Lead: Matt Edmond 

ParkBOI - Capitol & Myrtle Parking Garage - Agency Owned Property:  This project will apply 
repair patches of spray-on fire-proofing throughout this garage.  The Agency has met with a 



 
 

Page 4 of 15 

contractor, looked at the repairs, and is waiting for a detailed proposal. Spray-on Solutions is the 
contractor for this project.   Project Lead: Aaron Nelson   

505 W. Bannock St - 505 Bannock - T1 Designation: Local general contractor Visser 
Construction is building a three-story mixed-use property at the site of the former Wells Fargo 
bank branch. The project features over 11,000 sq ft of dining space between two restaurants, and 
3,700 sq ft top floor office space. The project is an estimated $5.5 million in total development 
costs. The project requests reimbursement to replace the public improvements in its narrow 
storefront, as well as install a transformer on-site that will replace existing pole-mounted 
transformers in the alley right-of-way. Total anticipated reimbursement is over $80,000. Applicant 
is I M IRIE TWO LLC, the site owner’s controlling entity.  The project is under construction, with 
its exterior shell nearly complete. The project’s Public Improvement plans are still pending final 
permitting approval. Final Public Improvement plans will be included in the executed Agreement 
Project Lead: Brady Shinn 

ParkBOI - 11th & Front Parking Garage - Agency Owned Property:  No significant 
maintenance performed in recent months.  Project Lead: Aaron Nelson 

Place Making 

Grove Street - Multi-Block Improvement Project:  The Old Boise Blocks on Grove Street, 
between 3rd and 5th Streets downtown, is ready for a catalytic transformation. With a few nearby 
projects already underway, CCDC is kicking off an inclusive community-driven visioning process 
to develop a place-making strategy for this site. The process began in June with a series of 
stakeholder visioning meetings to create a community-supported vision for the area. The public 
had several opportunities to engage in the visioning process through summer and fall 2020. 
Stakeholder visioning meetings were held on June 11 and July 9 with the final meetings scheduled 
for August 6 and September 17. Final draft of the visioning document is being prepared for review. 
Project Leads: Karl Woods, Jordyn Neerdaels 

Linen Blocks - W. Grove Street Improvements:  The Linen Blocks on Grove Street, between 

10th and 16th Streets downtown, is being assessed for catalytic infrastructure improvements. 
CCDC kicked off an inclusive community-driven visioning process in September 2020 to develop 
a reinvestment strategy for the Linen Blocks on Grove Street. The process will include a series of 
stakeholder visioning meetings to create a community-supported vision for the area. The public 
will have several opportunities to engage in the visioning process between now and April 2021. 
Project Lead:  Amy Fimbel 

Special Projects 

RMOB Public Art - City of Boise Broad Street Sculpture - PP Type 4:  Arts and History is 
putting together a memo on the project to send to their commission and City Council. The new 
design concept is scheduled for approval the first week of October by the A&H Commission and 
should result in an installation of the sculpture in spring / early summer 2021. Project Lead: Karl 
Woods 

 

 

 



 
 

Page 5 of 15 

WESTSIDE DISTRICT 

 

 

Economic Development 

11th Street Streetscape - Washington Street to Grove Street:  These streetscape 
improvements are planned for construction in FY2022. To maximize public investment, the 
Agency is working closely with ACHD on its 11th Street bikeway facilities project. To ensure that 
cooperative and coordinated solutions are developed by ACHD and the Agency in their respective 
planning processes, CCDC is conducting planning and design on a similar schedule to ACHD. 
Project Lead: Amy Fimbel 

1111 Idaho St - 11th & Idaho Building - PP Type 2:  This nine-story, Class A office building is 
being developed by Rafanelli and Nahas using the internationally recognized architecture firm 
Perkins + Will. The site is adjacent to the future Westside Urban Park and is being designed to 
complement the existing Boise Plaza office building on the adjacent block to the north. The 
development was designated as a Type 2 Participation Project in July 2019. The final agreement 
was presented to the Board in August 2019. Construction is underway. CCDC will reimburse the 
developers for public improvements being completed along Idaho and 11th streets. The 
reimbursement will be based on actual expenses and will not exceed $740,690. Project Lead: 
Brady Shinn 

1015 W. Main Street - 11th and Main Apartments - PP Type 1: Seattle’s Revolve Development 
purchased part of the former Safari Inn at 1015 W. Main Street. Revolve is redeveloping the 11th 
and Main building, transforming it from a 43-room hotel into 41 residential apartments, mostly 
studio units. Additionally, a teak-wood lattice façade will be added onto the existing stucco exterior 
walls. The developer was approved for a Type 1 Participation Project at the Board’s July 2020 
meeting to reimburse expenses to replace the 11th Street alley drive-ramp. The reimbursement 
will be based on actual expenses and will not exceed $23,000 pending final confirmed work scope. 
Project Lead: Brady Shinn 



 
 

Page 6 of 15 

1715 W. Idaho St - 17th and Idaho - Agency-Owned Property: 1715 W. Idaho was purchased 
by CCDC on July 1, 2020. On July 13, 2020, the CCDC Board of Commissioners authorized the 
Agency staff to work alongside a ‘Core Values Working Group’ to develop a RFQ-P for the site. 
On October 12, 2020, The RFQ-P was presented to CCDC’s Board of Commissioners for 
approval to publish. Project Lead: Brady Shinn 

1010 W. Jefferson St - 10Ten Building - Agency-Owned Property:  No significant maintenance 
items to report.  The Agency’s CM/GC for the Westside Urban Park project will be using a portion 
of the adjacent parking lot for construction staging.  Project Lead: Aaron Nelson  

1322 W. Main Street - Fire Fusion Studio -  PP Type 1: Local artist Delia Dante owns and 
operates Fire Fusion Studio, an art and metalworking gallery that has recently relocated to 1322 
W. Main Street. Ms. Dante is renovating the existing, empty building to house Fire Fusion Studio’s 
sales, art gallery and metalworking classes. The finished project will feature a completely re-built 
structure and roof, new interior finishes across the multiple spaces and new public improvements 
reimbursed by CCDC. The majority of public improvement costs relate to installing a new sidewalk 
on 14th Street and filling decommissioned vaults on both 14th and Main Streets.  The project 
received Board Approval in September 2020. Construction and renovation is nearing completion. 
Project Lead: Brady Shinn 

421 N. 10th St - ISG/BSN Building - Agency Owned Property:  No significant maintenance 
items to report.  The fence that encloses the adjacent parking lot had 4-5 poles that were bent 
and falling over. The Agency hired WashWorx to reset the poles and straighten the fence.  Project 
Lead: Aaron Nelson. 

Infrastructure 

Bannock Street Streetscape - 8th to 9th Streets:  The City of Boise conducted a public meeting 
and an online survey to gauge public support of the proposed design. Feedback was evaluated. 
The City presented the project to ACHD during a Commission work session in November 2019 
and to the ACHD Commission in January 2020 after which ACHD approved the design. The 
project received Design Review approval from the City in February 2020. The CCDC Board 
approved the contract for construction documents and construction administration services with 
Jensen Belts Associates and the ranking for CM/GC services in March 2020. The CM/GC contract 
with Guho Corp was executed in April.  Construction documents have been submitted to the City 
and ACHD for approval.  At a Special Board Meeting on July 27, 2020 the CCDC Board approved 
GMP (guaranteed maximum price) #1 with Guho Corp. Project is under construction and currently 
on schedule. Project Lead: Karl Woods  

10th & State Streets - Agency Owned Property:  CCDC is working with nearby landowners 
around the Agency-owned sites to create transformative development in the Brady Block area. 
CCDC is working to incentivize the future redevelopment of underutilized sites adjacent to the 
Brady Block. Project Lead: John Brunelle 

1010 W. Main St - Avery Building - PP Type:  This vacant, privately-owned building is currently 
undergoing renovation. CCDC has remained engaged with the developer and owner who is 
working on overall project financing. The developer is interested in utilizing the Agency’s 
Participation Program for historic preservation costs and anticipates submitting an application 
once the project completes its pre-development process. Project Lead: Brady Shinn 

State Street Streetscape & Fiber-Optic Conduit: The Agency is negotiating a cost share 
agreement with ACHD to include improvements on State Street as part of a road project 
tentatively scheduled for 2022. Agency-funded improvements would include installation of a fiber-
optic conduit bank on State between 8th and 14th, and construction of streetscape improvements 



 
 

Page 7 of 15 

to include street trees, Silva cells, and historic street lights from east of 12th to 14th streets. The 
Silva cells would serve a dual purpose of accommodating healthy street trees and managing 
stormwater from State Street. ACHD will credit CCDC for stormwater costs. Project Lead: Matt 
Edmond 

Westside URD – Boundary Adjustment:  The Agency is working to adjust the Westside URD 
boundary to add an additional 14 acres that includes the Boise High School campus, the 
downtown YMCA property, as well as right of way on Franklin Street and 8th Street. The City 
Council accepted an eligibility report in June 2019 and directed CCDC to move forward with 
amending the plan. The Plan Amendment must be reviewed by CCDC and the City Council as 
well as Planning and Zoning prior to adoption. The proposed plan amendment was approved by 
the Board on September 14 and was transmitted to the City thereafter for review by the Planning 
Commission on October 5 to verify its compliance with the Boise City Comprehensive Plan.  
Project Lead: Doug Woodruff 

Mobility 

ParkBOI - 10th & Front Garage - Agency Owned Property:  The Agency hired DESMAN to 
perform design services for structural damage prevention. Due to the complexity of the project 
and proximity to Hotel 43, the Agency has chosen to prequalify general contractors.  
Prequalification proposals were due September 9, 2020 and the contractors qualified to bid will 
be presented at the October 12, 2020 Board Meeting for approval.  The bid process will follow in 
November with an anticipated contract award at the December Board meeting and Spring 2021 
construction start. Project Lead: Aaron Nelson 

North 8th Street - City/ACHD Traffic Configuration:  A traffic and bike lane analysis performed 
by Kittleson & Associates and a design package by Jensen Belts Associates were presented to 
the City Council in January 2019. The City Council requested public outreach on the project. The 
City conducted a public meeting and an online survey to gauge public support of the proposed 
design. Feedback was evaluated. The City presented the project to ACHD’s Commission during 
a November 2019 work session. The Commission was receptive and asked for an interagency 
agreement for paving and for the project to be brought back for formal presentation. That 
presentation occurred in January 2020 after which ACHD approved the design. The project 
received Design Review approval from the City in February 2020. The CCDC Board approved 
the contract for construction documents and construction administration services with Jensen 
Belts Associates in March 2020. The Agency has been working to accelerate the project timeline 
to complete construction in 2020.  Construction documents have been submitted to the City and 
ACHD for permit review. At a Special Board meeting on July 27, 2020 the GMP (guaranteed 
maximum price) #1 with Guho Corp. Construction was approved.  Project is under construction 
and is currently on schedule. Project Lead: Karl Woods 

Place Making 

11th Street & Bannock Street - Westside Urban Park:  11th Street & Bannock Street - Westside 
Urban Park:  The City Council approved the Westside Urban Park Master Development 
Agreement and associated land agreement in June 2019. The completion of these agreements 
formalizes a public-private partnership that will result in the creation of a new downtown 
neighborhood urban park. This public investment complements construction of the adjacent 11th 
and Idaho development, a nine-story, Class A office building with retail/restaurant space fronting 
the park. Construction on the office tower began in August 2019 and is expected to be complete 
in November 2020. CCDC Board, Boise Arts & History Commission, and Boise City Council have 
approved artist Matthew Mazzotta’s “Gentle Breeze” design and the public artwork will be installed 



 
 

Page 8 of 15 

in conjunction with the park. CCDC Board approved the GMP (guaranteed maximum price) at the 
September 14 CCDC Board meeting and construction of the park began October 8, 2020 with 
ribbon cutting estimated in June 2021. Project Lead: Amy Fimbel  

30TH STREET DISTRICT 

 

Economic Development 

2403 W. Fairview Ave - Adare Manor - PP Type 2, 4:  Northwest Integrity Housing Company’s 

affordable housing development, consisting of 134 apartments, is complete and actively leasing 

units. The combined participation agreement is for approximately $730,000 for public 

improvements adjacent to the development including streetscapes and utility work. This 

development is on ground leased from the City of Boise for forty years and was awarded to the 

developer through a competitive process. The majority of the apartments will be for families 

earning less than 60% AMI (area median income) – about $44,000 per year for a family of four – 

with approximately 10% of the units offered at market rate. Reimbursement is complete. The First 

Amendment to both Agreements were approved by the Board in the September meeting. CCDC’s 

Reimbursement process is complete for both Agreements and payment for the Type 4 is 

imminent. Project Lead: Brady Shinn 

Mobility 

Main and Fairview Transit Stations and Platforms:  CCDC, in cooperation with the City of 
Boise and Valley Regional Transit, is redesigning and constructing improvements at seven bus 
stops along Main St. and Fairview Ave between Whitewater Park Blvd and N 16th St.  CCDC is 
contracting with HDR Engineering to provide design services which will be completed in spring 



 
 

Page 9 of 15 

2021 with construction to follow in summer 2021. Schematic designs will be shared with adjacent 
property owners in October 2020.  Project Lead: Amy Fimbel 

SHORELINE  

 

Economic Development 

Shoreline District - Downtown Boise Streetscape Standards Update:  CCDC, in collaboration 
with the City, is preparing to update the Downtown Boise Streetscape Standards Manual. These 
standards provide guidance to private development and Agency’s Capital Improvement Plan 
projects for streetscape improvements in the public rights-of-way within the downtown Urban 
Renewal Districts. 

The standards currently in effect were adopted by the City in 2015 and do not include the 
Shoreline District project area. This update will incorporate that project area as well as the 
innovative stormwater management strategies outlined in the City’s Lusk Street Neighborhood 
Master Plan and River Street Neighborhood Master Plan.   

The update will be reviewed by neighborhood stakeholders, the City, and ACHD before being 
considered for formal approval. Once approved by the CCDC Board, the updated standards will 
be forwarded to the City Council and recommended for final approval and adoption into Blueprint 
Boise. Preliminary meetings with property owners and area stakeholders have begun to help 
define the scope of this project. The project will include an emphasis on the 17th Street sub area 
of the Shoreline District. Project Lead: Doug Woodruff 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Page 10 of 15 

 

GATEWAY EAST 

 

Economic Development 

9100 S. Eisenman Road – PP Type 2:  R.L.R. Investments, LLC, 9100 S. Eisenman will host a 
new regional industrial mixed-use facility and be a regional hub for R.L.R. Investments’ national 
operations. The project will consist of three structures: a 5,000 SF office joined to a 60,000 SF 
freight terminal, and a 9,000 SF maintenance shop. The project will also renovate the existing, 
dilapidated fueling canopy. Seventy parking spaces and a private green space constitute the rest 
of the property’s development. Estimate total cost is $9.8 million. The project anticipates $385,000 
of Eligible Expenses to be paid over the standard Gateway District six-year term.  Estimated 
completion is summer 2021 and then fully on the tax roll by calendar year 2022. The project will 
generate roughly $80,000 in added tax increment per year. The project received approval at the 
June 2020 Board meeting. Construction is underway with preliminary earthwork and site work 
complete.  Project Lead: Brady Shinn 

9025 S. Federal Way – PP Type 2: 9025 S. Federal Way is an 11,000 square foot mixed-use 

office and industrial project consisting of three office suites and two warehouse bays on a 1.4-

acre lot located on the west side of Federal Way across from the Micron campus. The Board 

approved a Type 2 participation agreement for approximately $94,000 of Eligible Expenses on 

the $2.1 million project at its January 2020 meeting. The Applicant would like to start the 

reimbursement process. CCDC awaits cost justification materials. Project Lead: Matt Edmond 

9605 S. Eisenman Road – Boise Gateway 1 – PP Type 2: Boise Gateway 1 is a 168,000 square 

foot industrial building project with related site improvements located at the southwest corner of 

Eisenman Road and Freight Street. This is the first project / phase of the 140-acre Boise Gateway 

Industrial Park, on land owned by the City of Boise and ground-leased to the Boyer Company for 



 
 

Page 11 of 15 

development. The project was completed this summer and the primary tenant, Verde Fulfillment, 

has occupied the building and is operational. Total project value is estimated to be $13 million, 

with an estimated $425,000 of Eligible Expenses. The project was designated for Type 2 

assistance at the November 2019 Board meeting.  The Board approved a Type 2 participation 

agreement for approximately $426,000 of Eligible Expenses on the $12.7 million project at its 

April 2020 meeting.  Project Lead: Matt Edmond 

Mobility 

Gowen Road - ACHD Cost Share - PP Type 4:  ACHD will replace the Gowen Road bridge over 
the railroad right-of-way including widening the bridge to accommodate bike lanes and sidewalks. 
ACHD and the Agency executed the pathway cost share/participation agreement in May 2019. 
Since then, ACHD has advanced construction from 2022 to 2021.  The City has requested that 
gravel shoulders on the bridge approaches be replaced with wider sidewalk; necessitating 
amendment of the original agreement. The Agency, City and ACHD have also agreed to terms 
for a proposed Interagency Agreement to install fiber-optic conduit along Gowen Road as part of 
the project. The total of both cost share agreements is estimated to be approximately $360,000 
per the engineer’s estimate based on the 99% plans.  The CCDC Board approved the amended 
cost share agreement and the interagency agreement at its May 18, 2020 meeting. Project Lead: 
Matt Edmond. 

Gateway East Transportation Study: The Agency contracted HDR to perform a transportation 
study of the Gateway East District to determine the necessary number of lanes on major roads, 
optimal secondary access points, and recommended traffic control. HDR has completed the 
technical report with significant input from the project team, which included representatives from 
the Agency, City and ACHD. Agency staff presented the findings to the CCDC Board at its July 
13, 2020 meeting then transmitted those findings to ACHD for consideration in the upcoming 
ACHD Master Street Map and Capital Improvement Plan updates. Project Lead: Matt Edmond 

Infrastructure 

Production Street and Gowen Road Utilities: This project will install new fiber optic conduit 
banks and associated vaults along Production Street and Gowen Road for the City to enhance 
data connectivity within city limits. Civil Survey Consultants completed the design of the project 
and CCDC plans to bid the work January 2021 with construction to follow in spring 2021. Project 
Lead: Amy Fimbel 

AGENCY WIDE – ALL DISTRICTS 
 

Economic Development 

ParkBOI - All Garages - Cleaning: During the months of April and May, while the citizens were 
complying with the Governor’s and Mayor’s COVID-19 pandemic-caused shelter-in-place orders 
and only essential businesses were allowed to be open, a concerted effort was made to enhance 
the appearance of all ParkBOI garages. This included scrubbing the walking surfaces of all 
stairwells and elevator lobbies, repainting handrails and step edges, washing windows inside and 
out and touch up painting wherever needed.  The last major undertaking was cleaning and 
painting the elevator lobbies and stairwells of the Capitol & Main Garage, which occurred when 



 
 

Page 12 of 15 

the elevator refurbishment project was completed. Improvements continue as warranted. Project 
Lead: Max Clark  

ParkBOI - New Product - Nighttime Monthly: As part of the parking rate discussion at the March 
2020 meeting, the Agency recommended that the 10th & Front parking garage be designated to 
accommodate proposed nighttime-monthly parking pass-holders, making it available to these 
parkers as early as 3 pm – an attractive alternative to a regular monthly pass. The Agency will 
examine implementing this product as the economy recovers from the COVID-19 pandemic.  
Project Lead: Max Clark   

ParkBOI - New Product - Carpool Priority: A soft opening for this new product commenced July 
1, 2020 via the City Go program.  Despite promotions there have been no takers as of now, mostly 
due to the fact that most businesses are still working remotely.  Project Lead: Matt Edmond   

CityGO: Formerly known as the Downtown Mobility Collaborative, the downtown’s Transportation 
Management Association is up and running. This partnership of VRT, City of Boise, ACHD 
Commuteride, BSU, St Luke’s, Downtown Boise Association (DBA), and CCDC involves 
marketing its transportation products and services to the downtown community. The October 
Agency Board agenda includes approval of the MOU for these efforts.  An overview can be found 
at citygoboise.com. Project Lead: Matt Edmond 

ParkBOI - 9th & Main Parking Garage - Elevators:  The project was delayed about 4 weeks. 
The elevator modernization for the Idaho street side elevator will start October 12 and end 
November 6. The main street side elevator will start November 16th and end December 11th.  
Project Lead: Aaron Nelson 

ParkBOI - Capitol & Main Parking Garage - Elevators:  This project modernized the existing 
elevators in the Capitol & Main Garage with new finishes and amenities, improved efficiency, 
reliability and brought the elevators up to current code. Schindler Elevator reached substantial 
completion in late August 2020, but still has to replace undersized components in one car and 
complete contract paperwork prior to release of the final payment/retainage. The remaining work 
is estimated to be completed end of October to early November.  Project Lead: Aaron Nelson 

ParkBOI - 9th & Front Parking Garage - Agency Owned Property:  Over the years, the stair 
towers on the 9th & Front Garage have experienced damage due to water infiltration. In March 
2020 the Agency contracted with Slichter Ugrin Architects to provide design services for the 
repairs. Due to the complexity of the project on the exterior stair towers, the Agency has chosen 
to prequalify general contractors.  Prequalification proposals were due September 9, 2020 and 
the contractors qualified to bid will be presented at the October 12, 2020 Board Meeting for 
approval.  The bid process will follow in November with an anticipated contract award at the 
December Board meeting and Spring 2021 construction start. Project Lead: Aaron Nelson 

ParkBOI - Door Hardware & ADA Upgrades:  Slichter Ugrin Architects have been hired as the 
design professional to develop plans and specifications for this project.  Hellman Construction 
Company, Inc., was the responsive low bidder and is under contract. A Notice to Proceed has 
been issued and construction is underway. Construction is scheduled to be substantially complete 
in mid-October 2020.  Project Lead: Karl Woods 

Mobility 

11th Street Bikeway - ACHD Collaboration - River Street to Washington Street:  11th Street 
has been identified in plans by the City and ACHD as an important corridor for the west side of 
downtown Boise. It prioritizes cyclists, pedestrians, retail business, and residents while 
accommodating existing vehicular use. ACHD is advancing with the design of bikeway facility 
improvements for 11th Street from Heron Street to Washington Street in preparation for 



 
 

Page 13 of 15 

installation in FY2022. CCDC is leading a public engagement process to produce a concept 
design for 11th Street from River Street to Washington Street. This downtown segment of the 
11th Street Bikeway spans two URD’s (RMOB and Westside) both of which have funding 
programmed in FY2022 to build the infrastructure associated with this bikeway. At its April 2020 
Board meeting, the Board approved a contract with Kittelson & Associates to assist the Agency 
with the concept design and public engagement process. Initial interviews with property owners 
and businesses along 11th Street are complete and results from the online survey and comment 
map have been shared with the public and project stakeholders. Public and stakeholder feedback 
on the two bikeway concept designs began September 24 and will run through October 9, 2020. 
Project Lead: Amy Fimbel 

State Street Study Area: The Agency’s primary consultant for the State Street Study Area, MIG, 
is wrapping up phase 1 of its Scope, Planning Context and Assessment, as well as preparation 
for public outreach in collaboration with Agency and City of Boise staff.  A virtual public 
engagement exercise and agency stakeholder outreach will begin in October. Agency staff plans 
to present initial findings at the Board’s November 2020 meeting. Project Lead: Matt Edmond 

Condominium Associations 

 

Building Eight Condominiums Association 
CCDC Contact: Aaron Nelson 

Member Unit Percent Interest 

CCDC  Capitol & Myrtle Parking Garage (Unit 2) 35% 

Raymond Management Hampton Inn & Suites (Unit 1) 62.5% 

Hendricks Retail Units (Units 3 & 4) 2.5% 

Condo Board Meetings 

Last Meeting Next Meeting Next Report Due 

December 2019 TBD, October 2020 December 31, 2019 

Issues/Comments: 
To discuss breaking out business income insurance from 
association policy and next meeting. 

 

Front Street Condominium Association  
CCDC Contact: Aaron Nelson 

Member Unit Percent Interest 

CCDC  9th & Front Parking Garage 25.76% 

GBAD  2.00% 

Aspen Condominiums Aspen Lofts 52.17% 

Hendricks BoDo Retail Units 20.07% 



 
 

Page 14 of 15 

Condo Board Meetings 

Last Meeting/Report Next Meeting Next Report Due 

November 7, 2019 TBD, November 2020 November 30, 2020 

Issues/Comments:  

 

Block 22 Condominium Association  
CCDC Contact: Aaron Nelson 

Member Unit Percent Interest 

CCDC  Capitol & Front Parking Garage 13.30% 

Block 22 The Grove Hotel, CenturyLink Arena 86.70% 

Condo Board Meetings 

Last Meeting/Report Next Meeting Next Report Due 

July 21, 2020 TBD March 31, 2021 

Issues/Comments:  

 

Capitol Terrace Condominium Association  
CCDC Contact: Aaron Nelson 

Member Unit Percent Interest 

CCDC  Capitol & Main Parking Garage 50% 

Hawkins Companies Main + Marketplace 50% 

Condo Board Meetings 

Last Meeting/Report Next Meeting Next Report Due 

February 12, 2020 TBD February 28, 2021 

Issues/Comments:  

 

Downtown Parking Condominiums Association  
CCDC Contact: Aaron Nelson 

Member Unit Percent Interest 



 
 

Page 15 of 15 

CCDC  9th & Main Parking Garage 93.51% 

Les Bois Holdings, LLC Commercial, Main Street side 2.03% 

Eastman Building, LLC Commercial, Idaho Street side 4.46% 

Condo Board Meetings 

Last Meeting/Report Next Meeting Next Report Due 

September 11, 2020 TBD September 30, 2021 

Issues/Comments:  

 

ACME Fast Freight Condominium Association  
CCDC Contact: Matt Edmond 

Member Unit Percent Interest 

CCDC  
11th & Front Parking Garage, 30.1% 

(Units 402, 403, 501, 502) 
28.485% 

Ball Ventures Ahlquist 
11th & Front Parking Garage, 69.9% 

(Units 104, 015, 201, 202, 301, 302, 401) 
66.490% 

Boise Metro Chamber 
Boise Chamber Offices  
(Units 101, 102, 203) 

5.025% 

Condo Board Meetings 

Last Meeting/Report Next Meeting Next Report Due 

September 9, 2020 TBD September 30, 2021 

Issues/Comments:  

 

# # # 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VI. 
ADJOURN 

 
 
  



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

END 
 
  


	Board of Commissioners Divider Page
	10-12-20 Board Meeting Agenda
	III Consent Agenda Divider Page
	CONSENT - Paid Invoices Report - Sept 2020
	CONSENT - 09-14-2020 Board Meeting Minutes
	CONSENT - Reso 1672 - CityGo MOU
	Blank Page Divider Page2
	CONSENT  Reso 1677 - 9th & Front Garage Contractor  Prequalifications
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Blank Page Divider Page1
	CONSENT - Reso 1678 - 10th & Front Garage Contractor Prequalification
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Blank Page Divider Page3
	CONSENT - Reso 1679 - HDR Amendment 1
	afimbel HDR_Main Fairview Transit Stations Amend 1.pdf
	ADPE4E8.tmp
	300 TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY & BASE MAPPING
	Assumptions
	Deliverables




	Blank Page Divider Page4
	IV Action Items Divider Page
	ACTION - 1715 W. Idaho - RFP Publish with Appendix
	ADP357E.tmp
	Financing Sources

	07B_Geotech Report.pdf
	191526 - 99 - Vicinity Map_R0 (2)-Layout2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2


	191526 - 99 - Exploration Map-Layout 1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout 1


	Figure 3 - SOIL IMPROVEMENT DETAIL.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Final Logs 1.10.20.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	B1_1-2

	Sheets and Views
	B1_2-2

	Sheets and Views
	B2_1-2

	Sheets and Views
	B2_2-2

	Sheets and Views
	B3_1-2

	Sheets and Views
	B3_2-2




	Blank Page Divider Page5
	V Information Items Divider Page
	INFORMATION - October 12, 2020 CCDC Monthly Report
	VI Adjourn
	End Divider Page



